

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:00 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. 


 


Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Final Settlement Agreement Information for possible action. 


2.2. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding 
Anticipated Litigation (Govt. Code Section 
54956.9) 


Number of cases: 1 


2.3. Liability Claims (Govt. Code Section 
54956.95) 


Claimant: Mondo Family Real Estate Partnership & Levity Vans 
Agency claimed against: Santa Cruz City Schools 


2.3. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action. 


2.4. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action. 


2.5. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from Trustees regarding negotiations with 
the GSCFT. 


2.6. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from Trustees regarding negotiations with 
the SCCCE. 


2.7. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Title: Superintendent Subject: 2021-22 Goals Update 


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome  


1/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


3.2. Pledge of Allegiance   


3.3. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 


Announcements 


  


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time.  


 
   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 


5.2. Students’ Reports 
 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.2. Board President's Report  
 


   


7. Approval of Minutes   


   


8. General Public Business   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  


 


2/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.1. Educational Services . 


8.1.1.1. Second Quarter Williams Report  


8.1.1.2. Out of State Conference Request   


   


8.1.2. Business Services  


8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  


8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  


8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers  


8.1.2.4. Bond Projects Notice of Completion  


8.1.2.5. Disposition of Surplus Property  


   


8.1.3. Human Resources  


8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions--Certificated  


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions--Classified  


   


8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services  


8.2.1.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Monterey 
Bay Area Math Project 


 


3/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.2. Business Services  


8.2.2.1. 
Development Group Inc.: Proposal: Security 
Cameras 


 


8.2.3. Human Resources None. 


8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 


   
8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 


Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


8.3.1 Anaya Construction: Change Order 1: Santa 
Cruz High School Temporary Housing 


 


8.3.2. California Premier Restoration: Proposal: 
Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing 
Dry Rot Repair 


 


8.3.3.  Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.: Contract: DeLaveaga 
Elementary School Kindergarten Window 
Assembly  


 


8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.: Proposal: District 
Office Automatic Door Operators  


 


   
8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.1.1. New Business: Redistricting: First and/or 
Final Reading for Trustee Area Maps 


Recommendation: Approve the Trustee Area Maps for First 
and/or Final Reading 


4/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.2. Educational Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Transitional Kindergarten 
Expansion Update 


Staff will provide an update on the Transitional 
Kindergarten Expansion. 


8.5.3. Business Services   


8.5.3.1. New Business: District Audit Recommendation: Approve the annual District Audit for 
2020-21 to accept the information provided for 2020-21. 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Bond Measures A & B Audit Recommendation: Approve the annual Bond Measures A & 
B Audit to accept the information provided for 2020-21. 


8.5.3.3. New Business: Resolution 21-21-22 
Authorization of Tax-Exempt Equipment 
Lease 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 21-21-22 
Authorization of Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease. 


8.5.4. Human Resources  


8.5.4.1. PUBLIC HEARING: New Personnel 
Commissioner 


 


8.5.4.2. New Business: New Personnel 
Commissioner 


Recommendation: Approve the term of service for the new 
Personnel Commissioner 


8.5.4.3. New Business: Annual Resolution 17-21-22: 
Determination of K-12 District Needs 


Recommendation: Approve Annual Resolution 17-21-22: 
Determination of K-12 District Needs. 


8.5.4.4. New Business: Annual Resolution 18-21-22: 
Tie Breaker Criteria 


Recommendation: Approve Annual Resolution 18-21-22: 
Tie Breaker Criteria. 


8.5.4.5. New Business: SCCS/GSCFT Tentative 
Agreement 


Recommendation: Approve the tentative agreement 
between SCCS/GSCFT for the 2022-2025 calendar and 
new article on digital learning. 


   
8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent   


8.5.5.1. New Business: Resolution 19-21-22: 
Proclaiming Black History Month 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 19-21-22: 
Proclaiming Black History Month 


8.5.5.2. New Business: Resolution 20-21-22: AB 
361 


Determine whether or not to continue with virtual Board 
meetings for the next 30 days. 


5/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 6 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.5.3. Board Policies: Second and/or Final 
Reading for CSBA Revisions & Updates 


Recommendation: Approve the revised policies for second 
and/or final reading. 


8.5.5.4. Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas  


   


9. Adjournment  


  
 


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 48220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x48220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 - Page 7 of 7 


2. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7/371







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
   


AGENDA ITEM:  Williams Uniform Complaint 2nd Quarter Report 
  
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
  
FROM:                      Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:               Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Williams Uniform Complaint 2nd Quarter Report for 2021-22. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Education Code and the District’s Administrative Regulation on the Williams 
Uniform Complaint Policy, school districts must submit quarterly reports to the County Office of 
Education of all complaints filed in the areas of insufficient instructional materials, teacher 
vacancy or misassignment, and inadequate facilities. 
  
Upon contacting each school site, it has been verified that there have been no complaints for 
the third quarter of the school year, which ended December 31, 2021. The accompanying 
report has been created to show that the district did not receive any complaints this quarter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


8/371







QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS 


TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 


QUARTER END DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
 


DISTRICT:  Santa Cruz City Schools Date Reported to District Governing Board: January 12, 2022 


 
I. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 


A) Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
B)  Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
C) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


II. TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT 
A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 
B)  Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with  


      More than 20% ELL in class: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


C)  Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:   


 


III. FACILITIES 


A) Conditions posing an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved 


0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 


*Explanation:     


   


9/371







  AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Out of State Conference Request: Santa Cruz High School and   


Harbor High 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:  Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     
Approve the out of state conference request for the Santa Cruz and Harbor High School 
Activities Directors to attend the California Association of Directors of Activities Convention in 
Reno, Nevada from March 2nd – March 5th, 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The California Association of Directors of Activities was established in 1957, as a way for 
activities directors across the state to get together to share common problems and solutions. 
Since then, the organization has grown into the largest statewide support network for activities 
directors. 
 
Each year the California Association of Directors of Activities hosts a convention, providing a 
space for activities directors to receive professional development and an opportunity for 
networking with other directors from across the state.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,526.00 LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  
 


10/371







11/371







12/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 12/01/2021 through 
12/31/2021. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2021-22 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $99,100 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $99,100 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $99,100 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $99,100 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 


13/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


14/371







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/01/2021 - 12/31/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


BPO22-00011 4,500.00 TRNHMiddle School WA Supplies 01 SE:PROJECT WORKAMAZON.COM


PO22-00041 41,000.00 TRANTransportation 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEOTTLEY INC DBA BLUE


PO22-00074 21,000.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs/Service 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEDIESELWORKS


PO22-00093 92,000.00 FIN21-22 COPIER LEASE PAYMENTS 01 NO REPORTING RECANON FINANCIAL SER


PO22-00547 264,000.00 DOHOT SPOTS COVID-19 01 ELO ESSER IIT-MOBILE USA INC


PO22-01403 480.00 DLELOpen PO PBIS Program Books 01 IPI GFAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01425 700.00 SCHSSAFETY ITEMS 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01476 694.83 HHSCarts 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01487 582.01 ITCFP: Viewsonic for HR 01 NO REPORTING RECDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01488 192.17 DLELDLV Music- order from 2019-2020 01 NO REPORTING RESTEVE WEISS MUSIC I


PO22-01489 700.00 SUPTACSA 2022 Superintendent's 


Symposium


01 NO REPORTING REACSA


PO22-01490 2,319.06 M&OMOT LAPTOPS (ELLERY & MOT) 01 ONGOING & MAJORCDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01491 1,643.12 M&OMOT DIRECTOR COMPUTER 01 ONGOING & MAJORCDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01492 157.30 WLELInk Toner 01 NO REPORTING RECARTRIDGE WORLD


PO22-01493 400.00 FSCFP ANNUAL SOFTWARE HOSTING 


FEE


13 CHLD NUTR:SCHOOE-CONTROL SYSTEMS I


PO22-01494 587.51 BSSDiploma covers 01 NO REPORTING REJOSTENS INC


PO22-01495 211.99 BSSQuote E60817. Diploma printing 01 NO REPORTING RECOMMUNITY PRINTERS 


PO22-01496 7,500.00 HHSOpen PO for Baseball Umpires 01 Measure TSANTA CRUZ COUNTY B


PO22-01497 10,200.00 M&OMOT - BV TRANE REWIRING 01 ONGOING & MAJORSC SYSTEMS


PO22-01498 93,221.93 M&ODW TV MOUNTS 21 BOND, MEASURE AMANTELMOUNT


PO22-01499 8,000.00 M&O21/22 PO FOR HAZMAT WASTE 


REMOVAL


01 ONGOING & MAJORINGENIUM


PO22-01500 19,350.00 SUPTThoughtExchange Additional Licenses 01 NO REPORTING REFULCRUM MGMT SOLUTI


PO22-01501 126.00 MHMSFor AVID Cattos order-AVID 


Sweatshirts


01 DONATIONSCATTOS GRAPHICS INC


PO22-01502 475.02 BSSQuote #5683 Clay 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO22-01503 120.00 SQHSCFP-FARM TOUR/FIELD TRIP 11/1/21 01 Measure TFARM DISCOVERY AT L


PO22-01504 183.54 WLELBulb for Projector 01 NO REPORTING RENORTHSTAR AV LLC


PO22-01505 94.77 CURRCFP: 20-21 World History Books 


Purchase


01 NO REPORTING RECENGAGE LEARNING


PO22-01506 39.18 SCHSCFP-LIBRARY BOOKS 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01507 400.00 GAELIncentives for PBIS 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01508 296.90 MHMSLICENSES Sountrap music for Eldred 01 NO REPORTING RESPOTIFY USA INC


PO22-01509 528.00 M&OMOT - SITE CLOUD SERVICE FOR 


SOLAR


01 ONGOING & MAJORSENSERA SYSTEMS INC


PO22-01510 935.00 M&OMOT - HH BASEBALL GATE 01 OTHER RESTRICTEABACHERLI FENCE CO


PO22-01511 2,616.54 SCHSYEARBOOK CAMERAS 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01512 46.93 HHSSharpies 01 Measure TAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01513 1,535.46 HHSPE Equipment 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL HEALTH SUPPL


PO22-01514 42.85 HHSFlag 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL SPECIALTY LL


PO22-01515 1,455.25 HHSBus for Girls Soccer 01 DONATIONSDISCOVERY CHARTERS


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Dec 30 2021  9:43AM


Page 1 of 4


15/371







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/01/2021 - 12/31/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01516 15,000.00 EDSVLarry Ainsworth PD 01 ESSER IILARRY AINSWORTH CON


PO22-01517 81,925.41 M&O21/22 DGI Pixellot Camera Cabling HS 40 BUILDING FUND -DEVELOPMENT GROUP I


PO22-01518 200.00 SPEDBOOKS - DISTRICT WIDE 01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01519 353.83 SPEDASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY FOR SPED 


SERVICES


01 SE:STATE LOCALCDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01520 222.08 CURRBooks/Workbooks for TOSAs 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01521 500.00 BSSOpen PO plants for horticulture class 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIMONTEREY BAY NURSER


PO22-01522 1,560.00 M&OMOT - HARBOR ROOF WORK 01 ONGOING & MAJORI & A CONTRACTOR IN


PO22-01523 400.00 GAELBooks for PBIS Incentives 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01524 500.00 WLELSafety Supplies 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01525 13,000.00 TRANOpen PO for Transportation 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEADROIT ADVANCED TEC


PO22-01526 25,000.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FOR ATHLETIC FIELD 


FINES


01 ONGOING & MAJORTMT ENTERPRISES INC


PO22-01527 503.00 BVELPE for After School Program-Confirm 


for payment


01 DONATIONSBOARDWALK BOWL


PO22-01528 1,283.25 CURRSeal of Biliteracy Supplies 01 NO REPORTING RECALIFORNIANS TOGETH


PO22-01529 305.42 SQHSI WAS THEIR AMERICAN DREAM: A 


GRAPHIC MEMOIR


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCTEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE


PO22-01530 544.67 SQHSMIDFIRE & SPECKLED BUFF CLAY 01 NO REPORTING REPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO22-01531 4,164.26 FSFS 2 Door 


Freezer/S#21020800C40008


13 CHLD NUTR:SCHOOEAST BAY RESTAURANT


PO22-01532 128.92 DLELDLV Learning A-Z Quote. Goal 1, 


Strategy 7


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCLEARNING A-Z


PO22-01533 157.78 HHSLibrary Books 01 DONATIONSBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01534 306.52 BVELTV & Cables for Principal 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01535 600.00 STUSBasic Audiometry Class 01 NO REPORTING RECSU SAN BERNADINO


PO22-01536 287.61 SQHSCFP-ARG-CO2 INVOICE 67053575 01 C. PERKINS CTE:LINDE GAS & EQUIPME


PO22-01537 300.00 CURRPre-Pay Auto Shop License yearly 


renewal


01 Measure TBUREAU OF AUTOMOTIV


PO22-01538 1,531.17 HHSEtching Press, Art Supplies 01 Measure TDICK BLICK COMPANY


PO22-01539 614.86 HHSClay 01 Measure TPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO22-01540 2,500.00 M&OMOT - CLAY SLUMP REMOVAL 01 ONGOING & MAJORGREEN LINE


PO22-01541 734.24 BSSQuote 2119052. Science class 


supplies


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDINASCO


PO22-01542 43.70 MHMSchrome cart clips-Quote MMQB675 01 DONATIONSCDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01543 1,201.31 HHSJ-Hooks 01 NO REPORTING REOPTI-FIT


PO22-01544 2,994.44 WLELCFP - Books 01 DONATIONSSCHOLASTIC BOOK FAI


PO22-01545 9,039.35 DLELLLI Kits Goal 1, Strategy 2 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCHEINEMANN


PO22-01546 311.07 BVELMusic Supplies - Confirm for Payment 01 DONATIONSWEST MUSIC COMPANY 


PO22-01547 235.00 HHSHeadset 01 NO REPORTING RECDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01548 2,226.69 EDSVDTS Translations 01 NO REPORTING REDOCUMENT TRACKING S


PO22-01550 250.00 SCHSCFP-FOOTBAL LEAGUE FEES 01 Measure TPACIFIC COAST ATHLE


PO22-01551 168.07 SCHSlibrary supplies 01 OTHER RESTRICTEDEMCO INC


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Dec 30 2021  9:43AM


Page 2 of 4


16/371







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/01/2021 - 12/31/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01553 971.23 SUPTCOVID POSTERS CDPH 


GUIDELINES/EVENTS


01 ESSERCOMMUNITY PRINTERS 


PO22-01554 333.20 SPEDASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY SPED 


SERVICES


01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01555 391.32 DLELDLV Basketball and Tetherballs 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL SPECIALTY LL


PO22-01556 263.42 M&OMOT - SOFTBALL HOME PLATES 01 OTHER RESTRICTEANTHEM SPORTS LLC


PO22-01557 2,724.63 HHSToner Cartridges, Drum 01 Measure TB & H PHOTO


PO22-01558 410.31 WLELCurriculm Materials 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCHEGGERTY PHONEMIC A


PO22-01559 81.68 WLELCurriculm Materials 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01560 270.99 SPEDSAIL - PHYSICAL SCIENCE 


CURRICULUM


01 SE:STATE LOCALTEACHERS PAY TEACHE


PO22-01561 222.02 SPEDPSYCHOLOGY ASSESSMENTS 21-22 01 SE:STATE LOCALRIVERSIDE INSIGHTS


PO22-01562 819.38 STUSPre-Referral Intervention Manual 01 OTHER RESTRICTEHAWTHORNE EDUCATION


PO22-01563 825.00 CURRCCSS Memberships 01 NO REPORTING RECA COUNCIL FOR SOCI


PO22-01564 5,071.00 STUSBeyond SST 01 OTHER RESTRICTESAN JOAQUIN COE


PO22-01565 7,728.00 SPEDDSYLEXIA PROGRAM - ELEM-. 


DISPUTE RESOLUTION FUNDS


01 Sped DisputeBRIGHT SOLUTIONS FO


PO22-01566 1,150.35 BSSHandwriting workbooks. Quote 


#7027806142


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCSAVVAS LEARNING COM


PO22-01567 653.58 BSSQuote QBP8535-14 Paint for 


classroom use


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCDICK BLICK COMPANY


PO22-01568 1,393.09 BSSQuote MPOST-11172021-006 Math 


workbooks


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCMCGRAW HILL EDUCATI


PO22-01569 606.95 BSSQuote Q-19985 Handwriting 


workbooks


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCLEARNING WITHOUT TE


PO22-01570 600.00 BSSRoller party--Community building 


event.


01 NO REPORTING RESANTA CRUZ ROLLER P


PO22-01571 4,000.00 SQHSCFP-ANNUAL PARTICIPATION 


FEE/SOFTWARE LICENSE


01 Measure T2080 MEDIA INC DBA 


PO22-01572 245.31 SQHSCFP-TIRE REPAIR (2) & NEW (2) 01 NO REPORTING RETIRE CHOICE AUTO SE


PO22-01573 1,108.41 FINCOVID MUSICIAN MASKS 01 ESSERPEPWEAR


PO22-01574 1,560.00 BMSRef Fees for Basketball 01 Measure USANTA CRUZ COUNTY B


PO22-01575 108.20 SQHSBARCODE LABEL COVERS 1 1/2" X 3 


1/4"


01 NO REPORTING REMEDIA FLEX INC


PO22-01576 2,565.00 M&OMOT - SCH BOILER REPAIR 01 ONGOING & MAJORBAY CITY BOILER & E


PO22-01577 3,300.00 CURRCCSS Conference Registration (Early 


Bird pricing)


01 ESSER III ARPCA COUNCIL FOR SOCI


PO22-01578 1,000.00 SQHSOPEN PO FOR WELDING SUPPLIES 01 OTHER RESTRICTELINDE GAS & EQUIPME


PO22-01579 3,453.99 SQHSCERAMIC SUPPLIES 01 Measure TCLAY PLANET


PO22-01580 960.00 SQHSOPEN PO-WINTER SPORTS 01 Measure TCIF-CCS


PO22-01581 1,311.00 MHMSHow to Change Everything & Queer 


Hist of the US


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCPERMA BOUND DIVISIO


PO22-01582 476.03 HHSTextbooks 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01583 316.18 SQHSCFP-ARG-CO2 INVOICE 67014365 01 C. PERKINS CTE:LINDE GAS & EQUIPME


PO22-01584 693.00 DLELEstrellita PD Goal 1- Strategy 3 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCESTRELLITA INC


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Dec 30 2021  9:43AM


Page 3 of 4


17/371







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/01/2021 - 12/31/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01585 193.57 BSSQuote #QBP8535-15 Art supplies 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIDICK BLICK COMPANY


PO22-01586 599.23 BSSQuote 5837201. Supplemental 


classroom books


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDICENGAGE LEARNING


PO22-01587 1,307.62 BSSQuote 890579782. Camera. 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIB & H PHOTO


PO22-01588 460.67 HHSLibrary Books 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01589 10,064.88 M&OMOT - NB INSURANCE TREE FALL 01 OTHER RESTRICTECOMMUNITY TREE SERV


PO22-01590 550.88 HRCOVID Safety Coordinator 01 ESSERLES FORSTER


PO22-01591 128.26 DLELPBIS Composition Books 01 IPI GFAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01592 745.00 M&OSCHS - FIRE GATE LOCK 21 BOND, MEASURE AABACHERLI FENCE CO


PO22-01593 1,100.58 M&ODLV LIBRARY ERGONOMICS 21 BOND, MEASURE BPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO22-01594 47.16 SUPTPlaque for Board President 01 NO REPORTING REBRINKS AWARDS & SIG


PO22-01595 15,539.00 M&OBV SPEAKER INTEGRATION 21 BOND, MEASURE BCOMMUNICATION SERVI


PO22-01596 18,659.00 M&ODLV SPEAKER INTEGRATION 21 BOND, MEASURE BCOMMUNICATION SERVI


PO22-01597 35,510.00 M&OWL WHITEBOARD & TV INSTALL 21 BOND, MEASURE BDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01598 11,980.00 M&OBV WHITEBOARD INSTALL 21 BOND, MEASURE BDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01599 86,285.35 M&OHH FA SHADE STRUCTURE 21 BOND, MEASURE APARK ASSOCIATES INC


PO22-01600 17,257.00 M&OSCH TEMP HOUSING CONDUIT 21 BOND, MEASURE APSR ELECTRIC


PO22-01601 36,211.75 M&OMOT-GATEWAY HVAC REPAIRSx2 01 OTHER RESTRICTEACCO-WILSON INC DBA


PO22-01602 3,950.00 M&OTRANSPORTATION YARD IN PLANT 


INSPECTION


21 BOND, MEASURE ANORTH AMERICAN TECH


PO22-01603 313.18 SPEDCFP: SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES 01 SE:STATE LOCALSCHOLASTIC MAGAZINE


PO22-01604 800.00 BVELStaff Business Cards 01 NO REPORTING REALPHAGRAPHICS SUNNY


PO22-01605 65.45 SPEDCFP: SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES 01 SE:STATE LOCALSCHOLASTIC MAGAZINE


PO22-01606 199.00 CURRIC Intro to SQL 01 NO REPORTING REINFINITE CAMPUS INC


PO22-01607 398.00 SPEDDHOH - ONLINE ITINERANT 


PROFESSIONAL ACADMEY


01 SE:STATE LOCALTHE ONLINE ITINERAN


PO22-01608 4,065.00 CURRAchieve 3000 for Santa Cruz High 


School


01 ESEA:ENGLISH LEACHIEVE 3000 INC


PO22-01609 2,950.15 CURRWoodcraft Supply drum sander for 


SCHS.


01 Measure TWOODCRAFT SUPPLIES 


PO22-01610 645.00 ITInfinite Campus Integrated Messaging 


System


01 NO REPORTING REINFINITE CAMPUS INC


PO22-01611 1,000.00 BSSOpen PO copy paper 01 NO REPORTING RESTAPLES ADVANTAGE


PO22-01612 755.41 BVELBV Folder 01 OTHER RESTRICTEEDGEWOOD PRESS INC


PO22-01613 37.01 CURRBooks/Workbooks for TOSAs 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01614 3,200.00 SPED2021-2022/APS - D.BELL: IEP 


MANDATED SERVICES


01 SE:STATE LOCALDEBORAH BELL MA/CCC


PO22-01615 174.75 DLELDLV Music- order from 2019-2020 01 NO REPORTING RESTEVE WEISS MUSIC I


PO22-01616 14,086.00 HHSChromebooks 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDICDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01617 500.00 DLELOpen PO for office paper 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDISTAPLES ADVANTAGE


PO22-01618 1,000.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FIRE SPINKLER 


REPAIRS


01 ONGOING & MAJORA & B FIRE PROTECTI


Total 1,063,820.18 


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Dec 30 2021  9:43AM


Page 4 of 4


18/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


19/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


Petersen Lindberg, Erin E 01-430012/06/2021985824 516.41 


Turpin, Maritza 01-430012/06/2021985825 200.00 


LARRY AINSWORTH CONSULTING 01-580012/06/2021985826 15,000.00 


RAY MORGAN CO. 01-560012/06/2021985827 27,517.83 


THE HARTFORD LTD ATTN: GROUP 


BENEFITS


01-951412/06/2021985828 3,650.07 


19SIX ARCHITECTS 21-621012/06/2021985829 7,312.50 


BARTOS ARCHITECTURE INC 21-621012/06/2021985830 58,908.22 


CRW INDUSTRIES INC 21-620212/06/2021985831 190,712.50 


DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 21-641112/06/2021985832 162,021.28 


GEO H WILSON 21-620212/06/2021985833 14,184.00 


MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES INC 21-628012/06/2021985834 8,414.00 


PSR ELECTRIC 21-620212/06/2021985835 42,617.60 


PG&E 01-551312/06/2021985836 84,709.57 


11-5513 86,758.87 2,049.30 


SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 01-551412/06/2021985837 33,480.37 


01-5515 3,683.21 


01-5523 15,457.28 


11-5514 51.53 


11-5515 40.75 


11-5523 53,049.34 336.20 


T-MOBILE USA INC 01-590012/06/2021985838 147.48 


Mabrouk, Gail E 01-430012/06/2021985839 71.93 


Carvajal, Soledad 01-430012/06/2021985840 41.87 


Munro, Kristin E 01-520012/06/2021985841 73.81 


Weckler, Rosario 01-430012/06/2021985842 66.93 


Forbes, Leticia C 01-580012/06/2021985843 74.00 


Dahlen, Luke J 01-430012/06/2021985844 308.92 


Faix, Susan M 01-580012/06/2021985845 35.00 


Gaona, Mireya 01-430012/06/2021985846 106.74 


Quevedo, Jose A 01-430012/06/2021985847 160.02 


Stevens, Marion 01-430012/06/2021985848 423.80 


Thompson, Kathleen A 01-430012/06/2021985849 9.36 


Daniels, Cerise E 01-430012/06/2021985850 263.73 


Smith, James R 01-430012/06/2021985851 133.23 


ABA BUILDING SERVICES 01-580012/06/2021985852 425.00 


ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 01-560012/06/2021985853 4,319.80 


AIRGAS NATIONAL CARBONATION 01-430012/06/2021985854 863.34 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430012/06/2021985855 61.20 


APPI 01-430012/06/2021985856 876.04 


BOBBYS PIT STOP INC 01-560012/06/2021985857 40.75 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/06/2021985858 160.34 


ELITE INTERACTIVE SOLUTIONS 


LLC


01-580012/06/2021985859 1,808.82 


EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 01-430012/06/2021985860 1,032.56 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/06/2021985861 138.69 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/06/2021985862 16.54 


Page 1 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


20/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/06/2021985863 394.27 


RIVERSIDE LIGHTING 01-430012/06/2021985864 293.29 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/06/2021985865 541.33 


SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 01-430012/06/2021985866 105.83 


SANTA CRUZ RECORDS 


MANAGEMENT


01-580012/06/2021985867 180.00 


SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 01-430012/06/2021985868 42.57 


5-STAR STUDENTS 01-520012/06/2021985869 250.00 


ALL BAY MECHANICAL INC 01-560012/06/2021985870 510.00 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-420012/06/2021985871 39.28 


01-4300 4,431.76 


01-4400 1,958.54 


Unpaid Tax 8.07- 6,421.51 


ARBITERPAY TRUST ACCOUNT 


BANK OF UTAH


01-580012/06/2021985872 15,000.00 


B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 01-430012/06/2021985873 4,154.53 


CARTRIDGE WORLD 01-430012/06/2021985874 78.65 


CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 01-430012/06/2021985875 582.01 


COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 01-590012/06/2021985876 724.77 


CPM EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 01-580012/06/2021985877 1,350.00 


CRUZIO 01-580012/06/2021985878 49.95 


EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 01-430012/06/2021985879 119.27 


GS DIRECT LLC 01-551312/06/2021985880 4,807.03 


INFINITE CAMPUS INC 01-580012/06/2021985881 600.00 


L & M DISTRIBUTION INC 01-430012/06/2021985882 98.58 


M3 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 01-580012/06/2021985883 1,050.00 


MACMURRAY PACIFIC 01-430012/06/2021985884 54.93 


Unpaid Tax .25- 54.68 


MPS ATN: 10306000 01-410012/06/2021985885 7,581.88 


NASCO 01-430012/06/2021985886 79.18 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/06/2021985887 158.70 


PAXTON PATTERSON INC 01-430012/06/2021985888 1,194.75 


PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 01-430012/06/2021985889 1,409.74 


ROYAL COACH TOURS 01-580012/06/2021985890 2,349.30 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/06/2021985891 1,039.11 


SCHOOL SPECIALTY LLC 01-430012/06/2021985892 321.12 


SILKE COMMUNICATIONS INC 01-430012/06/2021985893 614.16 


SLAKEY BROTHERS INC. 01-430012/06/2021985894 166.80 


Unpaid Tax .39- 166.41 


SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA LLC 01-551312/06/2021985895 2,124.18 


SOLARCITY LMC SERIES 1 LLC 01-551312/06/2021985896 3,357.50 


SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 01-551412/06/2021985897 107.59 


STEVE WEISS MUSIC INC 01-430012/06/2021985898 192.17 


Unpaid Tax 5.40- 186.77 


TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 01-420012/06/2021985899 12,766.52 


Page 2 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


21/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


UC REGENTS CA HISTORY-SOCIAL 


SCIENCE PROJ


01-520012/06/2021985900 1,500.00 


ULINE 01-430012/06/2021985901 1,157.97 


Unpaid Tax .14 1,158.11 


ABRITE ORGANIZATION, THE 01-580012/06/2021985902 162,282.92 


ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 01-560012/06/2021985903 558.79 


01-5800 6,512.81 5,954.02 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430012/06/2021985904 435.79 


Unpaid Tax .71- 435.08 


BOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ INC 01-420012/06/2021985905 900.27 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/06/2021985906 51.35 


DANIELSEN CO. 13-430012/06/2021985907 407.92 


13-4700 9,615.42 9,207.50 


DOMINOS/3 AMIGOS PIZZA INC 13-470012/06/2021985908 1,678.50 


EMKAY FOREST AND LARA FOREST 01-430012/06/2021985909 4,206.10 


FAGEN FRIEDMAN & FULFROST LLP 01-580012/06/2021985910 2,045.00 


GOLD STAR FOODS 13-470012/06/2021985911 6,885.82 


GOLD STAR FOODS 13-470012/06/2021985912 4,991.51 


MUNRO HOLDINGS 13-430012/06/2021985913 517.77 


NASDAQ CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


LLC


01-580012/06/2021985914 3,033.08 


P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY 


INC


13-430012/06/2021985915 1,973.69 


PACIFIC COAST ATHLETIC LEAGUE 01-580012/06/2021985916 250.00 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/06/2021985917 296.04 


13-4300 303.49 7.45 


PEARSON CATALOG SCORING 


SERVICE


01-430012/06/2021985918 2,080.00 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/06/2021985919 113.27 


SC COUNTY SHERIFF - FISCAL 01-580012/06/2021985920 3,801.87 


SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 13-430012/06/2021985921 1,459.70 


13-4700 7,243.45 5,783.75 


TEAM FITZ GRAPHICS LLC 01-440012/06/2021985922 654.02 


WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 13-470012/06/2021985923 889.75 


A-Z BUS SALES INC 01-430012/13/2021986526 464.39 


ACSIG/EDGE DENTAL ATTN:  K 


DENNIS, EXEC DIR


01-869912/13/2021986527 3,864.70 


01-9514 64,340.00 60,475.30 


ADROIT ADVANCED 


TECHNOLOGIES INC


01-580012/13/2021986528 737.00 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-420012/13/2021986529 386.15 


01-4300 3,380.22 


Unpaid Tax .11- 3,766.26 


AMERICAN RED CROSS TRAINING 


SERVICES


01-580012/13/2021986530 32.00 


BALANCE4KIDS 01-580012/13/2021986531 987.60 


BENCHMARK EDUCATION CO. 01-420012/13/2021986532 6,409.69 


Page 3 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


22/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


BENCHMARK EDUCATION CO. 01-430012/13/2021986532 13,230.79 6,821.10 


BIOMETRICS4ALL INC 01-580012/13/2021986533 98.00 


BOARDWALK BOWL 01-580012/13/2021986534 503.00 


BOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ INC 01-420012/13/2021986535 326.05 


BRITE HORIZONS THE ABRITE 


ORGANIZATION


01-580012/13/2021986536 6,540.00 


BSN SPORTS LLC 01-430012/13/2021986537 995.29 


CARTRIDGE WORLD 01-430012/13/2021986538 157.30 


CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 01-440012/13/2021986539 2,317.67 


CENGAGE LEARNING 01-410012/13/2021986540 94.77 


CENTER FOR THE COLLABORATIVE 


CLASSROOM


01-430012/13/2021986541 61.63 


COMMUNICATION SERVICE CO 01-580012/13/2021986542 6,240.00 


COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 01-590012/13/2021986543 650.45 


CONTINENTAL ATHLETIC 01-430012/13/2021986544 290.51 


DANIELSEN CO. 13-430012/13/2021986545 2,407.23 


13-4700 12,644.93 10,237.70 


DEMCO INC 01-430012/13/2021986546 218.45 


DISCOVERY CHARTERS 01-580012/13/2021986547 1,189.25 


E-CONTROL SYSTEMS INC 13-580012/13/2021986548 400.00 


EDGENUITY INC 01-580012/13/2021986549 3,000.00 


FARM DISCOVERY AT LIVE EARTH 01-580012/13/2021986550 120.00 


FLYERS ENERGY LLC 01-430012/13/2021986551 1,723.62 


FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC 01-420012/13/2021986552 1,092.71 


Unpaid Tax 1.12- 1,091.59 


FULCRUM MGMT SOLUTIONS INC 01-580012/13/2021986553 19,350.00 


GOLD STAR FOODS 13-470012/13/2021986554 8,241.04 


LOZANO SMITH LLP 01-580012/13/2021986555 19,860.69 


21-5800 22,040.19 2,179.50 


NOTABLE INC DBA KAMI 01-580012/13/2021986556 891.00 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430012/13/2021986557 346.41 


13-4300 577.60 231.19 


OTC BRANDS INC 01-430012/13/2021986558 100.02 


P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY 


INC


13-430012/13/2021986559 1,766.51 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/13/2021986560 3,041.59 


PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 13-470012/13/2021986561 2,574.09 


RAY MORGAN CO. 01-430012/13/2021986562 219.85 


01-5600 389.85 170.00 


ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 13-560012/13/2021986563 412.33 


ROSS RECREATION EQUIPMENT 01-560012/13/2021986564 7,660.34 


SAFEWAY STORES INC 01-430012/13/2021986565 27.25 


SENSERA SYSTEMS INC 01-580012/13/2021986566 528.00 


SISC 01-951412/13/2021986567 500,184.20 


SURTEC INC 01-560012/13/2021986568 354.14 


SUTTER HEALTH PLUS 01-869912/13/2021986569 14,883.65 


01-9514 470,206.09 455,322.44 


Page 4 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


23/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 13-430012/13/2021986570 909.55 


13-4700 7,219.72 6,310.17 


TRIFOIA 01-580012/13/2021986571 183.80 


WARDS AUTO SUPPLY INC DBA 


NAPA AUTO PARTS


01-430012/13/2021986572 182.75 


WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 13-470012/13/2021986573 866.00 


ABACHERLI FENCE CO 01-560012/13/2021986574 350.00 


ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 01-560012/13/2021986575 2,802.18 


AIRGAS NATIONAL CARBONATION 01-430012/13/2021986576 417.00 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430012/13/2021986577 1,007.50 


APPI 01-430012/13/2021986578 589.85 


C & N TRACTORS 01-560012/13/2021986579 2,493.12 


CINTAS CORPORATIONS 01-430012/13/2021986580 940.22 


COAST LOCK & SAFE 01-430012/13/2021986581 2,788.65 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/13/2021986582 167.26 


DILBECK & SONS INC 01-620312/13/2021986583 44,284.00 


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 01-430012/13/2021986584 1,889.97 


FIRST ALARM 01-580012/13/2021986585 795.45 


FLYERS ENERGY LLC 01-430012/13/2021986586 1,643.27 


GOT GOPHERS INC 01-580012/13/2021986587 1,825.00 


HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL 


DBA R AURIA INC


01-580012/13/2021986588 205.00 


HOME DEPOT INC 01-430012/13/2021986589 1,686.56 


INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL 


SUPPLY


01-430012/13/2021986590 290.01 


JET MULCH INC 01-430012/13/2021986591 2,812.91 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/13/2021986592 52.16 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/13/2021986593 91.80 


KNORR SYSTEMS 01-430012/13/2021986594 826.86 


KONE INC 01-580012/13/2021986595 378.03 


NORTH BAY FORD 01-560012/13/2021986596 117.00 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/13/2021986597 2,038.23 


SANTA CRUZ RECORDS 


MANAGEMENT


01-580012/13/2021986598 40.00 


SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 01-430012/13/2021986599 48.27 


SUPERIOR ALARM CO 01-560012/13/2021986600 793.50 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430012/13/2021986601 1,261.87 


Unpaid Tax 1.75- 1,260.12 


AMERICAN BUTTON MACHINES 01-430012/13/2021986602 754.85 


BUREAU OF AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR 01-580012/13/2021986603 300.00 


CITY OF SANTA CRUZ FINANCE 


DEPARTMENT


01-551412/13/2021986604 4,542.17 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/13/2021986605 809.33 


DEMCO INC 01-430012/13/2021986606 801.83 


DICK BLICK CO. 01-430012/13/2021986607 375.11 


DIESELWORKS 01-560012/13/2021986608 147.00 


Page 5 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


24/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


DO IT TENNIS 01-430012/13/2021986609 472.06 


Unpaid Tax 5.93- 466.13 


EMKAY FOREST AND LARA FOREST 01-430012/13/2021986610 3,243.49 


01-5800 72,335.49 69,092.00 


EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 01-430012/13/2021986611 1,526.46 


FLYERS ENERGY LLC 01-430012/13/2021986612 29.27 


GREENWASTE RECOVERY INC 01-552312/13/2021986613 6,839.17 


IMAGE ONE CORP 13-580012/13/2021986614 1,397.00 


INFINITE CAMPUS INC 01-520012/13/2021986615 999.00 


JEFFREY N BOTTORFF 01-580012/13/2021986616 405.00 


JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD 01-420012/13/2021986617 2,359.38 


LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC 01-430012/13/2021986618 287.61 


NASCO 01-430012/13/2021986619 658.10 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430012/13/2021986620 541.72 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/13/2021986621 5,404.26 


01-4400 5,939.65 535.39 


QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC 01-590012/13/2021986622 4,246.17 


SAFEWAY STORES INC 01-439512/13/2021986623 64.32 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/13/2021986624 582.08 


SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIRS 10 01-430012/13/2021986625 2,994.44 


SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION 01-430012/13/2021986626 1,664.89 


Unpaid Tax .04 1,664.93 


SCHUTT SPORTS, LLC 01-580012/13/2021986627 5,554.86 


SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 01-551412/13/2021986628 8,619.99 


MEGAN JOHNSON 01-951412/13/2021986629 384.09 


BRIDGES TO KINDER ATTN: L. 


TOBIAS


01-430012/13/2021986630 120.11 


SAM PITTMAN 73-580012/13/2021986631 1,000.00 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-420012/13/2021986632 57.87 


01-4300 2,839.13 


Unpaid Tax .21- 2,896.79 


DEMCO INC 01-430012/13/2021986633 103.52 


EAST BAY RESTAURANT SUPPLY 


INC


13-440012/13/2021986634 4,164.26 


HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS 


INC


13-440012/13/2021986635 12,900.22 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430012/13/2021986636 25.74 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/13/2021986637 159.85 


SCHOLASTIC INC. 01-430012/13/2021986638 104.39 


SCHOOL HEALTH SUPPLY CO 01-430012/13/2021986639 267.17 


SEQUENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL 


SERVICES LLC


13-580012/13/2021986640 140.00 


WARDS AUTO SUPPLY INC DBA 


NAPA AUTO PARTS


01-430012/13/2021986641 2,009.97 


Unpaid Tax 9.44 2,019.41 


ABACHERLI FENCE CO 21-620212/13/2021986642 4,215.00 


COLBI TECHNOLOGIES INC 21-625012/13/2021986643 4,140.00 


Page 6 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


25/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


CREATIVE  WINDOW INTERIORS 


INC


21-620212/13/2021986644 18,400.00 


DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 21-620212/13/2021986645 10,278.83 


21-6411 15,903.83 5,625.00 


LEACH GROUP INC 21-629012/13/2021986646 5,590.00 


MANTELMOUNT 21-430012/13/2021986647 93,221.93 


MONTEREY SIGNS INC DBA SANTA 


CRUZ SIGNS


21-580012/13/2021986648 321.65 


SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL 21-625012/13/2021986649 1,139.20 


Saady, Stacey A 01-430012/13/2021986650 91.21 


Hernandez, Amariah A 01-430012/13/2021986651 195.33 


Martinez, Rosa O 01-430012/13/2021986652 17.69 


01-4395 56.37 38.68 


James, Jennifer L 01-430012/13/2021986653 104.84 


Jeeawoody, Lian K 01-430012/13/2021986654 131.78 


Schutz, Matthew C 01-430012/13/2021986655 564.71 


Smith, Justin 01-430012/13/2021986656 50.58 


Wessels, Frank E 01-580012/13/2021986657 99.00 


Hoffschneider, Jessica M 01-430012/13/2021986658 167.59 


Ohlson, Lily L 01-430012/13/2021986659 76.44 


Carmichael, Kendra R 01-430012/13/2021986660 58.50 


Fox, Haylee A 01-430012/13/2021986661 74.94 


Kinley, Diane K 01-430012/13/2021986662 13.10 


Rovick, Leif L 01-430012/20/2021987196 19.97 


ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 01-560012/20/2021987197 12,639.95 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430012/20/2021987198 992.12 


Unpaid Tax .10- 992.02 


BAND SHOPPE 01-430012/20/2021987199 1,209.85 


BAY SCHOOL, THE 01-510012/20/2021987200 59,651.32 


BIORAD LABS LIFE SCIENCE 01-430012/20/2021987201 135.82 


CALIFORNIA DEPT OF JUSTICE 


ACCOUNTING OFFICE


01-580012/20/2021987202 1,107.00 


CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 01-440012/20/2021987203 1,468.32 


CHARTWELL SCHOOL 01-580012/20/2021987204 3,296.36 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/20/2021987205 746.17 


COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 01-580012/20/2021987206 649.31 


01-5900 1,440.09 790.78 


DIESELWORKS 01-560012/20/2021987207 2,623.75 


DILBECK & SONS INC 01-560012/20/2021987208 10,323.56 


01-5800 5,098.65 


01-6203 44,157.21 28,735.00 


DISCOVERY CHARTERS 01-580012/20/2021987209 1,455.25 


DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES 


LLC


01-580012/20/2021987210 2,226.69 


EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 01-430012/20/2021987211 183.25 


I & A CONTRACTOR INC 01-560012/20/2021987212 1,560.00 


KIDS DISCOVER LLC 01-580012/20/2021987213 1,008.00 


Page 7 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


26/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


L & M DISTRIBUTION INC 01-430012/20/2021987214 250.59 


LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES 01-440012/20/2021987215 1,562.99 


M3 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 01-580012/20/2021987216 1,200.00 


MPRESS DIGITAL INC 01-580012/20/2021987217 559.45 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430012/20/2021987218 30.20 


OTTLEY INC DBA BLUE WATER 


SEDANS


01-580012/20/2021987219 8,548.50 


PACIFIC COAST ATHLETIC LEAGUE 01-580012/20/2021987220 250.00 


PACIFIC COAST TRANE - A/R 01-580012/20/2021987221 2,106.00 


01-6203 38,647.05 36,541.05 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/20/2021987222 971.33 


01-4400 3,052.41 2,081.08 


PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 01-430012/20/2021987223 1,029.43 


RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 01-430012/20/2021987224 3,304.28 


ROYAL COACH TOURS 01-580012/20/2021987225 1,379.25 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/20/2021987226 300.25 


SC SYSTEMS 01-590012/20/2021987227 400.00 


01-6200 1,100.00 700.00 


SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIF 01-520012/20/2021987228 195.00 


SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES INC 01-430012/20/2021987229 46.98 


SOLARCITY LMC SERIES 1 LLC 01-551312/20/2021987230 3,157.71 


SOQUEL NURSERY GROWERS INC 01-430012/20/2021987231 205.39 


SURTEC INC 01-560012/20/2021987232 2,147.84 


WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE EST. 


INC


01-430012/20/2021987233 478.55 


WEST MUSIC COMPANY INC 01-430012/20/2021987234 204.95 


CINTAS CORPORATIONS 01-430012/20/2021987235 114.80 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/20/2021987236 576.56 


CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER 01-430012/20/2021987237 11.50 


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 01-430012/20/2021987238 41.61 


HOME DEPOT INC 01-430012/20/2021987239 161.37 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/20/2021987240 85.41 


KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 01-430012/20/2021987241 47.44 


KONE INC 01-580012/20/2021987242 1,926.45 


LINCOLN AQUATICS 01-430012/20/2021987243 1,558.19 


RIVERSIDE LIGHTING 01-430012/20/2021987244 78.83 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430012/20/2021987245 840.95 


SANTA CRUZ FIRE EQUIPMENT 01-580012/20/2021987246 953.89 


SANTA CRUZ RECORDS 


MANAGEMENT


01-580012/20/2021987247 90.00 


KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH 


PLAN INC


01-951412/20/2021987248 112,735.13 


LES FORSTER 01-580012/20/2021987249 550.88 


ALBION ENVIRONMENTAL INC 21-628012/20/2021987250 3,557.58 


BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 21-621012/20/2021987251 42,623.51 


Page 8 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


27/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 21-625112/20/2021987251 98.29 


40-6210 7,246.76 


40-6251 49,988.71 20.15 


CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 21-440012/20/2021987252 10,320.70 


DILBECK & SONS INC 21-620212/20/2021987253 24,891.18 


40-6202 38,294.12 13,402.94 


LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE 


INC


21-626112/20/2021987254 1,650.00 


ACSIG/EDGE DENTAL ATTN:  K 


DENNIS, EXEC DIR


01-869912/20/2021987255 11,449.80 


01-9514 48,862.00 37,412.20 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-420012/20/2021987256 28.07 


01-4300 694.46 


Unpaid Tax .08- 722.45 


AT&T 01-590012/20/2021987257 1,063.95 


AT&T MOBILITY 01-591312/20/2021987258 3.66 


B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 01-430012/20/2021987259 32.64 


BOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ INC 01-420012/20/2021987260 2,462.42 


BRITE HORIZONS THE ABRITE 


ORGANIZATION


01-510012/20/2021987261 18,622.50 


01-5800 26,632.50 8,010.00 


BSN SPORTS LLC 01-430012/20/2021987262 4,999.96 


01-5800 1,492.19 


Unpaid Tax .69- 6,491.46 


CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC 01-562012/20/2021987263 484.68 


CINTAS CORPORATIONS 01-430012/20/2021987264 46.83 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430012/20/2021987265 5,897.62 


CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC 01-430012/20/2021987266 170.84 


DANIEL JOHN SIDDENS 01-951412/20/2021987267 1,254.00 


DANIELSEN CO. 13-430012/20/2021987268 2,415.68 


13-4700 17,472.97 15,057.29 


DILBECK & SONS INC 01-560012/20/2021987269 5,507.20 


GOLD STAR FOODS 13-470012/20/2021987270 8,624.39 


HEARING CONSERVATION ASSOC 01-580012/20/2021987271 4,178.32 


NASCO 01-430012/20/2021987272 222.43 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430012/20/2021987273 34.65 


OTC BRANDS INC 01-430012/20/2021987274 70.01 


Unpaid Tax .92- 69.09 


P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY 


INC


13-430012/20/2021987275 1,067.05 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430012/20/2021987276 880.05 


13-4300 951.79 71.74 


PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 13-470012/20/2021987277 3,429.33 


ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 13-560012/20/2021987278 144.00 


SAFEWAY STORES INC 01-430012/20/2021987279 101.96 


SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF 01-551512/20/2021987280 212.48 


SCHOLASTIC INC. 01-430012/20/2021987281 208.78 


Page 9 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


28/371







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 12/01/2021 through 12/31/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION 01-430012/20/2021987282 814.14 


SOUL SHOPPE PROGRAMS 01-580012/20/2021987283 1,800.00 


SPURR 01-551112/20/2021987284 34,629.82 


11-5511 34,682.31 52.49 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 


INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS


01-580012/20/2021987285 675.00 


SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 13-430012/20/2021987286 1,311.59 


13-4700 6,169.32 4,857.73 


WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE EST. 


INC


01-430012/20/2021987287 2,158.58 


WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 13-470012/20/2021987288 2,292.80 


3,124,402.17 Total Number of Checks 330 


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 282 2,261,763.44 01


ADULT EDUCATION 3 2,530.27 11


CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 30 126,032.25 13


BUILDING 21 712,422.47 21


SPL RESV CAPITAL OUTLAY PRJ 2 20,669.85 40


FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 1 1,000.00 73


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 3,124,418.28 


16.11-


3,124,402.17 


330 


Page 10 of 10


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:12PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


29/371







                      


                                                                                                                      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   January 12, 2022 
  
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Business Services  
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 21-22 budget transfers dated from 12/01/21 through 12/31/21.  The report follows.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


30/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00710 JE Trans Date 12/01/2021 JE Posted 12/01/2021 Comment JL-For Assistive Technology
1,322.00 ( 006979)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1190- 4300- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:OTHER SPEC I


1,322.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG


1,322.00 1,322.00 


JE # BR22-00711 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment FL-PE BOWLING AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM
503.00 ( 008740)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 2106 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


503.00 ( 028670)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 021- 2106 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


503.00 503.00 


JE # BR22-00712 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment BD-NEW TEACHER COMMUNITY MEETING EWRS
504.00 ( 024394)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 1130- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,IN-HOUSE INSTR


86.00 ( 024395)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3101- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


8.00 ( 024400)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3331- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,IN-HOUSE INSTR


3.00 ( 024402)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3501- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,IN-HOUSE INSTR


10.00 ( 024403)  01- 3010- 0- 0000- 2140- 3601- 533- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,IN-HOUSE INSTR


611.00 ( 024404)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


611.00 611.00 


JE # BR22-00713 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment ML-ENVELOPES
60.00 ( 001043)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 5800- 600- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TRANSPORT


60.00 ( 029216)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 4300- 600- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TRANSPORT


60.00 60.00 


JE # BR22-00714 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment SJ-SEAL OF BILITERACY MEDALLIONS
1,284.00 ( 014592)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,284.00 ( 015004)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2130- 4300- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,CURRICULUM DEVE


1,284.00 1,284.00 


JE # BR22-00715 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment BL-DU83544
6,902.00 ( 022743)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- I N34 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,902.00 ( 022742)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- I N34 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


539.00 ( 026777)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 2110- 4399- 200- 5640 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTIONAL S


539.00 ( 026775)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 0000- 8699- 200- 5640 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


7,100.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


31/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00715 JE Trans Date 12/02/2021 JE Posted 12/02/2021 Comment BL-DU83544(continued)
7,100.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


108.00 ( 016851)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5710- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,XFER OF DIRECT,INSTRUCTION


108.00 ( 008448)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,425.00 ( 008930)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 021- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


2,425.00 ( 008450)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,434.00 ( 008930)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 021- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,434.00 ( 008450)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,925.00 ( 008931)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 023- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,925.00 ( 008461)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


90.00 ( 029212)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 024- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


90.00 ( 029213)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 024- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


84.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


84.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


96.00 ( 008350)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 035- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


96.00 ( 007588)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


5,760.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


5,760.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


129.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


129.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


47.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


47.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


90.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


90.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


90.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


90.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


200.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


200.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


15,045.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


15,045.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,726.00 ( 007943)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8200- 2290- 899- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,OPERATIONS


2,726.00 ( 007626)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 899- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


89,580.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00716 JE Trans Date 12/03/2021 JE Posted 12/03/2021 Comment BL-HHS DEPOSIT #6
40.00 ( 007981)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8300- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,SECURITY


40.00 ( 007582)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


3,630.00 ( 008348)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


32/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00716 JE Trans Date 12/03/2021 JE Posted 12/03/2021 Comment BL-HHS DEPOSIT #6(continued)
3,630.00 ( 007582)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


76.00 ( 008084)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 033- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION


76.00 ( 007563)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 033- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


85.00 ( 015935)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3317 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


85.00 ( 016442)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 3317 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


11,600.00 ( 015935)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3317 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,600.00 ( 016442)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 3317 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


200.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


420.00 ( 008834)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


620.00 ( 008490)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


15.00 ( 007788)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


15.00 ( 007582)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


32,132.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00717 JE Trans Date 12/03/2021 JE Posted 12/03/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 37649/37652 PARAED. FROM 1130 TO 2130
17,140.00 ( 029223)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


17,140.00 ( 028639)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,063.00 ( 029224)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


1,063.00 ( 024702)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


249.00 ( 029225)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


249.00 ( 024707)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


86.00 ( 029227)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


86.00 ( 024709)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


345.00 ( 029228)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


345.00 ( 024710)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


18,883.00 18,883.00 


JE # BR22-00718 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37436 & COVER NEGATIVES
4,968.00 ( 024382)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


350.00 ( 028624)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2930- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,OTHER CLASS SAL,INSTRUCTION


767.00 ( 024373)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


23.00 ( 024380)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 024387)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


86.00 ( 024381)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


7.00 ( 024388)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


66.00 ( 024378)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 3 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


33/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00718 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37436 & COVER NEGATIVES(continued)
6,269.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


6,269.00 6,269.00 


JE # BR22-00719 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment JL-For Gateway Repairs
36,212.00 ( 022898)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


36,212.00 ( 021818)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0556 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER


36,212.00 36,212.00 


JE # BR22-00720 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment AN - Gilbert, Lars ER Nearpod and Kahoot
156.00 ( 003645)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 032- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


156.00 ( 003679)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 032- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


156.00 156.00 


JE # BR22-00721 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment KT - Golf Cart Tires
182.00 ( 027874)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SECURITY


64.00 ( 029230)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 5600- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,SECURITY


246.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


246.00 246.00 


JE # BR22-00722 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment ML - TK - 12 Beyond SST
5,071.00 ( 007836)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 600- 0061 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES


5,071.00 ( 011164)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3140- 5800- 600- 0061 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,HEALTH SERVICES


5,071.00 5,071.00 


JE # BR22-00723 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment BL-DU83618
1,610.00 ( 008931)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 023- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,610.00 ( 008461)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


5,543.00 ( 008831)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 027- 2727 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


5,543.00 ( 008478)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 027- 2727 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


10.00 ( 007790)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 034- 3405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


140.00 ( 007790)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3110- 4300- 034- 3405 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


150.00 ( 007586)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3405 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


25.00 ( 008207)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,


33.00 ( 008317)  01- 9010- 0- 1200- 1000- 4300- 034- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 4 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


34/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00723 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment BL-DU83618(continued)
58.00 ( 007564)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 034- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


116.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


116.00 ( 008504)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3457 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


16,015.00 ( 009039)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


16,015.00 ( 008508)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


50.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


47,084.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00724 JE Trans Date 12/06/2021 JE Posted 12/06/2021 Comment BL-DU83619 SCHS AP TESTING
23,035.00 ( 008349)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


23,035.00 ( 007585)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


46,070.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00725 JE Trans Date 12/07/2021 JE Posted 12/07/2021 Comment ED-GLAD CSA
3,200.00 ( 027417)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 524- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


3,200.00 ( 024285)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,200.00 3,200.00 


JE # BR22-00726 JE Trans Date 12/07/2021 JE Posted 12/07/2021 Comment TH-CLAY TRAP CLEANOUTS
2,500.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,500.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


2,500.00 2,500.00 


JE # BR22-00727 JE Trans Date 12/07/2021 JE Posted 12/07/2021 Comment BD- WASC REIMBURSEMENTS
40.00 ( 029243)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2110- 4300- 833- 5501 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTIONAL S


40.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00728 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37532-JOHANNESSON
1,429.00 ( 022089)  01- 0809- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 038- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,296.00 ( 027711)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 2130- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


81.00 ( 027716)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3312- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


19.00 ( 027717)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3332- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


7.00 ( 027719)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3502- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 5 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


35/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00728 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37532-JOHANNESSON(continued)
26.00 ( 027720)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 3602- 038- 0807 CRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,429.00 1,429.00 


JE # BR22-00729 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BD-EWR# 35056 HOLCOMB
1,141.00 ( 003443)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2930- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,OTHER CLASS SAL,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 011900)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


23.00 ( 003625)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,170.00 ( 003687)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 834- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,170.00 1,170.00 


JE # BR22-00730 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37390 PEREZ
376.00 ( 028607)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 2290- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,CLASS PUPIL SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


24.00 ( 028464)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3312- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


6.00 ( 028465)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3332- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


3.00 ( 028467)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3502- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


7.00 ( 028468)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3602- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


4.00 ( 022084)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4400- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


420.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


420.00 420.00 


JE # BR22-00731 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37542 WILSON
378.00 ( 003443)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2930- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,OTHER CLASS SAL,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 011900)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 003625)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


388.00 ( 003687)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 834- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


388.00 388.00 


JE # BR22-00732 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment EB-ESTRELLITA PD NATIONALLY WEBINAR
693.00 ( 024260)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


693.00 ( 024261)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


693.00 693.00 


JE # BR22-00733 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 37731 G.HOUSE BAND SPECIALIST
524.00 ( 029276)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 2130- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 6 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


36/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00733 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment BL-MH EWR 37731 G.HOUSE BAND SPECIALIST(continued)
33.00 ( 029277)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3312- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 029278)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3332- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


3.00 ( 029280)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3502- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


11.00 ( 029281)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3602- 832- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


579.00 ( 020437)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 832- 0808 DRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


579.00 579.00 


JE # BR22-00734 JE Trans Date 12/08/2021 JE Posted 12/08/2021 Comment JL-COVID Posters for CDPH Guidelines for Events
972.00 ( 026877)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 5800- 830- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,HEALTH SERVICES


972.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


972.00 972.00 


JE # BR22-00735 JE Trans Date 12/09/2021 JE Posted 12/09/2021 Comment JB - Bus
1,500.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,500.00 ( 022085)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,500.00 1,500.00 


JE # BR22-00736 JE Trans Date 12/09/2021 JE Posted 12/09/2021 Comment FC - Secondary Purchases
314.00 ( 006653)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 4300- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,MATERIALS & SUP,SE:SEPARATE CLA


314.00 ( 029287)  01- 6500- 0- 5760- 1110- 5800- 235- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:SEPARATE CLA


314.00 314.00 


JE # BR22-00737 JE Trans Date 12/09/2021 JE Posted 12/09/2021 Comment BL-DU83751
1,164.00 ( 026777)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 2110- 4399- 200- 5640 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTIONAL S


1,164.00 ( 026775)  01- 9010- 0- 5001- 0000- 8699- 200- 5640 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


3,751.00 ( 008734)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,751.00 ( 008448)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 021- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


765.00 ( 008931)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 023- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


765.00 ( 008461)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


125.00 ( 008933)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 024- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


125.00 ( 008469)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 024- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


142.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


142.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


50.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


50.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 7 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


37/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00737 JE Trans Date 12/09/2021 JE Posted 12/09/2021 Comment BL-DU83751(continued)
35.00 ( 027757)  01- 9010- 0- 3100- 3110- 4300- 038- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN


35.00 ( 028455)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 038- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


12,064.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00738 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37775 SIDES
1,506.00 ( 029264)  01- 7425- 0- 3200- 1000- 2130- 836- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


94.00 ( 029269)  01- 7425- 0- 3200- 1000- 3312- 836- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


22.00 ( 029270)  01- 7425- 0- 3200- 1000- 3332- 836- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 029272)  01- 7425- 0- 3200- 1000- 3502- 836- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


30.00 ( 029273)  01- 7425- 0- 3200- 1000- 3602- 836- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,660.00 ( 028660)  01- 7425- 0- 3300- 1000- 1130- 836- 0000 DRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,660.00 1,660.00 


JE # BR22-00739 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37572 CHRISTY PEER TUTOR
378.00 ( 003443)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2930- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,OTHER CLASS SAL,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 011900)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 003625)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 834- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


388.00 ( 003687)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 834- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


388.00 388.00 


JE # BR22-00740 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment BD- ELPAC TRAINING EWRS
1,610.00 ( 025209)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 1930- 530- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CERT OTHR SALAR,PUPIL TESTING S


1,297.00 ( 029274)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 2930- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,OTHER CLASS SAL,PUPIL TESTING S


180.00 ( 001011)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3202- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PUPIL TESTING S


81.00 ( 001017)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3312- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FICA:CLASS,PUPIL TESTING S


19.00 ( 001024)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3332- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CLASS,PUPIL TESTING S


7.00 ( 001033)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3502- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUPIL TESTING S


26.00 ( 001040)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3602- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,PUPIL TESTING S


1,610.00 1,610.00 


JE # BR22-00741 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment FL-ALPHAGRAPHICS
800.00 ( 001927)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


800.00 ( 000598)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 021- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 8 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


38/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


800.00 800.00 


JE # BR22-00742 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment TH-SCH BOILER REPAIR
2,565.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,565.00 ( 024992)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 034- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


2,565.00 2,565.00 


JE # BR22-00743 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment BL-DL EWR 37801 N.LAWRENCE 12/17, COV. NEG TOO
183.00 ( 024899)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 2230- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,CLASS PUPIL SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


63.00 ( 008574)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3202- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTR LIBRARY,


17.00 ( 008577)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3312- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,


4.00 ( 008580)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3332- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,


2.00 ( 008584)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3502- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTR LIBRARY,


6.00 ( 008585)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2420- 3602- 023- 0052 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTR LIBRARY,


275.00 ( 008749)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0052 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


275.00 275.00 


JE # BR22-00744 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment JL-For District Office ADA Doors
11,224.00 ( 028080)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 020- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ


11,224.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00745 JE Trans Date 12/10/2021 JE Posted 12/10/2021 Comment FC-PO FROM 5800 TO 4300
7,728.00 ( 028166)  01- 6536- 0- 5001- 2700- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSped Dispute,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


7,728.00 ( 029325)  01- 6536- 0- 5001- 2700- 4300- 220- 0000 CRSped Dispute,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST


7,728.00 7,728.00 


JE # BR22-00746 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment GM-COMMUNITY BUILDING EVENT -CHS
600.00 ( 002818)  01- 0000- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 036- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


600.00 ( 029328)  01- 0000- 0- 3200- 1000- 5800- 036- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


600.00 600.00 


JE # BR22-00747 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment BL-DU83618 BOOSTER CK2611 SALINAS/SALTER
11,976.00 ( 009003)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 2100- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


2,932.00 ( 009010)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3202- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 9 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


39/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00747 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment BL-DU83618 BOOSTER CK2611 SALINAS/SALTER(continued)
742.00 ( 009015)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3312- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


174.00 ( 009020)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3332- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


218.00 ( 009030)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3602- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


16,015.00 ( 009039)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


27.00 ( 009025)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 3502- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


16,042.00 16,042.00 


JE # BR22-00748 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment BL-GA EWR37904/06/07 MIN.DAY COVERAGE AFTER SC
970.00 ( 024087)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


61.00 ( 024082)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 024083)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 024085)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


20.00 ( 024086)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 524- 0000 CRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,071.00 ( 024088)  01- 6010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRAFTER-SCHOOL ED,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,071.00 1,071.00 


JE # BR22-00749 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment JL-Correct PBIS/SES Resources Move to Res 7422
22,304.00 ( 028423)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 821- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


20,000.00 ( 029329)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 821- 0000 CRIPI GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


22,829.00 ( 028424)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 823- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


22,000.00 ( 029331)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 823- 0000 CRIPI GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,773.00 ( 028425)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 824- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


20,000.00 ( 029332)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 824- 0000 CRIPI GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


25,111.00 ( 028426)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 827- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


22,000.00 ( 029333)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 827- 0000 CRIPI GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


11,773.00 ( 028427)  01- 7425- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 825- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


10,314.00 ( 029334)  01- 7422- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 825- 0000 CRIPI GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


525.00 ( 029197)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 821- 0000 DRELO GF,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION


94,315.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


94,314.00 ( 024586)  01- 7422- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRIPI GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


188,629.00 188,629.00 


JE # BR22-00750 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment JL-Correct Res 7425 Carryover from 20-21
135,052.00 ( 025530)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 820- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


135,052.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


158,550.00 ( 025532)  01- 7425- 0- 0000- 0000- 8999- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,CARRYOVER/CASH


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 10 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


40/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00750 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment JL-Correct Res 7425 Carryover from 20-21(continued)
158,550.00 ( 024583)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


587,204.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00751 JE Trans Date 12/13/2021 JE Posted 12/13/2021 Comment JL-Correct Budgets for Expanded Learning Opportunity Gran
9,395.00 ( 025386)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 830- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,259.00 ( 024583)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


4,639.00 ( 025409)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 DRELO GF,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


4,443.00 ( 024582)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRELO GF,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


196.00 ( 025308)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 505- 0000 CRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


564.00 ( 025307)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 550- 0000 DRELO GF,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,700.00 ( 025155)  01- 7425- 0- 1115- 1000- 5800- 550- 0000 CRELO GF,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


14,598.00 14,598.00 


JE # BR22-00752 JE Trans Date 12/14/2021 JE Posted 12/14/2021 Comment AR - Cover Explore Negatives
1,215.00 ( 013557)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 2430- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,CLASS CLERICAL,INSTRUCTIONAL S


101.00 ( 008567)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3312- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S


24.00 ( 008568)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3332- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S


8.00 ( 008569)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3502- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTIONAL S


31.00 ( 008570)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 2110- 3602- 020- 1900 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTIONAL S


1,379.00 ( 008733)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 020- 1900 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,379.00 1,379.00 


JE # BR22-00753 JE Trans Date 12/14/2021 JE Posted 12/14/2021 Comment JB-BUS
1,450.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,450.00 ( 022085)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,450.00 1,450.00 


JE # BR22-00754 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment BD-EWRS & COVER NEGATIVES
468.00 ( 018792)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


500.00 ( 003389)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 1140- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


115.00 ( 011856)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


80.00 ( 003452)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


27.00 ( 011933)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION


7.00 ( 003516)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 003565)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 11 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


41/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00754 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment BD-EWRS & COVER NEGATIVES(continued)
9.00 ( 003600)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,152.00 ( 029337)  01- 0700- 0- 1560- 1000- 1130- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


195.00 ( 029338)  01- 0700- 0- 1560- 1000- 3101- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


17.00 ( 029343)  01- 0700- 0- 1560- 1000- 3331- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 029345)  01- 0700- 0- 1560- 1000- 3501- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


24.00 ( 029346)  01- 0700- 0- 1560- 1000- 3601- 035- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


2,602.00 ( 003648)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,602.00 2,602.00 


JE # BR22-00755 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment LO- SPIRIT WEAR STUDENT INCENTIVES
1,000.00 ( 008761)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 031- 3156 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 ( 008808)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 031- 3156 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,000.00 1,000.00 


JE # BR22-00756 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment AR - Move to OBJ 2130 EWR 37880
7,089.00 ( 028639)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 832- 0000 DRELO GF,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


6,433.00 ( 029223)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


399.00 ( 029224)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


94.00 ( 029225)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


33.00 ( 029227)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


130.00 ( 029228)  01- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 832- 0000 CRELO GF,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


7,089.00 7,089.00 


JE # BR22-00757 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment BD-EWR 38006 & COVER NEGATVIES
8,100.00 ( 029282)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


75.00 ( 028331)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1140- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


6.00 ( 024259)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 028332)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


119.00 ( 028333)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


41.00 ( 028335)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


163.00 ( 028336)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 523- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


8,509.00 ( 024260)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,509.00 8,509.00 


JE # BR22-00758 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment JL-For Les Forster CSA


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 12 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


42/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00758 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment JL-For Les Forster CSA(continued)
551.00 ( 029357)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 7400- 5800- 830- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,PERSONNEL/HUMAN


551.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


551.00 551.00 


JE # BR22-00759 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment SJ-CC PAYMENT FOR BENCHMARK
1,403.00 ( 006166)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,403.00 ( 006143)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 520- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION


1,403.00 1,403.00 


JE # BR22-00760 JE Trans Date 12/15/2021 JE Posted 12/15/2021 Comment JL-For Hotspots from SCCOE
1,962.00 ( 029098)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 820- 0000 CRELO ESSER II,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION


3,643.00 ( 028719)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 830- 0000 CRELO ESSER II,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION


1,962.00 ( 027446)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRELO ESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


3,643.00 ( 027451)  01- 3216- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRELO ESSER II,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


5,605.00 5,605.00 


JE # BR22-00761 JE Trans Date 12/16/2021 JE Posted 12/16/2021 Comment JB - BUS
1,400.00 ( 022083)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 4300- 034- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,400.00 ( 022085)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 5800- 034- 0807 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


1,400.00 1,400.00 


JE # BR22-00762 JE Trans Date 12/16/2021 JE Posted 12/16/2021 Comment FL-STUDENT FOLDERS-EDGEWOOD PRESS INC.
756.00 ( 008099)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- I N21 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


756.00 ( 017789)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 021- I N21 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


756.00 756.00 


JE # BR22-00763 JE Trans Date 12/16/2021 JE Posted 12/16/2021 Comment JL-For In-plant inspections for new Transportation Office
1,383.00 ( 027890)  40- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6290- 048- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,INSCPECTION,FACILITIES ACQ


1,383.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00764 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37884 SERNA
103.00 ( 029289)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2495- 2290- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CLASS PUPIL SUP,PARENT PARTICIP


7.00 ( 029294)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 13 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


43/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00764 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BD-EWR 37884 SERNA(continued)
2.00 ( 029295)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP


1.00 ( 029297)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2495- 3502- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP


2.00 ( 029298)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP


74.00 ( 000384)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 2440- 827- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST


74.00 ( 000415)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 3202- 827- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST


115.00 ( 001623)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1140- 827- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


189.00 189.00 


JE # BR22-00765 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES
774.00 ( 024142)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


3.00 ( 024147)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 3311- 530- 0000 CRCAREER TECHNICA,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


777.00 ( 024152)  01- 6387- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRCAREER TECHNICA,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


777.00 777.00 


JE # BR22-00766 JE Trans Date 12/16/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-DU83949
3,470.00 ( 008124)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- I N33 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,470.00 ( 011873)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- I N33 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,752.00 ( 022743)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- I N34 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,752.00 ( 022742)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- I N34 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


2,941.00 ( 023906)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 3600- 5600- 038- I N38 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,PUPIL TRANSPORT


2,941.00 ( 007593)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 038- I N38 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,615.00 ( 008931)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 023- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,615.00 ( 008461)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,335.00 ( 008931)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 5800- 023- 0201 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


1,335.00 ( 008461)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0201 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


1,735.00 ( 028134)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 824- FLEX CROTHER RESTRICTE,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION


1,735.00 ( 028052)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 824- FLEX DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


15.00 ( 008831)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 027- 2727 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


15.00 ( 008478)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 027- 2727 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


106.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,


106.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES


266.00 ( 008349)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S


266.00 ( 007585)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


10.00 ( 007778)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST


10.00 ( 007585)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


300.00 ( 008923)  01- 9016- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 034- 3460 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 14 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


44/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00766 JE Trans Date 12/16/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-DU83949(continued)
300.00 ( 008505)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3460 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


12,099.00 ( 009053)  01- 9016- 0- 1250- 1000- 5800- 034- 3473 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


12,099.00 ( 008508)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3473 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


8,928.00 ( 029361)  01- 9016- 0- 1360- 1000- 4300- 034- 3456 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


8,928.00 ( 029362)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3456 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


564.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


564.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL


72,272.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00767 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-DU83949 HHS ASB INV22-01240 CK17750
4,722.00 ( 009295)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 2160- 833- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


293.00 ( 009304)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3312- 833- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


68.00 ( 009311)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3332- 833- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


24.00 ( 009318)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3502- 833- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


91.00 ( 009325)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3602- 833- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


5,198.00 ( 009232)  01- 9051- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 833- 0000 DRASB FUNDS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


10,396.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00768 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-DU83949 SCHS ASB INV22-01241 CK24519
2,108.00 ( 009296)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 2160- 834- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


131.00 ( 009305)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3312- 834- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


31.00 ( 009312)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3332- 834- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


11.00 ( 009319)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3502- 834- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


40.00 ( 009326)  01- 9051- 0- 1400- 4200- 3602- 834- 0000 CRASB FUNDS,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE


2,321.00 ( 009233)  01- 9051- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 834- 0000 DRASB FUNDS,ALL OTHER LOCAL


4,642.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations


JE # BR22-00769 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment SJ - Food for Workshops
2,000.00 ( 011147)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 016570)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 2,000.00 


JE # BR22-00770 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment SJ-ACHIEVE 3000 CONTRACT
3,420.00 ( 024122)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 DRESEA:ENGLISH LE,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


3,420.00 ( 029363)  01- 4203- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 534- 0000 CRESEA:ENGLISH LE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 15 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


45/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


3,420.00 3,420.00 


JE # BR22-00771 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment SJ - Food for Workshops
2,000.00 ( 014592)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 016571)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 530- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 2,000.00 


JE # BR22-00772 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment SJ - Drum Sander for SCHA
2,951.00 ( 015729)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 6500- 830- 0809 DRMeasure T,EQUIPMENT REPLA,INSTRUCTION


2,951.00 ( 029364)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 4400- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION


2,951.00 2,951.00 


JE # BR22-00773 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-WL EWR 37516, A.WILSON SUB VAC PARA ACAD INT
724.00 ( 028643)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2140- 027- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


179.00 ( 028644)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3402- 027- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION


903.00 ( 003418)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 027- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION


903.00 903.00 


JE # BR22-00774 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment AR - Cover Statutory Benefits
146.00 ( 025424)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


12.00 ( 025429)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


4.00 ( 025431)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


16.00 ( 025432)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 530- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


178.00 ( 025423)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 530- 0000 DRESSER II,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


178.00 178.00 


JE # BR22-00775 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment AR - Cover Statutory Benefits
49.00 ( 027845)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 2930- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,OTHER CLASS SAL,CURRICULUM DEVE


3.00 ( 027850)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3312- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,FICA:CLASS,CURRICULUM DEVE


1.00 ( 027851)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3332- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CLASS,CURRICULUM DEVE


1.00 ( 027853)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3502- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,CURRICULUM DEVE


1.00 ( 027854)  01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2130- 3602- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,CURRICULUM DEVE


295.00 ( 025414)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


26.00 ( 025419)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


8.00 ( 025421)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 16 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


46/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


JE # BR22-00775 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment AR - Cover Statutory Benefits(continued)
34.00 ( 025422)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 520- 0000 CRESSER II,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


418.00 ( 025413)  01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 520- 0000 DRESSER II,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


418.00 418.00 


JE # BR22-00776 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-BV EWR 38137 MEJIA, EWR38206 VINCENT
994.00 ( 003425)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


62.00 ( 003493)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


15.00 ( 003527)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


5.00 ( 003576)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


20.00 ( 003611)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 021- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


1,096.00 ( 003638)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 021- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


1,096.00 1,096.00 


JE # BR22-00777 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-GL EWR 38130 CASTILLO PARA SUB FOR A.MANRIQ
1,929.00 ( 011643)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 2140- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION


120.00 ( 003495)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


28.00 ( 003529)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION


10.00 ( 003578)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


39.00 ( 003613)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


2,126.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,126.00 2,126.00 


JE # BR22-00778 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment BL-EWR 38124 S.FERREIRA ELPAC TRAINING
252.00 ( 029275)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 2930- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,OTHER CLASS SAL,PUPIL TESTING S


16.00 ( 001016)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3312- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FICA:CLASS,PUPIL TESTING S


4.00 ( 001023)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3332- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CLASS,PUPIL TESTING S


2.00 ( 001032)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3502- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUPIL TESTING S


6.00 ( 001039)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3160- 3602- 520- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,PUPIL TESTING S


280.00 ( 016527)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


280.00 280.00 


JE # BR22-00779 JE Trans Date 12/17/2021 JE Posted 12/17/2021 Comment LO - Online Subscription
2,000.00 ( 024321)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 531- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


2,000.00 ( 028443)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 531- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 17 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


47/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


2,000.00 2,000.00 


JE # BR22-00780 JE Trans Date 12/27/2021 JE Posted 12/27/2021 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES & EWR
396.00 ( 024382)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION


1,762.00 ( 028069)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 1140- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION


1,134.00 ( 028624)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 2930- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,OTHER CLASS SAL,INSTRUCTION


157.00 ( 024373)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION


67.00 ( 024377)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION


31.00 ( 024378)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION


11.00 ( 024380)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


2.00 ( 024387)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION


42.00 ( 024381)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


7.00 ( 024388)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 533- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION


3,609.00 ( 024390)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION


3,609.00 3,609.00 


JE # BR22-00781 JE Trans Date 12/27/2021 JE Posted 12/27/2021 Comment TH-PLUMBING REPAIRS
20,000.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


20,000.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


20,000.00 20,000.00 


JE # BR22-00782 JE Trans Date 12/27/2021 JE Posted 12/27/2021 Comment TH-ELEVATOR COMPLIANCE
9,497.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


2,250.00 ( 007540)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


2,247.00 ( 025979)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5800- 033- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,PROF/CONSULT SE,MAINTENANCE


5,000.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


9,497.00 9,497.00 


JE # BR22-00783 JE Trans Date 12/27/2021 JE Posted 12/27/2021 Comment TH-HVAC REPAIRS
15,000.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE


15,000.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE


15,000.00 15,000.00 


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 18 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


48/371







Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a


Effective 12/01/2021 through 12/27/2021 Fiscal Year 2022


From ToDescriptionAccount


417,936.00 1,332,027.00 Total for Org 014 


Net increase to AppropriationsOrg 014 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 12,647.00-


Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = R, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2021, Ending Transaction Date = 


12/31/2021, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 19 of 19


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Dec 29 2021  


2:15PM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 777111


49/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Bond Projects Notice of Completion 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept five bond project notices of completion. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications of the vendor 
contracts. The District has determined that these projects are complete. The Board is asked to 
accept completion of these projects by approving the attached Notices of Completion, which 
will be duly filed with the County. Normally the District would file the Notices of Completion 
with the County of Santa Cruz. Due to the pandemic, the County offices are closed and until the 
notices can be filed these notices are being brought before the board. In order to comply with 
Public Contract Code, these Notices of Completion must be made official so that we can pay the 
contractor by required timelines and not incur financial penalties.  
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


CONTRACTOR PROJECT Completion Date 


Dilbeck & Sons Facilities Yard New Driveway Approach   12/31/2021 


Enviroplex Branciforte Small Schools AFE Campus Buildings 11/31/2021 


I & A Contractor, Inc. Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof 11/22/2021 


CRW Industries, Inc.  Branciforte Middle School MPR Mod 09/22/2021 


CRW Industries, Inc. Branciforte Middle School Street Presence 10/18/2021 


50/371







       Santa Cruz City Schools 
           Facility Services 
   536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060


(831) 429-3904


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


Date:


To: CRW Industries, Inc.   


Project:  Branciforte Middle School Building “A” MPR Partial Modernization, 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT:  


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 


On March 23, 2020, this District contracted with:  CRW Industries, Inc. 5346 Scotts Valley Drive, Ste. E 


Scotts Valley, CA 95066 as Contractor; and with Western Surety Company as Surety for said Contractor, 


for work of Building “A” MPR Partial Modernization performed on District grounds at: Branciforte 


Middle School, 315 Poplar Ave, Santa Cruz CA 95060. 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on   September 22, 2021           .  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent for 


Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with that 


contract.  


_________________________________________ 
Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


January 12, 2022 


51/371







       Santa Cruz City Schools 
           Facility Services 
   536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
                   (831) 429-3904 


 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 
Date:                  January 12, 2022  
 
To:  CRW Industries, Inc.   
 
Project:  Branciforte Middle School New Landscape and Hardscape, 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT:  


 
 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 
 
 
On April 22, 2020, this District contracted with:  CRW Industries, Inc. 5346 Scotts Valley Drive, Ste. E 


Scotts Valley, CA 95066 as Contractor; and with Western Surety Company as Surety for said Contractor, 


for work of New Landscape and Hardscape performed on District grounds at: Branciforte Middle School, 


315 Poplar Ave, Santa Cruz CA 95060. 


 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on  October 18, 2021    .  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent for 


Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with that 


contract.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


52/371







 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Facility Services 


536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3904 


 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 


Date: 


To: 


Project: 


January 12, 2022 


 Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.  


Facilities Yard New Driveway Approach, 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT: 
 
 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite l00, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 
 
 


On   June 16, 2021 , this District contracted with: Dilbeck & Sons, Inc. 26 Quail Run Circle, Salinas CA 93912 
 


as Contractor; and with   Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland as Surety for said Contractor, for  
 


   work of New Driveway Approach performed on District grounds at:  Facilities Yard, 536 Palm Street,  


 


  Santa Cruz, Ca 95060.  
 
 
 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on      December 31, 2021.  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract. 


 
 
 
 
 
                                                             


Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 
53/371







 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Facility Services 


536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3904 


 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 


Date: 


To: 


Project: 


January 12, 2022 


Enviroplex 


Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Campus Buildings, Santa Cruz 
City Schools 


 
 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT: 
 
 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite l 00, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 
 


On  June 17, 2020  , this District contracted with:  Enviroplex 4777 E. Carpenter Rd, Stockton CA 95215 as 
 


Contractor; and with  Liberty Mutual Surety as Surety for said Contractor, for work of 
 


     AFE Campus Buildings performed on District grounds at:  840 N. Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, CA  


 


   95062.  
 
 
 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on   November 31, 2021. 


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract. 


 
 
 
 
 
                                                             


Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


54/371







 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Facility Services 


536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3904 


 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 


Date: 


To: 


Project: 


January 12, 2022 


 I & A Contractor, Inc.  


Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof, 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT: 
 
 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite l 00, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 
 
 


On June 2, 2021, this District contracted with: I & A Contractor, Inc., 3227 Spring St. Redwood City, CA  
 


94063 as Contractor; and with North American Specialty Insurance Company as Surety for said  
 


  Contractor, for work of   Gym Re-Roof   performed on District grounds at:  Mission Hill Middle School  
 
 425 King Street, Santa Cruz, 95060.  
  
 
 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on           November 22, 2021          


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract. 


 
 
 
 
 
                                                             


Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 
55/371







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose 
of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and 
Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545 (a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of 
the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may 
delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of 
property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no 
qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of 
the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of 
those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate 
by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the 
district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Education Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical 
means, provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the 
governing board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 
 


56/371







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.2.6. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metric: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


57/371







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF JANUARY 12, 2022 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: MISSION HILL, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


 # Copies Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 34 HP Chromebook 14A G5 Unknown Damaged $0 


2. 32 HP Chromebook 14 G4  Unknown Obsolete $0 


3 7 HP EliteBook 840  Unknown Damaged $0 


4. 2 HP Chromebook 11A G6 EE Unknown Damaged $0 


5. 3 MacBook Unknown Obsolete $0 


6. 2 Toshiba CB35 Unknown Obsolete $0 


7. 19 HP Chromebook 11 G5 EE Unknown Obsolete $0 


8. 7 AverVision CP300 Unknown Obsolete $0 


9. 1 ASUS Chromebox CN06 Unknown Obsolete $0 


10. 1 Anywhere Chromebook Cart Unknown Obsolete $0 


11. 1 Anthro Chromebook Cart Unknown Obsolete $0 


12. 1 NonBranded Chromebook Cart Unknown Obsolete $0 


13. 1 Smart Tech Smart Board Unknown Obsolete $0 


14. 5 20” iMac Unknown Obsolete $0 


15. 3 21.5” iMac Unknown Obsolete $0 


16. 1 Nutrikids Point of Service System Unknown Obsolete $0 


17. 1 Epson Stylus NX420 Printer Unknown Obsolete $0 


 


 


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


 


58/371







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF JANUARY 12, 2022 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: WESTLAKE, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


 # Copies Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 5 HP L1940T Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


2. 1 HP Compaq LA 1951g Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


3 2 Dell 1908FPt Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


4. 3 HP 1740 Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


5. 1 HP L1750 Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


6. 1 Dell E1910c Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


7. 1 Dell Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


8. 1 Dell E151FPp Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


9. 1 HP 2031 Monitor Unknown Damaged $0 


10. 3 AVerVision F30 DocCam Unknown Damaged $0 


11. 1 MacBook Pro Unknown Damaged $0 


12. 5 AVerVision F15 Doc Cam Unknown Damaged $0 


13. 11 Wired Keyboards Unknown Damaged $0 


14. 15 HP Chromebook 14 G4 Unknown Damaged $0 


15. 6 HP Chromebook 14A G5 Unknown Damaged $0 


16. 2 Toshiba CB35 Unknown Damaged $0 


17. 1 HP Chromebook 11 G5 EE Unknown Damaged $0 


18. 1 iPad Unknown Damaged  


19. 1 QOMO QPC22 Doc Cam Unknown Damaged  


20. 1 HP Compaq Elite 8300 Desktop Unknown Damaged  


21. 1 HP Compaq 6200 Desktop Unknown Damaged  


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


59/371







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF JANUARY 12, 2022 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: BAY VIEW, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


 # Copies Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 3 Toshiba CB35-B3330 Unknown Outdated $0 


2. 41 HP Chromebook 14 G$ Unknown Outdated $0 


      


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


60/371







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, California 


Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 


 
 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


61/371







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


 


Mikaela Alexander, Science Curriculum & Assessment Team, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


10/16/21 – 6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Allison Baumsteiger, Saturday School Teacher, Soquel High, 12/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 32 


hours. 


 


Wendy Cavadias, Language Review Team, Branciforte Middle, 10/16/21 – 11/15/21, not to exceed 2 


hours. 


 


Luke Dahlen, NCBI Workshop, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 11/15/21, not to exceed 13 hours. 


 


Barney Levy, History & Social Sciences Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


10/16/21 – 6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Susan Powell, Elementary ELPAC Training, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


1/15/22, not to exceed 7.25 hours. 


  


Susan Powell, Secondary ELPAC Training, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


1/15/22, not to exceed 9 hours. 


 


Noreen Winkler, Elementary ELPAC Training, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


1/15/22, not to exceed 7.25 hours. 


 


Noreen Winkler, Secondary ELPAC Training, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


1/15/22, not to exceed 9 hours. 


 


62/371







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:   January 12, 2022 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


63/371







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS  


 


Reviewed by Director-Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 1/4/22 


 


• Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments • 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   


Acevedo Castrejon, Mitzy, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - DL, 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 


11/17/21 


Jenkins, William, Paraeducator-After School - BV, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/8/21 


Long, Prima, Food Service Worker I - 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/16/21 


Quirke, Janeth, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, .7 hrs/9 mos, effective 1/6/22 


Sorber, Madeline, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - GA, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/8/21 


Watson, Nick, Education Technology Specialist - IT, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 12/1/21 


Promotion:   


Dimarzio, Ruth, from Food Service Worker I - FS, 6.5 hrs/9 mos to Food Service Worker II - FS, 6 


hrs/9 mos, effective 11/29/21 


Orlando, Thomas, from Food Service Worker II - FS, 6 hrs/9 mos to Delivery Driver - FS, 6 hrs/11 


mos, effective 12/16/21 


Sanchez Ortega, Martin, from Night Custodian - WL, 8 hrs/12 mos to Day Custodian - DL, 8 


hrs/12 mos, effective 12/14/21 


Increase FTE:   


Jenkins, William, Paraeducator-After School - BV, from 3 hrs/9 mos to 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 


1/5/22 


Long, Michael, Food Service Worker I - FS, from 3.5 hrs/9 mos to 6.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 


12/6/21 


Reduce FTE:   


Castaneda II, Manuel, Behavior Technician-PBIS - BV, from 7 hrs/9 mos to 5.6 hrs/9 mos, 


effective 1/21/22 


Kinley, Diane, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, from .6 hrs/9 mos to .3 hrs/9 mos, effective 1/4/22 


Lateral Move and Increase FTE: 


Sheehan, Andrew, from Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - DL, 3 hrs/9 mos to 


Paraeducator-Sped - DL, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 1/5/22 


Out of Class:    


64/371







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Blyston, Jason, Groundskeeper I - M/O, 8 hrs/12 mos working as Groundskeeper III - M/O, not 


to exceed 1500 hrs, 7/1/21 - 12/15/21  


Separation from Service: 


Aguilar, Esmeralda, Food Service Worker I - FS, 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/17/21 


Benko, Jonathan, Mental Health Specialist - SHS, 8 hrs/10 mos, effective 1/3/22 


Flores, Evelyn, Paraeducator - MH, 3.95 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/17/21  


Marquez, Isaac, Paraeducator-After School, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 1/14/22 


Transfer: 


Young Jr., Donald, Night Custodian - from 2.67 hrs/12 mos - BV, DL, & WL (total of 8 hrs/12 


mos) to 8 hrs/12 mos - BV, effective 10/25/21 


Young Jr., Donald, Night Custodian - from 8 hrs/12 mos - BV to 8 hrs/12 mos - BSS, effective 


12/8/21 


Retirement: 


Young Jr., Donald, Night Custodian - M/O, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 2/2/22 


 


• Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes • 


New Temporary Employees:  


Castillo-Musante, Carolyn, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - GA, not to exceed 100 hrs, 


11/22/21-4/29/22 


Garcia, Mirtala, Night Custodian - M/O, effective 11/19/21 


Rooks, Natalie, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - MH, not to exceed 350 hrs, 12/8/21 - 


6/15/22 


Stone, Mona, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - MH, not to exceed 455 hrs, 11/17/21 - 


6/15/22 


Tristan Lopez, Alejandra, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BV, effective 12/8/21 


Temporary Employees (Limited Term Assignments):  


House, Gabriel, Instructional Specialist-Band - MH, not to exceed 24 hrs, 9/16/21 - 6/15/22 


McCormick-Ramos, Sonny, Paraeducator-After School - BSS, not to exceed 100 hrs, 11/22/21 - 


6/15/22 


Mejia, Lita, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 30 hrs, 12/6 - 12/15/21 


Sides, Alec, Paraeducator - BSS, not to exceed 100 hrs, 12/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Venegas Magallanes, Jocelyn, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - MH, not to exceed 455 


hrs, 11/17/21 - 6/15/22 


65/371







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Wilson, Anita, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - WL, not to exceed 67.75 hrs, 11/16/21 - 


1/15/22 


Wilson, Anita, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, not to exceed 14.5 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Regular Employees (Extra Hours or Limited Term Assignments):  


AlRashid, Sama, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Dimarzio, Ruth, Food Service Worker II - FS, not to exceed 20 hrs, 11/29/21 - 5/15/22 


Espinoza-Saldana, Efrain, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 25 hrs, 12/31/21 - 5/31/22 


Ferreira, Sarah, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 7 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Flores, Evelyn, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 8 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Gaona, Mireya, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Gonzales, Elisa, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 13.25 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Kirch, Karla, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Lawrence, Nicole, Library/Media Assistant - DL, not to exceed 4 hrs, 12/17/21 


Mabrouk, Gail, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 8.5 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Maldonado, Arlett, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 16 hrs, 11/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Manzo, Dorthy, Interpreter/Translator - SP, not to exceed 20 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Marquez, Ashley, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 16 hrs, 11/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Medina Bahena, Rita, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Mejia, Lita, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 30 hrs, 12/6 - 12/15/21 


Mullins, Marsha, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, not to exceed 3.5 hrs, 12/17/21 


Murphy, James, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 16 hrs, 11/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Orozco, Marlene, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, not to exceed 4 hrs, 12/17/21 


Ortiz, Mikayla, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 19 hrs, 11/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Rodriguez, Stephanie, Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 30 hrs, 11/10 - 12/17/21 


Ruiz, Reyna, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Reyna Torres Guillen, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Serna Castaneda, Jessica, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 9 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


Serna Castaneda, Jessica, Interpreter/Translator - Supt, not to exceed 3 hrs, 11/16/21 - 


12/15/21 


Vincent, Amy, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BV, not to exceed 20 hrs, 11/16/21 - 


6/30/22 


Retired: 


Glasgow, Amy, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 16.25 hrs, 11/16/21 - 1/15/22 


66/371







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


 


• Eligibility Lists Established •  


Administrative Assistant  


 


 


 


 


67/371







  AGENDA ITEM 8.2.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: Monterey Bay Area Math Project  
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:     Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent 
  
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify the Consultant Services Agreement for University of California Santa Cruz Monterey Bay 
Area Math Project for Professional Development for Santa Cruz City Schools’ K-5 teachers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Monterey Bay Area Math Project delivers content in best practices for Tier 1 strategies in 
math.  The District has worked with Monterey Bay Area Math Project previously with great 
success. 
 
Monterey Bay Area Math Project provided instruction to K-5 teachers at the January 4th 
professional development day, focusing on a restorative restart for mathematics instruction. 
The professional development offered new, research-based ways to increase student 
achievement in math, specifically in the area of math fluency and number sense.  The sessions  
covered “Using Math Games to Improve Student’s Math Skills.” Math games have been proven 
to increase student understanding and achievement in math. 
 
This contract is being brought for ratification as needed documents were not returned by the 
vendor in time to get them on the December agenda. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,700 Title IV (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
 


68/371







69/371







70/371







 


 


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SANTA CRUZ 


BERKELEY      DAVIS   •  IRVINE   •  LOS  ANGELES   •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN  DIEGO  •  SAN  FRANCISCO  SANTA BARBARA    •    SANTA CRUZ


  
    
MONTEREY BAY AREA MATHEMATICS PROJECT                  
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SANTA CRUZ     
MATHEMATICS DEPARTMENT              
1156 HIGH STREET  
SANTA CRUZ, CA  95064 


   
FEE FOR SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR:  
University of California Santa Cruz Monterey Bay Area Math Project (MBAMP) 
MBAMP Representative: 
Judith Montgomery (judithm@ucsc.edu) 
 
 
WITH:  
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3747 
 
SCCS Representative:  
Shannon Calden 


shannoncalden@sccs.net 


 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:   
The Monterey Bay Area Mathematics Project (MBAMP) will provide  
SCCS  k-5 teachers PD at Westlake School. 
Two k-5 sessions: 8:30-10:00 and 10:20-11:40. 
Using math games to improve student's math skills. Part 1 
Using math games to improve student's math skills. Part 2 
 
The work will happen on Jan 4, 2022  
During this time the teachers from SCCS will receive PD on using math games in the classroom to increase 
student achievement. 
 
The charge for the $900.00/ hour for 60  teachers.  Total fee will be $2,700.00 


• Teachers may contact MBAMP for individual  coaching follow-up via email. 
 
The PO will be generated PAYABLE TO:  UC Regents and emailed to Judith Montgomery at judithm@ucsc.edu 
 
The PO will include a brief descriptions of services and allow for billing up to the amount of $2,700.00 


 
 
 
 
Contact person: 
MBAMP Director: Judith Montgomery, 
judithm@ucsc.edu 
 


MBAMP Office  
UCSC Mathematics Office, Baskin 
1156 High Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95064 
 
 


  


71/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Proposal for Security Cameras 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Development Group Inc. proposal for security cameras. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of four dome security cameras. Due to the recent break in and theft at 
the District Office this security system will allow for monitoring of the inside of the building 
afterhours by a security company. In addtion to this one time camera cost, there will be an 
annual fee for surveillance of approximately $1,200 per year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$14,598.36.00 Lease Revenue (Un-Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


72/371







Company:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


Requested By:


Trevor Miller
Director, Facility Services


Description:


(4) Verkada CD62-E Cameras for District
Office


Proposal #26880


 


Bill To:
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
133 Mission St
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3754


Ship To:
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
133 Mission St
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3754


Sold To:
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
133 Mission St
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3754


Created: 12/14/2021
Expires: 1/14/2022
Version: 1


Account Manager: nslocum
Systems Engineer: romalley


Payment Terms:


Product & Manufacturer Maintenance


Line No Qty Product SMARTnet Unit Price Ext'd Price Tax


1 4
CD62-30E-HW
CD62-E Outdoor Dome Camera, 512GB, 30 Days Max 1,444.15 5,776.60 T


2 4
LIC-5Y
5 Year Camera License 679.15 2,716.60


3 1
LIC-BA-5Y
5 Year Alarm License 5,099.15 5,099.15 T


Need more time to get important stuff done? Ask us about


Subtotal $13,592.35


 


Handling $0.00


Estimated Sales Tax (9.25%) $1,006.01


SMARTnet $0.00


Professional Services $0.00


Shipping $0.00


Total $14,598.36


73/371







 
Company:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


Requested By:


Trevor Miller
Director, Facility Services


Description:


(4) Verkada CD62-E Cameras for District
Office


Proposal #26880


About Sales Tax
Items sold by Development Group, Inc. and shipped to destinations in California and Nevada are subject to sales tax.


If an item is subject to sales tax in the state to which the order is shipped, tax is generally calculated on the total selling price of each individual item. In accordance with state tax laws, the total selling price of an
order will generally include shipping and handling charges and item-level discounts. The amount of tax charged on your order will depend upon many factors including, but not limited to, the type of item(s)
purchased, and the source and destination of the shipment. Factors can change between the time you place an order and the time and invoice is sent, which could affect the calculation of sales taxes. The amount
appearing on your proposal as 'Estimated Sales Tax' may differ from the sales taxes ultimately charged.


About Product Returns
Development Group, Inc. ("DEVGRU") only accepts the return of Products (a) that DEVGRU has the right to return to the applicable manufacturers or suppliers, (b) for which DEVGRU receives your written request
for return within FOURTEEN (14) DAYS from the date of the invoice for such Products, and (c) that are factory sealed in fully resalable condition or which are Dead on Arrival ("DoA"). Except for Products returned
because they are defective or DoA, to be eligible for return, Products must be in resalable condition, complete, unused and unopened, with the outer seal intact. Products that do not meet these conditions are not
eligible for return and will be returned to you. Eligible Product returns will receive a credit that will be issued at the original purchase price that you paid for the Product only if your account is current. DEVGRU may
return to you, any Product not authorized for return (an "Unauthorized Return") at your expense, or DEVGRU may, at its sole discretion, issue a credit for the current price of the Product, less a thirty percent
(30%) restocking fee. DEVGRU is not liable for any loss or damage to Unauthorized Returns.


Company & Payment Information
Mailing Address


Development Group, Inc.
PO Box 991484
Redding, CA 96099-1484


Phone: (530) 229-0071
Fax: (530) 248-3415


Office Locations


Development Group, Inc.
6704 Lockheed Dr
Redding, CA 96002


   


Payment Information


Development Group, Inc.
32880 Collections Center Dr
Chicago, IL 60693


Federal Tax ID: 26-3740919


Wire Transfer Information


Domestic Wire Transfer (U.S.)
Wire Routing Transit Number (RTN): 026009593
Bank Name: Bank of America
City, State: Chicago, IL
Account Number: 8188065595
Title of Account: DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC


ACH Information


ACH Transfer (U.S.)
Routing Transit Number (RTN): 071000039
Bank Name: Bank of America
City, State: Chicago, IL
Account Number: 8188065595
Title of Account: DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC


Note: All wire transfers must be made in US Dollars


74/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Anaya Construction Change Order #1 for Santa Cruz High School 
Temporary Housing 


      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Anaya Construction change order #1 for Santa Cruz High School temporary housing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of signage and city permits to provide adequate additional street 
access for delivery of the modular building sections. Because the modular sections on a trailer 
are oversized, parking on adjacent streets needed to be cleared on the days of delivery to 
provide safe access. Although staff anticipated the need for permits to clear parking spaces, 
once the delivery company completed their assessment, the need for additional space was 
identified. The previously approved contract amount was $82,800.00 and the new total 
contract, including this change order, will be $83,714.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $914.00 (1.10% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


75/371







Proposal


Proposal Date: 10/5/2021
Proposal #: 2021-225


Bill To:
Business Department
Attn: Accounts Payable
133 Mission Street, Ste 100
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Anaya Construction
920 East Milgeo Ave
Ripon, CA 95366
105


Project: DeLaveaga ES - ...


Phone:


(209)605-4395


Fax:


(209)599-0863


E-mail


Lic # 746627


Total


Description Rate Total


1.  Dismantle (4) 24 x 40 portables at Delaveaga ES 
2.  Dispose of old wood foundation and skirting materials along with
a set of steps
3.  Brace and prep portables for relocation
4.  Dolly portables out to make accessible for transport
5.  Transport portables to Santa Cruz HS and dolly into place
6.  Set up portables using new wood foundation and skirting
materials 
7.  Drill and install foundation pipes, install tie down plates, and vent
screens
8.  Seal roofs with new roof pans (E) ones seam to be leaking due to
wet ceiling tiles at mod lines
9.  Install new gutter splices
10.Seal exterior mod lines to make weathertight 
11.Install (2) existing ramps, resurface (1) existing ramp, and
purchase & install (1) new TMP ramp
12.Skirt all (4) ramps and paint to match (E) color as close as
possible
13.Remove (E) sink cabinets and casework & dispose
14 Remove (E) tack board where plumbing penetrated walls and
replace with new tack board
15.Remove and replace exterior siding where plumbing went
through walls
16.Remove and replace front and rear gutters on (1) Enviroplex
portable
17.Scrape, clean and re-surface (1) ramp (as noted on # 11)
18.Purchase, deliver to site, install, and skirt (1) new TMP ramp (as
noted on # 11)
19.Remove carpet, carpet squares, sheet vinyl, and VCT in
portables & prep for new carpet.
20.Install new 26 ounce commercial glue down carpet with 4" rubber
base in all (4) portables


82,800.00 82,800.00


Temporary no parking signs and permit 664.00 664.00


Page 1


76/371







Proposal


Proposal Date: 10/5/2021
Proposal #: 2021-225


Bill To:
Business Department
Attn: Accounts Payable
133 Mission Street, Ste 100
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Anaya Construction
920 East Milgeo Ave
Ripon, CA 95366
105


Project: DeLaveaga ES - ...


Phone:


(209)605-4395


Fax:


(209)599-0863


E-mail


Lic # 746627


Total


Description Rate Total


Delineator posts 250.00 250.00


~~~~~ CHANGE ORDER ~~~~~
December 28, 2021
> Added 1 General Income. (+$664.00)
> Added 1 General Income. (+$250.00)
Total change to estimate +$914.00
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~


Page 2


$83,714.00


77/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: California Premier Restoration Proposal for Santa Cruz High 
School Temporary Housing Dry Rot Repair 


      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve California Premier Restoration proposal for Santa Cruz High School temporary housing 
dry rot repair. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of removal and replacement of rotted subfloor materials, siding and 
interior plywood in the portable classroom being used as temporary housing at Santa Cruz High 
School. Dry rot caused by water damage had been concealed prior to dismantling the portable 
for relocation to Santa Cruz High School. These repairs are needed to provide a safe classroom 
environment. 
 
This repair is a part of the total cost of providing temporary housing for the Santa Cruz High 
School modernization project. Below is a chart that outlines al of the costs related to temporary 
housing.  
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Service to Portables $25,280.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Services within the Portables $53,272.00 (board approved) 


Fencing $23,350.00 (board approved) 


DSA Inspections $8,000.00 (board approved) 


Data Installation $22,000.00 (board approved) 


Cable Protection $17,257.00 (board approved) 


Rot Repair $9,727.03 (this agenda item) 


Estimated Total $241,686.03 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$9,727.03 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.03% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 


78/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


79/371







9821 Blue Larkspur Lane / Suite 200/ Monterey, CA 93940/ TEL 831-275-2103/ FAX  831-275-4188/ 
info@californiarestore.com/ californiarestore.com 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane Suite 200 


Monterey, CA 93940 


831-275-2103 


CA License #: 1013305 


DIR #: 1000035801 


 


December 3, 2021 


Trevor Miller – Director of Facilities  
Santa Cruz School District 
 
RE: Santa Cruz HS Portable Repairs 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
I am writing to provide our proposal for removal and replacement of rotted subfloor materials, 
T111 siding and interior plywood at Santa Cruz High School.   
 
Scope of work: 
 


 Remove wood rotted sections of 1 1/8” plywood subfloor.  


 Replace approximately 3 sheets of 1 1/8” plywood subfloor.  


 Remove wood rotted sections of wall framing and interior plywood as needed.  


 Replace approximately 45 studs and 10 sheets of interior 5/8” plywood.  


 Remove wood rotted sections of T111 siding and trim components.  


 Replace approximately 6 sheets of T111 siding and trim components to match existing.  


 Install Z metal flashing as needed to integrate new T111 siding to existing.  


 Install insulation in walls and flooring where removed for demo.  


 Dispose of all job related debris. 


 


Total cost to perform work detailed above: $9,727.03 


I hope this information is helpful. I am more than happy to discuss in more detail if you would 
like. Please let me know if you have any questions or require additional information at this 
point. You can reach me directly at 831-383-8308.  


Respectfully, 


 
 
Michael Mosebach  
President 


80/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Dilbeck & Sons, Inc. Contract for DeLaveaga Elementary School 
Kindergarten Window Assembly Replacement 


      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Dilbeck & Sons, Inc. contract for DeLaveaga Elementary School kindergarten window 
assembly replacement.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of the removal of existing window assemblies, that are failing, and the 
installation of new storefront style energy efficient windows in the kindergarten classrooms at 
DeLaveaga Elementary School. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan room and 
advertised in the local newspapers. Five bids were received. Dilbeck & Sons, Inc. was the 
successful low bidder. 


Bid Summary 


 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Dilbeck & Sons, Inc., the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$82,211.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.57% of the overall site budget 
$14,188,861.00 is the total Bond Allocation to DeLaveaga Elementary School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 


Knowlton Construction Freedom $149,030.00 


101 Builders, Inc. Gilroy $261,101.00 


Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.  Salinas $82,211.00 


CRW Industries, Inc.  Scotts Valley $123,555.00 


August-Jaye Construction Rhonert Park $89,750.00 


LOW BID Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.  $82,211.00 


81/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


82/371







83/371







84/371







85/371







86/371







87/371







88/371







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Proposal for District Office Automatic Door 
Operators 


      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Dilbeck & Sons Inc. proposal for District Office automatic door operators. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the installation of power operated automatic door operators for the 
main entrance and restrooms of the District Office. This will provide barrier-free and easy 
access for Americans with Disabilities Act individuals. This project was approved by the board 
on January 13, 2021.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$32,066.00 Total 
Cost Breakdown by fund: 
$20,842.90 representing 0.59% of the Measure A District Set-Aside (Restricted)  
$11,223.10 representing 0.64% of the Elementary Redevelopment Agency Fund (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


89/371







P.O. Box 6088 License No.  430708 Telephone (831) 422-8213
26 Quail Run Circle Salinas, CA  93912 Fax (831) 422-1882
PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO PHONE DATE


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 831-429-3883
STREET JOB NAME


133 MISSION ST., SUITE 100 NEW AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATORS
CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION


SANTA CRUZ, CA  95060 DISTRICT OFFICE
ARCHITECT JOB PHONE


N/A
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:


"Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors' State License Board.  Any questions concerning a


contractor may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors' State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, CA  95826"


We propose hereby to furnish material and labor - complete in accordance with the above specifications, for the sum of:


THIRTY TWO THOUSAND SIXTY SIX        DOLLARS ($32,066)


All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike Authorized


manner according to standard practices.  Any alteration or deviation from above


specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders and will


become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon Note:  This proposal may be


strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other withdrawn by us if not accepted within _______days


necessary insurance.  Our works are fully covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance.


ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL - The above prices, specifications and conditions


are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.


Payment will be made as outlined above. Signature  ______________________________________


Date of Acceptance: Signature  ______________________________________


DILBECK & SONS:
ELECTRICAL:


COAST COUNTIES:


$4,086
$1,620


$26,360


HARDWARE (OTHER THAN ACTUATORS).


$32,066


NOTE:  COST FOR BOND HAS BEEN INCLUDED; IF NOT REQUIRED, DEDUCT $598.


Signature:  Jennifer Jaramillo


BASE BID ONLY


1. FURNISH & INSTALL NEW AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATORS TO ENTRY DOORS AND WOMEN'S 


RESTROOM.  ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE EXTERIOR PEDESTAL WITH ACTUATOR & INTERIOR 


SURFACE MOUNTED ACTUATOR.  SINGLE DOOR TO HAVE SURFACE MOUNTED ACTUATOR 


AT INTERIOR & EXTERIOR.  FURNISH NEW THRESHOLD.


2. FOR ENTRY DOOR, PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE AT NEW PEDESTAL.


3. PROVIDE ELECTRICAL AS REQUIRED.


EXCLUDES:  PERMITS, TESTING; LANDSCAPING OR IRRIGATION.  DOORS, FRAMES OR


12/9/2021


ATTN:  PAUL


90/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Redistricting: First and/or Final Reading for Trustee Area Maps  
 
MEETING DATE:   January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Choose and approve one of the Trustee Area maps for first and/or final reading. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board voted to shift to Trustee Areas Elections.  Education Code 
section 5019.5 requires that the governing board “adjust the boundaries of any or all of the 
trustee areas of the district” if new Census data reveals that the old trustee areas are not 
population balanced.    
 
During the process of moving from “At Large Elections” to Trustee Area Elections, the Board 
adopted the following guiding principles for Trustee Area map development: 
 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas are at 


least as nearly equal in population as required by law. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall not be gerrymandered in violation of the 


principles established by the United States Supreme Court in Shaw v. Reno, 509 U.S. 630 


(1993), and other applicable law. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas do not 


result in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen to vote on account of race or 


color as provided in Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be compact, insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be created to contain contiguous territory, 


insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall observe communities of interest, such as the 


District’s underlying elementary and high school attendance areas, rural or urban 


populations, municipalities, social interests, agricultural, industrial or service industry 


interests, and the like, insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas may take into account visible features, such as 


topography and geography, including mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-made 


geographical features such as highways and canals, etc., insofar as practicable. 


 The boundaries of the trustee-areas may consider avoiding pairing two or more 


incumbents in a single trustee-area, to the extent legally allowable. 


 To assign more than one Trustee and more than one school per area. 


91/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


Demographer Doug Johnson of National Demographics Corporation shared 2021 Census data 
with the Board on its impact on Trustee Areas at the regular Board meeting on October 21, 
2021. The Board discussed the data presented and provided guidance for new map 
development.  
 
Now, on January 12, 2022, Demographer Doug Johnson will present new proposed map 
options, based on Census data and input received at the October 20, 2021 meeting for first and 
potentially final reading.  
 
If necessary, a third meeting will be held on February 9, 2022, to conduct a final review of maps 
and take action.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$18,750  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


92/371







Santa Cruz City Schools


2021 Redistricting


January 12, 2022
93/371







Redistricting Process


January 12, 2022


Step Description


September 27, 2021 State-adjusted Census data released.


October 20, 2021 Initial Informational Public Hearing


January 12, 2022 Consideration and possible adoption of  new map


Map Adoption Revised map must be adopted and delivered to the Registrar by 


February 28, 2022.


No County Committee hearing or State 


Board of  Education waiver is required.


94/371







 Equal Population


 Federal Voting Rights Act


 No Racial Gerrymandering


 Communities of  interest


 Compact


 Contiguous


 Visible (Natural & man-made) boundaries


 Respect voters’ choices / continuity in 


office


 Planned future growth


 Minimize voters shifted to different 


election years


 Preserving the core of  existing election 


areas


Federal Laws Traditional Redistricting Principles


January 12, 2022


Districting Rules and Goals


95/371







2019 Board Adopted Principles


• Trustee-areas shall be established so that they


are at least as nearly equal in population as 


required by law.


• Trustee-areas shall not be gerrymandered in 


violation of the principles established by law.


• Area boundaries established so that they do 


not result in a denial or abridgement of the 


right of any citizen to vote on account of race 


or color as provided in the federal Voting 


Rights Act.


• Trustee-areas shall be compact, insofar as 


practicable.


• Trustee-areas shall be created to contain 


contiguous territory, insofar as practicable.


• Trustee-areas shall assign more than one 


Trustee to more than one school per area.


 Trustee-areas shall observe communities of 


interest, such as:  the elementary and high school 


attendance areas, rural or  urban populations, 


municipalities, social interests, agricultural, 


industrial or service industry interests, and the 


like, insofar as practicable.


 Trustee-areas may take into account visible 


features, such as topography and geography, 


including mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-


made geographical features, etc., insofar as 


practicable.


 Trustee-areas may consider avoiding pairing two 


or more incumbents in a single trustee-area, to 


the extent legally allowable.


January 12, 202296/371







Existing Trustee Areas


January 12, 2022


District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total


Total Pop 19,212 17,963 16,276 16,722 16,974 17,002 17,714 121,863


Deviation from ideal 1803 554 -1,133 -687 -435 -407 305 2,936


% Deviation 10.36% 3.18% -6.51% -3.95% -2.50% -2.34% 1.75% 16.86%


97/371







Board Options


January 12, 2022


1. Make only the changes required for population 


balancing


2. Realign all the trustee areas


98/371







Minimal Change Option 1


January 12, 2022


Moving a small 


neighborhood just 


west of  UCSC into 


Area 3 would 


balance the map. 


The area moved is 


between Wilder 


Creek and Empire 


Grade / Bay Street / 


Western Drive north 


of  Highway 1.


99/371







Minimal Change 2


January 12, 2022


A small area on the 


east side of  UCSC, 


following River and 


Ocean Streets, could 


also be moved to 


population balance 


the map.


100/371







Area Realignment 1


January 12, 2022


The law requires that the trustee 


areas be population balanced. But 


this is also the Board’s opportunity 


to revisit the overall map, if  the 


Board feels that is necessary.


This map keeps Area 4 north of  Highway 1 and 


Areas 6 and 7 south of  Highway 1. And Area 2 


no longer extends along the coast to Davenport.


101/371







Area Realignment 2


January 12, 2022


This map focuses Area 7 more 


closely along the coast and brings 


Area 5 down to the coast.


102/371







Next Steps


January 12, 2022


 Public and Board discussion.


 Possible Board action on a resolution adopting a map.


 If  necessary, a third meeting will be held on February 9, 


2022, to conduct a final review of  maps and take action.


103/371







1


4


5


3


7
6


2


National Demographics Corporation, December 16, 2021


�2021 CALIPER


104/371







Area Realignment 1
District 1


Total Pop 17,406


Deviation from ideal -3


% Deviation -0.02%


% Hisp 28.3%


% NH White 48%


% NH Black 5%


% Asian-American 15%


Total 15,768


% Hisp 21%


% NH White 55%


% NH Black 3%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 19%


Total 7,127


% Latino est. 11%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 5%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 81%


% NH Black 2%


Total 5,778


% Latino est. 9%


% Spanish-Surnamed 8%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 84%


% NH Black 1%


Total 6,163


% Latino est. 12%


% Spanish-Surnamed 11%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 80%


% NH Black est. 2%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,258


age0-19 41%


age20-60 46%


age60plus 13%


immigrants 14%


naturalized 34%


english 65%


spanish 16%


asian-lang 12%


other lang 7%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less than Very Well" 5%


hs-grad 31%


bachelor 28%


graduatedegree 27%


Child in Household child-under18 24%


Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 49%


income 0-25k 17%


income 25-50k 11%


income 50-75k 11%


income 75-200k 41%


income 200k-plus 20%


single family 82%


multi-family 18%


rented 32%


owned 68%


Total population data from the 2020 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.


Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black registration and turnout counts estimated
by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


2


17,512


103


0.59%


27%


57%


2%


9%


12,620


16%


73%


4%


6%


10,569


15%


14%


3%


1%


78%


3%


8,789


13%


13%


3%


1%


80%


3%


7,189


12%


11%


3%


1%


81%


3%


17,186


18%


62%


20%


15%


36%


75%


17%


4%


5%


8%


31%


29%


23%


19%


67%


28%


18%


12%


30%


13%


59%


41%


63%


37%


3


17,515


106


0.61%


19%


62%


3%


11%


14,058


14%


72%


2%


9%


13,192


12%


11%


4%


1%


81%


2%


10,994


11%


10%


3%


1%


82%


1%


8,132


10%


9%


4%


1%


84%


1%


17,887


18%


64%


19%


14%


41%


79%


11%


6%


5%


6%


32%


28%


28%


21%


66%


21%


16%


12%


36%


15%


66%


34%


48%


52%


4


17,606


197


1.13%


20%


69%


1%


5%


13,708


12%


81%


1%


3%


13,044


12%


11%


2%


1%


84%


1%


11,599


11%


10%


2%


1%


85%


1%


9,012


9%


8%


2%


1%


87%


1%


18,273


24%


49%


27%


11%


51%


85%


11%


1%


3%


3%


36%


26%


17%


31%


63%


10%


14%


15%


43%


18%


84%


16%


31%


69%


5


17,307


-102


-0.59%


17%


70%


2%


6%


13,544


10%


83%


1%


5%


12,925


10%


10%


2%


1%


86%


1%


11,416


10%


9%


2%


1%


86%


1%


9,463


8%


8%


2%


1%


88%


1%


16,901


17%


59%


24%


13%


42%


83%


11%


2%


4%


5%


37%


28%


22%


22%


69%


16%


12%


11%


42%


18%


75%


25%


44%


56%


6


17,203


-206


-1.18%


28%


60%


2%


6%


12,251


15%


77%


1%


4%


11,653


16%


15%


2%


1%


81%


1%


9,981


15%


13%


2%


1%


82%


1%


7,720


13%


12%


2%


1%


84%


1%


17,000


20%


57%


23%


18%


38%


69%


26%


2%


3%


12%


38%


24%


17%


25%


62%


18%


17%


16%


38%


10%


70%


30%


49%


51%


7


17,314


-95


-0.55%


23%


65%


2%


6%


13,605


17%


75%


2%


4%


12,452


13%


12%


2%


1%


82%


2%


10,934


12%


12%


2%


1%


83%


2%


8,348


11%


10%


2%


1%


85%


2%


17,715


20%


53%


27%


12%


45%


78%


19%


1%


1%


7%


42%


22%


16%


23%


62%


15%


19%


15%


39%


12%


67%


33%


46%


54%


Total


121,863


403


2.31%


23%


62%


2%


8%


95,553


15%


73%


2%


7%


80,962


13%


12%


3%


1%


82%


2%


69,491


12%


11%


3%


1%


83%


1%


56,027


10%


10%


3%


1%


85%


1%


124,220


23%


55%


22%


14%


40%


76%


16%


4%


4%


7%


36%


26%


21%


23%


62%


18%


16%


13%


38%


15%


71%


29%


46%


54%


12/16/2021 23:42 Page 1 of 1


Total Pop


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Voter Registration
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2018)


Age


Immigration


Language spoken at home


Education
(among those age 25+)


Household Income


Housing Stats


105/371







1


4


2


6


5


3 7


National Demographics Corporation, December 16, 2021


�2021 CALIPER


106/371







Area Realignment 2
District 1


Total Pop 17,601


Deviation from ideal 192


% Deviation 1.10%


% Hisp 26.8%


% NH White 50%


% NH Black 6%


% Asian-American 14%


Total 15,736


% Hisp 20%


% NH White 56%


% NH Black 4%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 19%


Total 7,794


% Latino est. 10%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 81%


% NH Black 3%


Total 6,099


% Latino est. 9%


% Spanish-Surnamed 8%


% Asian-Surnamed 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 83%


% NH Black 2%


Total 6,315


% Latino est. 11%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 80%


% NH Black est. 3%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,159


age0-19 42%


age20-60 44%


age60plus 14%


immigrants 14%


naturalized 35%


english 66%


spanish 15%


asian-lang 12%


other lang 7%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less than Very Well" 5%


hs-grad 31%


bachelor 30%


graduatedegree 25%


Child in Household child-under18 25%


Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 49%


income 0-25k 15%


income 25-50k 10%


income 50-75k 13%


income 75-200k 43%


income 200k-plus 20%


single family 86%


multi-family 14%


rented 28%


owned 72%


Total population data from the 2020 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.


Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black registration and turnout counts estimated
by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


2


17,418


9


0.05%


27%


57%


2%


8%


12,600


16%


72%


4%


6%


10,268


15%


14%


3%


1%


78%


3%


8,542


14%


13%


3%


1%


79%


3%


7,133


12%


11%


3%


1%


81%


3%


17,220


18%


61%


21%


15%


37%


75%


17%


4%


4%


9%


32%


29%


23%


19%


67%


28%


18%


12%


30%


13%


60%


40%


62%


38%


3


17,414


5


0.03%


20%


61%


3%


11%


14,109


15%


72%


1%


9%


12,826


12%


12%


4%


1%


81%


1%


10,920


11%


10%


4%


1%


82%


1%


8,036


10%


10%


4%


1%


84%


1%


17,952


17%


66%


17%


15%


39%


78%


12%


6%


5%


6%


32%


27%


30%


20%


67%


23%


17%


11%


35%


15%


62%


38%


52%


48%


4


17,585


176


1.01%


20%


69%


1%


6%


13,038


11%


81%


2%


4%


13,130


12%


11%


2%


1%


84%


1%


11,621


11%


11%


2%


1%


84%


1%


8,926


10%


9%


2%


1%


86%


1%


17,191


23%


49%


27%


11%


48%


85%


11%


1%


3%


4%


40%


26%


16%


30%


63%


13%


15%


15%


43%


14%


77%


23%


35%


65%


5


17,264


-145


-0.83%


17%


70%


2%


6%


13,573


10%


82%


1%


4%


12,937


10%


9%


2%


1%


86%


1%


11,413


9%


9%


2%


1%


87%


1%


9,470


7%


7%


2%


1%


89%


1%


16,754


17%


60%


23%


13%


43%


82%


11%


2%


4%


5%


37%


28%


22%


21%


70%


17%


12%


11%


43%


18%


74%


26%


46%


54%


6


17,237


-172


-0.99%


27%


62%


2%


6%


12,535


17%


75%


1%


5%


11,870


15%


14%


2%


1%


81%


1%


10,335


14%


13%


2%


1%


82%


1%


8,164


12%


11%


2%


1%


85%


1%


17,468


23%


52%


25%


16%


43%


73%


22%


2%


2%


9%


37%


24%


18%


30%


63%


13%


15%


15%


43%


14%


79%


21%


38%


62%


7


17,344


-65


-0.37%


25%


64%


2%


5%


13,962


17%


76%


2%


3%


12,137


14%


13%


2%


1%


82%


2%


10,561


13%


12%


2%


1%


83%


2%


7,983


11%


10%


2%


1%


85%


2%


18,477


19%


56%


25%


13%


40%


75%


22%


1%


2%


9%


39%


22%


16%


21%


61%


17%


21%


16%


34%


12%


67%


33%


49%


51%


Total


121,863


364


2.09%


23%


62%


2%


8%


95,553


15%


73%


2%


7%


80,962


13%


12%


3%


1%


82%


2%


69,491


12%


11%


3%


1%


83%


1%


56,027


10%


10%


3%


1%


85%


1%


124,220


23%


55%


22%


14%


40%


76%


16%


4%


4%


7%


36%


26%


21%


23%


62%


18%


16%


13%


38%


15%


71%


29%


46%


54%


12/16/2021 23:56 Page 1 of 1


Total Pop


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Voter Registration
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2018)


Age


Immigration


Language spoken at home


Education
(among those age 25+)


Household Income


Housing Stats


107/371







1


7


2


6


5


3 4


National Demographics Corporation, December 16, 2021


�2021 CALIPER


108/371







1


2


5


3


�2021 CALIPER


109/371







Minimal Change 1
District 1


Total Pop 17,514


Deviation from ideal 105


% Deviation 0.60%


% Hisp 26.8%


% NH White 50%


% NH Black 6%


% Asian-American 15%


Total 15,663


% Hisp 20%


% NH White 56%


% NH Black 4%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 19%


Total 7,737


% Latino est. 10%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 81%


% NH Black 3%


Total 6,044


% Latino est. 9%


% Spanish-Surnamed 8%


% Asian-Surnamed 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 83%


% NH Black 2%


Total 6,272


% Latino est. 11%


% Spanish-Surnamed 11%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 80%


% NH Black est. 3%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,061


age0-19 42%


age20-60 44%


age60plus 14%


immigrants 14%


naturalized 35%


english 66%


spanish 15%


asian-lang 12%


other lang 7%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less than Very Well" 5%


hs-grad 31%


bachelor 30%


graduatedegree 25%


Child in Household child-under18 25%


Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 48%


income 0-25k 15%


income 25-50k 10%


income 50-75k 13%


income 75-200k 43%


income 200k-plus 20%


single family 86%


multi-family 14%


rented 28%


owned 72%


Total population data from the 2020 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.


Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black registration and turnout counts estimated
by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


2


17,963


554


3.18%


28%


57%


2%


8%


12,924


16%


72%


4%


6%


10,350


15%


14%


3%


1%


78%


3%


8,603


13%


13%


3%


1%


79%


3%


7,257


12%


12%


3%


1%


81%


3%


17,640


18%


62%


20%


15%


36%


75%


17%


4%


4%


9%


32%


28%


23%


19%


67%


28%


18%


12%


30%


13%


59%


41%


62%


38%


3


17,974


565


3.25%


20%


61%


3%


11%


14,630


15%


72%


1%


9%


13,366


13%


12%


4%


1%


81%


1%


11,386


11%


11%


4%


1%


82%


1%


8,336


10%


10%


4%


1%


84%


1%


18,610


17%


65%


17%


15%


40%


77%


12%


6%


5%


6%


32%


27%


30%


20%


67%


23%


16%


11%


35%


15%


62%


38%


52%


48%


4


16,722


-687


-3.95%


27%


62%


2%


5%


13,199


19%


75%


2%


3%


11,730


14%


13%


2%


1%


82%


1%


10,085


13%


12%


2%


1%


83%


1%


7,681


12%


11%


2%


1%


85%


1%


17,700


19%


59%


22%


15%


41%


71%


26%


1%


3%


11%


38%


23%


16%


22%


64%


19%


19%


14%


37%


12%


72%


28%


49%


51%


5


16,974


-435


-2.50%


18%


69%


2%


6%


13,221


11%


82%


1%


4%


12,497


10%


10%


2%


1%


85%


1%


11,042


10%


9%


2%


1%


86%


1%


9,082


8%


7%


2%


1%


88%


1%


16,599


18%


58%


24%


13%


44%


81%


13%


2%


3%


5%


37%


28%


22%


22%


69%


16%


13%


10%


42%


18%


75%


25%


44%


56%


6


17,002


-407


-2.34%


24%


65%


1%


6%


12,392


15%


77%


0%


5%


12,172


14%


13%


3%


1%


83%


0%


10,719


13%


12%


3%


1%


83%


0%


8,435


11%


10%


2%


1%


86%


0%


16,775


22%


51%


28%


15%


43%


79%


16%


2%


3%


7%


39%


23%


17%


30%


62%


11%


15%


17%


41%


16%


81%


19%


35%


65%


7


17,714


305


1.75%


19%


69%


1%


6%


13,523


11%


82%


2%


4%


13,110


12%


11%


2%


1%


84%


2%


11,612


11%


10%


2%


1%


84%


2%


8,964


9%


9%


2%


1%


86%


2%


17,834


23%


49%


28%


11%


47%


86%


10%


1%


2%


4%


39%


25%


17%


28%


61%


13%


16%


16%


42%


13%


71%


29%


40%


60%


Total


121,863


1,252


7.19%


23%


62%


2%


8%


95,553


15%


73%


2%


7%


80,962


13%


12%


3%


1%


82%


2%


69,491


12%


11%


3%


1%


83%


1%


56,027


10%


10%


3%


1%


85%


1%


124,220


23%


55%


22%


14%


40%


76%


16%


4%


4%


7%


36%


26%


21%


23%


62%


18%


16%


13%


38%


15%


71%


29%


46%


54%


12/16/2021 23:13 Page 1 of 1


Total Pop


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Voter Registration
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2018)


Age


Immigration


Language spoken at home


Education
(among those age 25+)


Household Income


Housing Stats


110/371







1


7


2


6
5


3 4


National Demographics Corporation, December 16, 2021


�2021 CALIPER


111/371







1


5


3
San Lorenzo


Riv


Dry Pond


River St


State Rt 9


State R
t 17


State R
t 1


Santa C
ruz H


w
y


STATE RT 1


St
at


e 
R


t 1
7


�2021 CALIPER


112/371







Min Change 2
District 1


Total Pop 17,811


Deviation from ideal 402


% Deviation 2.31%


% Hisp 26.7%


% NH White 50%


% NH Black 5%


% Asian-American 15%


Total 16,146


% Hisp 20%


% NH White 56%


% NH Black 3%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 19%


Total 7,931


% Latino est. 10%


% Spanish-Surnamed 9%


% Asian-Surnamed 5%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 81%


% NH Black 2%


Total 6,486


% Latino est. 9%


% Spanish-Surnamed 8%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 84%


% NH Black 1%


Total 6,568


% Latino est. 11%


% Spanish-Surnamed 10%


% Asian-Surnamed 4%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1%


% NH White est. 80%


% NH Black est. 2%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,684


age0-19 41%


age20-60 46%


age60plus 13%


immigrants 14%


naturalized 35%


english 66%


spanish 15%


asian-lang 12%


other lang 7%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less than Very Well" 5%


hs-grad 30%


bachelor 29%


graduatedegree 28%


Child in Household child-under18 24%


Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 49%


income 0-25k 17%


income 25-50k 11%


income 50-75k 12%


income 75-200k 41%


income 200k-plus 20%


single family 81%


multi-family 19%


rented 33%


owned 67%


Total population data from the 2020 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.


Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black registration and turnout counts estimated
by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


2


17,963


554


3.18%


28%


57%


2%


8%


12,924


16%


72%


4%


6%


10,350


15%


14%


3%


1%


78%


3%


8,603


13%


13%


3%


1%


79%


3%


7,257


12%


12%


3%


1%


81%


3%


17,640


18%


62%


20%


15%


36%


75%


17%


4%


4%


9%


32%


28%


23%


19%


67%


28%


18%


12%


30%


13%


59%


41%


62%


38%


3


17,677


268


1.54%


20%


62%


3%


10%


14,147


15%


72%


2%


8%


13,172


13%


12%


3%


1%


80%


2%


10,944


11%


11%


3%


1%


82%


1%


8,040


10%


10%


3%


1%


84%


1%


17,986


18%


64%


18%


14%


41%


78%


12%


6%


5%


6%


32%


28%


28%


21%


66%


22%


16%


12%


36%


15%


64%


36%


50%


50%


4


16,722


-687


-3.95%


27%


62%


2%


5%


13,199


19%


75%


2%


3%


11,730


14%


13%


2%


1%


82%


1%


10,085


13%


12%


2%


1%


83%


1%


7,681


12%


11%


2%


1%


85%


1%


17,700


19%


59%


22%


15%


41%


71%


26%


1%


3%


11%


38%


23%


16%


22%


64%


19%


19%


14%


37%


12%


72%


28%


49%


51%


5


16,974


-435


-2.50%


18%


69%


2%


6%


13,221


11%


82%


1%


4%


12,497


10%


10%


2%


1%


85%


1%


11,042


10%


9%


2%


1%


86%


1%


9,082


8%


7%


2%


1%


88%


1%


16,599


18%


58%


24%


13%


44%


81%


13%


2%


3%


5%


37%


28%


22%


22%


69%


16%


13%


10%


42%


18%


75%


25%


44%


56%


6


17,002


-407


-2.34%


24%


65%


1%


6%


12,392


15%


77%


0%


5%


12,172


14%


13%


3%


1%


83%


0%


10,719


13%


12%


3%


1%


83%


0%


8,435


11%


10%


2%


1%


86%


0%


16,775


22%


51%


28%


15%


43%


79%


16%


2%


3%


7%


39%


23%


17%


30%


62%


11%


15%


17%


41%


16%


81%


19%


35%


65%


7


17,714


305


1.75%


19%


69%


1%


6%


13,523


11%


82%


2%


4%


13,110


12%


11%


2%


1%


84%


2%


11,612


11%


10%


2%


1%


84%


2%


8,964


9%


9%


2%


1%


86%


2%


17,834


23%


49%


28%


11%


47%


86%


10%


1%


2%


4%


39%


25%


17%


28%


61%


13%


16%


16%


42%


13%


71%


29%


40%


60%


Total


121,863


1,241


7.13%


23%


62%


2%


8%


95,553


15%


73%


2%


7%


80,962


13%


12%


3%


1%


82%


2%


69,491


12%


11%


3%


1%


83%


1%


56,027


10%


10%


3%


1%


85%


1%


124,220


23%


55%


22%


14%


40%


76%


16%


4%


4%


7%


36%


26%


21%


23%


62%


18%


16%


13%


38%


15%


71%


29%


46%


54%


12/17/2021 0:02 Page 1 of 1


Total Pop


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Voter Registration
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2020)


Voter Turnout
(Nov 2018)


Age


Immigration


Language spoken at home


Education
(among those age 25+)


Household Income


Housing Stats


113/371







                     


                                      


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Transitional Kindergarten Update  
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2010, the Kinder Readiness Act created Transitional Kindergarten (TK) in California. TK is intended 
to provide extra time and developmentally appropriate curriculum to prepare children for 
kindergarten.  The instruction aligns with the California Preschool Learning Foundations. Currently, 
SCCS serves 31 Transitional Kindergarten students. 
 
In 2021, Assembly Bill 130 was passed which expands TK beginning in 2022-23, achieving universal TK 
by 2025-26. This effort will include a phased implementation by increasing the birthday eligibility with 
two months added per year.  
 
The required maximum class size is 24 with an adult ratio of 1:12. Beginning in 2023-24, if funded, the 
ratio is slated to be 1:10. The instructional days and minutes will be the same as Kindergarten (at 
least 36,000 per year), and teachers are required to have a Multiple Subject Credential as well as 24 
units of Early Childhood Education, equivalent teaching experience or a Child Development Teaching 
permit.  
 
The state Transitional Kindergarten timeline is as follows: 


 


2021-2022 
 


Current TK 
Eligibility: 
Turns 5 between 
September 2nd 
and December 
2nd  
 
Ratio: Not 
Specified 
 
Class Size: 24 
 


2022-2023 
 


TK Eligibility: 
Turns 5 between 
September 2nd 
and February 2st  
 
Ratio: 1:12 
 
Class Size: 24 
 


2023-2024 
 


TK Eligibility: 
Turns 5 between 
September 2nd 
and April 1st  
 
Ratio: 1:10* 
 
Class Size: 24 


2024-2025 
 


TK Eligibility: 
Turns 5 between 
September 2nd 
and June 1st 
 
Ratio: 1:10* 
 
Class Size: 24 


2025-2026 
 


TK Eligibility: 
Turns 5 between 
September 2nd 
and September 
1st 
 
Ratio: 1:10* 
 
Class Size: 24 
 
Full 
Implementation  


114/371







                     


                                      


Planning year 
Funding available 
to districts for 
planning and a TK 
plan is due to the 
California 
Department of 
Education by 
June, 2022 


*1:10 ratio is contingent on funding 


TK Staffing  


Different options for staffing the TK classroom are the following: 


● Two or more teachers 
● Teacher and one or more Early Childhood Education (ECE) teachers  
● Teachers and Classified staff 


SCCS proposal for staffing includes a teacher with a TK paraprofessional with Early Childhood 
Education units. 


Transitional Kindergarten and Facilities 


Because a TK classroom is legally considered a Kindergarten classroom, all TK rooms must comply 
with all laws that govern Kindergarten classrooms.  


SCCS facilities are adequate for a TK expansion based on current projections of approximately 25 TK 
students per comprehensive site.  


TK Planning  


Beginning in Fall 2021, SCCS has been actively planning for this TK expansion and has identified 
specific outcomes and actions for moving forward:  


Human Resources 


● Completed credentialing audit and all TK teachers are qualified to teach in a TK classroom 
● Notification will be sent out to other qualified teachers who are eligible to teach TK 
● Created a new TK paraeducator job description   


Educational Services 


● Ongoing planning with TK teachers in the areas of curriculum, materials and instructional 
technology 


● Developing plan for TK professional development 
● Visits to other TK programs in the Spring if possible 
● Developing outreach materials 
● Conducting outreach to families during the registration window 


115/371







                     


                                      


● Sent letter of intent to apply for state funding for TK planning 


 


Maintenance and Operations 


● Participated in state facilities trainings related to TK expansion 
● Evaluated school site capacity for adding TK classrooms 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  


 $197,464 TK Planning Budget (Restricted) 


$300,000 TK Paraprofessionals, LCFF Base (Unrestricted)  
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post- secondary 


college and career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


116/371







Planning for 
Universal TK
Implementation


Wednesday January 12th 2022


117/371







● The 2010 Kinder Readiness Act created Transitional Kindergarten (TK) in CA 


● TK is intended to provide extra time & developmentally appropriate curriculum
to prepare children for Kindergarten


● There is not yet a mandated TK curriculum


● Instruction is intended to align with CA Preschool Learning Foundations


● LEAs have flexibility for classroom composition through combination grades 
(PreK & TK or TK & K)


Transitional Kindergarten Background 2010 to 2021


118/371







AB 130:
● Expands TK beginning 2022-23 & achieves universal TK by 2025-26


● Provides a phased-in implementation by increasing the birthday eligibility 
annually (2 months added per year) 


● Districts may implement earlier than incremental timeline using ETK ( Early 
Transitional Kindergarten)


● Basic Aid Districts will not earn ADA for any new TK students, making it an                 
unfunded mandate


TK Expansion AB 130 2022-2023
Planning Year: 2021-2022


2021


2022


2023


2024


2025


119/371







● Maximum class size: 24


● Adult Ratio 1:12 (beginning 2022-2)
1:10 (beginning 2023-24) *if funded


● Instructional days and minutes: same as Kindergarten


● Teacher Requirements: CA Multiple Subjects Credential & 
24 units of ECE, equivalent experience, or Child 
Development Teaching permit


TK Expansion Classroom Nuts & Bolts


120/371







State Implementation Timeline


2021-22
Current TK Eligibility:
Turn 5 between 
September 2 & 
December 2


Ratios: Not specifies


Class Size: 24


Planning Year
● Funding available to 


Districts for 
planning


● TK Plan due to CDE 
June 2022


2022-23
TK Eligibility:
Turn 5 between 
September 2 & 
February 1


Ratios: 1:12


Class Size: 24


2023-24
TK Eligibility:
Turn 5 between 
September 2 & 
April 1


Ratios: 1:10 
*if funded


Class Size: 24


2024-25
TK Eligibility:
Turn 5 between 
September 2 & 
June 1


Ratios: 1:10 
*if funded


Class Size: 24


2024-25
TK Eligibility:
Turn 5 between 
September 2 
& June 1


Ratios: 1:10 
*if funded


Class Size: 24


Full Implementation


121/371







● Two or more Teachers


● Teacher & one (or more) ECE Teachers


● Teacher & Classified staff 


SCCS is proposing a new job description for a TK 
Paraprofessional with ECE units


Classroom Staffing Options


122/371







Pre-K Planning & Implementation Grant $200 Million


Elementary District
$147,177


Total:
$197,464


Secondary District
$50,287


123/371







Factors to Consider


Funding


Facilities


Staffing


Outreach


Enrollment


124/371







●TK legally considered Kindergarten grade so TK classrooms must 
comply with all laws that govern K classrooms


●SCCS facilities adequate for TK expansion based on current 
projections of approximately 25 TK students per comprehensive site


Facilities


125/371







Human Resources
● Completed credentialing audit
● All current TK teachers are eligible to continue to teach in TK classrooms
● HR will notify other qualified teachers if they are eligible to teach TK
● Created new job description for TK Para-educators


Educational Services
• Ongoing planning with TK teachers in the areas of curriculum, materials and instructional technology
• Developing plan for TK professional development
• Visits to other TK programs in the Spring if possible
• Developing outreach materials
• Conducting outreach to families during the registration window
• Sent letter of intent to apply for additional state funding for TK planning


Maintenance
• Participated in multiple state facilities trainings related to TK expansion
• Evaluated school site capacity for adding TK classrooms


Team Approach to Planning


126/371







Questions?


127/371







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1. 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: District Audit 
 
MEETING DATE: January 12, 2022  
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the District Audit analysis report provided by Crowe Horwath for the 2020-21 fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District is required to have an independent financial audit performed annually in 
accordance with audit standards established for K-12 schools by the State Controller.   
 
A representative from Crowe Horwath will present the written analysis of the annual District 
audit. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$41,000  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


128/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


129/371







 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


For the Year ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ....................................................................................................  1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ..................................................................................  4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
 GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
  STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ...............................................................................................  10 
 
  STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES .....................................................................................................  11 
 
 FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
  BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS .......................................................................  12 
 


RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE  
  SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION .................................................................  13 
 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND 
BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ................................................................................  14 


 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – TO THE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ...................................................................................................  15 


 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - CUSTODIAL FUND .......................................  16 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION – CUSTODIAL FUND .................  17 


 
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................................  18 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE .........................................................  46 
 


SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S TOTAL OTHER 
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY .....................................................................  47 


 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET 


PENSION LIABILITY ........................................................................................................................  48 
 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS ......................................................................  50 
 
 NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ............................................................  52 
 


130/371







 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


For the Year ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS .........................................................  53 
 


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN 
FUND BALANCES – ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS .............................................................................  54 


 
ORGANIZATION ................................................................................................................................  55 
 
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME ..........................................................................................  56 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS ...............................................................  57 
 
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..............................................................................................................  59 


 
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS – UNAUDITED ..........................................  60 
 
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS .............................................................................................  61 
 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ..............................................................................  62 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND 
REGULATIONS .......................................................................................................................................  63 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS ........................................................................................................................  66 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AS 
REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE ..................................................................................................  68 


 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS .......................................................  70 
 
 STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ...............................................  74 
 
 


131/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
1. 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Santa Cruz City Schools, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Santa Cruz 
City Schools' basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of Santa Cruz City Schools, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial 
position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 


132/371







 


 
(Continued) 


 
2. 


Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This resulted in a restatement of the 
beginning governmental activities net position and the beginning aggregate remaining fund information fund 
balance totaling $560,317. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 9 and the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the 
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability, the Schedule 
of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of the District's 
Contributions on pages 46 to 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses 
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Santa Cruz City Schools' basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditure 
of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the other 
supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary information as listed in the table 
of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information, except for 
the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary information as listed in the table of 
contents, except for the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis, are fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 


133/371







 


 
 


 
3. 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 5, 2022 
on our consideration of Santa Cruz City Schools' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Santa Cruz City Schools' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Santa 
Cruz City Schools' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 
 


134/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


4. 


 
This section of Santa Cruz City Schools’ annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s 
financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial 
statements, which immediately follow this section. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  


The Financial Statements 


The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the District and its component units using the 


integrated approach as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34. 


 
The Government -Wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the District from the economic resources 
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. These statements include all assets of the District (including capital 
assets), as well as all liabilities (including long-term obligations).  Additionally, certain eliminations have occurred as prescribed 
by GASB Statement No. 34 with regard to interfund activity, payables and receivables. 
 
The Fund Financial Statements include statements for each of the two categories of activities:  governmental and fiduciary. 
 
The Governmental Activities are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis 
of accounting. 
 
The Fiduciary Activities report a balance sheet and a statement of change in fiduciary net position for the scholarship fund, and 
do not have a measurement focus. 
 
Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government -Wide Financial Statements is provided to explain the 
differences created by the integrated approach. 
 
The Primary unit of the government is the Santa Cruz City Schools. 


 
REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 


The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its 
activities. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the 
District using the accrual basis of accounting which is similar to the accounting used by most private -sector companies. All of 
the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. Net position is the difference between assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, which is one way to measure the District’s financial health, 
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of 
the District’s facilities. 
 


The relationship between revenues and expenses is the District’s net income.  Since the governing board’s responsibility 
is to provide services to our students and not to generate profit as commercial entities do, one must consider other factors 
when evaluating the overall health of the District. The quality of the education and the safety of our schools will likely be important 
components in this evaluation. 
  


135/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


5. 


 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District activities are reported as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities – The District reports all of its services in this category. This includes the education of students, 
the operation of child development activities, and the on-going effort to improve and maintain buildings and sites. Property 
taxes, State income taxes, user fees, interest income, Federal, State, and local grants, as well as general obligation bonds, 
finance these activities. 
 
REPORTING THE DISTRICT’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS  


Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the District as a whole. Some 
funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management establishes many other 
funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using 
certain taxes, grants, and other money that it receives from the U.S. Department of Education. 
 
Governmental Funds – Most of the District’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year -end that are available for spending. These funds are reported 
using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that 
can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short -term view of the District’s general 
government operations and the basic service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there 
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. We describe the 
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following each governmental fund financial statement. 
 
 
 
THE DISTRICT AS A TRUSTEE 
 
 
Reporting the District’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for funds held on behalf of others, such as our scholarships trust fund. The District’s 
fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.  We exclude these activities from the District’s 
other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The District is responsible for 
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 


136/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


6. 


FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 


• The Districts total net position increased from ($1,839,633) to $7,266,150. 
 


• On the Statement of Activities, total revenues were more than total expenditures by $9,105,783.                          
 


• Capital assets, net of depreciation, increased $18,393,831. This increase was primarily driven by expenditures associated with 
Bond Measures A and B.  


 
• Total long-term liabilities decreased ($4,213,287). This is net of an increase in the proportionate share of the District’s net pension 


liability and decreases associated with repayment of General Obligation Bonds (See Notes 5, 7, and 8). 
 


• The District maintains sufficient reserves for a district its size. It meets the State required minimum reserve for economic 
uncertainty of 3 % of general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo). During fiscal year 2020-21, total 
General Fund expenditures and other financing uses totaled $92,198,432 At June 30, 2021, the District’s available reserves of 
$8,276,949 in the General Fund equate to a 8.98% reserve. 
 
 
Net Position 
 


The District’s net position increased from ($1,839,633) at June 30, 2020 by $9,105,783, to $7,266,150 at June 30, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


137/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


7. 


 
Change Net Position 
 
District change in net position increased relative $9,162,530 during the 2020-2021 fiscal year. Revenues, expenditures, and relative 


changes are presented below: 
 


 
 


Program revenues financed 19% of the total cost of providing the services listed above, while the remaining 81% was 


financed by the general revenues of the District. 


 
Capital Assets 
 


Capital assets, net of depreciation increased $18,393,832.  
 


 
 
 
 
 
  


Governmental Activites
2021 2020 Net Change


Revenues
Program revenues:
          Charges for services 1,222,850$        1,177,664$       45,186$             
          Operating and capital grants
          and contributions 22,000,891        16,452,916       5,547,975          
General revenue:
          Federal and State aid not restricted 12,248,440        13,104,225       (855,785)            
          Property taxes 85,786,963        83,402,544       2,384,419          
          Other general revenues 564,585             908,852            (344,267)            


Total Revenues 121,823,729      115,046,201      6,777,528          


Expenses
Instruction-related 69,194,450        68,443,598       750,852             


Student support services 11,793,182        12,602,209       (809,027)            
Administration 4,960,827          6,903,254         (1,942,427)         
Maintenance and operations 13,135,561        12,451,367       684,194             
Other 14,194,243        15,262,837       (1,068,594)         


Total Expenses 113,278,263      115,663,265      (2,385,002)         
           Change in Net Position 8,545,466$        (617,064)$         9,162,530$        


2021 2020 Net Change
44,116,119$      47,027,976$      (2,911,857)$          


154,565,079      135,781,929      18,783,150           
9,463,583         6,941,045         2,522,538             


208,144,781$    189,750,949$    18,393,832$         


Governmental Activities


Land and construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Equipment


138/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


8. 


Long -Term Liabilities 
 


Total long-term liabilities decreased by ($4,213,287). 
 


 


 
 
 
 


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial presentation and contain more detailed 


information as to interest, principal, retirement amounts and future debt retirement dates. 
 
 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETA RY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The District’s budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget based on updated financial information. The original 
budget, approved at the end of June for July 1, is based on May Revise figures and updated 45 days after the State approves its 
final budget. In addition, the District revises its budget at First and Second Interim.  
 
 
On March 13, 2020, the President issued a national emergency declaration for the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.  On the 
same day, Santa Cruz County Schools in collaboration with Santa Cruz County health made a decision to implement distance 
learning to support flattening the pandemic curve. This shift in the instructional program significantly impacted the school year’s 
average daily attendance (ADA) calculation, which ADA only being reported to the end of February 29, 2020 per Senate Bill 117 
(SB 117).   
 
In addition to distance learning impacting attendance, SB 117 also provided protections for school district’s employees and 
contractors requiring that they be paid during the period of school closure due to COVID-19.  With additional costs related to the 
pandemic and ongoing employee and contractor costs, public school budgets were impacted.   
 
Over the course of the 2020-21 school year, Santa Cruz City Schools, like all other school districts, was forced to reinvent the 
delivery of instruction and support services.  More than the pandemic, our community also faced wildfires, the loss of homes 
and widespread evacuations at the start of the school year.  Despite these challenges, the district continued to expand support 
and services to families.  The district served over 310,000 meals, distributed more than 4,100 Chromebooks, and more than 
1,100 hotspots. Further, Santa Cruz City Schools helped to facilitate more than 40,000 vaccinations for students and for our 
community in partnership with Dignity Health and the County Office of Education. Throughout it all, students and staff have 
remained resilient and the district has focused on restorative restart for our everyone in our community.   


2021 2020 Net Change


162,170,666$    171,199,434$    (9,028,768)$          
10,173,414        10,731,796        (558,382)               


3,471,097         3,903,477         (432,380)               
860,000            1,000,000         (140,000)               
143,353            787,200            (643,847)               


18,582,120        16,897,030        1,685,090             
Pension Liability 89,686,000        84,781,000        4,905,000             


285,086,650$    289,299,937$    (4,213,287)$          


OPEB


Governmental Activities


Bonds
Bond premium
Accreted interest
COP's
Compensated absences


Total


139/371







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021 
 


9. 


 
ECONOMIC FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE 


With the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), calculating entitlements is now becoming routine; however each district 
addresses its risk factors when developing budget priorities and building multiyear projections. We have developed a Local 
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) that is tied directly to our budget and the Eight State priorities that involves our stakeholders 
in this process. High populations of English Learners, Foster Youth and low-income students are primary factors in the 
computation of any additional funding for public schools in the state of California. The calculation involving the groups adds a 
level of complexity to revenue forecasting that began with the advent of the LCFF. 


The future will continue to require that the SCCS administration plans carefully and prudently to provide the resources to meet 
our students’ needs while accounting for the uncertainty from the State.  Santa Cruz City Schools has an excellent track record 
in meeting this challenge in what has proven to be a cycle of lean years. 


GOVERNMENT FUNDS 


At June 30, 2021 the District’s combined governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $68,751,807, a decrease of 
($14,653,797) in comparison to the prior fiscal year.   


 


 


 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions 
regarding this report or need additional financial information, contact the District Office, Santa Cruz City Schools, at 133 
Mission Street Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060. 


2021 2020 Net Change


28,304,990$      17,832,393$      10,472,597$         
17,020,163        51,084,571        (34,064,408)          
11,439,904        13,619,998        (2,180,094)            


Student Activities 537,557            -                   537,557                
49,396              49,220              176                      
67,935              57,626              10,309                  


102,320            269,649            (167,329)               
Capital Facilities 1,193,279         470,870            722,409                
Debt Service 297,937            -                   297,937                


9,738,326         21,278              9,717,048             
68,751,807$      83,405,605$      (14,653,797)$        


Governmental Funds - Fund Balance


General
Building
Bond Interest and Redemption


Adult Education
Cafeteria
Deferred Maintenance


Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects
Total


140/371







 


 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


141/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
10. 


Governmental
Activities


ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2) 68,136,918$      
Receivables 10,615,395        
Stores inventory 63,419               
Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4) 44,116,119        
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated
  depreciation (Note 4) 164,028,662      


Total assets 286,960,513      


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions (Notes 7 and 8) 20,826,216        
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (Note 9) 3,409,384          
Deferred loss from refunding of debt 354,106             


Total deferred outflows 24,589,706        


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,753,657        
Unearned revenue 1,459,745          
Long-term liabilities (Note 5):


Due within one year 9,917,046          
Due after one year 275,169,604      


Total liabilities 300,300,052      


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (Notes 7 and 8) 3,682,000          
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (Note 9) 302,017             


Total deferred inflows 3,984,017          


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 52,314,970        
Restricted:


Legally restricted programs 5,350,421          
Capital projects 10,931,605        
Debt service 11,737,841        


Unrestricted (73,068,687)       


Total net position 7,266,150$         


142/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
11. 


Net (Expense)


Revenues and


Change in


Program Revenues Net Position


Charges Operating Capital


for Grants and Grants and Governmental


Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities


Governmental activities:


Instruction 56,300,461$             12,488$                    13,101,677$             -$                               (43,186,296)$           


Instruction-related services:


Supervision of instruction 3,778,356                 4,587                         742,211                    -                                  (3,031,558)                


Instructional library, media and


  technology 2,467,931                 672                            167,651                    -                                  (2,299,608)                


School site administration 6,647,702                 423                            465,058                    -                                  (6,182,221)                


Pupil services:


Home-to-school transportation 1,287,128                 10                              15,513                       -                                  (1,271,605)                


Food services 1,887,963                 1,495                         1,085,151                 -                                  (801,317)                   


All other pupil services 8,618,091                 4,209                         1,961,205                 -                                  (6,652,677)                


General administration:


Data processing 1,362,921                 185                            29,494                       -                                  (1,333,242)                


All other general administration 3,597,906                 2,141                         341,981                    -                                  (3,253,784)                


Plant services 11,625,531               8,432                         429,237                    -                                  (11,187,862)              


Ancillary services 1,361,025                 1,291                         211,559                    -                                  (1,148,175)                


Enterprise activities 149,005                    -                                  13,894                       -                                  (135,111)                   


Interest on long-term liabilities 5,650,769                 -                                  -                                  -                                  (5,650,769)                


Other outgo 15,785                       1,186,917                 3,436,260                 -                                  4,607,392                 


Depreciation (unallocated) (Note 4) 8,527,689                 -                                  -                                  -                                  (8,527,689)                


Total governmental activities 113,278,263$          1,222,850$               22,000,891$             -$                               (90,054,522)              


General revenues:


Taxes and subventions:


Taxes levied for general purposes 60,798,402               


Taxes levied for debt service 13,686,979               


Taxes levied for other specific purposes 11,301,582               


Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 12,248,440               


Interest and investment earnings 156,640                    


Miscellaneous 407,945                    


Total general revenues 98,599,988               


Change in net position 8,545,466                 


Net position July 1, 2020 (1,839,633)                


Cumulative effect of GASB 84 implementation 560,317                    


Net position, July 1, 2020, as restated (1,279,316)                


Net position, June 30, 2021 7,266,150$               


 
 


143/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
BALANCE SHEET 


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
12. 


Special Reserve Bond
for Capital Interest and All Total


General Building Outlay Projects Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


ASSETS
Cash and investments:


Cash in county treasury 25,969,666$     18,720,544$     9,370,765$       11,439,904$     2,099,180$       67,600,059$     
Cash with fiscal agent -                        -                        -                        -                        439,344            439,344            
Cash on hand and
  in banks 50,003              -                        -                        -                        5,842                55,845              
Cash in revolving fund 40,000              -                        -                        -                        -                        40,000              
Cash awaiting deposit 1,670                -                        -                        -                        -                        1,670                


Receivables 10,532,216       -                        -                        -                        83,179              10,615,395       
Due from other funds -                        258,889            399,739            -                        -                        658,628            
Stores inventory 23,484              -                        -                        -                        39,935              63,419              


Total assets 36,617,039$     18,979,433$     9,770,504$       11,439,904$     2,667,480$       79,474,360$     


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 6,193,676$       1,959,270$       32,178$            -$                      419,056$          8,604,180$       
Due to other funds 658,628            -                        -                        -                        -                        658,628            
Unearned revenue 1,459,745         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,459,745         


Total liabilities 8,312,049         1,959,270         32,178              -                        419,056            10,722,553       


Fund balances:
Nonspendable 63,484              -                        -                        -                        39,935              103,419            
Restricted 4,593,213         17,020,163       9,738,326         11,439,904       2,208,489         45,000,095       
Assigned 12,605,389       -                        -                        -                        -                        12,605,389       
Unassigned 11,042,904       -                        -                        -                        -                        11,042,904       


Total fund balances 28,304,990       17,020,163       9,738,326         11,439,904       2,248,424         68,751,807       


Total liabilities and
  fund balances 36,617,039$     18,979,433$     9,770,504$       11,439,904$     2,667,480$       79,474,360$      
 


144/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 


TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
13. 


68,751,807$     


position are different because:


and the accumulated depreciation is $112,812,999 (Note 4). 208,144,781     


consisted of (Note 5):
General Obligation Bonds (162,170,666)$  
Accreted interest (3,471,097)        
Unamortized premiums (10,173,414)      
Certificates of Participation (860,000)          
Total OPEB liability (Note 9) (18,582,120)      
Net pension liability (Notes 7 and 8) (89,686,000)      
Compensated absences (143,353)          


(285,086,650)    


amount is deferred and amortized. 354,106            


relating to pensions and OPEB are reported (Notes 7 and 8).
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 20,826,216$     
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (3,682,000)        
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 3,409,384         
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (302,017)          


20,251,583       


(5,149,477)        


Total net position - governmental activities 7,266,150$       


therefore, is not accrued as a payable in governmental funds.


In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of


Unmatured interest is not recognized until it is due and,


resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $320,957,780


period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2021


difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt is recognized in the period
they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, the


resources relating to pensions and OPEB are not reported
because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement
of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources


Capital assets used for governmental activities are not financial


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net


Total fund balances - Governmental Funds


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current


In governmental funds, advanced debt refundings, the


 


145/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE  


IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
14. 


Special Reserve Bond
for Capital Interest and All Total


General Building Outlay Projects Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


Revenues:
Local Control Funding


  Formula (LCFF):
State apportionment 14,597,353$     -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      14,597,353$     
Local sources 57,126,906       -                        -                        -                        -                        57,126,906       


Total LCFF 71,724,259       -                        -                        -                        -                        71,724,259       


Federal sources 8,220,152         -                        -                        -                        887,127            9,107,279         
Other state sources 9,851,175         -                        -                        67,021              130,774            10,048,970       
Other local sources 10,375,443       221,893            4,768,908         13,663,908       1,249,269         30,279,421       


Total revenues 100,171,029     221,893            4,768,908         13,730,929       2,267,170         121,159,929     


Expenditures:
Current:


Certificated salaries 37,087,889       -                        -                        -                        -                        37,087,889       
Classified salaries 13,516,802       178,657            -                        -                        757,004            14,452,463       
Employee benefits 24,082,051       79,417              -                        -                        576,327            24,737,795       
Books and supplies 5,172,964         345,839            -                        -                        611,356            6,130,159         
Contract services and  
  operating expenditures 10,527,972       14,566              995                   -                        257,743            10,801,276       
Other outgo 15,785              -                        -                        -                        -                        15,785              


Capital outlay 1,167,048         25,584,743       181,489            -                        148,971            27,082,251       
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        9,028,768         140,000            9,168,768         
Interest -                        -                        -                        6,882,255         15,403              6,897,658         


Total expenditures 91,570,511       26,203,222       182,484            15,911,023       2,506,804         136,374,044     


Excess (deficiency) of
  revenues over (under)
  expenditures 8,600,518         (25,981,329)      4,586,424         (2,180,094)        (239,634)           (15,214,115)      


Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,500,000         -                        7,630,624         -                        1,080,376         11,211,000       
Transfers out (627,921)           (8,083,079)        (2,500,000)        -                        -                        (11,211,000)      


Total other financing
  sources (uses) 1,872,079         (8,083,079)        5,130,624         -                        1,080,376         -                        


    Net change in 


   fund balances 10,472,597       (34,064,408)      9,717,048         (2,180,094)        840,742            (15,214,115)      


Fund balances, July 1, 2020 17,832,393       51,084,571       21,278              13,619,998       847,365            83,405,605       


Cumulative effect of GASB 84


  implementation -                        -                        -                        -                        560,317            560,317            


Fund balances, July 1, 2020,


  as restated 17,832,393       51,084,571       21,278              13,619,998       1,407,682         83,965,922       


Fund balances, June 30, 2021 28,304,990$     17,020,163$     9,738,326$       11,439,904$     2,248,424$       68,751,807$      


146/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
15. 


Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds (15,214,115)$   


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:


Acquisition  of  capital  assets  is  an  expenditure  in  the
governmental funds, but increases capital assets in the
statement of net position (Note 4). 26,921,520$    


Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not recorded
in the governmental funds (Note 4). (8,527,689)       


In governmental funds, current debt refundings, the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt is recognized in the period they are incurred.
In the government-wide statements, the amount is deferred
and amortized. (44,264)           


Debt issued at a premium is recognized as an other financing 
source in the governmental funds, but the premium is
amortized as interest in the statement of net position (Note 5). 558,382           


Repayment  of  principal  on  long-term  liabilities  is  an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but decreases the
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 5). 9,168,768        


Accreted interest is an expense that is not recognized in the
governmental funds (Note 5). 432,380           


Interest on long-term liabilities is recognized in the period
incurred, in governmental funds it is recognized when due. 300,391           


In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when
employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities
OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual basis (Notes 5 and 9).
(Notes 5 and 9). (641,242)          


In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made. In the statement of activities pension
costs are recognized on the accrual basis (Notes 5, 7 and 8). (5,052,512)       


In the statement of activities, expenses related to compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned during the
year.  In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (Note 5). 643,847           23,759,581      


Change in net position of governmental activities 8,545,466$       


147/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 


CUSTODIAL FUND 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
16. 


Scholarship
Trust
Fund


ASSETS


Cash and investments (Note 2):
Cash in County Treasury 1,540,631$      
Investments 413,453           


Total assets 1,954,084        


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 250                  


NET POSITION


Restricted - scholarships 1,953,834$      


 
 


148/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 


CUSTODIAL FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
17. 


Scholarship
Trust
Fund


Revenues:
Other local sources 23,661$             


Expenditures:
Contract services and operating


expenditures 23,850               


Change in net position (189)                  


Net position, July1, 2020 1,954,023          


Net position, June 30, 2021 1,953,834$         
 


149/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
18. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and 
procedures of the California Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The 
accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following is a summary 
of the more significant policies: 
 
Reporting Entity: Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") is a consolidation of the Santa Cruz City High 
School District and Santa Cruz City Elementary School District. The Districts have not unified, but are 
consolidated due to the fact that the Districts share a common governing board. These two entities are 
referred to collectively as Santa Cruz City Schools, and for purposes of these financial statements, will be 
referred to collectively as the District. 
 
The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance responsibilities over all activities 
related to public school education in the Santa Cruz City Schools. The Board is not included in any other 
governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board 
members have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to 
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 
 
The District's Board of Education formed a non-profit public benefit corporation known as the Santa Cruz 
City Schools Financing Authority ("Authority"). The District and the Authority have a financial and 
operational relationship which meet the reporting entity definition criteria of Codification of Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of Corporation as a blended 
component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of Authority have been included in the Debt 
Service Fund in the financial statements of the District as a blended component unit. 
 
The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District and Authority which satisfy 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, as amended 
by criteria: 
 
A - Manifestations of Oversight 
 


1. The Authority's Board of Directors were appointed by the District's Board of Education. 


2. The Authority has no employees. The District's Superintendent functions as an agent of the 
Corporation. The individual did not receive additional compensation for work performed in this 
capacity. 


 
B - Accounting for Fiscal Matters 
 


1. All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Authority must have the 
consent of the District. 


2. Any deficits incurred by the Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of the District. Any 
surpluses of the Authority revert to the District at the end of the lease period. 


3. It is anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Authority. 


4. The District has assumed a "moral obligation," and potentially a legal obligation, for any debt 
incurred by the Authority. 


  


150/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
19. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
C - Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation 


1. The Authority was created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the District. 


2. The Authority's financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the Debt Service Fund. 
Certificates of Participation issued by the Authority are included in the government-wide financial 
statements. 


 
Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements: The basic financial statements include a Management's 
Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) section providing an analysis of the District's overall financial position 
and results of operations; financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the District's 
activities, including infrastructure, and a focus on the major funds. 
 
Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government as a whole.  Custodial funds are 
not included in the government-wide financial statements. Custodial funds are reported only in the 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Position at the fund 
financial statement level. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and 
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes 
place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions 
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121. 
 
Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the 
program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues 
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues. 
 
Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of 
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation and interest 
on general long-term liabilities are considered an indirect expense and are reported separately on the 
Statement of Activities. 
 
Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, 
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted 
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues 
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in 
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 
activities are controlled. 
 
A - Major Funds 
 
General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all revenues 
and expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this 
fund. General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other 
funds are paid from the General Fund. For financial reporting purposes, the current year activity and year-
end balance of the Special Reserve for Postemployment Benefits Fund is combined with the General Fund. 
  


151/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
20. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Building Fund: The Building Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and equipment. 
 
Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund: The Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund is 
a capital projects fund which is used to account for General Fund resources expended for the purpose of 
acquiring or constructing major capital facilities and equipment for the District. 
 
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund used 
to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, 
interest and related costs. 
 
B - Other Funds: 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This includes the Student Activity, Adult Education, 
Cafeteria and Deferred Maintenance Funds. 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used for the accumulation of resources for and the retirement of principal and 
interest on general long-term debt issued through the Authority. 
 
The Capital Facilities Fund is a capital projects fund which is used to account for developer fees and other 
like resources which are used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and purchase of 
equipment by the District. 
 
The Scholarship Trust Fund is a Custodial Fund for which the District acts as a trustee. The Scholarship 
Trust includes all cash activity and assets of the District's scholarship activities, managed by others. 
 
Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
Accrual: Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and fiduciary fund financial 
statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to 
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible in the current period or within 60 
days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on 
general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by 
July 1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education 
complied with these requirements. 
 
Receivables: Receivables are made up principally of amounts due from the State of California and 
categorical programs. The District has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was needed as 
of June 30, 2021. 
 
  


152/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
21. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Stores Inventory: Inventory in the General Fund and Cafeteria Fund are stated at cost (average cost) which 
does not exceed replacement cost. Inventory consists of expendable supplies held for future use in the 
following period by the District's operating units, transportation supplies, and food held for consumption. 
Maintenance and other supplies held for physical plant repair are not included in inventory; rather, these 
amounts are recorded as expenditures when purchased. 
 
Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value for the 
contributed asset. Additions, improvements and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life 
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 5 - 30 years depending on asset types. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to future periods, and as such will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has recognized a deferred loss on refunding of 
long-term debt. A deferred loss on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded 
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter life of the refunded 
or refunding debt. Additionally, the District has recognized deferred outflows of resources related to the 
recognition of the net pension liability and total OPEB liability. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies 
to future periods and as such, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The 
District has recognized deferred inflows of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability 
and total OPEB liability. 
 
Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the State Teachers' Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B (PERF B) and 
additions to/deductions from STRP's and PERF B's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by STRP and PERF B. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Certain investments are reported at fair value. 
 


STRP PERF B Total


Deferred outflows of resources 15,425,980$     5,400,236$       20,826,216$     


Deferred inflows of resources 3,508,000$       174,000$          3,682,000$       


Net pension liability 62,413,000$     27,273,000$     89,686,000$     


Pension expense 12,886,644$     4,940,388$       17,827,032$      
 
Interfund Activity: Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or 
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to 
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated 
as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions 
are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to 
the government-wide financial statements. 
  


153/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
22. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Compensated Absences: Compensated absences benefits totaling $143,353 are recorded as a liability of 
the District. 
 
Accumulated Sick Leave: Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. 
The District's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expenditure in the period taken since such 
benefits do not vest nor is payment probable. However, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service 
period for calculation of retirement benefits for vested STRS and CalPERS employees, when the employee 
retires. 
 
Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized 
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as unearned 
revenue until earned. 
 
Net Position: Net position is displayed in three components: 
 


1 - Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond proceeds) of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. 
 


2 - Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not 
appropriate for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction for legally 
restricted programs represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program expenditures. The 
restriction for capital projects represents the portion of net position restricted for capital projects. The 
restriction for debt service represents the portion of net position available for the retirement of debt. The 
restriction for scholarships represents the portion of net position restricted for scholarships. It is the District's 
policy to use restricted net position first when allowable expenditures are incurred. 
 


3 - Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that does not meet the definitions of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets". 
 
Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and 
1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800) 
implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government 
is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five classifications, discussed 
in more detail below, are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 
A - Nonspendable Fund Balance: The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are 
not in spendable form, such as revolving fund cash and stores inventory. 
 


B - Restricted Fund Balance: The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to 
externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine 
restricted net position as reported in the government-wide and fiduciary trust fund statements. 
 
C - Committed Fund Balance: The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal 
constraints self-imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to 
committed fund balance must be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts 
may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal 
action by the Board of Education is required to remove any commitment from any fund balance. At June 30, 
2021, the District had no committed fund balances.  


154/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
23. 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
D - Assigned Fund Balance: The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the District's 
Board of Education has approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the District's intent related to 
those specific purposes. As of June 30, 2021, the Board of Education can designate personnel with the 
authority to assign fund balances. As of June 30, 2021 no such designation has occurred. 
 
E - Unassigned Fund Balance: In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects 
the residual balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes. 
 
In any fund other than the General Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never reported because 
amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose of that fund. 
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or 
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance. 
 
Fund Balance Policy: The District has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes of fund 
balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in order 
by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances. 
 
While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require districts to establish a minimum fund balance policy 
or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a minimum 
fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of Education. 
At June 30, 2021, the District has not established a minimum fund balance policy nor has it established a 
stabilization arrangement. 
 
Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. 
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are 
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Santa Cruz bills and collects taxes for the 
District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when received. 
 
Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing 
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column. 
 
Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements: In January 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary 
Activities. The principal objective of this Statement is to enhance the consistency and comparability of 
fiduciary activity reporting by state and local governments. The provisions in GASB Statement No. 84 are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Based on the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 84, the District restated its beginning net position of governmental activities as well as the 
aggregate remaining fund information beginning fund balance for a total of $560,317, related to the 
recognition of the District’s student activity fund as a governmental fund, instead of an agency fund. 
 
 
  


155/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
24. 


NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following: 
 


Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Fund


Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury 67,600,059$     1,540,631$       
Collections awaiting deposit 1,670               -                      


Deposits:
Cash on hand and in banks 55,845             -                      
Revolving cash fund 40,000             -                      


Investments:
Cash with fiscal agent 439,344           -
Investments -                      413,453           


Total cash and cash equivalents 68,136,918$     1,954,084$        
 
Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of 
its cash in the interest bearing Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. The District is 
considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool. The fair value of the District's 
investment in the pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata 
share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized 
cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained 
by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
 
Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk: The District limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured balances are 
collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the respective financial 
institution. At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the District's accounts were $95,845 and the bank 
balances were $126,425, all of which was insured. 
 
Cash with Fiscal Agent: Cash with Fiscal Agent represents funds held by Fiscal Agents restricted for capital 
projects in the Building Fund. The District holds their funds with the Santa Cruz County Treasurer. The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, 
which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
 
Investments: The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; 
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 
 


1. Stocks of $3,797 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs). 
2. Mutual funds of $409,656 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs). 
 
Investment Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. At June 30, 2021, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and 
investments held.   


156/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
25. 


NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investment Credit Risk: The District has adopted the County Treasurer's formal investment policy that limits 
its investment choices other than the limitations of state law. 
 
Concentration of Investment Credit Risk: The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in 
any one issuer. At June 30, 2021, the District had no concentration of investment credit risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers. The unpaid 
balances at year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds. 
 
Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 
2021, were as follows: 
 


Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables


Major Funds:
General -$                 658,628$         
Building 258,889           -                      
Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects 399,739           -                      


Totals 658,628$         658,628$          
 
Interfund Transfers: Interfund transfers for the 2020-21 fiscal year were as follows: 
 


Transfer from the Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund to the
General Fund for allocation of redevelopment agency funds. 2,500,000$       


Transfer from the General Fund to the Cafeteria Fund for the annual
operational contribution. 627,921           


Transfer from the Building Fund to the Special Reserve for Capital Outlay
 Projects Fund to move redevelopment agency funds held for the
Santa Cruz City High School District. 7,462,872        


Transfer from the Building Fund to the Special Reserve for Capital Outlay 
Projects Fund to move proceeds received from the sale of property 
in a prior year. 167,752           


Transfer from the Building Fund to the Debt Service Fund for the purpose 


of separately maintaining funds held for debt service of the
Certificates of Participation. 452,455           


11,211,000$      


157/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
26. 


NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 is shown below: 
 


Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
July 1, and and June 30,
2020 Additions Deletions 2021


Non-depreciable:
Land 1,129,958$        -$                      -$                      1,129,958$        
Work In Progress 45,898,018        13,303,238        (16,215,095)       42,986,161        


Depreciable:
Land improvements 35,703,623        65,592              -                       35,769,215        
Buildings 196,765,758      25,664,497        -                       222,430,255      
Equipment 14,538,903        4,103,288          -                       18,642,191        


Totals, at cost 294,036,260      43,136,615        (16,215,095)       320,957,780      


Less accumulated depreciation:
Improvement of sites (22,543,770)       (1,615,561)         -                       (24,159,331)       
Buildings (74,143,682)       (5,331,378)         -                       (79,475,060)       
Equipment (7,597,858)         (1,580,750)         -                       (9,178,608)         


Total accumulated
  depreciation (104,285,310)     (8,527,689)         -                       (112,812,999)     


  Capital assets, net 189,750,950$    34,608,926$      (16,215,095)$     208,144,781$     
 


Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 as follows: 
 


Unallocated 8,527,689$         
 
 


158/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
27. 


NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
General Obligation Bonds: On October 9, 2001, the Santa Cruz City High School District issued 
$11,997,433 of Capital Appreciation General Obligation Bonds, Election of 1998, Series C, to raise money 
for the cost of acquisition, construction, and equipping of certain facilities and improvements. The bonds 
mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through February 1, 2026, with interest 
rates ranging from 2.4% to 5.4%. 
 
On October 9, 2001, the Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued $5,598,115 of Capital 
Appreciation General Obligation Bonds, Election of 1998, Series C, to raise money for the cost of 
acquisition, construction, and equipping of certain facilities and improvements. The bonds mature serially 
in varying amounts during the succeeding years through February 1, 2026, with interest rates ranging 
from 2.4% to 5.35%. 
 
On April 23, 2013, the Santa Cruz City High School District issued 2013 General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, in the amount of $34,350,000 to partially refund the 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issuances. The Refunding Bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through 
August 1, 2029, with interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 4.24%. 
 
On April 23, 2013, the Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued 2013 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, in the amount of $17,195,000 to partially refund the 2005 General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds issuance. The Refunding Bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years 
through August 1, 2029, with interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 4.24%. 
 
On February 23, 2017, the Santa Cruz City High School District issued Election of 2016, Series A General 
Obligation Bonds in the amount of $56,000,000 to financing the renovation, construction and improvement 
of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through 
August 2042, with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 
 
On February 23, 2017, the Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued Election of 2016, Series A 
General Obligation Bonds in the amount of $27,200,000 to financing the renovation, construction and 
improvement of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years 
through August 2042, with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 
 
On July 30, 2019, the Santa Cruz City High School District issued Election of 2016, Series B General 
Obligation Bonds in the amount of $42,000,000 to financing the renovation, construction and improvement 
of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through 
August 2045, with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 
 
On July 30, 2019, the Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued Election of 2016, Series B General 
Obligation Bonds in the amount of $20,400,000 to financing the renovation, construction and improvement 
of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through 
August 2045, with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 
 
  


159/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
28. 


NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
A summary of General Obligations Bonds payable as of June 30, 2021 follows. 
 


Original Balance Current Current Balance
Interest Fiscal Year July 1, Year Year June 30,


Series Rate % Maturity 2020 Issued Matured 2021


Santa Cruz City High School District:
1998 Series C 2.4% - 5.4% 2026 1,637,509$           -$                            316,540$               1,320,969$           
2013 Refunding 2.6% - 4.24% 2030 23,575,000           -                              1,970,000              21,605,000           
2016 Series A 3.0% - 5.0% 2043 23,350,000           -                              1,805,000              21,545,000           
2016 Series B 3.0% - 5.0% 2046 42,000,000           -                              -                              42,000,000           


Santa Cruz City Elementary School District:
1998 Series C 2.4% - 5.4% 2026 766,925                 -                              147,228                 619,697                 
2013 Refunding 2.6% - 4.24% 2030 11,795,000           -                              985,000                 10,810,000           
2016 Series A 3.0% - 5.0% 2043 47,675,000           -                              3,805,000              43,870,000           
2016 Series B 3.0% - 5.0% 2046 20,400,000           -                              -                              20,400,000           


Total 171,199,434$       -$                            9,028,768$           162,170,666$        
 
The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds payable and outstanding as of June 30, 
2021 are as follows: 
 


Year Ending Total Debt
June 30, Principal Interest Service


2022 8,236,023$         6,643,465$         14,879,488$       
2023 8,111,644           6,308,468           14,420,112         
2024 6,235,607           5,971,968           12,207,575         
2025 5,790,660           5,730,117           11,520,777         
2026 6,181,732           5,509,592           11,691,324         


2027-2031 31,580,000         191,980,689       223,560,689       
2032-2036 25,280,000         14,592,675         39,872,675         
2037-2041 37,540,000         9,632,675           47,172,675         
2042-2046 33,215,000         2,755,000           35,970,000         


162,170,666$     249,124,649$     411,295,315$     


 
 


 


160/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
29. 


NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Certificates of Participation (COPs): In 2010, the District issued $2,346,000 in Certificates of Participation 
(COPs) for the purpose of providing funds for the acquisition, construction, installation, modernization and 
equipping of improvements to certain educational facilities. The District is required to make lease payments 
of principal and interest in conjunction with these Certificates of Participation. Interest and principal amounts 
are due each May 1 beginning in 2016 and ending in 2027. Interest rates range from 5.17% to 7.26%. 
Scheduled payments for the COPs are as follows: 
 


Year Ending COPs
June 30, Payments


2022 199,756$            
2023 190,502             
2024 181,038             
2025 176,364             
2026 166,200             
2027 160,890             


Total payments 1,074,750           
Less amount representing interest (214,750)            


Net present value of minimum payments 860,000$             
 


Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 is shown below: 
 


Balance Balance Due Within 
July 1, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021 One Year


Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 171,199,434$     -$                          9,028,768$         162,170,666$     8,236,023$         
Accreted interest 3,903,477            363,852               796,232               3,471,097            823,977               
Unamortized premiums 10,731,796         -                            558,382               10,173,414         573,693               
Certificates of Participation 1,000,000            -                            140,000               860,000               140,000               


Other long-term liabilities:
Total OPEB liability (Note 9) 16,897,030         1,685,090            -                            18,582,120         -                            
Net pension liability
  (Notes 7 and 8) 84,781,000         4,905,000            -                            89,686,000         -                            
Compensated absences 787,200               -                            643,847               143,353               143,353               


Totals 289,299,937$     6,953,942$         11,167,229$       285,086,650$     9,917,046$          
 
Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. 
Payments on the Certificates of Participation are made from the Debt Service Fund. Payments for the total 
OPEB liability, net pension liability and compensated absences are made from the fund for which the related 
employee worked. 
 
Lease Obligation: The District has entered into a lease agreement with a third party vendor for the purpose 
of acquiring laptops for student use. The principal payments associated with the lease agreement totaled 
$689,675, payable over five years. The District records the lease payments on a pay-as-you-go basis, 
rather than recognize the full lease liability. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance was $413,925, 
and the final payment is due in the year ending June 30, 2024.  


161/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
30. 


NOTE 6 - FUND BALANCES 
 
Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following: 
 


Special Reserve Bond
for Capital Interest and All Total


General Building Outlay Projects Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


Nonspendable:
Revolving cash fund 40,000$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    40,000$          
Stores inventory 23,484            -                      -                      -                      39,935            63,419            


Subtotal
  nonspendable 63,484            -                      -                      -                      39,935            103,419          


Restricted:
Legally restricted:


Grants 4,593,213       -                      -                      -                      -                      4,593,213       
Student activities -                      -                      -                      -                      537,557          537,557          
Adult education -                      -                      -                      -                      49,396            49,396            
Cafeteria operations -                      -                      -                      -                      28,000            28,000            
Deferred


maintenance -                      -                      -                      -                      102,320          102,320          
Capital projects -                      17,020,163     9,738,326       -                      1,193,279       27,951,768     
Debt service -                      -                      -                      11,439,904     297,937          11,737,841     


Subtotal restricted 4,593,213       17,020,163     9,738,326       11,439,904     2,208,489       45,000,095     


Assigned:
Reserve for anticipated


future period deficits 10,483,750     -                      -                      -                      -                      10,483,750     
Reserve for


carryover of LCAP 1,479,290       -                      -                      -                      -                      1,479,290       
Other assignments 642,349          -                      -                      -                      -                      642,349          


Subtotal assigned 12,605,389     -                      -                      -                      -                      12,605,389     


Unassigned:
Designated for
  economic uncertainty 2,765,953       -                      -                      -                      -                      2,765,953       
Undesignated 8,276,951       -                      -                      -                      -                      8,276,951       


Subtotal


  unassigned 11,042,904     -                      -                      -                      -                      11,042,904     


Total 28,304,990$   17,020,163$   9,738,326$     11,439,904$   2,248,424$     68,751,807$    
 


162/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
31. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the State 
Teachers' Retirement Plan (STRP) - a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS). The Teachers' Retirement 
Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the California 
Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the plans may 
be amended through legislation. CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained 
at http://www.calstrs.com. 
 
Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas: 
 
 CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could 


be creditable to CalSTRS. 
 CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be 


creditable to CalSTRS. 
 
The Defined Benefit (DB) Program provides retirement benefits based on members' final compensation, 
age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon 
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences 
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below. 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 60 - CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five 
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for 
retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members 
who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the 
age factor up to the 2.4 percent maximum. 
 
CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired 
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less 
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to January 1, 
2014. One-year final compensation means a member's highest average annual compensation earnable for 
12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a 
school year while employed on a fulltime basis, for a position in which the person worked. For members 
with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average annual compensation 
earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service. 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 62 - CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age 
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older. 
 
All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual 
compensation earnable for 36 consecutive months of credited service. 
 
Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature 
and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level 
percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 


163/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
32. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
In June 2019, California Senate Bill 90 (SB 90) was signed into law and appropriated approximately $2.2 
billion in fiscal year 2018–19 from the state’s General Fund as contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of 
employers. The bill required portions of the contribution to supplant the amounts remitted by employers 
such that the amounts remitted will be 1.03 and 0.70 percentage points less than the statutorily required 
amounts due for fiscal years 2019–20 and 2020–21, respectively. The remaining portion of the contribution 
is allocated to reduce the employers’ share of the unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB Program.   
 
California Assembly Bill 84, Chapter 16, Statutes of 2020, (AB 84) was signed into law in June 2020 and 
revised certain provisions of Teachers’ Retirement Law enacted by SB 90. Specifically, AB 84 repurposed 
the aforementioned $1.6 billion contribution originally intended to reduce employers’ long-term liabilities, to 
further supplant employer contributions through fiscal year 2021–22. Pursuant to AB 84, employers will 
remit contributions to CalSTRS based on a rate that is 2.95 percent less than the statutory rate for fiscal 
year 2020–21 and 2.18 percent less than the rate set by the board for fiscal year 2021–22. Any remaining 
amounts must be allocated to reduce the employers’ share of the unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB 
Program. The rate reduction for fiscal year 2019-20 under SB 90 was not changed by AB 84. The employer 
contribution rates set in statute and the board’s authority to adjust those rates starting in fiscal year 2021–
22 under the CalSTRS Funding Plan were not changed by the passage of SB 90 or AB 84. 
 
In addition, the board’s rate-setting authority for the state contribution rate was suspended for fiscal year 
2020–21 by AB 84. Although the board exercised its authority in May 2020 to increase the state contribution 
rate by 0.50 percent effective July 1, 2020, the rate increase did not go into effect. Instead, the state rate 
remained at the 2019–20 level of 7.828 percent. 
 
A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the DB Program pursuant 
to the CalSTRS Funding Plan, SB 90 and AB 84 are as follows: 
Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.25 percent of applicable 
member earnings for fiscal year 2020-21.  
 
Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of the normal cost of their retirement plan, which 
resulted in a contribution rate of 10.205 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 2020-21. 
According to current law, the contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members is adjusted if the normal 
cost increases or decreases by more than 1 percent since the last time the member contribution rate was 
set. Based on the June 30, 2019, valuation adopted by the board in May 2020, the increase in normal cost 
was less than 1 percent. Therefore, contribution rates for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members  did not change 
effective July 1, 2020. 
 
Employers – 16.15 percent of applicable member earnings. This rate reflects the original employer 
contribution rate of 19.10 percent resulting from the CalSTRS Funding Plan and subsequently reduced for 
the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90 and AB 84. 
 
The CalSTRS Funding Plan, which was enacted in June 2014 with the passage of California Assembly Bill 
(AB) 1469 required that employer contributions will increase from 8.25 percent to a total of 19.1 percent of 
applicable member earnings phased in over seven years starting in 2014. The legislation gave the board 
limited authority to adjust employer contribution rates from July 1, 2021 through June 2046 in order to 
eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation related to service credited to members prior to July 1, 
2014. The board cannot adjust the rate by more than 1 percent in a fiscal year, and the total contribution 
rate in addition to the 8.25 percent cannot exceed 12 percent. 
 
  


164/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
33. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
The CalSTRS employer contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2019-2020 through fiscal year 2046-47 
are summarized in the table below: 
   Supplemental Rate  
   Rate Per Adjustment 
 Effective Base CalSTRS Per Special 
 Date Rate Funding Plan Legislation Total 
 
 July 1, 2020  8.250% 10.850% (2.950%) 16.150% 
 July 1, 2021 8.250% 10.850% (2.180%) 16.920% 
 July 1, 2022 to 
 June 30, 2046 8.250% (1) N/A (1) 
 July 1, 2046  8.250% Increase from AB 1469 rate ends in 2046-47 
 


(1) The CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer contribution rate up or down by up to 
1% each year, but no higher than 20.250% total and no lower than 8.250%. 


 
The District contributed $5,734,980 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
State – 10.328 percent of the members' calculated based on creditable compensation from two fiscal years 
prior. 
 
The state’s base contribution to the DB Program is calculated based on creditable compensation from two 
fiscal years prior. As a result of the CalSTRS Funding Plan, the state is required to make additional 
contributions to pay down the unfunded liabilities associated with the benefit structure that was in place in 
1990 prior to certain enhancements in benefits and reductions in contributions. The additional state 
appropriation required to fully fund the benefits in effect as of 1990 by 2046 is specified in subdivision (b) 
of Education Code section 22955.1. The increased contributions end as of fiscal year 2045–46. Pursuant 
to AB 84, the state contribution rate remained at 5.811% for fiscal year 2020-21.  
 
The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2020-21 and beyond are summarized in the 
table below. 
   Supplemental 
   Rate Per 
 Effective Base CalSTRS SBMA 
 Date Rate Funding Plan Funding(1) Total 


 


 July 01, 2020 2.017% 5.811% 2.50% 10.328% 
 July 01, 2021 2.017% 6.311% 2.50% 10.828% 
 July 01, 2022 to 
 June 30, 2046 2.017% (2) 2.50% (2) 
 July 01, 2046 2.017% (3) 2.50% (3) 


 
(1) The SBMA contribution rate excludes the $72 million that is reduced from the required contribution in accordance 


with Education Code section 22954. 
(2) The board has limited authority to adjust the state contribution rate annually through June 2046 in order to 


eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation. The board cannot increase the supplemental rate by more 
than 0.5% in a fiscal year, and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the supplemental contribution rate 
imposed would be reduced to 0%. 


(3) From July 1, 2046, and thereafter, the rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014, are reinstated, if necessary, to address 
any remaining unfunded actuarial obligation.  


 
 


165/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
34. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions:   
 
At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that 
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the 
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion 
of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 
 


District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 62,413,000$       
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
  associated with the District 34,108,000         


Total 96,521,000$        
 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The District's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the contributions of all participating school Districts and the State. At June 30, 2020,  the District's 
proportion was 0.064 percent, which was a decrease of 0.002 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2019. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $12,886,644 and revenue 
of $4,524,304 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


Difference between expected and actual experience 110,000$            1,760,000$         


Changes of assumptions 6,086,000           -                        


Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 1,483,000           -                        


Changes in proportion and differences between District
  contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,012,000           1,748,000           


Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 5,734,980           -                        


Total 15,425,980$       3,508,000$          
 
$5,734,980 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2022. 


166/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
35. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30,


2022 736,950$            
2023 2,502,950$         
2024 2,833,950$         
2025 554,950$            
2026 (244,300)$          
2027 (201,500)$           


 
Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in proportion, and changes in assumptions 
are amortized over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 
7 years as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences 
between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year 
period. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying 
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2020.  The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 


 Valuation Date June 30, 2019 
 Experience Study July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 
 Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 
 Investment Rate of Return 7.10% 
 Consumer Price Inflation 2.75% 
 Wage Growth 3.50% 
 Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB, maintain 85% 
    purchasing power level for DB, not 
    applicable for DBS/CBB 
 


Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increase per AB 
1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment 
rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense 
occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed 
investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Mortality: CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality 
table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in 
increases in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom 
tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal 
to 110 percent of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table, 
issued by the Society of Actuaries. 
  


167/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
36. 


NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best 
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and 
investment consultants as inputs to the process.  
 
The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the CalSTRS board in January 2020 in 
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS 
consulting actuary reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital 
market assumptions. 
 
Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major 
asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are summarized in the following 
table: 
 
   Long-Term* 
  Assumed Asset Expected Real 
 Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
 
 Public Equity  42% 4.8% 
 Real Estate Assets 15  3.6 
 Private Equity  13 6.3 
 Fixed Income  12 1.3 
 Risk Mitigating Strategies  10 1.8 
 Inflation Sensitive  6 3.3 
 Cash / Liquidity  2 (0.4) 
 


* 20-year geometric average 
 
Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate: 
 


1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)


District’s proportionate share of
  the net pension liability 94,297,000$        62,413,000$        36,088,000$        


 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report. 
 
 
  


168/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
37. 


NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - PUBLIC EMPLOYER'S RETIREMENT FUND B 
 
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund B 
 
Plan Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public 
Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement 
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public 
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in 
the State of California. 
 
The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and 
noncertified employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute. 
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at: 
 
 https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/cafr-2020.pdf. 
 
Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members' years of service, age, 
final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible 
members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after 
five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service. 
 
Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from members 
and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a percentage of 
applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and depend on the 
respective employer's benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by periodic actuarial 
valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas and employee groups 
of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made when agencies first join 
the PERF B, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution rates. 
 
The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in excess 
of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly. 
 
Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 were as follows: 
 
Members - The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 
2020-21. 
 
Employers - The employer contribution rate was 20.70 percent of applicable member earnings. 
 
The District contributed $2,515,236 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 
 
At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $27,273,000 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The 
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of contributions to the 
pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school Districts. At June 30, 2020, the District's 
proportion was 0.089 percent, which was an increase of 0.003 percent from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2019. 


169/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
38. 


NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - PUBLIC EMPLOYER'S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $4,940,388. At June 30, 
2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


Difference between expected and actual experience 1,353,000$           -$                        


Changes of assumptions 100,000               -                          


Net differences between projected and actual earnings 567,000               -                          


Changes in proportion and differences between District
  contributions and proportionate share of contributions 865,000               174,000               


Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,515,236            -                          


Total 5,400,236$           174,000$              
 
$2,515,236 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30,


2022 888,417$             
2023 944,417$             
2024 616,916$             
2025 261,250$              


 
Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in proportion, and changes in assumptions 
are amortized over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 
4 years as of the June 30, 2020, measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences 
between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5- year 
period. 
 
  


170/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
39. 


NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - PUBLIC EMPLOYER'S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying 
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 
 Valuation Date June 30, 2019 
 Experience Study July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2011 
 Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 
 Investment Rate of Return 7.15% 
 Consumer Price Inflation 2.75% 
 Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service 
 Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% until Purchasing Power 


   Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing 
   Power applies 2.75% thereafter 


 
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer to 
the 2014 experience study report. 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and 
retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS' website. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. 
 
  Long-Term* Expected Real Expected Real 
  Assumed Asset Rate of Return Rate of Return 
 Asset Class Allocation Years (1-10)(1) Years (11+)(2) 


 Global Equity 47% 4.90% 5.38% 
 Fixed Income 19 0.80 2.27 
 Inflation Assets - 0.60 1.39 
 Private Equity 12 6.60 6.63 
 Real Estate Assets 11 2.80 5.21 
 Liquidity 2 - (0.90) 
 


* 10-year geometric average 
1) An expected inflation rate of 2.50% used for this period. 
2) An expected inflation rate of 3.00% used for this period. 


 
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection 
of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. 
The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a detailed report that 
can be obtained at CalPERS' website. 
  


171/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
40. 


NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY - PUBLIC EMPLOYER'S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical and 
forecasted information for all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using 
both short-term and long- term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single 
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
 
Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1- 
percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 
 


1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)


District’s proportionate share of the
  net pension liability 39,210,000$       27,273,000$         17,366,000$          


 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 
 
 
  


172/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
41. 


NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
General Information about the Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB) 
 
Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Notes 7 and 8, the District provides 
healthcare benefits to eligible employees who retire from the District, as part of a single-employer defined 
benefit postemployment health care plan (the "Plan"). The Plan is administered by the District and allows 
employees who retire after having achieved retirement eligibility requirements to continue receiving 
medical, dental, vision, or life insurance coverage. The District's Board of Education has the authority to 
establish or amend the benefit terms offered by the Plan. The District's Board of Education also retains the 
authority to establish the requirements for paying for the Plan's benefits as they come due. As of June 30, 
2021, the District has not accumulated assets in a qualified trust for the purpose of paying the benefits 
related to the District's total OPEB liability. 
 
Benefits Provided: In accordance with contracts between the District and the respective employee groups, 
eligible employees may be entitled to receive certain medical dental or vision benefits through the Plan. 
Eligibility requirements vary depending on employee group, age at retirement, and number of years of 
service to the District: 
 
Certificated and Management Employees: Certificated and management employees are eligible for benefits 
if they retire from the District after having reached age 55 with at least 15 years of service. Benefits provided 
include medical, dental, vision and life insurance, including dependent coverage, up to the maximum District 
contribution in the year of retirement, which varies by insurance plan and tier. The maximum contribution 
after retirement is increased by the same percentage as increases in the District's contribution for active 
employees over the same period. Benefits continue for the lesser of five years or until the retiree reaches 
age 65. 
 
Classified Employees: Classified employees are eligible if they retire from the District after having reached 
age 58 with at least 20 years of service. Benefits provided include medical insurance up to a maximum 
District contribution that varies by tier and is frozen in the year of retirement. Only employees who were 
hired prior to August 1, 1991 are eligible to receive District-paid benefits for dependents. Dental, vision, and 
life insurance are available, however, the premiums for these insurance plans require the employee to 
contribute 100% of the premium. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: The following is a table of plan participants at June 30, 2021. 
 


Number of
Participants


Inactive Plan members, covered spouses, or beneficiaries currently
  receiving benefits 59                      
Active employees 393                    


452                     
 
Contributions: California Government Code specifies that the District's contribution requirements for 
covered employees are established and may be amended by the District's Board of Education. Amounts 
paid by the District as benefits came due were $873,491 for the year ended June 30, 2021. Employees are 
not required to contribute to the OPEB plan. 
 
  


173/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
42. 


NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 


Total OPEB Liability 
 
The District's total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2019. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 
 


Actuarial Method Entry Age actuarial cost (level percentage of payroll). 
 


Discount Rate 2.45 %. 
 


Health Care Increases Medical insurance premiums are assumed to 
increase by 5.90% in fiscal 2020, decreasing to 
5.00% by 2029 and beyond.  


 


Mortality Rates CalSTRS Experience Analysis (2015-2018), 
CalPERS Experience Study (1997-2015). 


 


Health Plan Coverage Elections 100% of eligible employees are assumed to elect 
coverage upon retirement, through the expiration of 
the benefit period for the respective employee group. 


 


Retirement Rates Retirement rates are taken from the most recent 
experience studies for CalPERS and CalSTRS. 


 


Turnover Rates (pre-retirement) Pre-retirement turnover rates are based on the 
Crocker-Sarason Table T-5, less mortality – without 
adjustment. 


 


Inflation and Salary Increase Rate 3.00% per year 
 


Spouse Coverage Future retirees – 75%, Current retirees – Actual data. 
Female spouses are assumed to be 3 years younger 
than male spouses. 


 


Medical & Dental Claim Cost Medical and dental claims were estimated based on 
the true per person costs. 


 


 Age Medical Dental 
 
 50 $ 11,315 $ 997 
 55 $ 13,117 $ 997 
 60 $ 15,206 $ 997 
 64 $ 17,114 $ 997 
 65 $ 5,005 $ 997 
 70 $ 5,392 $ 997 
 75 $ 5,808 $ 997 
 


District Caps Projected at healthcare trend rates for all future years, 
frozen in year of retirement. 


  


174/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
43. 


NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate: Given the District's decision not to fund the program, all future benefit payments were 
discounted using a high quality municipal bond rate of 2.45%. The municipal bond rate was based on the 
week closest but not later than the measurement date of the Municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate 
Index as published by the Federal Reserve. To be eligible for the Municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate 
Index the bonds must be rated at least Moody's Investors Service's Aa2, AA by Standard & Poor's Corp.'s, 
or AA by Fitch Ratings. 


 
Total OPEB


Liability


Balance at June 30, 2020 16,897,030$       


Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,110,714           
Interest 550,078             
Change in assumptions 897,789             
Benefits paid (873,491)            


Net change 1,685,090           


Balance at June 30, 2021 18,582,120$        
 
The changes in assumptions include a change in the discount rate from 3.13% at the June 30, 2019 
measurement date, to 2.45% in the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
 
There were no changes between the measurement date and the year ended June 30, 2021 which had a 
significant effect on the District's total OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the Total 
OPEB Liability of the District, as well as what the District's Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current 
discount rate: 
 


1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(1.45%) Rate (2.45%) (3.45%)


Total OPEB liability 19,967,020$       18,582,120$         17,274,907$        
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate: The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point 
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 


1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase


(4.90% - 4.00%) Rate (5.90 - 5.00%) (6.90 - 6.00%)


Total OPEB liability 16,540,478$       18,582,120$         20,977,646$        
  


175/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
44. 


NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,955,573. At June 30, 2021 
the District reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB from the 
following sources:  
 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience 499,095$              -$                      
Changes in assumptions 1,867,789             302,017             
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 1,042,500             -                        


Total 3,409,384$           302,017$             
 


Deferred outflows related to benefits paid subsequent to measurement date totaling $1,042,500, will be 
recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability during the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows related to OPEB will be amortized and recognized in 
OPEB expense as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30,


2022 294,781$              
2023 294,781$              
2024 294,781$              
2025 294,781$              


2026 307,369$              
Thereafter 578,374$               


 
 
NOTE 10 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS 
 
The District has entered into agreements with Joint Powers Agreements (JPAs) for the purpose of obtaining 
certain services such as insurance and other utilities services. The District is a member of the Santa Cruz-
San Benito County Schools Insurance Group (SC-SBSIG), Self-Insured Schools of California III (SISC III), 
Southern Peninsula Region Insurance Group (SPRIG), the School Project for Utility Rate Reduction 
(SPURR), the Protected Insurance Program for Schools (PIPS), and Nor-Cal Relief (NCR) public entity risk 
polls. The District pays an annual premium to each entity for its excess health, worker's compensation, and 
property liability coverage. The relationship between the District and the pools is such that they are not 
component units of the District for financial reporting purposes. There have been no significant reductions 
in insurance coverage from coverage provided in the prior year. 
 


176/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 


 
45. 


NOTE 10 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Condensed audited financial information for the District's JPAs at June 30, 2020 for SCSBSIG, SPRIG, 
SPURR, PIPS, NCR, and September 30, 2020 (most recent information available) for SISC III are as 
follows: 
 


SCSBSIG SISC III SPRIG SPURR PIPS NCR


Total assets 3,844,085$         894,318,838$          1,632,358$         15,851,772$      146,482,024$    64,919,272$      


Total liabilities 1,641,405$         210,116,678$          926,555$            9,262,735$         104,409,659$    48,689,344$      


Net position 2,202,680$         684,202,160$          705,803$            6,589,037$         42,072,365$      16,229,928$      


Total revenues 4,065,716$         2,639,716,772$       1,536,353$         40,348,244$      330,953,357$    66,275,123$      


Total expenditures 4,015,601$         2,482,489,489$       1,760,926$         39,269,929$      322,790,995$    67,174,832$      


Change in net


  position 50,115$              157,227,283$          (224,573)$           1,078,315$         8,162,362$         (899,709)$            
 
 
NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the 
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect 
the financial position or results of operations of the District.  Also, the District has received federal and state 
funds for specific purposes that are subject to review or audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits 
could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required 
reimbursements will not be material. 
 
The District had outstanding commitments for construction contracts totaling approximately $9.65 million at 
June 30, 2021. 
 
 
NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On November 4, 2021, Santa Cruz City High School District issued Election of 2016, Series C General 
Obligation Bonds in the amount of $42,000,000 to financing the renovation, construction and improvement 
of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years through 
August 2040, with interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.0%. 
 
On November 4, 2021, Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued Election of 2016, Series C 
General Obligation Bonds in the amount of $20,400,000 to financing the renovation, construction and 
improvement of school facilities. The bonds mature serially in varying amounts during the succeeding years 
through August 2036, with interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. 
 
 


177/371







 


 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


178/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
GENERAL FUND 


BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


46. 


Variance
Favorable


Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:


Local Control Funding
  Formula (LCFF):


State apportionment 8,982,874$       14,597,353$     14,597,353$     -$                     
Local sources 58,427,865       57,126,906       57,126,906       -                      


Total LCFF 67,410,739       71,724,259       71,724,259       -                      


Federal sources 4,023,385         8,220,152         8,220,152         -                      
Other state sources 4,600,829         9,851,175         9,851,175         -                      
Other local sources 8,439,508         10,375,377       10,375,443       66                    


Total revenues 84,474,461       100,170,963     100,171,029     66                    


Expenditures:
Current:


Certificated salaries 37,230,560       37,087,889       37,087,889       -                      
Classified salaries 12,179,052       13,516,802       13,516,802       -                      
Employee benefits 23,047,441       24,082,051       24,082,051       -                      
Books and supplies 3,768,835         5,172,964         5,172,964         -                      
Contract services and
  operating expenditures 11,556,220       10,527,972       10,527,972       -                      
Other outgo 25,362             25,362             15,785             9,577               


Capital outlay 216,051            1,167,048         1,167,048         -                      


Total expenditures 88,023,521       91,580,088       91,570,511       9,577               


(Deficiency) excess
  of revenues (under)


  over expenditures (3,549,060)        8,590,875         8,600,518         9,643               


Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,500,000         2,500,000         2,500,000         -                      
Transfers out (300,000)          (719,537)          (627,921)          91,616             


Total other financing
   sources (uses) 2,200,000         1,780,463         1,872,079         91,616             


Net change in fund balance (1,349,060)        10,371,338       10,472,597       101,259            


Fund balance, July 1, 2020 17,832,393       17,832,393       17,832,393       -                      


Fund balance, June 30, 2021 16,483,333$     28,203,731$     28,304,990$     101,259$          


Budget


 
 


179/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S TOTAL OTHER 


POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


47. 


Last 10 Fiscal Years 
 


2018 2019 2020 2021
Total OPEB liability


Service cost 963,249$        992,146$        931,007$        1,110,714$     
Interest 433,143         439,146         535,279         550,078         
Difference between expected
 and actual experience -                    -                    655,061         -                    
Change in assumptions -                    (490,780)        1,418,600       897,789         
Benefit payments (1,168,875)     (1,240,893)     (988,432)        (873,491)        


Net change in total OPEB liability 227,517         (300,381)        2,551,515       1,685,090       


Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 14,418,379     14,645,896     14,345,515     16,897,030     


Total OPEB liability, end of year 14,645,896$   14,345,515$   16,897,030$   18,582,120$   


Covered employee payroll 44,306,782$   44,535,632$   47,156,915$   51,250,133$   


Total OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 33.06% 32.21% 35.83% 36.26%  


 
 
This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retrospectively. The amounts presented for this fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred 
one year prior.  
 
All years prior to 2018 are not available. 


180/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE 


SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


48. 


State Teachers’ Retirement Plan 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 


 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


District's proportion of the
  net pension 0.064% 0.059% 0.066% 0.066% 0.065% 0.066% 0.064%


District's proportionate share
  of the net pension liability 37,296,000$     39,358,000$     60,692,000$     60,692,000$     59,772,000$     59,716,000$     62,413,000$     


State's proportionate share
  of the net pension liability
  associated with the District 22,521,000       20,911,000       30,494,000       35,905,000       34,223,000       32,579,000       34,108,000       


Total net pension liability 59,817,000$     60,269,000$     91,186,000$     96,597,000$     93,995,000$     92,295,000$     96,521,000$     


District's covered payroll 28,427,000$     27,258,000$     33,003,000$     34,782,000$     34,795,000$     35,874,000$     34,775,000$     


District's proportionate share of the
  pension liability as a percentage
  of its covered payroll 131.20% 144.39% 183.90% 174.49% 171.78% 166.46% 179.48%


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
 of the total pension liability 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56% 71.82%  


 
 
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior. 
 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available.  


181/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE 


SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


49. 


Public Employer's Retirement Fund B 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 


 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


District's proportion of the
  net pension 0.084% 0.080% 0.088% 0.087% 0.083% 0.086% 0.089%


District's proportionate share
  of the net pension liability 9,512,000$       11,853,000$     20,752,000$     20,752,000$     22,192,000$     25,065,000$     27,273,000$     


District's covered payroll 8,795,000$       8,904,000$       10,580,000$     11,084,000$     10,980,000$     12,032,000$     12,804,000$     


District's proportionate share of the


  net pension liability as a percentage


  of its covered payroll 108.15% 133.12% 196.14% 187.22% 202.11% 208.32% 213.00%


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
  of the total pension liability 83.38% 79.43% 73.89% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05% 70.00%


 
 


 
 
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior. 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 


182/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 
 


50. 


State Teachers' Retirement Plan 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 


 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


Contractually required
  contribution 2,420,540$       3,541,186$       4,375,574$       5,020,979$       5,840,243$       6,238,340$       5,734,980$       


Contributions in relation to
  the contractually required
  contribution (2,420,540)        (3,541,186)        (4,375,574)        (5,020,979)        (5,840,243)        (6,238,340)        (5,734,980)        


Contribution deficiency
  (excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      


District's covered payroll 27,258,000$     33,003,000$     34,782,000$     34,795,000$     35,874,000$     34,775,000$     30,026,000$     


Contributions as a percentage
  of covered payroll 8.88% 10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 17.10% * 16.15%**


 
 
 
* This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 18.13 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 1.03 percentage points to be paid on behalf of 


employers pursuant to SB 90. 
 
** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on behalf of 


employers pursuant to SB 90. 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 


183/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS 


For the Year ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 
 


51. 


Public Employer's Retirement Fund B 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 


 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


Contractually required
  contribution 1,047,948$       1,253,410$       1,539,583$       1,705,326$       2,173,172$       2,537,388$       2,515,236$       


Contributions in relation to
  the contractually required
  contribution (1,047,948)        (1,253,410)        (1,539,583)        (1,705,326)        (2,173,172)        (2,537,388)        (2,515,236)        


Contribution deficiency
  (excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      


District's covered payroll 8,904,000$       10,580,000$     11,084,000$     10,980,000$     12,032,000$     12,804,000$     12,151,000$     


Contributions as a percentage
  of covered payroll 11.77% 11.85% 13.89% 15.53% 18.06% 19.72% 20.70%


 
 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 


184/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 
 


52. 


NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
A - Budgetary Comparison Schedule: The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual 
appropriation accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of 
Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major 
object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund is presented as Required 
Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP. 
 
B - Schedule of Changes in the District's Total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability: The 
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the 
District's total OPEB liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 
10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is 
available. The District has not accumulated assets in a qualified trust for the purpose of paying the benefits 
related to the District's total OPEB liability. 
 
C - Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability: The Schedule of the District's 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the District's Net 
Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year 
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is 
available. 
 
D - Schedule of the District's Contributions: The Schedule of the District's Contributions is presented to 
illustrate the District's required contributions relating to the pensions. There is a requirement to show 
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10- year trend is compiled, governments should present 
information for those years for which information is available. 
 
E - Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required 
Supplementary Information. 
 
F - Changes of Assumptions: The discount rates used for the total OPEB liability were 3.62, 3.13, and 2.45 
percent as of the June 30, 2018, 2019 and 2020 measurement dates, respectively. 
 
The discount rates used for the Public Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) was 7.50, 7.65, 7.65, 
7.15, 7.15, 7.15 and 7.15 percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 actuarial 
reports, respectively.  The following are the assumptions for the State Teachers' Retirement Plan: 
 
 Measurement period 
 


  As of As of As of As of As of As of 
  June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
 Assumptions 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
 
 Consumer price inflation  2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00% 
 Investment rate of return  7.10 7.10 7.10 7.10 7.60 7.60 
 Wage growth 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.75 3.75 


185/371







 


 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


186/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 


ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


53. 


Student Adult Deferred Capital Debt 
Activity Education Cafeteria Maintenance Facilities Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total


ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury 537,557$       44,488$         398,543$       104,321$       1,155,678$     (141,407)$      2,099,180$     
Cash with fiscal agent -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    439,344         439,344         
Cash on hand and in banks -                    52                  5,790             -                    -                    -                    5,842             
Receivables -                    12,682           32,896           -                    37,601           -                    83,179           
Stores inventory -                    -                    39,935           -                    -                    -                    39,935           


Total assets 537,557$       57,222$         477,164$       104,321$       1,193,279$     297,937$       2,667,480$     


LIABILITIES AND FUND
  BALANCES


Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$                  7,826$           409,229$       2,001$           -$                  -$                  419,056$       


Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                    -                    39,935           -                    -                    -                    39,935           
Restricted 537,557         49,396           28,000           102,320         1,193,279      297,937         2,208,489      


Total fund balance 537,557         49,396           67,935           102,320         1,193,279      297,937         2,248,424      


Total liabilities and
  fund balances 537,557$       57,222$         477,164$       104,321$       1,193,279$     297,937$       2,667,480$      


187/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 


ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


54. 


Student Adult Deferred Capital Debt 


Activity Education Cafeteria Maintenance Facilities Service


Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total


Revenues:


Federal sources -$                             -$                             887,127$                -$                             -$                             -$                             887,127$                


Other state sources -                               -                               130,774                  -                               -                               -                               130,774                  


Other local sources 172,380                  66,288                    104,677                  1,522                       903,517                  885                          1,249,269               


  Total revenues 172,380                  66,288                    1,122,578               1,522                       903,517                  885                          2,267,170               


Expenditures:


Current:


Classified salaries -                               27,647                    729,357                  -                               -                               -                               757,004                  


Employee benefits -                               25,395                    550,932                  -                               -                               -                               576,327                  


Books and supplies 195,140                  214                          416,002                  -                               -                               -                               611,356                  


Contract services and


  operating expenditures -                               12,856                    27,302                    80,149                    137,436                  -                               257,743                  


Capital outlay -                               -                               16,597                    88,702                    43,672                    -                               148,971                  


Debt service:


Principal retirement -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               140,000                  140,000                  


Interest -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               15,403                    15,403                    


  Total expenditures 195,140                  66,112                    1,740,190               168,851                  181,108                  155,403                  2,506,804               


  (Deficiency) excess of revenues


    (under) over expenditures (22,760)                   176                          (617,612)                 (167,329)                 722,409                  (154,518)                 (239,634)                 


Other financing sources:


Transfers in -                               -                               627,921                  -                               -                               452,455                  1,080,376               


  Net change in fund balances (22,760)                   176                          10,309                    (167,329)                 722,409                  297,937                  840,742                  


Fund balance, July 1, 2020 -                               49,220                    57,626                    269,649                  470,870                  -                               847,365                  


Cumulative effect of GASB 84 implementation 560,317                  -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               560,317                  


Fund balances, July 1, 2020,


  as restated 560,317                  49,220                    57,626                    269,649                  470,870                  -                               1,407,682               


Fund balance, June 30, 2021 537,557$                49,396$                  67,935$                  102,320$                1,193,279$             297,937$                2,248,424$              
 


188/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
ORGANIZATION 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 
 


55. 


Santa Cruz City Schools was established in 1857. The District is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The territory covered by the District includes Santa Cruz City Elementary School District and the 
Santa Cruz City High School District. There were no changes in District boundaries during the current year. 
Santa Cruz City Schools operates four elementary, two middle schools, three comprehensive high schools, 
one continuation high school, and three alternative schools. 
 
The Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools is composed of seven members. Although all seven 
members are elected at large, the District is divided into seven geographical areas and the Board members 
representing an area must reside within its boundaries. The Board and the Cabinet manage and control the 
affairs of the District. 
 
 
 GOVERNING BOARD 
 
 Name Office Term Expires 
 
 Claudia Vestal President 2024 
 Deborah Tracy-Proulx Vice President 2022 
 Shelia Coonerty Member 2024 
 John Owen Member 2022 
 Cynthia Ranii Member 2022 
 Jeremy Shonick Member 2022 
 Patricia Threet Member 2024 
 
 
 
  ADMINISTRATION 
 
  Kris Munro 
  Superintendent 
   
  Jim Monreal 
  Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
   
  Dorothy Coito 
  Assistant Superintendent, Education Services 
 
  Molly Parks 
  Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
 
 
 
 
 


189/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 
 


56. 


Number of Days
Traditional


Grade Level Calendar Status


Kindergarten 180 In Compliance
Grade 1 180 In Compliance
Grade 2 180 In Compliance
Grade 3 180 In Compliance
Grade 4 180 In Compliance
Grade 5 180 In Compliance
Grade 6 180 In Compliance
Grade 7 180 In Compliance
Grade 8 180 In Compliance
Grade 9 180 In Compliance
Grade 10 180 In Compliance
Grade 11 180 In Compliance
Grade 12 180 In Compliance  
 


190/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
57. 


Pass-
Through


Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-


Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures


U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
  of Education


Special Education Cluster:
84.027 IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B,


  Section 611 13379 1,159,505$       
84.027 IDEA Part B, Local Assistance, Part B, Section


611, Private School ISPs 10115 22,202             
84.027A IDEA Mental Health Average Daily Attendance


Allocation 15197 99,839             
84.173 IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B, Section 619 13430 33,322             


Subtotal Special Education Cluster 1,314,868         


Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) Programs:
84.425 COVID-19: Elementary and Secondary School


Emergency Relief (ESSER I) Fund 15536 667,690            
84.425 COVID-19: Elementary and Secondary School


Emergency Relief II (ESSER II) 15547 1,167,430         
84.425 COVID-19: Elementary and Secondary School


  Emergency Relief (ESSER III) 15559 99,660             
84.425C COVID-19: Governor's Emergency Education Relief 


(GEER) Fund: Learning Loss Mitigation 15517 300,103            


Subtotal ESF Programs 2,234,883         


Title I Programs:
84.010 ESEA: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants, Low-Income


and Neglected 14329 872,935            
84.010 ESEA: School Improvement Funding for LEA's 15438 109,683            


Subtotal Title I Programs 982,618            


84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education:
Secondary, Section 131 14894 78,302             


84.158 Department of Rehabilitation: Workability II,
Transitions Partnership Program 10006 231,079            


84.365 ESEA: Title III, English Learner Student Program 14346 22,658             
84.367 ESEA: Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective


Instruction Local Grants 14341 250,768            
84.424 ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic


Enrichment Grants 15396 16,999             


Total U.S. Department of Education 5,132,175          


191/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 


 
58. 


Pass-
Through


Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-


Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures


U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
  California Department of Education


93.778 Medi-Cal Billing Option - Medicaid Cluster 10013 22,131$            


U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed through California Department
of Education


10.555 Child Nutrition: School Programs - Child Nutrition Cluster 13523 887,127            


U.S Department of the Treasury – Passed through
California Department of Education


21.019 COVID:19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF):
Learning Loss Mitigation 25516 2,999,833         


Total Federal Programs 9,041,266$        
 
 


192/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 


WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 


 
59. 


There were no audit adjustments proposed to any funds of the District. 
 


193/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
(UNAUDITED) 


 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 


 
60. 


(Adopted
Budget)


2022 2021 2020 2019


General Fund
Revenues and other 
  financing sources 112,212,986$  102,671,029$  94,304,931$    92,714,104$    


Expenditures 116,926,952    91,570,511      92,428,742      90,328,620      
Other uses and transfers out 300,000          627,921          406,902          312,863          


Total outgo 117,226,952    92,198,432      92,835,644      90,641,483      


Change in fund balance (5,013,966)$    10,472,597$    1,469,287$      2,072,621$      


Ending fund balance 23,291,024$    28,304,990$    17,832,393$    16,363,106$    


Available reserves 10,945,533$    11,042,904$    8,654,195$      4,226,332$      


Designated for economic


  uncertainties 3,516,809$      2,765,953$      2,785,069$      2,719,244$      


Undesignated fund balance 7,428,724$      8,276,951$      5,869,126$      1,507,088$      


Available reserves as 


  percentages of total outgo 9.34% 11.98% 9.32% 4.70%


All Funds


Total long-term liabilities 337,569,604$  285,086,650$  289,299,937$  227,739,761$  


Average daily attendance at P-2 6,127              6,079              6,079              6,102               
 
The fund balance of the General Fund has increased by $14,014,505 over the past three years. The fiscal year 
2021-2022 budget, as originally adopted, projects a decrease of $5,013,966. For a district this size, the state 
recommends available reserves of at least three percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and 
other uses. The District has met this requirement at June 30, 2021. 
 
The District has incurred operating surpluses in each of the past three years; however, anticipates an operating 
deficit for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 
Total long-term liabilities have increased by $57,346,889 over the past two years. 
 
Average daily attendance has decreased by 23 over the past two years. An increase of 48 ADA is projected 
for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 


194/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 


 
61. 


   Included in District 
   Financial Statements, or 
Charter # Charter Schools Chartered by District Separate Report 
 
 0059 Delta Charter Separate report. 
 
 


195/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 


 
62. 


NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Schedule of Instructional Time: The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time 
as provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the 
amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the District complied with the provisions of 
Education Code Sections 46201 through 46206.  
 
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards: The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards includes the 
federal award activity of Santa Cruz City Schools and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained 
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements: This schedule 
provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited 
financial statements. 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis – Unaudited: This schedule provides trend information on 
District's financial condition over the past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2021-2022 fiscal 
year, as required by the State Controller's Office. The information in this schedule has been derived from 
audited information. 
 
Schedule of Charter Schools: This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education 
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
 
Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of districts which 
adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714 and 44929. For 
the year ended June 30, 2021, the District did not adopt this program. 
 
 


196/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
63. 


 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATION 


 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 
 
We have audited Santa Cruz City Schools' compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the State of California's 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting to the state laws and regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
  Procedures 
 Description Performed 
 
Attendance and Distance Learning Yes 
Teacher Certification and Misassignments  Yes 
Kindergarten Continuance  Yes 
Instructional Time  Yes 
Instructional Materials  Yes 
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers  Yes 
Classroom Teacher Salaries  Yes 
Early Retirement Incentive  No, see below 
Gann Limit Calculation  Yes 
School Accountability Report Card  Yes 
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment  Yes 
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction  No, see below 
Comprehensive School Safety Plan  Yes 
District of Choice  No, see below 
California Clean Energy Jobs Act  No, see below 
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds  Yes 
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts  Yes 
Independent Study – Course Based, for charter schools No, see below 
Attendance, for charter schools  No, see below 
Mode of Instruction, for charter schools  No, see below 
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study, 
  for charter schools  No, see below 
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based 
  Instruction, for charter schools  No, see below 
Charter School Facility Grant Program  No, see below 
 


197/371







 


 
(Continued) 


 
64. 


The District does not offer an Early Retirement Incentive Program during the audit year; therefore, we did 
not perform procedures related to Early Retirement Incentive Program. 
 
The District did not offer any qualifying apprenticeship hours during the audit year; therefore, we did not 
perform procedures related to Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction. 
 
The District did not participate as a District of Choice during the audit year; therefore, we did not perform 
procedures related to District of Choice. 
 
The District did not expend funds, or complete projects related to California Clean Energy Jobs Act during 
the audit year; therefore, we did not offer procedures related to California Clean Energy Jobs Act. 
 
We did not perform any procedures related to Charter schools because the District did not include any 
charter schools in this report. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations, as listed 
above. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Santa Cruz City Schools' compliance with state laws and 
regulations as listed above based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 2020-21 Guide for Annual 
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (Audit Guide). Those standards 
and the Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a material 
effect on Santa Cruz City Schools' compliance with the state laws and regulations listed above occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Santa Cruz City Schools' compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with state laws and 
regulations. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Santa Cruz City Schools' 
compliance. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion with State Laws and Regulations 
 
As described in Finding 2021-001 in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs, 
Santa Cruz City Schools did not comply with the requirements regarding Classroom Teacher Salaries. 
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Santa Cruz City Schools to comply 
with state laws and regulations referred to above. 
 
Qualified Opinion with State Laws and Regulations 
 
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, Santa 
Cruz City Schools' complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to the state laws and regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 


198/371







 


 
 


 
65. 


District’s Response to Finding 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools’ response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Santa Cruz City Schools’ response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and 
the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of California's 2020-21 Guide for Annual 
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 
 


199/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
66. 


 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 


AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Santa Cruz City Schools as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Santa Cruz City Schools' basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
January 5, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Santa Cruz City Schools' 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Cruz City Schools' internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Cruz City Schools' internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 


200/371







 


 
 


 
67. 


Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Santa Cruz City Schools' financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 


201/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
68. 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT 


ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
AS REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE 


 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Santa Cruz City Schools' compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Santa Cruz 
City Schools' major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Santa Cruz City Schools' major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management's Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Santa Cruz City Schools' major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Santa Cruz City Schools' 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Santa Cruz City Schools' 
compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Santa Cruz City Schools complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 


202/371







 


 
 


 
69. 


Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Santa Cruz City Schools is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Santa Cruz City Schools' internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Cruz City Schools' internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 
 
 


203/371







 


 


FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS


204/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
70. 


SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified


Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No


Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported


Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No


FEDERAL AWARDS


Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No


Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported


Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified


Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No


Identification of major programs:


AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster


21.019
Learning Loss Mitigation


84.425, 84.425C


Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $750,000


Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No


STATE AWARDS


Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
state programs: Qualified


COVID:19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 


COVID-19: ESF Programs


 


205/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
71. 


SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
No matters were reported. 
 
 
 
 


206/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
72. 


SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
No matters were reported. 
 
 


207/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 


 
73. 


SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
2021-001 STATE COMPLIANCE – CLASSROOM TEACHER SALARIES (61000) 
 
Criteria: The Districts expenditures related to classroom teacher salaries during the audit year, are required 
to meet or exceed 55% of the total current expense of education in the District’s General Fund, as required 
by Education Code section 41372. 
 
Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2020-21 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding 
described above.  
 
Condition: The total current expense of education in the General Fund for the audit year was calculated to 
be $81,220,115, and the classroom teacher salaries and related benefits totaled $42,888,559. The ratio of 
classroom teacher salaries to the current expense of education was calculated to be 52.81%, which is 
deficient by 2.19% from the requirement of 55%.  
 
For purposes of evaluating compliance with Classroom Teacher Salaries, the District is evaluated as a 
“Unified” school district, as it represents the combined financial and operational activity of Santa Cruz City 
High School District and Santa Cruz City Elementary School District, as further described in Note 1 to the 
basic financial statements. 
 
Effect: The District was not in compliance with the requirements of Classroom Teacher Salaries, in 
Education Code section 41372. 
 
Cause: The District incurred additional expense in the General Fund during the audit year to address the 
health and safety requirements of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Recommendation: The District’s management team should implement necessary internal controls to ensure 
that classroom teacher salaries meet or exceed the minimum required percentage of current expense of 
education, in the District’s General Fund. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Management concurs that the calculated 
ratio for Classroom Teacher Salaries indicates the District was noncompliant for the year ended June 30, 
2021, with respect to Education Code 41372. The District has received an approved exemption to the 
requirements of Education Code section 41372, from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education. 
 


208/371







 


 


STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 


209/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 


Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 


 
 


 
74. 


No matters were reported. 


210/371







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2. 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Bond Measure A and Measure B Financial Statements and 


Performance Audits 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022  
 
FROM:  Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 2020-21 Bond Measure A and Measure B Financial Statements and Performance 
Audits. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Article XIIIA of the California Constitution requires school districts that have passed general 


obligation bonds under the provision of Proposition 39 to conduct an annual performance audit 


to ensure that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects approved by the voters 


and specified by the Board of Education.  


Written analyses of each audit prepared by Crowe Horwath are included in their audit reports.  A 
representative from Crowe Horwath will present the audits at tonight’s Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$12,000  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


211/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
 


MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 


212/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ................................................................................................  1 
 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION: 
 
 BALANCE SHEET ..........................................................................................................................  3 
 
 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN 
  FUND BALANCE .....................................................................................................................  4 
 
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ........................................................................................  5 
 
 
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS: 
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
  REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
  AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
  GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ..............................................................................  8 
 
 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  ................................................  10 
 
  
 


213/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
1. 


 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Soquel, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") 
Measure A General Obligation Bonds (the "Bonds") activity included in the Building Fund of the District, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the 
table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 


214/371







 


 
 


 
2. 


Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Santa Cruz City Schools’ (the “District’s”) Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity 
included in the Building Fund of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position 
thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present the financial activity and balances of the Measure 
A General Obligation Bonds activity only, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial 
position of Santa Cruz City Schools, as of June 30, 2021 or the changes in its financial position for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 5, 2022 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters 
for Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance for Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control 
financial reporting and compliance for the Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 
 
 


215/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
3. 


BALANCE SHEET 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 
ASSETS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 14,042,911 
Due from other funds (Note 3)  136,670 
 
  Total assets   
     $ 14,179,581 
 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
 
Liabilities: 
 Accounts payable $ 666,656 
 
Fund balance – restricted (Note 4)  13,512,925 
 
  Total liabilities and fund balance $ 14,179,581 
  
 


216/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
4. 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
Revenues: 
 Interest $ 142,828 
 
Expenditures: 
 Current: 
  Salaries  119,126 
  Employee benefits  52,991 
  Books and supplies   152,090 
  Contract services  6,441 
 Capital outlay  13,856,652 
 
   Total expenditures  14,187,300 
 
   Change in fund balance  (14,044,472) 
 
Fund balance, July 1, 2020  27,557,397 
 
Fund balance, June 30, 2021 $ 13,512,925 
 
 


217/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
5. 


NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments and to general practices 
within California school districts.  The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with 
policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s California School Accounting Manual.  The 
activities of the Measure A Bonds are recorded along with other activities in the District's Building Fund.  
The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The following 
is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 
 
Financial Reporting Entity:  The financial statements include the activity and balances of the Measure A 
General Obligation Bonds, only.  The activities of the Measure A General Obligation Bonds are recorded 
along with other activities in the District's Building Fund.  These financial statements are not intended to 
present the financial position and results of operations of Santa Cruz City Schools as a whole. 
 
Basis of Accounting:  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the 
timing of measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
The basic financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both 
measurable and available.  "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after 
year end.  Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related liability is incurred.  The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general 
obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:  By State law, the District's Board of Education must adopt a final 
budget by July 1.  A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption.  The Board 
of Education complied with these requirements. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance:  Restricted fund balance includes resources which are legally or contractually 
restricted by external third parties.  Fund balance is restricted for capital projects in accordance with the 
Bond Project List for Measure A General Obligation Bonds. 
 
Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers. The unpaid 
balances at year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds. 
 
Accounting Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions.  These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results may differ 
from those estimates. 
 
Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable 
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, 
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the 
commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30. 
 
  


218/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
6. 


NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2021 consisted of $14,042,911 held in the County Treasury 
investment pool. 
 
Cash in County Treasury:  In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains 
substantially all of its cash in the interest-bearing Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Pooled Investment 
Fund.  The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in the pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts based upon 
the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in 
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  
At June 30, 2021, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held. 
 
Credit Risk:  The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other 
than the limitations of State law. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk:  The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one 
issuer.  At June 30, 2021, the District had no concentration of credit risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Interfund Receivables/Payables:  Interfund balances for the year ended June 30, 2021 included $136,670 
due from the District’s Capital Facilities Fund for capital projects and other related purposes.   
 
Transfers:  There were no interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and 1800, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800) implements a five-tier fund 
balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government is bound by spending 
constraints imposed on the use of its resources.  The five classifications are nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned.  The fund balance of the Measure A General Obligation Bonds is 
restricted, as described below. 
 
The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally 
enforceable constraints.  Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
 
 
 


219/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


7. 


NOTE 5 – PURPOSE OF BOND ISSUANCE 
 
Bond Authorization:  By approval of this proposition by at least 55% of the registered voters voting on the 
proposition, the Santa Cruz City Schools shall be authorized to issue and sell bonds of up to $140,000,000 
in aggregate principal amount. 
 
Purpose of Bonds:  The proceeds of the Bonds may be used: 
 


"To upgrade local middle and high school classrooms, science labs, career training facilities, and 
technology infrastructure to support student achievement in math, science, engineering, English, 
social studies, visual/performing arts, technology, and skilled trades; acquire, renovate, 
construct/equip classrooms, sites/facilities; and improve school safety, security and disabled 
access” 


 
As required by the California Constitution, the proceeds from the sale of bonds will be used only for the 
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and 
equipping of school facilities and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator salaries 
and other school operating expenses. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ISSUANCES 
 
The bonds are general obligations of the District, and Santa Cruz County is obligated to levy ad valorem 
taxes for the payment of and interest on, the principal of the bonds.  The Bond Interest and Redemption 
Fund is maintained by the County Treasurer and is used to account for both the accumulation of resources 
from ad valorem tax levies and the payment of interest and redemption of principal of the bonds issued by 
the District. 
 
Measure A:  In February 2017, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016 Series A, in the 
amount of $56,000,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually 
upon all property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 
5.0% and are scheduled to mature through August 2042. 
 
In July 2019, the District issued Election of 2016 Series B General Obligation Bonds (Series B High School 
GO Bonds), totaling $42,000,000. The Series B High School GO Bonds were issued to finance the repair, 
upgrade, acquisition, construction and/or equipping of various District properties. The Series B High School 
GO Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.00% and are scheduled to mature through August 1, 
2045. 
 
 
NOTE 7 – SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
On November 4, 2021, the District issued Election of 2016, Series C General Obligation Bonds (Series C 
High School GO Bonds) totaling $42,000,000. The Series C High School GO Bonds were issued to finance 
the renovation, construction and improvement of school facilities. The Series B High School GO Bonds 
bear interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.0% and are scheduled to mature through August 1, 2040. 
 
 
 
 
 


220/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
8. 


 
 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  


FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED  
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of Santa Cruz City Schools’ (the 
"District") Measure A General Obligation Bonds (the "Bonds") activity included in the Building Fund of the 
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,  and related notes to the financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Santa Cruz City Schools’ 
internal control over Measure A General Obligation Bond activity financial reporting (internal control) to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa 
Cruz City Schools’ internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion of the effectiveness of Santa 
Cruz City Schools’ internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 


221/371







 


 
 
 


9. 


Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Santa Cruz City Schools Measure A General 
Obligation Bond activity included in the Building Fund of the District’s financial statements is free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of the District's compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
This purpose of this report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 


222/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


10. 


No matters were reported. 
 
 
 


223/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


11. 


No matters were reported. 
 


224/371







 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT 


June 30, 2021 
 


225/371







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  ...............................................................................................  1 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY ................................................................................................................  2 
 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
   MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS .........................................................................  2 
 
 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT: 
 
 OBJECTIVES .................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 SCOPE  ...........................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 METHODOLOGY ...........................................................................................................................  3 
 
 CONCLUSION ................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 
 
 


226/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
 
 


1. 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


 
 
 
Board of Education  
  and Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Soquel, California 
 
 
We have conducted a performance audit of the Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") Measure A General 
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
We conducted our performance audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion based on our audit 
objectives.  We believe the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions 
based on our audit objectives. 
 
Our audit was limited to the objectives listed on page 3 of this report which includes determining the 
compliance with the performance requirements for the Proposition 39 Measure A General Obligation Bonds 
under the applicable provisions of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution and 
Proposition 39 as they apply to the bonds and the net proceeds thereof. Management is responsible for 
Santa Cruz City Schools’ compliance with those requirements. 
 
Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the 
internal controls of Santa Cruz City Schools to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate for the 
purpose of providing a conclusion on the District’s compliance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as 
specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express any 
assurance on the internal control. 
 
The results of our procedures indicated that, in all significant respects, Santa Cruz City Schools expended 
Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects 
developed by the District's Governing Board and approved by the voters, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California 
Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 


227/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
 


 
 
 


2. 


LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
 
On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and 
Financial Accountability Act.  Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for 
the issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, "for the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, 
or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities", upon approval by 55% of the electorate. 
 
Education Code Section 15278 provides additional accountability measures: 
 
1. A requirement that the school district establish and appoint members to an independent citizens' 


oversight committee. 
2. A requirement that the school district expend bond funds only for the purposes described in Section 


1(b)(3) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, and ensuring that no funds are used for any teacher 
or administrative salaries or other school operating expenses. 


3. A requirement to conduct an annual independent performance audit required by Section 1(b)(3)C of 
Article XIII A of the California Constitution. 


4. A requirement to conduct an annual independent financial audit required by Section 1(b)(3)D of Article 
XIII A of the California Constitution. 


 
 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
 
On November 8, 2016, the electorate of Santa Cruz City Schools’ approved the $140,000,000 Measure A 
General Obligation Bonds, with greater than 55% of the votes in favor.  The summarized text of the ballot 
language was as follows: 
 


"To upgrade local middle and high school classrooms, science labs, career training facilities, and 
technology infrastructure to support student achievement in math, science, engineering, English, 
social studies, visual/performing arts, technology, and skilled trades; acquire, renovate, 
construct/equip classrooms, sites/facilities; and improve school safety, security and disabled 
access” 


 
All bond expenditures are subject to review by a Citizens' Oversight Committee which reports to the public, 
as provided in Education Code Section 15278 et seq. 
 
The financial activity related to the Measure A General Obligation Bonds is recorded in the Fund 21 
(Building Fund) in the District's audited financial statements. 
 
In February 2017, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016 Series A, in the amount of 
$56,000,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually upon all 
property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 
and are scheduled to mature through August 2042.  
 
In July 2019, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016 Series B, in the amount of 
$42,000,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually upon all 
property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 
and are scheduled to mature through August 2045.  


228/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, METHODOLOGY AND CONCLUSION 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


3. 


OBJECTIVES 
 
The objective of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended Measure A General 
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the purposes approved by the voters and 
only on the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Education, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California 
Constitution. 
 
SCOPE 
 
The District provided to us a list of all Measure A General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 (the "List").  A total of $14,187,300 in expenditures from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2021 were identified. 
 
METHODOLOGY 
 
We performed the following procedures to the List of Measure A General Obligation Bond project 
expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021: 
 
 Verified the mathematical accuracy of the List. 


 Vouched the List to total bond expenditures as reported by the District in the District's Measure A 
General Obligation Bond financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. 


 Selected a sample of 27 expenditures totaling $6,675,168. The sample was selected to provide a 
representation across specific construction projects, vendors and expenditure amounts.  The sample 
represented approximately 47% of the total expenditure value. Verified that the funds were generally 
expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing, and equipping of school facilities constituting 
authorized bond projects. Verified that the funds which were used to pay for salaries of district 
employees were allowable per Opinion 04-110 issued on November 9, 2004 by the State of California 
Attorney General. 


 
CONCLUSION 
 
The results of our procedures indicated that, in all significant respects, Santa Cruz City Schools expended 
Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects 
developed by the District’s Board of Education and approved by the voters, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California 
Constitution. 


229/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
 


MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021


230/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ................................................................................................  1 
 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION: 
 
 BALANCE SHEET ..........................................................................................................................  3 
 
 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN 
  FUND BALANCE .....................................................................................................................  4 
 
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ........................................................................................  5 
 
 
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS: 
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
  REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
  AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
  GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ..............................................................................  8 
 
 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  ................................................  10 
 
  
 


231/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
1. 


 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") 
Measure B General Obligation Bonds (the "Bonds") activity included in the Building Fund of the District, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the 
table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 


232/371







 


 
 


 
2. 


Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Santa Cruz City Schools’ Measure B General Obligation Bonds activity included in the 
Building Fund of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present the financial activity and balances of the Measure 
B General Obligation Bonds activity only, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial 
position of Santa Cruz City Schools, as of June 30, 2021 or the changes in its financial position for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 5, 2022 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters 
for Measure B General Obligation Bonds activity. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance for Measure B General Obligation Bonds activity. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control 
financial reporting and compliance for the Measure B General Obligation Bonds activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 
 
 


233/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
3. 


BALANCE SHEET 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 
ASSETS 
 
Cash in County Treasury (Note 2) $ 4,627,365 
Due from other funds (Note 3)  122,219 
 
  Total assets $ 4,749,584 
 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
 
Liabilities: 
 Accounts payable $ 1,241,599 
 
Fund balance – restricted (Note 4)  3,507,985 
 
  Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4,749,584 
  
 


234/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 


 
4. 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
Revenues: 
 Interest $ 74,554 
 
Expenditures: 
 Current: 
  Salaries  59,531 
  Benefits  26,426 
  Books and supplies  193,749 
  Contract services  8,125 
 Capital outlay  11,728,071 
  
   Total expenditures  12,015,902 
 
   Change in fund balance   (11,941,348) 
 
Fund balance, July 1, 2020  15,449,333 
 
Fund balance, June 30, 2021 $ 3,507,985 
 
 


235/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
5. 


NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments and to general practices 
within California school districts.  The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with 
policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s California School Accounting Manual.  The 
activities of the Measure B Bonds are recorded along with other activities in the District's Building Fund.  
The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The following 
is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 
 
Financial Reporting Entity:  The financial statements include the activity and balances of the Measure B 
General Obligation Bonds, only.  The activities of the Measure B General Obligation Bonds are recorded 
along with other activities in the District's Building Fund.  These financial statements are not intended to 
present the financial position and results of operations of Santa Cruz City Schools as a whole. 
 
Basis of Accounting:  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the 
timing of measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
The basic financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both 
measurable and available.  "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after 
year end.  Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related liability is incurred.  The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general 
obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:  By State law, the District's Board of Education must adopt a final 
budget by July 1.  A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption.  The Board 
of Education complied with these requirements. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance:  Restricted fund balance includes resources which are legally or contractually 
restricted by external third parties.  Fund balance is restricted for capital projects in accordance with the 
Bond Project List for Measure B General Obligation Bonds. 
 
Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers. The unpaid 
balances at year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds. 
 
Accounting Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions.  These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results may differ 
from those estimates. 
 
Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable 
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, 
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the 
commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30. 
 
  


236/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
(Continued) 


 
6. 


NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2021 consisted of $4,627,365 held in the County Treasury 
investment pool. 
 
Cash in County Treasury:  In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains 
substantially all of its cash in the interest-bearing Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Pooled Investment 
Fund.  The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in the pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts based upon 
the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in 
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  
At June 30, 2021, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held. 
 
Credit Risk:  The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other 
than the limitations of State law. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk:  The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one 
issuer.  At June 30, 2021, the District had no concentration of credit risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Interfund Receivables/Payables:  Interfund balances for the year ended June 30, 2021 included $122,219 
due from the District’s Capital Facilities Fund for capital projects and other related purposes.  
 
Transfers:  There were no interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and 1800, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800) implements a five-tier fund 
balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government is bound by spending 
constraints imposed on the use of its resources.  The five classifications are nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned.  The fund balance of the Measure B General Obligation Bonds is 
restricted, as described below. 
 
The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally 
enforceable constraints.  Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
 


237/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


7. 


NOTE 5 – PURPOSE OF BOND ISSUANCE 
 
Bond Authorization:  By approval of this proposition by at least 55% of the registered voters voting on the 
proposition, the Santa Cruz City Schools shall be authorized to issue and sell bonds of up to $68,000,000 
in aggregate principal amount. 
 
Purpose of Bonds:  The proceeds of the Bonds may be used: 
 


"To repair/upgrade neighborhood elementary school classrooms and facilities, including 
deteriorated roofs, plumbing, and electrical systems; remove hazardous materials; renovate, 
construct/equip, acquire classrooms, facilities and technology infrastructure to support programs in 
reading, math, science, arts and technology; improve school safety/security; and replace outdated 
portables with modern classrooms” 
 


As required by the California Constitution, the proceeds from the sale of bonds will be used only for the 
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and 
equipping of school facilities and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator salaries 
and other school operating expenses. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ISSUANCES 
 
The bonds are general obligations of the District, and Santa Cruz County is obligated to levy ad valorem 
taxes for the payment of and interest on, the principal of the bonds.  The Bond Interest and Redemption 
Fund is maintained by the County Treasurer and is used to account for both the accumulation of resources 
from ad valorem tax levies and the payment of interest and redemption of principal of the bonds issued by 
the District. 
 
Measure B:  In February 2017, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016, Series A, in 
the amount of $27,200,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied 
annually upon all property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 
3.0% to 5.0% and are scheduled to mature through August 2042. 
 
In July 2019, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016, Series B, in the amount of 
$20,400,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually upon all 
property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 
and are scheduled to mature through August 1, 2045. 
 
 
NOTE 7 – SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
In November 2021, Santa Cruz City Elementary School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 
2016, Series C, in the amount of $20,400,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes 
to be levied annually upon all property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates 
ranging from 2.0% to 3.0% and are scheduled to mature through August 1, 2036. 
 


238/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
(Continued) 


 
8. 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 


ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


 
 
 
Board of Education 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Soquel, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of Santa Cruz City Schools’ (the 
"District") Measure B General Obligation Bonds (the "Bonds") activity included in the Building Fund of the 
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,  and related notes to the financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Santa Cruz City Schools’ 
internal control over Measure B General Obligation Bond activity financial reporting (internal control) to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa 
Cruz City Schools’ internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion of the effectiveness of Santa 
Cruz City Schools’ internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 


239/371







 


 
 
 


9. 


Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Santa Cruz City Schools Measure B General 
Obligation Bond activity included in the Building Fund of the District’s financial statements is free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of the District's compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
This purpose of this report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 


240/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


10. 


No matters were reported. 


241/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


11. 


No matters were reported. 
 
 


242/371







 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT 


June 30, 2021 
 


243/371







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT 


June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  ...............................................................................................  1 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY ................................................................................................................  2 
 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
  MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS .....................................................................  2 
 
 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT: 
 
 OBJECTIVES .................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 SCOPE  ...........................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 METHODOLOGY ...........................................................................................................................  3 
 
 CONCLUSION ................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 
 
 


244/371







 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  


 


 
 
 


1. 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


 
 
 
Board of Education and Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Soquel, California 
 
 
We have conducted a performance audit of the Santa Cruz City Schools (the "District") Measure B General 
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
We conducted our performance audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion based on our audit 
objectives.  We believe the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions 
based on our audit objectives. 
 
Our audit was limited to the objectives listed on page 3 of this report which includes determining the 
compliance with the performance requirements for the Proposition 39 Measure B General Obligation Bonds 
under the applicable provisions of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution and 
Proposition 39 as they apply to the bonds and the net proceeds thereof. Management is responsible for 
Santa Cruz City Schools’ compliance with those requirements. 
 
Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the 
internal controls of Santa Cruz City Schools to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate for the 
purpose of providing a conclusion on the District’s compliance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as 
specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express any 
assurance on the internal control. 
 
The results of our procedures indicated that, in all significant respects, Santa Cruz City Schools expended 
Measure B General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects 
developed by the District's Governing Board and approved by the voters, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California 
Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 5, 2022 
 


245/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
 


 
 
 


2. 


LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
 
On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and 
Financial Accountability Act.  Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for 
the issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, "for the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, 
or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities", upon approval by 55% of the electorate. 
 
Education Code Section 15278 provides additional accountability measures: 
 
1. A requirement that the school district establish and appoint members to an independent citizens' 


oversight committee. 
2. A requirement that the school district expend bond funds only for the purposes described in Section 


1(b)(3) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, and ensuring that no funds are used for any teacher 
or administrative salaries or other school operating expenses. 


3. A requirement to conduct an annual independent performance audit required by Section 1(b)(3)C of 
Article XIII A of the California Constitution. 


4. A requirement to conduct an annual independent financial audit required by Section 1(b)(3)D of Article 
XIII A of the California Constitution. 


 
 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
 
On November 8, 2016, the electorate of Santa Cruz City Schools’ approved the $68,000,000 Measure B 
General Obligation Bonds, with greater than 55% of the votes in favor.  The summarized text of the ballot 
language was as follows: 
 


"To repair/upgrade neighborhood elementary school classrooms and facilities, including 
deteriorated roofs, plumbing, and electrical systems; remove hazardous materials; renovate, 
construct/equip, acquire classrooms, facilities and technology infrastructure to support programs in 
reading, math, science, arts and technology; improve school safety/security; and replace outdated 
portables with modern classrooms” 


 
All bond expenditures are subject to review by a Citizens' Oversight Committee which reports to the public, 
as provided in Education Code Section 15278 et seq. 
 
The financial activity related to the Measure B General Obligation Bonds is recorded in the Fund 21 
(Building Fund) in the District's audited financial statements. 
 
In February 2017, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016, Series A, in the amount of 
$27,200,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually upon all 
property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 
and are scheduled to mature through August 2042. 
 
In July 2019, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2016, Series B, in the amount of 
$20,400,000.  Repayment of the bonds is made from the ad valorem taxes to be levied annually upon all 
property subject to taxation by the District.  The Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 
and are scheduled to mature throught August 2045. 
 
 


246/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
MEASURE B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, METHODOLOGY AND CONCLUSION 
June 30, 2021 


 
 
 


 
 
 


3. 


OBJECTIVES 
 
The objective of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended Measure B General 
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the purposes approved by the voters and 
only on the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Education, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California 
Constitution. 
 
SCOPE 
 
The District provided to us a list of all Measure B General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 (the "List").  A total of $12,015,902 in expenditures from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2021 were identified. 
 
METHODOLOGY 
 
We performed the following procedures to the List of Measure B General Obligation Bond project 
expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021: 
 
 Verified the mathematical accuracy of the List. 


 Reconciled the list to total bond expenditures as reported by the District in the District's audited 
Measure B General Obligation Bonds financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. 


 Selected a sample of 27 expenditures totaling $7,258,769. The sample was selected to provide a 
representation across specific construction projects, vendors and expenditure amounts.  The sample 
represented approximately 60% of the total expenditure and transfers value, respectively. Verified that 
the funds were generally expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing, and equipping of school 
facilities constituting authorized bond projects. Verified that the funds which were used to pay for 
salaries of district employees were allowable per Opinion 04-110 issued on November 9, 2004 by the 
State of California Attorney General. 
 


CONCLUSION 
 
The results of our procedures indicated that, in all significant respects, Santa Cruz City Schools expended 
Measure B General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects 
developed by the District’s Board of Education and approved by the voters, in accordance with the 
requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California 
Constitution. 


247/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 21-21-22: Authorization of Tax-Exempt Equipment 
Lease 


 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 21-21-22 Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Tax-Exempt Equipment 
Lease Purchase Agreement in Order to Finance Energy Conservation Measures and Approving 
Related Documents and Actions. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District will finance the Climatec solar and HVAC project over a ten year period though an 
equipment lease.  As the name implies, an equipment lease is secured by the equipment being 
purchased and installed rather than secured by a school site as is done in a certificate of 
participation financing.  An equipment lease is a much less complex financing than a certificate 
of participation financing which results in streamlined legal documents and lower issuance 
costs. 
 
To select a lender for the equipment lease, the district’s financial advisor (Dale Scott & 
Company) and placement agent (Oppenheimer) conducted a request for proposal process.  
Seven banks submitted proposals with interest rates ranging from 1.548% to 2.10%.  Bank of 
America submitted the bid with the lowest interest rates and further agreed to match the more 
favorable repayment terms of the bank that submitted the next lowest interest rate.  During 
years 1-5, the financing may be prepaid with a penalty of 2% of the outstanding principal 
balance.  After year five, there is no prepayment penalty.   
 
A summary of the proposals received is attached.  The Resolution approves the forms, and 
authorizes staff to negotiate, approve, and execute the final agreements. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $7,000,000  Redevelopment Agency split 65% Secondary and 35% Elementary 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


248/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


249/371







 


SC336001 - 1 - Santa Cruz City Schools 


 Resolution Approving Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


BEFORE THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 21-21-22 


 


AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A TAX-EXEMPT EQUIPMENT 


LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT IN ORDER TO FINANCE ENERGY 


CONSERVATION MEASURES AND APPROVING RELATED DOCUMENTS AND 


ACTIONS 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City Schools (the “District”) desires to implement and 


install energy cost saving measures in order to increase energy efficiency and save utility and 


maintenance costs at its facilities; and  


 


WHEREAS, California Government Code (“Government Code”) sections 4217.10 


through 4217.18 (“Authorizing Law”) authorize the District’s Board of Education (“Board” or 


“District Board”), without advertising for bids, to enter into one or more energy service 


agreements with any person or entity, pursuant to which that person or entity will provide 


electrical or thermal energy or conservation services to the District, which may comprise or 


include an energy conservation facility, if the anticipated cost to the District for thermal or 


electrical energy or conservation services provided under the agreements(s) is less than the 


anticipated marginal cost to the District of thermal, electrical, or other energy that would have 


been consumed by the District in the absence of those energy service agreements; 


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to an Energy Performance Contract and Installation Agreement 


(together, including all attachments thereto and related documents, the “Energy Services 


Agreement”) between the District and Climatec LLC (“Climatec”), which Energy Services 


Agreement has been previously approved by this Board, Climatec will design, construct, and 


install energy conservation improvements and equipment District-wide (together, “Conservation 


Equipment”), which will result in greater energy efficiency and cost savings for the District (the 


“Project”); and  


 


WHEREAS, Climatec has prepared and delivered to the District its analysis showing the 


benefits of constructing the Project, including the utility cost savings estimates to the District 


over the useful life of the Conservation Equipment, (“Analysis”); and  


 


WHEREAS, following a public hearing held pursuant to Government Code section 


4217.12, on November 3, 2021, the Board adopted its Resolution 14-21-22, thereby making the 


following findings: 


 


1. That the terms of the Energy Services Agreement are in the best interests of the 


District; and 


 


250/371







 


SC336001 - 2 - Santa Cruz City Schools 


 Resolution Approving Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


2. In accordance with Government Code section 4217.12 and based on data provided 


by the Analysis, Project costs will be offset and will be less than the anticipated 


marginal cost to District of electrical or other energy that would have been 


consumed by District if such Project was not completed; 


 


WHEREAS, the Board approved the Energy Services Agreement, in accordance with 


Government Code section 4217.12; and 


 


WHEREAS, in order to finance the Project and related costs, the District desires to enter 


into a Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (including all attachments thereto, the 


“Lease Agreement”) between the District, as lessee, and Banc of America Public Capital Corp or 


its affiliates, as lessor (the “Lessor”), whereby the District will lease the Conservation Equipment 


constituting the conservation measures included in the Project (the “Property”) from the Lessor 


in exchange for lease payments (the “Rental Payments”) according to the payment schedule to be 


attached to the Lease Agreement as Exhibit B (the “Rental Payment Schedule”) and the District 


desires to enter into an Escrow and Account Control Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) by 


and among Lessor, District, and Bank of America, National Association, as Escrow Agent (the 


“Escrow Agent”), to secure financing of the Lease Agreement; and 


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to section 17150.1(a) of the California Education Code, the 


District has previously provided notice to the Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools and 


to the Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller, of the intention of the Board to finance the Project 


pursuant to the lease financing transactions contemplated by this Resolution; and 


WHEREAS, the District has not received a qualified or negative certification in its fiscal 


year ended June 30, 2021, or, as of the date hereof, ending June 30, 2022; and 


WHEREAS, the District is authorized to enter into lease-purchase agreements for 


equipment such as the Property under Section 17450 of the Education Code of the State of 


California and to lease the Property under the Constitution and laws of the State of California; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, upon termination of the Lease Agreement, whether by term or upon 


prepayment, title to the Property will automatically vest in the District; and  


 


WHEREAS, District staff has previously provided the Board with information relating to 


the lease of the Property and the economic advantage of a lease financing; and 


 


WHEREAS, the District has adopted a debt issuance and management policy (“Board 


Policy 3470”) consistent with Government Code section 8855(i); and 


 


WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement is compliant with the District’s Board Policy 3470, 


which authorizes the District to utilize lease financing transactions for facilities for which there is 


insufficient time to obtain voter approval or in instances where obtaining voter approval is not 


feasible; and 


 


251/371







 


SC336001 - 3 - Santa Cruz City Schools 


 Resolution Approving Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


WHEREAS, the Board has retained Dale Scott & Company as its Financial Advisor (the 


“Financial Advisor”), Brandis Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., as its Placement 


Agent (the “Placement Agent”), and Lozano Smith, LLP, as Special Counsel, all in connection 


with the lease financing transactions and financing contemplated by this Resolution; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board has obtained from the Financial Advisor, good faith estimates of 


(a) the true interest cost of the financing authorized by this Resolution, (b) the sum of all fees and 


charges paid to third parties with respect to the financing, (c) the amount of proceeds of the 


financing expected to be received net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any 


reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the financing, and (d) the 


aggregate sum total of all Rental Payments made pursuant to the Lease Agreement calculated to 


the final term of the lease, plus the fees and charges paid to third parties not paid with the 


proceeds of the financing, and such estimates are disclosed and set forth in Exhibit A attached 


hereto; and 


WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to authorize and approve all proceedings for 


the financing of the Project and the Property, and related costs, and all related documents and 


actions, in furtherance of the public purposes of the District. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the 


Santa Cruz City Schools as follows: 


 


Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and the Board so finds 


and determines. 


 


Section 2.  Lease Agreement & Escrow Agreement; Authorized Officers.  The Lease 


Agreement between the District and the Lessor, and the Escrow Agreement among the District, 


the Lessor, and the Escrow Agent, are each hereby approved and ratified, in substantially the 


forms on file with the Superintendent.  The District’s staff is authorized and directed to take all 


steps necessary or convenient to acquire the Property in accordance with said Lease Agreement 


and Escrow Agreement.  The District’s Superintendent and the District’s Assistant 


Superintendent, Business Services, or either of their designee (each, an “Authorized Officer”) are 


hereby each, acting alone, authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Lease Agreement, 


the Rental Payment Schedule, the Escrow Agreement, and any related documents on behalf of 


the District, subject to making such changes to the Lease Agreement, the Rental Payment 


Schedule, and the Escrow Agreement as may be necessary or appropriate as determined by an 


Authorized Officer.  The Authorized Officers are hereby, each acting alone, authorized and 


directed to consummate the transaction, execute any documents or supplementary agreements 


necessary to secure possession, use, or ownership of the Property, and to approve any 


amendments thereto as necessary to carry out the provisions of this authorizing Resolution.  


 


Section 3.  Approval of Lease Financing Plan and Related Documents.  The Board 


hereby approves the lease financing plan outlined above, and hereby finds and determines that 


(1) the funds for the Rental Payments to be made according to the Rental Payment Schedule, are 


projected to be available from revenues that otherwise would have been used for purchase of 


electrical or other energy required by the District in the absence of the Project’s energy 


252/371







 


SC336001 - 4 - Santa Cruz City Schools 


 Resolution Approving Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


conservation measures; (2) entering into and the Lease Agreement and the Escrow Agreement on 


the terms provided therein and herein is in the best interest of the District; and (3) the portion of 


the Project constituting the Property subject to the Lease Agreement is incidental to the use of the 


District’s facilities on which it will be located.   


 


The Authorized Officers and District staff are authorized and directed to take all steps 


necessary or convenient to acquire the Property in accordance with the Lease Agreement.  The 


Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to make any and all changes they deem advisable to 


the Lease Agreement, within the parameters of this Resolution.   


 


To that end, the Board hereby approves each of the following lease financing documents 


in substantially the respective forms on file with the Superintendent, together with any changes 


therein or additions thereto deemed advisable by an Authorized Officer, whose execution thereof 


shall be conclusive evidence of such approval; provided that (i) the total principal amount 


financed under the Lease Agreement shall not exceed Seven Million Dollars ($7,000,000.00), (ii) 


the term of the Lease Agreement shall not exceed ten (10) years, and (iii) the true interest cost 


shall not exceed 1.7% subject to adjustment upon an event of default or event of taxability. 


 


 Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement between the District, as lessee, and the 


Lessor, whereby the District leases the Property to be financed under the terms 


thereof from the Lessor, for up to ten (10) years in consideration of the payment 


by the District of Rental Payments; provided that the aggregate amount of the 


Rental Payments payable by the District shall not exceed $7,579,866.18. 


 


 Rental Payment Schedule to the Lease Agreement between the District, as 


Lessee, and the Lessor, whereby the Rental Payment dates and amounts due under 


the Lease Agreement approved by the District and the Lessor will be set forth. 


 


 Escrow and Account Control Agreement among the District, the Lessor, and the 


Escrow Agent.   


 


An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the 


District to execute and deliver the final form of each of the foregoing documents and any other 


documents or instruments related to the transactions contemplated herein.  The Rental Payment 


Schedule to be attached to the Lease Agreement is hereby approved, subject to adjustment by an 


Authorized Officer but not in excess of the above limitations as to lease term, Rental Payments 


and total principal amount of Property subject to the Lease Agreement. 


 


253/371







 


SC336001 - 5 - Santa Cruz City Schools 


 Resolution Approving Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


Section 4.  Tax Covenants.  The District covenants with respect to the Lease Agreement 


that it will not take any action, or fail to take any action, if such action or failure to take such 


action would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest components of the 


Rental Payments under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”). Without 


limiting the generality of the foregoing, the District hereby covenants that it will comply with the 


requirements of the Tax Certificate to be executed by the District in connection with the Lease 


Agreement.  


 


Section 5.  Special Counsel. The Board hereby approves the appointment of Lozano 


Smith, LLP as Special Counsel to the District with respect to the Lease Agreement.   


 


Section 6.  Official Actions.  The Authorized Officers, the Board President, the Clerk of 


the Board, and all other officers of the District are each authorized and directed in the name and 


on behalf of the District to make, execute, and deliver any and all assignments, certificates, 


requisitions, agreements, notices, consents, leases, tax certificates, IRS Forms 8038-G, or other 


instruments of conveyance, warrants and other documents, which they or any of them might 


deem necessary or appropriate in order to consummate any of the transactions contemplated by 


the agreements and documents approved under this Resolution.  The Authorized Officers are 


further authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of, and execute, a Placement Agent 


Agreement with the Placement Agent, on terms consistent with this Resolution. Whenever in this 


Resolution any officer of the District is authorized to execute or countersign any document or 


take any action, such execution, countersigning or action may be taken on behalf of such officer 


by any person designated by such officer to act on his or her behalf in the case such officer is 


absent or unavailable. 


 


Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its 


passage and adoption. 


 


* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 


 


AYES: __________ 


NOES: __________ 


ABSENT: __________ 


ABSTAIN: __________ 


 


By:   


President, Board of Education 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


By:    


Clerk of the Board of Education 


254/371







 


SC336001 A-1 Good Faith Estimates 


 


EXHIBIT A 


GOOD FAITH ESTIMATES 


The good faith estimates set forth below are provided with respect to the financing authorized by 


this Resolution. Such good faith estimates have been provided to the District Dale Scott & 


Company, the District’s financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”). 


Principal Amount.  The Financial Advisor has informed the District that, based on the District’s 


financing plan and current market conditions, their good faith estimate of the aggregate principal 


component of the Rental Payments paid under the Lease Agreement is $6,695,000.00 (the 


“Estimated Principal Amount”). 


True Interest Cost of the Certificates.  The Financial Advisor has informed the District that, 


based on market interest rates prevailing at the time of preparation of the Estimated Principal 


Amount, their good faith estimate of the true interest cost of the financing, which means the rate 


necessary to discount the amounts payable on the respective Base Rental Payment dates to the 


principal components of said Rental Payments, is 1.55%. 


Finance Charge of the Certificates. The Financial Advisor has informed the District that, based 


on market interest rates prevailing at the time of preparation of the Estimated Principal Amount, 


their good faith estimate of the finance charge for the financing, which means the sum of all fees 


and charges paid to third parties (or costs associated with the financing) (the “Finance Charge”), 


is $108,000.00. 


Amount of Proceeds to be received. The Financial Advisor has informed the District that, 


based on market interest rates prevailing at the time of preparation of Estimated Principal 


Amount, their good faith estimate of the amount of proceeds expected to be received by the 


District in connection with the financing, less the Finance Charge as estimated above, and any 


reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the financing, is $6,586,457.00.  


Total Payment Amount. The Financial Advisor has informed the District that, based on market 


interest rates prevailing at the time of preparation of the Estimated Principal Amount, their good 


faith estimate of the total payment amount, which means the sum total of all Rental Payments 


made pursuant to the Lease Agreement, plus the Finance Charge as described above, not paid 


with the proceeds of the financing, calculated to the final term of the Lease Agreement, is 


$7,249,608.19.  


The foregoing estimates constitute good faith estimates only. The actual figures may differ from 


estimates due to (a) the actual date of financing being different than the date assumed for 


purposes of such estimates, (b) the actual aggregate sum of the principal components of the 


Rental Payments being different from the Estimated Principal Amount, (c) the actual 


amortization of the Rental Payments being different than the amortization assumed for purposes 


of such estimates, (d) the actual market interest rates at the time of financing different than those 


estimated for purposes of such estimates, (e) other market conditions, or (f) alterations in the 


District’s financing plan, or a combination of such factors.  


 


255/371







Santa Cruz City Schools District
2022 Equipment Lease
Summary of Proposals Received 
December 23, 2021


Interest Rate:


1.548% 2.100% 1.930% 1.670% 1.739% 1.625% 1.850%


Rate Lock Terms:
Locked through Locked through Locked for Locked through Locked through Locked through Locked through


February 18, 2022 closing 60 days February 2, 2022 February 4, 2022 February 2, 2022 February 2, 2022


Prepayment Terms:


Any payment date at 102% Any date as follows: Any date in whole Any interest payment Any payment date Year 1-2: No Call Any payment date
(in whole only) Years 1-2 at 101% or in part at par date on or after 2/1/27 in whole at 101% Year 3-5: 102% in whole at par


Year 3 and therafter at par at par (in whole only) Thereafter at par


Costs(1): 
Bank Counsel $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000


$10,000 if District's 
counsel drafts


Proposal Expiration:
January 5, 2022  January 10, 2022 December 30, 2021 December 30, 2021


(1) Additionally, bond counsel, municipal advisor, placement agent, escrow agent fees and miscellaneous costs apply.


The following banks declined to provide a proposal:
CoBank Kansas State Bank Umpqua Bank
Community Leasing Partners Municipal Finance Corp Westamerica Bank
First Foundation Pacific Western Bank Western Alliance Bank
Five Star Bank Pinnacle Public Finance


TruistSignature Public Funding Cal Bank & TrustBank of America [2] Bank of the West Capital One Sterling


Estimated Closing Date: February 2, 2022


Estimated Par Amount: $6,758,000


Average Life: 5.35 Years


Final Maturity: February 1, 2032


256/371







1DODD_ATJEUB-32B771941688461BA2F72CC5B313FB7B 
2299337 


EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 


(ESCROW ACCOUNT) 


This Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) dated as of February 2, 


2022, and entered into by and between Banc of America Public Capital Corp, a Kansas corporation 


(together with its successors, assigns and transferees, and as more particularly defined herein, 


“Lessor”), and the Santa Cruz City Schools, a common administration public school district 


existing under the laws of the State of California (“Lessee”). 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease and acquire from Lessor certain Equipment (as such 


term is defined herein), subject to the terms and conditions hereof; and, 


WHEREAS, Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State (as such term 


is defined herein) to enter into this Agreement for the purposes set forth herein;  


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which 


are hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the parties 


hereby agree as follows: 


ARTICLE I 


 Section 1.01. Definitions.  The following terms will have the meanings indicated below 


unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 


“Acquisition Amount” means $[___________].  The Acquisition Amount is the amount 


represented by Lessee to be sufficient, together with other funds of Lessee (if any) that are legally 


available for the purpose of acquiring and installing the Equipment. 


“Acquisition Period” means the period ending five (5) business days prior to 


______________________. 


“Agreement” means this Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, including the exhibits 


hereto, together with any amendments and modifications to this Agreement pursuant to 


Section 13.04. 


“Climatec Contract” means [Installation Agreement and Energy Performance 


Contract, each dated as of ________, 20__ between Lessee and Climatec, LLC.] 


“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Each reference to a 


Section of the Code herein shall be deemed to include the relevant United States Treasury 


Regulations proposed or in effect thereunder. 


257/371







-2- 


“Commencement Date” means the date when Lessee’s obligation to pay rent commences 


hereunder, which shall be the date on which the Acquisition Amount is deposited with the Escrow 


Agent. 


“Contract Rate” means the rate identified as such in the Payment Schedule. 


“Disbursement Request” means the disbursement request attached to the Escrow 


Agreement as Schedule 1 and made a part thereof. 


“Equipment” means the equipment, fixtures and other goods and property listed in the 


Equipment Schedule and all replacements, repairs, restorations, modifications and improvements 


thereof or thereto made pursuant to Article V or Section 8.01.  Whenever reference is made in this 


Agreement to Equipment, such reference shall be deemed to include all such replacements, repairs, 


restorations, modifications and improvements of or to such Equipment. 


“Equipment Costs” means the total cost of the Equipment, including related soft costs such 


as freight, installation and taxes and other capitalizable costs,  and other costs incurred in 


connection with the acquisition, installation and/or financing of the Equipment. 


“Equipment Schedule” means the Equipment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A and 


made a part hereof. 


“Escrow Account” means the account established and held by the Escrow Agent pursuant 


to the Escrow Agreement. 


“Escrow Agent” means the Escrow Agent identified in the Escrow Agreement, and its 


successors and assigns. 


“Escrow Agreement” means the Escrow and Account Control Agreement in form and 


substance acceptable to and executed by Lessee, Lessor and the Escrow Agent, pursuant to which 


the Escrow Account is established and administered. 


“Event of Default” means an Event of Default described in Section 12.01. 


“Event of Non-appropriation” means the failure of Lessee’s governing body to appropriate 


or otherwise make available funds to pay Rental Payments under this Agreement following the 


Original Term or then current Renewal Term sufficient for the continued performance of this 


Agreement by Lessee.  


“Lease Term” means the Original Term and all Renewal Terms. 


“Lessee” means the entity referred to as Lessee in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 


“Lessor” means (a) the entity referred to as Lessor in the first paragraph of this Agreement 


and its successors or (b) any assignee or transferee of any right, title or interest of Lessor in and to 


this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.01 hereof, including the right, title and interest of Lessor in 


258/371







-3- 


and to the Equipment, the Rental Payments and other amounts due hereunder, the Escrow 


Agreement and Escrow Account and other Collateral, but does not include any entity solely by 


reason of that entity retaining or assuming any obligation of Lessor to perform hereunder. 


“Lien” means any lien (statutory or otherwise), security interest, mortgage, deed of trust, 


pledge, hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, preference, priority or 


other security or preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without 


limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any financing lease having 


substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing and the filing of any financing 


statement under the Uniform Commercial Code or comparable law of any jurisdiction). 


“Material Adverse Change” means any change in Lessee’s creditworthiness that could 


have a material adverse effect on (i) the financial condition or operations of Lessee, or (ii) Lessee’s 


ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 


 “Original Term” means the period from the Commencement Date until the end of the 


fiscal year of Lessee in effect at such Commencement Date. 


“Outstanding Balance” means the amount that is shown for each Rental Payment Date 


under the column titled “Outstanding Balance” on the Payment Schedule.  


“Payment Schedule” means the Payment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B and made 


a part hereof. 


 “Prepayment Price” means the amount that is shown for each Rental Payment Date under 


the column titled “Prepayment Price” on the Payment Schedule. 


“Principal Portion” means the amount that is shown for each Rental Payment Date under 


the column titled “Principal Portion” on the Payment Schedule. 


“Related Documents” means this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the Vendor 


Agreement, each as may be amended and supplemented.    


“Renewal Terms” means the consecutive renewal terms of this Agreement, the first of 


which commences immediately after the end of the Original Term and each having a duration and 


a term coextensive with each successive fiscal year of Lessee; provided that the final such Renewal 


Term shall commence on the first day of the last such fiscal year and end on the first business day 


after the last scheduled Rental Payment Date. 


“Rental Payment Date” means each date on which Lessee is required to make a Rental 


Payment under this Agreement as specified in the Payment Schedule. 


“Rental Payments” means the basic rental payments payable by Lessee on the Rental 


Payment Dates and in the amounts as specified in the Payment Schedule, consisting of a principal 


component and an interest component, and in all cases sufficient to repay such principal 


component and interest thereon at the applicable Contract Rate (or Taxable Rate if then in effect). 


259/371







-4- 


“Scheduled Term” means the Original Term and all scheduled Renewal Terms, with a final 


Renewal Term ending on ____________, 20__, as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. 


“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 


“Special Counsel” means Lozano Smith . 


“State” means the State of California. 


“Taxable Rate” means, for each day that the interest component of Rental Payments is 


taxable for Federal income tax purposes, an interest rate equal to the Contract Rate plus a rate 


sufficient such that the total interest to be paid on any Rental Payment Date would, after such 


interest was reduced by the amount of any Federal, state or local income tax (including any interest, 


penalties or additions to tax) actually imposed thereon, equal the amount of interest otherwise due 


to Lessor. 


“Vendor” means the manufacturer, installer or supplier of the Equipment or any other 


person as well as the agents or dealers of the manufacturer, installer or supplier with whom Lessee 


arranged Lessee’s acquisition, installation, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment, and 


includes, without limitation, Climatec, LLC (“Climatec”). 


“Vendor Agreement” means any contract entered into by Lessee and any Vendor for the 


acquisition, installation, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment, and includes, without 


limitation, the Climatec  Contract. 


ARTICLE II 


 Section 2.01. Representations and Covenants of Lessee.  Lessee represents, covenants and 


warrants for the benefit of Lessor on the date hereof as follows: 


 (a) Lessee is, both individually and collectively, a political subdivision of the 


State within the meaning of Section 103(c) of the Code, duly organized and existing under 


the constitution and laws of the State, with full power and authority to enter into the Related 


Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby and to perform all of its obligations 


thereunder.  The Santa Cruz City Schools are governed by a common Board. The 


Elementary School District and the High School District remain legally separate and 


independent for certain purposes, but operate as a common administration school district. 


The legal authority for the Elementary School District and the High School District to 


operate together as the Santa Cruz City Schools is contained in Article 1.5 of Chapter 2 of 


Part 21 of Division 3 of Title 2 (commencing with section 35110) of the California 


Education Code (the “Common Administration Law”). In addition to the combined 


operations and administration, the Elementary School District and the High School District 


have combined their finances, including the general fund, except that each independently 


retains its own capital facilities funds (developer fees), bond funds and capital assets. The 


Rental Payments are payable out of the combined general fund of the Santa Cruz City 


Schools. Under the Common Administration Law, the Elementary School District and the 


260/371







-5- 


High School District are deemed a single school district for all purposes including, but not 


limited to, budget and personnel matters. However, the Elementary School District and the 


High School District continue to be treated as separate districts for purposes of (a) 


computing State apportionments and allowances, (b) allocations of local property tax 


revenue, (c) holding separate title to property, and (d) any indebtedness remains the 


indebtedness of each separate district. 


 (b) Lessee, both individually and collectively, has duly authorized the 


execution and delivery of the Related Documents by proper action of its governing body 


at a meeting duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite 


quorum of the members thereof, or by other appropriate official approval, and all 


requirements have been met and procedures have occurred in order to ensure the validity 


and enforceability of the Related Documents. 


 (c) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the 


lapse of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof.  No 


Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with respect to this Agreement. 


 (d) Lessee will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep 


in full force and effect its existence, both individually and collectively, as a school district 


of the State. 


 (e) Lessee has complied, both individually and collectively, with such 


procurement and public bidding requirements as may be applicable to the Related 


Documents and the acquisition and installation by Lessee of the Equipment. 


 (f) During the Lease Term, the Equipment will be used by Lessee, both 


individually and collectively, only for the purpose of performing essential governmental or 


proprietary functions of Lessee consistent with the permissible scope of Lessee’s authority.  


Lessee does not intend to sell or otherwise dispose of the Equipment or any interest therein 


prior to the last Rental Payment (including all Renewal Terms) scheduled to be paid 


hereunder. 


 (g) Lessee has kept, and throughout the Lease Term shall keep, both individually 


and collectively,  its books and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting 


principles and practices consistently applied, and shall deliver to Lessor (i) annual audited 


financial statements (including (1) a balance sheet, (2) statement of revenues, expenses and 


changes in fund balances for budget and actual, (3) statement of cash flows, and 


(4) footnotes, schedules and attachments to the financial statements) within two hundred 


seventy (270) days after the end of its fiscal year, (ii) such other financial statements and 


information as Lessor may reasonably request, and (iii) upon Lessor’s request, its annual 


budget for any prior or current fiscal year or for the following fiscal year when approved but 


not later than thirty (30) days prior to the end of its current fiscal year.  The financial 


statements described in this subsection (g)(i) shall be accompanied by an unqualified opinion 


of Lessee’s independent auditor.  Credit information relating to Lessee may be disseminated 


among Lessor and any of its affiliates and any of their respective successors and assigns. 


261/371







-6- 


 (h) Lessee has an immediate need for the Equipment and expects to make 


immediate use of the Equipment.  Lessee’s need for the Equipment is not temporary and 


Lessee does not expect the need for any item of the Equipment to diminish during the 


Scheduled Term. 


 (i) The payment of the Rental Payments or any portion thereof is not (under 


the terms of this Agreement or any underlying arrangement) directly or indirectly 


(x) secured by any interest in property used or to be used in any activity carried on by any 


person other than a state or local governmental unit or payments in respect of such property; 


or (y) on a present value basis, derived from payments (whether or not to Lessee) in respect 


of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used in any activity carried on by any person 


other than a state or local governmental unit.  The Equipment will not be used, directly or 


indirectly, in any activity carried on by any person other than a state or local governmental 


unit.  No portion of the Acquisition Amount will be used, directly or indirectly, to make or 


finance loans to any person other than Lessee.  Lessee has not entered into any management 


or other service contract with respect to the use and operation of the Equipment. 


 (j) There is no pending litigation, tax claim, proceeding or dispute that may 


adversely affect Lessee’s financial condition or impairs its ability to perform its obligations 


under the Related Documents.  Lessee, both individually and collectively, will, at its 


expense, maintain its legal existence and do any further act and execute, acknowledge, 


deliver, file, register and record any further documents Lessor may reasonably request in 


order to protect Lessor’s first priority security interest in the Equipment and the Escrow 


Account and Lessor’s rights and benefits under the Related Documents. 


 (k) Lessee (or either the Elementary School District or the High School District) 


is the fee owner of the real estate where the Equipment is and will be located (the “Real 


Property”) and has good and marketable title thereto, and there exists no mortgage, pledge, 


Lien, security interest, charge or other encumbrance of any nature whatsoever on or with 


respect to such Real Property.  In the event any lien, encumbrance, restriction, asserted 


encumbrance, claim, dispute or other issue exists or arises with respect to the Lessee’s legal 


title to or valid and marketable, beneficial use and enjoyment of the Real Property or 


impairs or adversely impacts Lessor’s right, title or interest in the Equipment or any of 


Lessor’s rights or remedies under this Agreement with respect to the Equipment (each of 


the foregoing referred to as a “Real Property Issue”), Lessee (and/or the Elementary 


School District and/or the High School District) will take all steps necessary to promptly 


quiet, resolve and/or eliminate such Real Property Issue to the satisfaction of Lessor and 


ensure that Lessee and Lessor have adequate access to and use of (including beneficial use 


and enjoyment of) the Real Property for all purposes of the Equipment contemplated herein 


and Lessee shall ensure that its fee interest in the Real Property and Lessor’s right, title or 


interest in the Equipment and rights or remedies under this Agreement with respect to the 


Equipment remain free and clear of Real Property Issues. 


 (l) No lease, rental agreement, lease-purchase agreement, payment agreement 


or contract for purchase to which Lessee (or either the Elementary School District or the 


High School District) has been a party at any time has been terminated by Lessee as a result 


262/371







-7- 


of insufficient funds being appropriated in any fiscal year. No event has occurred which 


would constitute an event of default under any debt, revenue bond or obligation which 


Lessee has issued during the past ten (10) years. 


 (m) Lessee represents to Lessor that that it (and each of the Elementary School 


District and the High School District) has adopted a debt policy in compliance with SB 


1029 and Section 8855 of the Government Code of California et seq. and covenants that it 


shall comply with Section 8855 of the Government Code of California et seq. as amended 


(the “CDIAC Act”) throughout the Lease Term, including (i) preparing, submitting and 


filing the report of the proposed debt issuance relating to this Agreement by the method 


required by the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC”), (ii) 


preparing, submitting and filing the report of final sale (and accompanying documents) 


relating to this Agreement by the method required by CDIAC, (iii) submitting an annual 


report relating to the  report of final sale for this Agreement by the method required by 


CDIAC, and (iv) paying all fees charged by CDIAC or the CDIAC Act relating to this 


Agreement, including, but not limited to the fee in an amount equal to one-fortieth of one 


percent of the  Acquisition Amount or as otherwise prescribed by the CDIAC Act.   


 (n) As of the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement, none of Lessee, 


the Elementary School District or the High School District, individually or collectively, 


has granted any Lien on the Collateral that would be senior in priority to, or pari passu 


with, the first priority Lien on the Collateral granted to Lessor under Section 6.02 of this 


Agreement. 


 (o) The street addresses and legal descriptions affixed to the UCC-1 financing 


statements and fixture filings filed and recorded pursuant to Section 3.04(vi), Section 6.01 


and/or Section 6.02 hereof are true, accurate and complete street addresses and legal 


descriptions of all the properties on which the Equipment is located or to be installed.  In 


the event any street address, legal description, other information, UCC-1 financing 


statement or fixture filing (or continuations or amendments thereof) filed or recorded with 


respect to the Lessor’s interests in the Equipment or any of the real property on which the 


Equipment is located or to be installed reflects any incorrect or incomplete real property 


legal description, equipment description or other information, Lessee (and/or the 


Elementary School District and/or the High School District)  shall take all steps necessary 


(with the Lessor’s prior written approval) to promptly correct any errors or deficiencies 


with respect to such legal descriptions, street address, other information, UCC-1 financing 


statements and/or fixture filings and to protect Lessor’s interests in the Equipment. 


 (p) All financial statements and other information delivered to Lessor by the 


Lessee (and each of the Elementary School District and the High School District) is correct 


as of the date thereof.  Since June 30, 2020, no material adverse change has occurred in the 


Lessee’s financial condition that would adversely affect the Lessee’s ability to perform its 


obligations hereunder. 


 (q) Lessee will pay all Equipment Costs and costs of issuance in excess of the 


Acquisition Amount available therefor out of its own funds.  Lessor shall not have any 


263/371







-8- 


responsibility to pay amounts for any Equipment Costs or costs of issuance with respect to 


the Related Documents or the Equipment that individually or collectively exceed the 


Acquisition Amount. 


 (r) Lessee has complied with California Government Code Section 4217.10 et 


seq., Section 17450 of the Education Code of the State of California, the Common 


Administration Law and other applicable law pertaining to the authorization of this 


Agreement and the financing and acquisition by the Lessee of the Equipment.      


  (s) To the extent applicable, as determined by Lessee in its sole discretion, 


Lessee has complied with the requirements of California Government Code Section 5852.1 


et seq. in connection with this Agreement and the Equipment. 


 (t) In connection with the Lessee’s compliance with any continuing disclosure 


undertakings (each, a “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) entered into by the Lessee (or 


either the Elementary School District or the High School District) pursuant to SEC 


Rule 15c2-12 promulgated pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as 


amended (the “Rule”), the Lessee (or either the Elementary School District and/or the High 


School District) may be required to file with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s 


Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or its successor (“EMMA”), notice of its 


incurrence of its obligations under the Related Documents and notice of any 


accommodation, waiver, amendment, modification of terms or other similar events 


reflecting financial difficulties in connection with the Related Documents, in each case 


including posting a full copy thereof or a description of the material terms thereof (each 


such posting, an “EMMA Posting”).  Except to the extent required by applicable law, 


including the Rule, none of the Lessee, the Elementary School District or the High School 


District, individually or collectively, shall file or submit or permit the filing or submission 


of any EMMA Posting that includes the following unredacted confidential information 


about the Lessor or its affiliates and the Escrow Agent in any portion of such EMMA 


Posting:  address and account information of the Lessor or its affiliates and the Escrow 


Agent; e-mail addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, names and signatures of 


officers, employees and signatories of the Lessor or its affiliates and the Escrow Agent; 


and the form of Disbursement Request that is attached to the Escrow Agreement.   


The Lessee  (and each of the Elementary School District and the High School District) 


acknowledges and agrees that the Lessor and its affiliates are not responsible for the 


Lessee’s or any other entity’s (including, but not limited to, any 


broker-dealer’s) compliance or noncompliance (or any claims, losses or liabilities arising 


therefrom) with the Rule, any Continuing Disclosure Agreement or any applicable 


securities or other laws, including but not limited to those relating to the Rule. 


ARTICLE III 


 Section 3.01. Lease of Equipment.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 


Lessor agrees to provide the Acquisition Amount to acquire and install the Equipment.  Lessor 


hereby demises, leases and transfers to Lessee, and Lessee hereby acquires, rents and leases from 


264/371







-9- 


Lessor, the Equipment.  The Lease Term may be continued, solely at the option of the common 


Board of Lessee, at the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for the next succeeding 


Renewal Term up to the maximum Scheduled Term as set forth in the Payment Schedule.  At the 


end of the Original Term and at the end of each Renewal Term until the maximum Scheduled 


Term has been completed, the common Board of Lessee shall be deemed to have exercised its 


option to continue this Agreement for the next Renewal Term unless Lessee shall have terminated 


this Agreement pursuant to Section 3.03 or Section 10.01 of this Agreement.  The terms and 


conditions during any Renewal Term shall be the same as the terms and conditions during the 


Original Term, except that the Rental Payments shall be as provided in the Payment Schedule. 


 Section 3.02. Continuation of Lease Term.  Lessee intends, subject to Section 3.03 hereof, 


to continue the Lease Term through the Original Term and all Renewal Terms and to pay the 


Rental Payments due hereunder.  Lessee affirms that sufficient funds are legally available to pay 


all Rental Payments when due during the current fiscal year, and Lessee reasonably believes that 


an amount sufficient to make all Rental Payments during the entire Scheduled Term can be 


obtained from legally available funds of Lessee.  Lessee further intends to do all things lawfully 


within its power to obtain and maintain funds sufficient and available to discharge its obligation 


to make Rental Payments due hereunder, including making provision for such payments to the 


extent necessary in each budget or appropriation request submitted and adopted in accordance with 


applicable provisions of law and covenants to submit such requests for appropriation as needed.  


Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision whether or not to budget and appropriate funds or to 


extend the Lease Term for any Renewal Term is within the sole discretion of the common Board 


of Lessee. 


 Section 3.03. Non-appropriation. Lessee is obligated only to pay such Rental Payments as 


may lawfully be made during Lessee’s then current fiscal year from funds budgeted and 


appropriated for that purpose.  Should the common Board of Lessee fail to budget, appropriate or 


otherwise make available funds to pay Rental Payments following the then current Original Term 


or Renewal Term, this Agreement shall be deemed terminated at the end of the then current 


Original Term or Renewal Term.  Lessee agrees to deliver notice to Lessor of such termination 


promptly after any decision to non-appropriate is made, but failure to give such notice shall not 


extend the term beyond such Original Term or Renewal Term.  If this Agreement is terminated in 


accordance with this Section 3.03, Lessee agrees to cease use of the Equipment and peaceably 


remove and deliver to Lessor, at Lessee’s sole expense (from legally available funds), the 


Equipment to Lessor at the location(s) to be specified by Lessor. 


 Section 3.04. Conditions to Lessor’s Performance.  (a) As a prerequisite to the performance 


by Lessor of any of its obligations under this Agreement, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor, in form 


and substance satisfactory to Lessor, the following: 


 (i) An Escrow Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I, 


satisfactory to Lessor and executed by Lessee and the Escrow Agent and a Vendor 


Agreement satisfactory to Lessor and executed by Lessee and the Vendor; 


 (ii) A certified copy of a resolution, ordinance or other official action of 


Lessee’s governing body, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-1, 


265/371







-10- 


authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement and 


performance by Lessee of its obligations under this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement; 


 (iii) A Certificate completed and executed by the Clerk or Secretary or other 


comparable officer of Lessee, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-2, 


completed to the satisfaction of Lessor; 


 (iv) Opinions of Special Counsel and general counsel to Lessee, which in the 


aggregate opine on the matters set forth in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D and which 


are otherwise satisfactory to Lessor; 


 (v) Evidence of insurance as required by Section 7.02 hereof; 


 (vi) All documents, including financing statements, affidavits, notices and 


similar instruments which Lessor deems necessary or appropriate at that time pursuant to 


Section 6.02 hereof; 


 (vii) A waiver or waivers of interest in the Equipment from any mortgagee or 


any other party having an interest in the real estate on which the Equipment will be located 


and/or landlord of the real estate on which the Equipment will be located and amendments 


and agreements releasing liens and encumbrances, if any, on the real property where the 


Equipment is and will be located; 


 (viii) Reserved; 


 (ix) A copy of the Form 8038-G, fully completed by Special Counsel as paid 


preparer and executed by Lessee; 


 (x) In the event that Lessee is to be reimbursed for expenditures that it has paid 


more than sixty (60) days prior to the Commencement Date, evidence of the adoption of a 


reimbursement resolution or other official action covering the reimbursement from tax 


exempt proceeds of expenditures incurred not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date 


of such resolution; 


 (xi) Copies of invoices (and proofs of payment of such invoices, if Lessee seeks 


reimbursement) and bills of sale (if title to Equipment has passed to Lessee), to the extent 


required by Section 5.01(b) hereof; 


 (xii) Wire instructions for payments to be made to Vendors and Form W-9 from 


each such Vendor;   


 (xiii) A certified copy of any Surety Bond satisfying the conditions set forth in 


Section 7.04 hereof, or, at Lessor’s sole discretion, such Surety Bonds may be provided 


after the Commencement Date, provided however, that no “Disbursement Request” 


pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be authorized by Lessor until such Surety Bonds 


satisfying the conditions set forth in Section 7.04 have been delivered to Lessor; and 


266/371







-11- 


 (xiv) Such other items reasonably required by Lessor. 


 (b) In addition to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in subsection (a) of this 


Section 3.04, the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations under the Related Documents 


shall be subject to: (i) no Material Adverse Change having occurred since the date of this 


Agreement, (ii) no Event of Default having occurred and then be continuing and (iii) no Event of 


Non-appropriation having occurred or being threatened with respect to this Agreement. 


 (c) Subject to satisfaction of the foregoing, Lessor will deposit the Acquisition Amount 


with the Escrow Agent to be held and disbursed pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. 


 Section 3.05. Evidence of Filing Form 8038-G.  As soon as it is available, Lessee shall 


provide to Lessor evidence that it, or its paid preparer, has filed the Form 8038-G for this 


Agreement with the Internal Revenue Service by delivering to Lessor proof of mailing such Form 


8038-G.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, it shall not be an Event of 


Default hereunder if Lessee does not provide to Lessor evidence that it (or its paid preparer) filed 


the Form 8038-G for this Agreement with the Internal Revenue Service. 


ARTICLE IV 


 Section 4.01. Rental Payments.  Subject to Section 3.03 of this Agreement, Lessee shall 


promptly pay Rental Payments, in lawful money of the United States of America, to Lessor on the 


Rental Payment Dates and in such amounts as provided in the Payment Schedule.  If any Rental 


Payment or other amount payable hereunder is not paid within ten (10) days of its due date, Lessee 


shall pay an administrative late charge of five percent (5%) of the amount not timely paid or the 


maximum amount permitted by law, whichever is less.  Lessee shall not permit the Federal 


Government to guarantee any Rental Payments under this Agreement.  Rental Payments consist of 


principal and interest components as more fully detailed on the Payment Schedule, the interest on 


which begins to accrue as of the Commencement Date.     


 Section 4.02. Interest and Principal Components.  A portion of each Rental Payment is 


paid as, and represents payment of, interest, and the balance of each Rental Payment is paid as, 


and represents payment of, principal as more fully detailed on the Payment Schedule. 


 Section 4.03. Rental Payments to Constitute a Current Expense of Lessee.  Lessor and 


Lessee understand and intend that the obligation of Lessee to pay Rental Payments shall constitute 


a current expense of Lessee payable solely from its general fund or other funds that are legally 


available for that purpose and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in 


contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning 


the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of 


the general tax revenues, funds or moneys of Lessee. 


 Section 4.04. Rental Payments to be Unconditional.  Except as provided in Section 3.03 of 


this Agreement, the obligations of Lessee to make Rental Payments and to perform and observe 


the other covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be absolute and 


unconditional in all events without abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense, for any 


267/371







-12- 


reason, including without limitation any failure of the Equipment, disputes with the Lessor or the 


Vendor of any Equipment, any defects, malfunctions, breakdowns or infirmities in the Equipment 


or any accident, condemnation or unforeseen circumstances, or failure of any Vendor to deliver 


any Equipment or otherwise perform any of its obligations for whatever reason, including 


bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or any similar event with respect to any Vendor or under 


any Vendor Agreement. 


 Section 4.05. Tax Covenants.  Lessee agrees that it will not take any action that would cause 


the interest component of Rental Payments to be or to become ineligible for the exclusion from 


gross income of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes, nor will it omit to 


take or cause to be taken, in a timely manner, any action, which omission would cause the interest 


component of Rental Payments to be or to become ineligible for the exclusion from gross income 


of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes.  In connection with the foregoing, 


Lessee hereby agrees that (a) so long as any Rental Payments remain unpaid, moneys on deposit 


in the Escrow Account shall not be used in a manner that will cause this Agreement to be classified 


as an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code; and (b) Lessee shall 


rebate, from funds legally available for the purpose, an amount equal to excess earnings on the 


Escrow Account to the Federal Government if required by, and in accordance with, Section 148(f) 


of the Code, and make the determinations and maintain the records required by the Code. 


 Section 4.06. Event of Taxability.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Taxability, the 


interest component of Rental Payments and any charge on Rental Payments or other amounts 


payable based on the Contract Rate shall have accrued and be payable at the Taxable Rate 


retroactive to the date as of which the interest component is determined by the Internal Revenue 


Service to be includible in the gross income of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax 


purposes (which retroactive date shall be the earliest date as of which the interest component of 


any Rental Payment is deemed includible in the gross income of the owner or owners thereof for 


Federal income tax purposes, which may be earlier than the date of delivery of such determination 


by the Internal Revenue Service), and Lessee will pay such additional amount as will result in the 


owner receiving the interest component at the Taxable Rate. 


For purposes of this Section, “Event of Taxability” means the circumstance of the interest 


component of any Rental Payment paid or payable pursuant to this Agreement becoming includible 


for Federal income tax purposes in an owner’s gross income as a consequence of any act, omission 


or event whatsoever, including but not limited to the matters described in the immediately 


succeeding sentence, and regardless of whether the same was within or beyond the control of 


Lessee.  An Event of Taxability shall be presumed to have occurred upon (a) the receipt by Lessor 


or Lessee of an original or a copy of an Internal Revenue Service Technical Advice Memorandum 


or Statutory Notice of Deficiency or other written correspondence which legally holds that the 


interest component of any Rental Payment is includable in the gross income of the owner thereof; 


(b) the issuance of any public or private ruling of the Internal Revenue Service that the interest 


component of any Rental Payment is includable in the gross income of the owner thereof; or 


(c) receipt by Lessor or Lessee of a written opinion of a nationally recognized firm of attorneys 


experienced in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states 


and their political subdivisions, selected by Lessor and acceptable to Lessee, to the effect that the 


interest component of any Rental Payment has become includable in the gross income of the owner 


268/371







-13- 


thereof for Federal income tax purposes.  For all purposes of this definition, an Event of Taxability 


shall be deemed to occur on the date as of which the interest component of any Rental Payment is 


deemed includable in the gross income of the owner thereof for Federal income tax purposes. 


 Section 4.07. Mandatory Prepayment. (a) Any funds not applied to Equipment Costs and 


remaining in the Escrow Account on the earliest of (i) the expiration of the Acquisition Period, (ii) 


the date on which Lessee delivers to the Lessor the executed Disbursement Request to effect the 


final disbursement to pay (or reimburse) Equipment Costs from the Escrow Account or (iii) a 


termination of the Escrow Account as provided in the Escrow Agreement shall be applied by 


Lessor on each successive Rental Payment Date thereafter to pay all or a portion of the Rental 


Payment due and owing in the succeeding twelve (12) months and any remaining amounts shall 


be applied by Lessor as prepayment to the applicable unpaid Principal Portion of Rental Payments  


owing hereunder in the inverse order of the Rental Payment Dates at a price of 102% of such 


prepaid Principal Portion plus accrued interest thereon to the prepayment date. 


 (b) In connection with any prepayment pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section 4.07, 


Lessee shall pay the prepayment premium and interest portion of Rental Payments accrued to the 


prepayment date on such principal portion to be prepaid from funds legally available to Lessee for 


that purpose, but not from funds remaining in the Escrow Account pursuant to subsection (a) of 


this Section 4.07. 


 (c) Lessee will give Lessor notice of any such prepayment in accordance with this 


Section 4.07 not less than 60 days in advance of the prepayment date. 


 (d) In connection with any partial prepayment of Rental Payments, Lessor shall prepare 


a new Payment Schedule and deliver the same to the Lessee, which shall be binding, absent 


manifest error. 


ARTICLE V 


 Section 5.01. Acquisition, Delivery, Installation and Acceptance of Equipment.  (a) Lessee 


shall order the Equipment to be acquired and financed hereunder, cause the Equipment to be 


delivered and installed at the location specified in the Equipment Schedule and pay any and all 


delivery and installation costs and other Equipment Costs in connection therewith.  When the 


Equipment has been delivered and installed, Lessee shall promptly accept such Equipment and 


evidence said acceptance by executing and delivering Disbursement Requests to the Lessor 


pursuant to the Escrow Agreement for the purpose of effecting disbursements from the Escrow 


Account to pay (or reimburse) Equipment Costs for the Equipment so acquired and installed.  In 


connection with the execution and delivery by Lessee to Lessor of the final Disbursement Request, 


Lessee shall deliver to Lessor a “Final Acceptance Certificate” in the form attached hereto as 


Exhibit E. 


 (b) Lessee shall deliver to Lessor together with each Disbursement Request copies of 


invoices (and proof of payment of such invoices if Lessee seeks reimbursement for prior 


expenditures) and bills of sale or other evidence of title transfer to Lessee relating to each item of 


Equipment accepted by Lessee as evidenced by such Disbursement Request.  Once approved, 


269/371







-14- 


Lessor shall deliver such Disbursement Request to the Escrow Agent for disbursement from the 


Escrow Account in accordance with the Escrow Agreement.   


 Section 5.02. Quiet Enjoyment of Equipment.  So long as no Event of Default and no Event 


of Non-appropriation exists hereunder, neither Lessor nor any entity claiming by, through or under 


Lessor, shall interfere with Lessee’s quiet use and enjoyment of the Equipment during the Lease 


Term. 


 Section 5.03. Location; Inspection.  Once installed, no item of the Equipment will be 


moved or relocated from the location specified for it in the Equipment Schedule without Lessor’s 


prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Lessor shall have the 


right at all reasonable times during regular business hours to enter into and upon the property where 


the Equipment is located for the purpose of inspecting the Equipment. 


 Section 5.04. Use and Maintenance of the Equipment.  Lessee shall not install, use, operate 


or maintain the Equipment (or cause the Equipment to be installed, used, operated or maintained) 


improperly, carelessly, in violation of any applicable law or in a manner contrary to that 


contemplated hereby.  Lessee shall provide all permits and licenses, if any, necessary for the 


installation and operation of the Equipment.  In addition, Lessee agrees to comply in all respects 


with all applicable laws, regulations and rulings of any legislative, executive, administrative, or 


judicial body, including, without limitation, all anti-money laundering laws and regulations; 


provided that Lessee may contest in good faith the validity or application of any such law, 


regulation or ruling in any reasonable manner that does not, in the opinion of Lessor, adversely 


affect the interest of Lessor in and to the Equipment or its interest or rights hereunder. 


Lessee agrees that it shall (a) maintain, preserve, and keep the Equipment in good repair 


and working order, in a condition comparable to that recommended by the manufacturer; 


(b) proceed promptly, at its expense, to protect its rights and exercise its remedies under any 


warranty then in effect with respect to the Equipment; and (c) replace or rebuild any component 


of the Equipment that becomes permanently unfit for normal use or inoperable during the Lease 


Term (herein, the “Inoperable Component”) in order to keep the Equipment as a whole in good 


repair and working order during the Lease Term.  Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor in writing 


when any component of the Equipment is reasonably expected within forty-five (45) days to 


become an Inoperable Component.  Lessee shall promptly replace or rebuild the Inoperable 


Component with a similar component of comparable or improved make and model that has at least 


the equivalent value and utility of the Inoperable Component, a remaining useful life of no less 


than the remaining Scheduled Term and such replacement or rebuilt component shall be in good 


operating condition. Lessor shall have no responsibility to maintain, repair or make improvements 


or additions to the Equipment.  In all cases, Lessee agrees to pay any costs necessary for the 


manufacturer to re-certify the Equipment as eligible for manufacturer’s maintenance upon the 


return of the Equipment to Lessor as provided for in Sections 3.03 and 12.02(b) of this Agreement. 


Lessee shall not alter any item of Equipment or install any accessory, equipment or device 


on an item of Equipment if that would impair any applicable warranty, the originally intended 


function or the value of that Equipment.  All repairs, parts, accessories, equipment and devices 


270/371







-15- 


furnished, affixed to or installed on any Equipment, excluding temporary replacements, shall 


thereupon become subject to the security interest of Lessor. 


ARTICLE VI 


 Section 6.01. Title to the Equipment.  During the Lease Term, so long as Lessee is not in 


default under Article XII hereof and an Event of Non-appropriation has not occurred, all right, title 


and interest in and to each item of the Equipment shall be vested in Lessee immediately upon its 


acceptance of each item of Equipment, subject to the terms and conditions hereof.  Lessee shall at 


all times protect and defend, at its own cost and expense, its title, and Lessor’s first priority security 


interest, in and to the Equipment (and Lessor’s other Collateral as defined in Section 6.02 hereof) 


from and against all claims, Liens and legal processes of its creditors, and keep all Equipment (and 


such other Collateral) free and clear of all such claims, Liens and processes.  Lessee will, at its 


expense, do any further act and execute, acknowledge, deliver, file, register and record any further 


documents the Lessor may reasonably request in order to protect Lessor’s first priority security 


interest in the Collateral.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or upon termination of this 


Agreement pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof, full and unencumbered legal title to the Equipment 


shall, at Lessor’s option, pass to Lessor, and Lessee shall have no further interest therein.  In 


addition, upon the occurrence of such an Event of Default or such termination, Lessee shall execute 


and deliver to Lessor such documents as Lessor may request to evidence the passage of such legal 


title to Lessor and the termination of Lessee’s interest therein, and upon request by Lessor shall 


deliver possession of the Equipment to Lessor in accordance with Section 3.03 or 12.02 of this 


Agreement, as applicable.  Upon payment of all amounts due and owing hereunder by Lessee in 


accordance with Section 10.01 hereof, Lessor’s security interest or other interest in the Equipment 


shall terminate, and Lessor shall execute and deliver to Lessee such documents as Lessee may 


reasonably request to evidence the termination of Lessor’s security interest in the Equipment. 


 Section 6.02. Security Interest.  As additional security for the payment and performance of 


all of Lessee’s obligations hereunder, Lessee hereby grants to Lessor a first priority security 


interest constituting a first Lien on (a) the Equipment, together with all replacements, repairs, 


restorations, modifications and improvements thereof or thereto and all accessories, equipment, 


parts and appurtenances appertaining or attached to any of the Equipment, and all substitutions, 


renewals, or replacements of and additions, improvements, accessions and accumulations to any 


and all of such Equipment, together with all the rents, issues, income, profits, proceeds and avails 


therefrom, (b) moneys and investments held from time to time in the Escrow Account, (c) all 


accounts, chattel paper, deposit accounts, documents, instruments, general intangibles and 


investment property (including any securities accounts and security entitlements relating thereto) 


evidenced by or arising out of or otherwise relating to the foregoing collateral described in clauses 


(a) and (b) above, as such terms are defined in Article 9 of the California Commercial Code, and 


(d) any and all proceeds of any and all of the foregoing, including, without limitation, insurance 


proceeds (collectively, the “Collateral”).  Lessee authorizes Lessor to file (and Lessee agrees to 


execute, if applicable) such notices of assignment, chattel mortgages, financing statements and 


other documents, in form satisfactory to Lessor, which Lessor deems necessary or appropriate to 


establish and maintain Lessor’s security interest in the Collateral, including, without limitation, 


such financing statements with respect to personal property and fixtures under Article 9 of the 


California Commercial Code and treating such Article 9 as applicable to entities such as Lessee. 


271/371







-16- 


 Section 6.03. Personal Property, No Encumbrances.  Lessee agrees that the Equipment is 


deemed to be and will remain personal property, and will not be deemed to be affixed to or a part 


of the real estate on which it may be situated, notwithstanding that the Equipment or any part 


thereof may be or hereafter become in any manner physically affixed or attached to real estate or 


any building thereon.  Lessee shall not create, incur, assume or permit to exist any mortgage, 


pledge, Lien, security interest, charge or other encumbrance of any nature whatsoever on any of 


the real estate where the Equipment is or will be located or enter into any agreement to sell or 


assign or enter into any sale/leaseback arrangement of such real estate without the prior written 


consent of Lessor; provided, that if Lessor or its assigns is furnished with a waiver of interest in 


the Equipment acceptable to Lessor or its assigns in their respective discretion from any party 


taking an interest in any such real estate prior to such interest taking effect, such consent shall not 


be unreasonably withheld. 


ARTICLE VII 


 Section 7.01. Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges.  Lessee 


shall keep the Equipment free of all levies, Liens, and encumbrances except those created by this 


Agreement.  The parties to this Agreement contemplate that the Equipment will be used for a 


governmental or proprietary purpose of Lessee and that the Equipment will therefore be exempt 


from all property taxes.  If the lease, sale, purchase, operation, use, possession or acquisition of 


any Equipment is nevertheless determined to be subject to taxation, Lessee shall pay when due all 


sales and other taxes, special assessments, governmental and other charges of any kind that are at 


any time lawfully assessed or levied against or with respect to the Equipment, the Rental Payments 


or any part of either thereof, or which become due during the Lease Term, whether assessed against 


Lessee or Lessor.  Lessee shall pay all utility and other charges incurred in the operation, use and 


maintenance of the Equipment.  Lessee shall pay such taxes, assessments or charges as the same 


may become due; provided that, with respect to any such taxes, assessments or charges that may 


lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, Lessee shall be obligated to pay only such 


installments as accrue during the Lease Term.  Lessor will not claim ownership of the Equipment 


under this Agreement for the purposes of any tax credits, benefits or deductions with respect to 


such Equipment.  Lessee shall pay the fee charged by the California Debt and Investment Advisory 


Commission with respect to this Agreement pursuant to Section 8856 (or any successor provision) 


of the California Government Code. 


 Section 7.02. Insurance.  Lessee shall during the Lease Term maintain or cause to be 


maintained (a) casualty insurance naming Lessor and its assigns as loss payee and insuring the 


Equipment against loss or damage by fire and all other risks covered by the standard extended 


coverage endorsement then in use in the State, and any other risks reasonably required by Lessor, 


in an amount at least equal to the greater of (i) the then applicable Prepayment Price of the 


Equipment or (ii) the replacement cost of the Equipment; (b) liability insurance naming Lessor 


and its assigns as additional insured that protects Lessor from liability with limits of at least 


$5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage coverage (such liability 


insurance coverage may be in a combination of primary general liability and/or excess liability 


umbrella coverage), and in all events under clauses (a) and (b) above issued in form and amount 


satisfactory to Lessor and by an insurance company that is authorized to do business in the State 


and having a financial strength rating by A.M. Best Company of “A-” or better; and (c) worker’s 


272/371







-17- 


compensation coverage as required by the laws of the State.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 


Lessee may self-insure against the risks described in clauses (a) and/or (b) through a government 


pooling arrangement, self-funded loss reserves, risk retention program or other self-insurance 


program, in each case with Lessor’s prior written consent (which Lessor may grant, withhold or 


deny in its sole discretion) and provided that Lessee has delivered to Lessor such information as 


Lessor may request with respect to the adequacy of such self-insurance to cover the risks proposed 


to be self-insured and otherwise in form and substance acceptable to Lessor.  In the event Lessee 


is permitted, at Lessor’s sole discretion, to self-insure as provided in this Section 7.02, Lessee shall 


provide to Lessor a self-insurance letter in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit F.  


Lessee shall furnish to Lessor evidence of such insurance or self-insurance coverage throughout 


the Lease Term.  Lessee shall not cancel or modify such insurance or self-insurance coverage in 


any way that would affect the interests of Lessor without first giving written notice thereof to 


Lessor at least thirty (30) days in advance of such cancellation or modification. 


 Section 7.03. Risk of Loss.  Whether or not covered by insurance or self-insurance, Lessee 


hereby assumes all risk of loss of, or damage to and liability related to injury or damage to any 


persons or property arising from the Equipment from any cause whatsoever, and no such loss of 


or damage to or liability arising from the Equipment shall relieve Lessee of the obligation to make 


the Rental Payments or to perform any other obligation under this Agreement.  Whether or not 


covered by insurance or self-insurance, Lessee hereby agrees to reimburse Lessor (to the fullest 


extent permitted by applicable law, but only from legally available funds) for any and all liabilities, 


obligations, losses, costs, claims, taxes or damages suffered or incurred by Lessor, regardless of 


the cause thereof and all expenses incurred in connection therewith (including, without limitation, 


counsel fees and expenses, and penalties connected therewith imposed on interest received) arising 


out of or as a result of (a) entering into this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated 


hereby, (b) the ordering, acquisition, ownership use, operation, condition, purchase, delivery, 


acceptance, rejection, storage or return of any item of the Equipment, (c) any accident in 


connection with the operation, use, condition, possession, storage or return of any item of the 


Equipment resulting in damage to property or injury to or death to any person, and/or (d) the breach 


of any covenant of Lessee under or in connection with this Agreement or any material 


misrepresentation provided by Lessee under or in connection with this Agreement.  The provisions 


of this Section 7.03 shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all 


obligations under this Agreement or the termination of the Lease Term for any reason. 


 Section 7.04. Surety Bonds; Lessee to Pursue Remedies Against Contractors and 


Sub-Contractors and Their Sureties.  Lessee shall secure from each Vendor directly employed by 


Lessee in connection with the acquisition, construction, installation, improvement or equipping of 


the Equipment, a payment and performance bond (“Surety Bond”) executed by a surety company 


authorized to do business in the State, having a financial strength rating by A.M. Best Company 


of “A-” or better, and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor and naming Lessor as a co-obligee in a sum 


equal to the entire amount to become payable under each Vendor Agreement.  Each bond shall be 


conditioned on the completion of the work in accordance with the plans and specifications for the 


Equipment and upon payment of all claims of subcontractors and suppliers.  Lessee shall cause the 


surety company to add Lessor as a co-obligee on each Surety Bond, and shall deliver a certified 


copy of each Surety Bond to Lessor promptly upon receipt thereof by Lessee.  Any proceeds from 


a Surety Bond shall be applied in accordance with such Surety Bond to the payment and 


273/371







-18- 


performance of the Vendor’s obligations in accordance with the related Vendor Agreement and, if 


for whatever reason such proceeds are not so applied, first to amounts due Lessor under this 


Agreement, and any remaining amounts shall be payable to Lessee. 


In the event of a material default by any Vendor under any Vendor Agreement in 


connection with the acquisition, construction, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment or 


in the event of a material breach of warranty with respect to any material workmanship or 


performance guaranty with respect to the Equipment, Lessee will promptly proceed to exhaust its 


remedies against the Vendor in default.  Lessee shall advise Lessor of the steps it intends to take 


in connection with any such default.  Any amounts received by Lessee in respect of damages, 


refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the foregoing shall be paid to Lessor and 


applied against Lessee’s obligations hereunder. 


 Section 7.05. Advances.  In the event Lessee shall fail to keep the Equipment in good repair 


and working order or shall fail to maintain any insurance required by Section 7.02 hereof, Lessor 


may, but shall be under no obligation to, maintain and repair the Equipment or obtain and maintain 


any such insurance coverages, as the case may be, and pay the cost thereof.  All amounts so 


advanced by Lessor shall constitute additional rent for the then current Original Term or Renewal 


Term and Lessee covenants and agrees to pay such amounts so advanced by Lessor with interest 


thereon from the due date until paid at a rate equal to the Contract Rate (or the Taxable Rate if 


then in effect) plus five percent (5%) per annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, 


whichever is less. 


ARTICLE VIII 


 Section 8.01. Damage, Destruction and Condemnation.  If, prior to the termination of the 


Lease Term, (a) the Equipment or any portion thereof is destroyed, in whole or in part, or is 


damaged by fire or other casualty or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Equipment or any part 


thereof shall be taken under the exercise or threat of the power of eminent domain by any 


governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting pursuant to governmental 


authority, (i) Lessee and Lessor will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim or 


condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation to be applied to the prompt replacement, 


repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Equipment or such part thereof and any 


balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed shall be paid to Lessee 


or (ii) Lessee shall exercise its option to prepay the obligations hereunder  in accordance with 


Section 10.01(a)(ii) hereof. 


If Lessee elects to replace any item of the Equipment (the “Replaced Equipment”) pursuant 


to this Section 8.01, the replacement equipment (the “Replacement Equipment”) shall be new or 


of a quality, type, utility and condition at least as good as the Replaced Equipment, shall be of 


equal or greater value than the Replaced Equipment and shall provide at least the same level of 


energy and/or operational savings expected in the aggregate from the Replaced Equipment prior 


to such casualty, destruction or condemnation.  Lessee shall grant to Lessor a first priority security 


interest in any such Replacement Equipment.  Lessee shall represent, warrant and covenant to 


Lessor that each item of Replacement Equipment is free and clear of all claims, Liens, security 


interests and encumbrances, excepting only those Liens created by or through Lessor, and shall 


274/371







-19- 


provide to Lessor any and all documents as Lessor may reasonably request in connection with the 


replacement, including, but not limited to, documentation in form and substance satisfactory to 


Lessor evidencing Lessor’s security interest in the Replacement Equipment.  Lessor and Lessee 


hereby acknowledge and agree that any Replacement Equipment acquired pursuant to this 


paragraph shall constitute “Equipment” for purposes of this Agreement.  Lessee shall complete the 


documentation of Replacement Equipment on or before the next Rental Payment Date after the 


occurrence of a casualty event, or be required to exercise its option to prepay the obligations 


hereunder with respect to the damaged Equipment in accordance with Section 10.01(a)(ii) hereof. 


For purposes of this Article VIII, the term “Net Proceeds” shall mean the amount 


remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation award or sale under 


threat of condemnation after deducting all expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in the 


collection thereof. 


 Section 8.02. Insufficiency of Net Proceeds.  If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in 


full the cost of any repair, restoration, modification or improvement referred to in Section 8.01, 


Lessee shall either (a) complete such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or 


improvement and pay any costs thereof in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, or (b) pay or 


cause to be paid to Lessor the amount of the then applicable Prepayment Price plus all other 


amounts then owing hereunder, and, upon such payment, the Lease Term shall terminate and 


Lessor’s security interest in the Equipment shall terminate as provided in Section 6.01 hereof.  The 


amount of the Net Proceeds remaining, if any, after completing such repair, restoration, 


modification or improvement or after paying such Prepayment Price plus all other amounts then 


owing hereunder shall be retained by Lessee.  If Lessee shall make any payments pursuant to this 


Section 8.02, Lessee shall not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from Lessor nor shall 


Lessee be entitled to any diminution of the amounts payable under Article IV. 


ARTICLE IX 


 Section 9.01. Disclaimer of Warranties.  Lessor makes no warranty or representation, 


either express or implied, as to the value, design, condition, merchantability or fitness for particular 


purpose or fitness for use of any of the Equipment, or any other warranty or representation, express 


or implied, with respect thereto and, as to Lessor, Lessee’s acquisition of the Equipment shall be 


on an “as is” basis.  In no event shall Lessor be liable for any incidental, indirect, special or 


consequential damage in connection with or arising out of this Agreement, the Equipment or the 


existence, furnishing, functioning or Lessee’s use of any item, product or service provided for in 


this Agreement. 


 Section 9.02. Vendor Agreements; Warranties.  Lessee covenants that it shall not in any 


material respect amend, modify, rescind or alter any Vendor Agreement without the prior written 


consent of Lessor.  Lessor hereby irrevocably appoints Lessee its agent and attorney-in-fact during 


the Lease Term, so long as Lessee shall not be in default under this Agreement and so long as no 


Event of Non-appropriation has occurred, to assert from time to time whatever claims and rights 


(including without limitation warranties) relating to the Equipment that Lessor may have against 


a Vendor.  Lessee’s sole remedy for the breach of such warranty, indemnification or representation 


shall be against the applicable Vendor of the Equipment, and not against Lessor.  Any such matter 


275/371







-20- 


shall not have any effect whatsoever on the rights and obligations of Lessor under this Agreement, 


including the right to receive full and timely Rental Payments and other payments hereunder.  


Lessee expressly acknowledges that Lessor makes, and has made, no representations or warranties 


whatsoever as to the existence or the availability of such warranties relating to any of the 


Equipment. 


ARTICLE X 


 Section 10.01. Prepayment; Payment in Full.   


 (a) Prepayment.  Lessee shall have the option to prepay or satisfy all, but not less than 


all, of its obligations hereunder, at the following times and upon the following terms: 


 (i) Optional Prepayment.  From and after the date specified (if any) in the 


Payment Schedule (the “Prepayment Option Commencement Date”), on the Rental 


Payment Dates specified in the Payment Schedule, upon not less than thirty (30) days prior 


written notice, and upon payment in full of the sum of all Rental Payments then due plus 


the then applicable Prepayment Price, which shall include a prepayment premium on the 


unpaid Outstanding Balance as set forth in the Payment Schedule plus all other amounts 


then owing hereunder; or 


 (ii) Casualty or Condemnation Prepayment.  In the event of substantial damage 


to or destruction or condemnation of substantially all of the Equipment, on the day 


specified in Lessee’s notice to Lessor of its exercise of the prepayment option (which shall 


be the earlier of the next Rental Payment Date or sixty (60) days after the casualty event) 


upon payment in full to Lessor of (A) in the event such prepayment occurs on a Rental 


Payment Date, the sum of (i) all Rental Payments then due plus (ii) the then applicable 


Prepayment Price plus (iii) all other amounts then owing hereunder OR, (B) in the event 


such prepayment occurs on a date other than a Rental Payment Date, the sum of (i) the 


applicable Prepayment Price shown on the Payment Schedule for the Rental Payment Date 


immediately preceding the applicable date of such prepayment (or if the date of such 


prepayment occurs prior to the first Rental Payment Date, the earliest Prepayment Price 


shown on the Payment Schedule) plus (ii) accrued interest at the Contract Rate (or the 


Taxable Rate if then in effect) on the Outstanding Balance as of the Rental Payment Date 


immediately preceding the applicable  date of such prepayment from such Rental Payment 


Date (or if the date of such prepayment occurs prior to the first Rental Payment Date, the 


Commencement Date) to the date of such prepayment plus (iii) all other amounts then 


owing hereunder. 


 (b) Payment in Full.  Upon the expiration of the Scheduled Term, upon payment in full 


of all Rental Payments then due and all other amounts then owing hereunder to Lessor. 


 (c) After either (i) payment of the applicable Prepayment Price and all other amounts 


then owing hereunder in accordance with either Section 10.01(a)(i) or Section 10.01(a)(ii) of this 


Agreement or (ii) upon the expiration of the Scheduled Term and payment in full of all Rental 


Payments then due and all other amounts then owing hereunder in accordance with 


276/371







-21- 


Section 10.01(b) of this Agreement, Lessor’s security interests in and to the Equipment will be 


terminated and Lessee will own such Equipment free and clear of Lessor’s security interest in such 


Equipment. 


ARTICLE XI 


 Section 11.01. Assignment by Lessor.  (a) Lessor’s right, title and interest in and to this 


Agreement, the Rental Payments and any other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder, the Escrow 


Agreement, its security interest in the Collateral (collectively, the “Assigned Rights”), may be 


assigned and reassigned by Lessor at any time, in whole or in part, to one or more assignees or 


sub-assignees without the necessity of obtaining the consent of Lessee; provided, that any such 


assignment, transfer or conveyance (i) shall be made only to investors each of whom Lessor 


reasonably believes is a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined in Rule 144A(a)(1) promulgated 


under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or an “accredited investor” as defined in 


Section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, 


as amended, and in either case is purchasing the Assigned Rights (or any interest therein) for its 


own account with no present intention to resell or distribute such Assigned Rights (or interest 


therein), subject to each investor’s right at any time to dispose of the Assigned Rights (or any 


interest therein) as it determines to be in its best interests, (ii) shall not result in more than 


35 owners of the Assigned Rights or the creation of any interest in the Assigned Rights in an 


aggregate principal component that is less than $100,000 and (iii) shall not require Lessee to make 


Rental Payments, to send notices or otherwise to deal with respect to matters arising hereunder or 


under the Escrow Agreement with or to more than one Lease Servicer (as such term is defined 


below), and any trust agreement, participation agreement or custodial agreement under which 


multiple ownership interests in the Assigned Rights are created shall provide the method by which 


the owners of such interests shall establish the rights and duties of a single entity, trustee, owner, 


servicer or other fiduciary or agent acting on behalf of all of the assignees (herein referred to as 


the “Lease Servicer”) to act on their behalf with respect to the Assigned Rights, including with 


respect to the exercise of rights and remedies of Lessor on behalf of such owners upon the 


occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-appropriation under this Agreement.  Lessor 


and Lessee hereby acknowledge and agree that the restrictions and limitations on transfer as 


provided in this Section 11.01 shall apply to the first and subsequent assignees and sub-assignees 


of any of the Assigned Rights (or any interest therein). 


 (b) Unless to an affiliate controlling, controlled by or under common control with Lessor, 


no assignment, transfer or conveyance permitted by this Section 11.01 shall be effective as against 


Lessee until Lessee shall have received a written notice of assignment that discloses the name and 


address of each such assignee; provided, that if such assignment is made to a bank or trust company 


as trustee or paying agent for owners of certificates of participation, participation interests, trust 


certificates or partnership interests with respect to the Rental Payments payable under this 


Agreement, it shall thereafter be sufficient that Lessee receives notice of the name and address of 


the bank, trust company or other entity that acts as the Lease Servicer.  Notices of assignment 


provided pursuant to this Section 11.01(b) shall contain a confirmation of compliance with the 


transfer requirements imposed by Section 11.01(a) hereof.  During the Lease Term, Lessee shall 


keep, or cause to be kept, a complete and accurate record of all such assignments in form necessary 


to comply with Section 149 of the Code.  Lessee shall retain all such notices as a register of all 


277/371







-22- 


assignees and shall make all payments to the assignee or assignees or Lease Servicer last 


designated in such register.  Lessee shall not have the right to and shall not assert against any 


assignee any claim, counterclaim or other right Lessee may have against Lessor or the Vendor.  


Assignments in part may include without limitation assignment of all of Lessor’s security interest 


in and to the Equipment and all rights in, to and under this Agreement related to such Equipment, 


and all of Lessor’s security interest in and to the Collateral, or all rights in, to and under the Escrow 


Agreement.   


 (c) If Lessor notifies Lessee of its intent to assign this Agreement, Lessee agrees that it 


shall execute and deliver to Lessor a Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment substantially 


in the form of Exhibit H attached hereto within five (5) business days after its receipt of such 


request. 


 Section 11.02. Assignment and Subleasing by Lessee.  None of Lessee’s right, title, and 


interest in, to and under this Agreement or any portion of the Equipment, the Escrow 


Agreement, the Escrow Account or the other Collateral may be assigned, encumbered or 


subleased by Lessee for any reason, and any purported assignment, encumbrance or sublease 


without Lessor’s prior written consent shall be null and void. 


ARTICLE XII 


 Section 12.01. Events of Default Defined.  Any of the following events shall constitute an 


“Event of Default” under this Agreement: 


 (a) Failure by Lessee to (i) pay any Rental Payment or other payment required 


to be paid under this Agreement within ten (10) days after the date when due as specified 


herein, (ii) maintain insurance as required herein, or (iii) observe and perform any 


covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under 


Section 6.01, 6.02 or 9.02 hereof; 


 (b) Failure by Lessee to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 


agreement contained in this Agreement on its part to be observed or performed, other than 


as referred to in subsection (a) above, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice 


specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to Lessee by Lessor, 


unless Lessor shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; 


provided that, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable 


period, Lessor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if 


corrective action is instituted by Lessee within the applicable period and diligently pursued 


until the default is corrected; 


 (c) Any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in or pursuant to 


this Agreement or its execution, delivery or performance shall prove to have been false, 


incorrect, misleading, or breached in any material respect on the date when made; 


 (d) Any default occurs under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease 


financing of property or otherwise receiving credit under which Lessee is an obligor, if 


278/371







-23- 


such default (i) arises under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease financing of 


property or provision of credit provided by Lessor or any affiliate of Lessor, or (ii) arises 


under any obligation under which there is outstanding, owing or committed an aggregated 


amount in excess of $100,000.00; 


 (e) Lessee shall (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, 


custodian or liquidator of Lessee, or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, 


(ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become 


due, (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an order for relief 


entered against it under applicable Federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a voluntary petition 


in bankruptcy or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with 


creditors or taking advantage of any insolvency law or any answer admitting the material 


allegations of a petition filed against Lessee in any bankruptcy, liquidation, readjustment, 


reorganization, moratorium or insolvency proceeding; or 


 (f) An order, judgment or decree shall be entered by any court of competent 


jurisdiction, approving a petition or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator 


for Lessee or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, in each case without its 


application, approval or consent, and such order, judgment or decree shall continue 


unstayed and in effect for any period of thirty (30) consecutive days. 


 Section 12.02. Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default exists, Lessor shall 


have the right, at its sole option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any 


combination of the following remedial steps: 


 (a) By written notice to Lessee, Lessor may declare all Rental Payments 


payable by Lessee and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder to the end of the then 


current Original Term or Renewal Term to be immediately due and payable; 


 (b) With or without terminating the Lease Term, Lessor may enter the premises 


where the Equipment is located and retake possession of such Equipment or require Lessee 


at Lessee’s expense to promptly return any or all of such Equipment to the possession of 


Lessor at such place within the United States as Lessor shall specify, and sell or lease such 


Equipment or, for the account of Lessee, sublease such Equipment, continuing to hold 


Lessee liable, but solely from legally available funds, for the difference between (i) the 


Rental Payments payable by Lessee and other amounts hereunder that are payable by 


Lessee to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term, as the case may be, 


and (ii) the net proceeds of any such sale, leasing or subleasing (after deducting all 


expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies hereunder, including without limitation all 


expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing such 


Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneer’s and attorney’s fees), subject, however, to the 


provisions of Section 3.03 of this Agreement.  The exercise of any such remedies 


respecting any such Event of Default shall not relieve Lessee of any other liabilities 


hereunder or with respect to the Equipment;  


279/371







-24- 


 (c)  Lessor may terminate the Escrow Agreement and apply any proceeds in the 


Escrow Account to the Rental Payments scheduled to be paid hereunder; and/or 


 (d) Lessor may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary 


or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement or the Escrow Agreement or as a 


secured party in any or all of the Equipment or the Escrow Account. 


 Section 12.03. No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 


Lessor is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in 


addition to every other remedy given hereunder now or hereafter existing at law or in equity.  No 


delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such 


right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right or power may be 


exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  In order to entitle Lessor 


to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article XII it shall not be necessary to give any notice 


other than such notice as may be required in this Article XII. 


ARTICLE XIII 


 Section 13.01. Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications under this 


Agreement shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed by 


registered mail, postage prepaid, or delivered by overnight courier, or sent by facsimile 


transmission (with electronic confirmation) to the parties hereto at the addresses immediately after 


the signatures to this Agreement (or at such other address as either party hereto shall designate in 


writing to the other for notices to such party) and to any assignee at its address as it appears on the 


registration books maintained by Lessee. 


 Section 13.02. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 


binding upon Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns. 


 Section 13.03. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held 


invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate 


or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 


 Section 13.04. Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  This Agreement may only be 


amended by Lessor and Lessee in writing. 


 Section 13.05. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed 


in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 


and the same instrument; provided, that only Counterpart No. 1 of this Agreement shall constitute 


chattel paper for purposes of the applicable Uniform Commercial Code. 


 Section 13.06. Applicable Law; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Agreement shall be 


governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.  The parties hereto consent 


and submit to the jurisdiction of the State and venue in any state or Federal court of such State for 


the purposes of any suit, action or other proceeding arising in connection with this Agreement, and 


each party expressly waives any objections that it may have to the venue of such courts. The parties 


280/371







-25- 


hereto expressly waive any right to trial by jury in any action brought on or with respect to this 


Agreement.  If the waiver of jury trial contained herein is unenforceable for any reason, then the 


parties hereto agree that the court shall, and is hereby directed to, make a general reference 


pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 638 to a referee to hear and determine all 


of the issues in such action or proceeding (whether of fact or of law) and to report a statement of 


decision. 


 Section 13.07. Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience 


only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of 


this Agreement. 


 Section 13.08. No Advisory or Fiduciary Relationship.  In connection with all aspects of 


each transaction contemplated by this Agreement (including in connection with any amendment, 


waiver or other modification hereof or of any other related document), the Lessee acknowledges 


and agrees that:  (a) (i) the transactions regarding this Agreement provided by the Lessor and any 


affiliate thereof are arm’s-length commercial transactions between the Lessee, on the one hand, 


and the Lessor and its affiliates, on the other hand, (ii) the Lessee has consulted its own legal, 


accounting, regulatory and tax advisors to the extent it has deemed appropriate, and (iii) the Lessee 


is capable of evaluating, and understands and accepts, the terms, risks and conditions of the 


transactions contemplated by this Agreement and by the other related documents; (b) (i) the Lessor 


and its affiliates each is and has been acting solely as a principal and, except as expressly agreed 


in writing by the relevant parties, has not been, is not, and will not be acting as an advisor, agent 


or fiduciary, for the Lessee, or any other person and (ii) neither the Lessor nor any of its affiliates 


has any obligation to the Lessee with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 


except those obligations expressly set forth herein and in the other related documents; and 


(c) the Lessor and its affiliates may be engaged in a broad range of transactions that involve 


interests that differ from those of the Lessee, and neither the Lessor nor any of its affiliates has any 


obligation to disclose any of such interests to the Lessee. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 


the Lessee, hereby waives and releases any claims that it may have against the Lessor or any of its 


affiliates with respect to any breach or alleged breach of agency or fiduciary duty in connection 


with any aspect of any transactions contemplated by this Agreement.  


 Section 13.09. Entire Agreement. The parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the final 


and entire agreement between the parties superseding all conflicting terms or provisions of any 


prior proposals, term sheets, solicitation documents, requests for proposals, award notices, 


approval letters or any other agreements or understandings between the parties. 


 Section 13.10. Electronic Signatures.  The Related Documents may be executed and 


delivered by facsimile signature or other electronic or digital means (including, without limitation, 


Adobe’s Portable Document Format (“PDF”)).  Any such signature shall be of the same force and 


effect as an original signature, it being the express intent of the parties to create a valid and legally 


enforceable contract between them.  The exchange and delivery of the Related Documents and the 


related signature pages via facsimile or as an attachment to electronic mail (including in PDF) shall 


constitute effective execution and delivery by the parties and may be used by the parties for all 


281/371







-26- 


purposes.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, at the request of either party, the parties hereto agree to 


exchange inked original replacement signature pages as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable. 


[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 


[Signature Page Follows] 


 


 


282/371







 


[Signature Page of Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement] 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have caused this Equipment Lease/Purchase 


Agreement to be executed in their names by their duly authorized representatives as of the date 


first above written. 


 


LESSOR: LESSEE: 


BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP 


11333 McCormick Road 


Hunt Valley II 


M/C MD5-031-06-05 


Hunt Valley, MD  21031 


Attention:  Contract Administration 


Fax No.:  (443) 541-3057 


By: ________________________________  


Name: _____________________________  


  Title: _____________________________ 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  


Santa Cruz, CA 95060  


Attention:  Jim Monreal, Assistant 


Superintendent of Business Services 


Fax No.: _______________  


By: ________________________________  


Name: _____________________________  


Title:  


 


 


 


 


  


Counterpart No. _____ of _____ manually executed and serially numbered counterparts.  


To the extent that this Agreement constitutes chattel paper (as defined in the applicable Uniform 


Commercial Code), no security interest or ownership herein may be created through the transfer 


or possession of any Counterpart other than Counterpart No. 1. 


 


283/371







 


 


LIST OF EXHIBITS 


EXHIBIT A — Form of Equipment Schedule 


EXHIBIT B — Form of Payment Schedule 


EXHIBIT C-1 — Form of Authorizing Resolution 


EXHIBIT C-2 — Form of Incumbency and Authorization Certificate 


EXHIBIT D — Form of Opinion of Lessee’s Counsel 


EXHIBIT E — Form of Final Acceptance Certificate 


EXHIBIT F — Form of Self-Insurance Certificate 


EXHIBIT G — Reserved 


EXHIBIT H — Form of Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment 


EXHIBIT I — Form of Escrow and Account Control Agreement 


 


 


284/371







 


 


EXHIBIT A 


EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE 


Location of Equipment: 


Equipment Description (Scope of Work): 


 


 


285/371







 


 


EXHIBIT B 


PAYMENT SCHEDULE 


 


RENTAL 


PAYMENT 


DATE 


RENTAL 


PAYMENT 


AMOUNT 


INTEREST 


PORTION 


PRINCIPAL 


PORTION 


OUTSTANDING 


BALANCE 


PREPAYMENT 


PRICE 


     (including 
prepayment 


premium, if 


applicable) 
      


      


      


      


 


Contract Rate.  The Contract Rate is _________% per annum.    


Prepayment Option Commencement Date.  For purposes of Section 10.01 of the 


Agreement, the Prepayment Option Commencement Date is _______________. 


 


 


286/371







 


[Signature Page to Payment Schedule] 


LESSOR: LESSEE: 


BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP 


By: ________________________________  


 Name: __________________________ 


 Title: ___________________________  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  


Santa Cruz, CA 95060  


Attention:  Jim Monreal, Assistant 


Superintendent of Business Services 


Fax No.: _______________  


By: ________________________________  


Name: _____________________________  


Title:  


 


 


287/371







 


 


EXHIBIT C-1 


FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 


 


See Item #[__] in Transcript 


 


  


 


288/371







 


 


EXHIBIT C-2 


FORM OF INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE  


The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting [Secretary][Clerk] of the Santa 


Cruz City Schools (“Lessee”) certifies as follows: 


 A. The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting 


officials of Lessee (the “Officials”) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names 


below and  the facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof; 


 B. The Officials are duly authorized, on behalf of Lessee, to negotiate, execute, 


in writing or electronically, and deliver the Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated 


as of February 2, 2022 by and between Lessee and Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


(“Lessor”), the Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 by 


and among Lessor, Lessee and Bank of America, N.A., as Escrow Agent, [Installation 


Agreement dated as of ________, 20__ between Lessee and Climatec, LLC, along with 


the Climatec Measurement and Verification  Agreement dated ________, 20__], all 


documents related thereto and delivered in connection therewith, and any future 


modification(s) or amendments thereof (collectively, the “Operative Agreements”), and 


the Operative Agreements each are the binding and authorized agreements of Lessee, 


enforceable in all respects in accordance with their respective terms. 


 


NAME OF OFFICIAL TITLE SIGNATURE 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


Dated:  February 2, 2022 By: ____________________________________ 


 Name: ______________________________ 


 Title: _______________________________ 


(The signer of this Certificate cannot be listed above as authorized to execute the Operative 


Agreements.) 


 


289/371







 


 


EXHIBIT D 


FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO LESSEE 


(TO BE TYPED ON LETTERHEAD OF COUNSEL) 


[Closing Date] 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


11333 McCormick Road 


Mail Code: MD5-031-06-05 


Hunt Valley, MD  21031 


Attn: Contract Administration 


Re: Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2022,  


by and between  


Banc of America Public Capital Corp, as Lessor,  


and the Santa Cruz City Schools, as Lessee 


 


Ladies and Gentlemen: 


As legal counsel to the Santa Cruz City Schools (“Lessee”), I have examined (a) an 


executed counterpart of that certain Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 


2022, and Exhibits thereto by and between Banc of America Public Capital Corp (“Lessor”) and 


Lessee (the “Agreement”), which, among other things, provides for the lease of certain property 


(the “Equipment”) and a certain Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of February 2, 


2022  by and among Lessor, Lessee, and Bank of America, N.A. as Escrow Agent (the “Escrow 


Agreement”), [Installation Agreement dated as of ________, 20__ between Lessee and 


Climatec, LLC, along with the Climatec Measurement and Verification  Agreement dated 


________, 20__] ([collectively,] the “Climatec Contract(s)”), (b) an executed counterpart of the 


ordinances or resolutions of Lessee with respect to authorization of the transaction contemplated 


by the Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the Climatec Contract(s) and documents related thereto 


and (c) such other opinions, documents and matters of law as I have deemed necessary in 


connection with the following opinions.  The Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, Climatec 


Contract(s) and the documents relating thereto are herein collectively referred to as the 


“Transaction Documents”. 


Based on the foregoing, I am of the following opinions: 


 1. Lessee is a school district, duly organized and existing under the laws of the 


State, and is a political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(c) of the 


Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the obligations of Lessee 


under the Agreement will constitute an obligation of Lessee within the meaning of 


Section 103(a) of the Code, notwithstanding Section 103(b) of the Code. 


290/371







 


D-2 


 2. Lessee has the requisite power and authority to lease and acquire the 


Equipment and to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents and to perform its 


obligations under the Transaction Documents. 


 3. The Transaction Documents have been duly authorized, approved, executed 


and delivered by and on behalf of Lessee and the Transaction Documents are legal, valid 


and binding obligations of Lessee, enforceable against Lessee in accordance with their 


respective terms, except to the extent limited by state and federal law affecting creditor’s 


remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general 


application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights. 


 4. The authorization, approval, execution and delivery of the Transaction 


Documents and all other proceedings of Lessee relating to the transactions contemplated 


thereby have been performed in accordance with all open meeting laws, procurement and 


public bidding laws and all other applicable State or Federal laws. 


 5. There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any 


governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would 


adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents or the 


security interest of Lessor or its assigns, as the case may be, in the Equipment, the Escrow 


Account or other Collateral thereunder. 


 6. The portion of Rental Payments designated as interest is excluded from 


gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code and is exempt 


from State of California personal income taxes; and such interest is not a specific item of 


tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. 


All capitalized terms herein shall have the same meanings as in the Transaction Documents 


unless otherwise provided herein.  Lessor and its successors and assigns are entitled to rely on this 


opinion. 


Sincerely, 


 


 


291/371







 


 


EXHIBIT E 


FORM OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


11333 McCormick Road 


Mail Code: MD5-031-06-05 


Hunt Valley, MD  21031 


Attn: Contract Administration 


Re: Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2022,  


by and between  


Banc of America Public Capital Corp, as Lessor,  


and Santa Cruz City Schools, as Lessee 


 


Ladies and Gentlemen: 


In accordance with the above-referenced Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the 


“Agreement”), the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with Lessor 


as follows: 


 1. All of the Equipment has been delivered, installed and accepted on the date 


hereof. 


 2. Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment as it 


deems necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts the Equipment 


for all purposes. 


 3. Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by 


Section 7.02 of the Agreement. 


 4. Lessee hereby reaffirms that the representations, warranties and covenants 


contained in the Agreement are true and correct as of the date hereof. 


 5. No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or 


both, would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof. 


 6.  No Material Adverse Change has occurred since the date of the execution 


and delivery of the Agreement. 


 7. No Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or been threatened. 


Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Final Acceptance Certificate shall have the 


same meanings as when such terms are used in the Agreement. 


292/371







 


E-2 


Date:  ____________________- 


LESSEE: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  


Santa Cruz, CA 95060  


Attention:  Jim Monreal, Assistant 


Superintendent of Business Services 


Fax No.: _______________  


By:   


Name:   


Title:   


 


 


293/371







 


 


EXHIBIT F 


FORM OF SELF INSURANCE CERTIFICATE 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


11333 McCormick Road 


Mail Code: MD5-031-06-05 


Hunt Valley, MD  21031 


Attn: Contract Administration 


Re: Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2022,  


by and between  


Banc of America Public Capital Corp, as Lessor,  


and the Santa Cruz City Schools, as Lessee 


 


In connection with the above-referenced Agreement, Santa Cruz City Schools (the 


“Lessee”) hereby warrants and represents to Banc of America Public Capital Corp the following 


information.  The terms capitalized herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned 


to them in the Agreement. 


 1. The Lessee is self-insured for damage or destruction to the Equipment.  The dollar 


amount limit for property damage to the Equipment under such self-insurance program is 


$_________________.  [The Lessee maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in 


excess of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for property damage to the Equipment which policy 


has a dollar limit for property damage to the Equipment under such policy of 


$__________________.] 


 2. The Lessee is self-insured for liability for injury or death of any person or damage or 


loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment.  The 


dollar limit for such liability claims under the Lessee’s self-insurance program is 


$_________________.  [The Lessee maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess 


of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for liability which policy has a dollar limit for liabilities for injury 


and death to persons as well as damage or loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition 


or operation of the Equipment in the amount of $_________________. 


 [3]. The Lessee maintains a self-insurance fund.  Monies in the self-insurance fund 


[are/are not] subject to annual appropriation.  The total amount maintained in the self-insurance 


fund to cover Lessee’s self-insurance liabilities is $_________________.  [Amounts paid from 


the Lessee’s self-insurance fund are subject to a dollar per claim of $__________________.] 


 [3]. The Lessee does not maintain a self-insurance fund.  The Lessee obtains funds to pay 


claims for which it has self-insured from the following sources: 


_____________________________. Amounts payable for claims from such sources are limited 


as follows: _________________________________________ 


294/371







 


F-2 


 4. Attached hereto are copies of certificates of insurance with respect to policies 


maintained by Lessee. 


LESSEE: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


By: ____________________________________ 


 Name: ______________________________ 


 Title: _______________________________ 


 


 


295/371







 


 


EXHIBIT G 


RESERVED 


 


 


296/371







 


 


EXHIBIT H 


FORM OF NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASSIGNMENT 


Dated ____________________ 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp (“Assignor”) hereby gives notice that it has assigned 


and sold to _________________________ (“Assignee”) all of Assignor’s right, title and interest 


in, to and under the Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 (the 


“Agreement”), by and between Assignor and Santa Cruz City Schools (“Lessee”), together with 


all exhibits, schedules, addenda and attachments related thereto, and all certifications and other 


documents delivered in connection therewith, the Rental Payments and other amounts due under 


the Agreement, all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in the Equipment (as defined in the 


Agreement), and all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and under the Escrow and Account 


Control Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 (the “Escrow Agreement”) by and among Lessee, 


Assignor and Bank of America, N.A., as Escrow Agent, together with the Escrow Account and 


other Collateral (collectively, the “Assigned Property”).  Each capitalized term used but not 


defined herein has the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 


 1. Lessee hereby acknowledges the effect of the assignment of the Assigned Property 


and absolutely and unconditionally agrees to deliver to Assignee all Rental Payments and other 


amounts coming due under the Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof on and after the 


date of this Acknowledgment. 


 2. Lessee hereby agrees that:  (i) Assignee shall have all the rights of Lessor under the 


Agreement and all related documents, including, but not limited to, the rights to issue or receive 


all notices and reports, to give all consents or agreements to modifications thereto, to receive title 


to the Equipment in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to declare a default and to 


exercise all rights and remedies thereunder in connection with the occurrence of an Event of 


Non-appropriation or an Event of Default; and (ii) [except as provided in Section 3.03 of the 


Agreement,] the obligations of Lessee to make Rental Payments and to perform and observe the 


other covenants and agreements contained in the Agreement shall be absolute and unconditional 


in all events without abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense. 


 3. Lessee agrees that, as of the date of this Notice and Acknowledgment of Assignment 


(this “Acknowledgement”), the following information about the Agreement is true, accurate and 


complete: 


Number of Rental Payments Remaining ________________ 


Amount of Each Rental Payment $_______________ 


Total Amount of Rental Payments 


Remaining $_______________ 


Frequency of Rental Payments ________________ 


Next Rental Payment Due ________________ 


Funds Remaining in Escrow Account  $_______________ 


297/371







 


H-2 


 4. The Agreement remains in full force and effect, has not been amended, no Event of 


Default (or event which with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute 


an Event of Default) has occurred thereunder and no Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or 


is threatened with respect thereto. 


 5. Assignor hereby acknowledges the transfer restrictions imposed by Section 11.01 of 


the Agreement and confirms that the assignment to Assignee has been made in accordance with 


the provisions of that Section. 


 6. Any inquiries of Lessee related to the Agreement and any requests for disbursements 


from the Escrow Account, if applicable, and all Rental Payments and other amounts coming due 


pursuant to the Agreement on and after the date of this Acknowledgment should be remitted to 


Assignee at the following address (or such other address as provided to Lessee in writing from 


time to time by Assignee): 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 


LESSEE:  SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


By: _________________________________ 


 Name: ___________________________ 


 Title: ____________________________ 


ASSIGNOR:  BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP 


By: _________________________________ 


 Name: ___________________________ 


 Title: ____________________________ 


 


 


298/371







 


 


EXHIBIT I 


ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT 


See Item #[__] in Transcript 


299/371







1DODD_ATJEUB-E6E60C2F24774AB88B72CFF2857520A5 
2299337 


ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT 


This Escrow and Account Control Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of February 2, 


2022, by and among Banc of America Public Capital Corp, a Kansas corporation (together with 


its successors and assigns, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”), the Santa Cruz City Schools, a 


school district existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as 


“Lessee”) and Bank of America, National Association, a national banking association organized 


under the laws of the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as “Escrow Agent”). 


Reference is made to that certain Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of 


February 2, 2022 between Lessor and Lessee (hereinafter referred to as the “Lease”), covering the 


acquisition and lease of certain Equipment described therein (the “Equipment”).  It is a 


requirement of the Lease that the Acquisition Amount ($__________________) be deposited into 


a segregated escrow account under terms satisfactory to Lessor, for the purpose of fully funding 


the Lease, and providing a mechanism for the application of such amounts to the purchase of and 


payment for the Equipment. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good 


and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 


parties hereto agree as follows: 


 1. Creation of Escrow Account.  (a) There is hereby created an escrow fund to be known 


as the “Santa Cruz City Schools Escrow Account” (the “Escrow Account”) to be held by the 


Escrow Agent for the purposes stated herein, for the benefit of Lessor and Lessee, to be held, 


disbursed and returned in accordance with the terms hereof. 


 (b) Lessee may, from time to time, provide written instructions for Escrow Agent to use 


any available cash in the Escrow Account to purchase any money market fund or liquid deposit 


investment vehicle that Escrow Agent from time to time makes available to the parties hereto.  


Such written instructions shall be provided via delivery to Escrow Agent of a signed and completed 


Escrow Account Investment Selection Form (such form available from Escrow Agent upon 


request).  All funds invested by Escrow Agent at the direction of Lessee in such short-term 


investments (as more particularly described in Escrow Agent’s Escrow Account Investment 


Selection Form) shall be deemed to be part of the Escrow Account and subject to all the terms and 


conditions of this Agreement.  If any cash is received for the Escrow Account after the cut-off time 


for the designated short-term investment vehicle, the Escrow Agent shall hold such cash 


uninvested until the next Business Day.  “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, 


Sunday or legal holiday, on which banking institutions are not closed in Chicago, Illinois, Santa 


Cruz, California or New York, New York.  In the absence of written instructions from Lessee (on 


Escrow Agent’s Escrow Account Investment Selection Form) designating a short-term investment 


of cash in the Escrow Account, cash in the Escrow Account shall remain uninvested and it shall 


not be collateralized.  Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to pay interest on cash in respect of 


any period during which it remains uninvested.  Lessee shall be solely responsible for ascertaining 


that all proposed investments and reinvestments are Qualified Investments and that they comply 


with federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances governing investment of such funds 


300/371







 -2- 


and for providing appropriate notice to the Escrow Agent for the reinvestment of any maturing 


investment.  Accordingly, neither the Escrow Agent nor Lessor shall be responsible for any 


liability, cost, expense, loss or claim of any kind, directly or indirectly arising out of or related to 


the investment or reinvestment of all or any portion of the moneys on deposit in the Escrow 


Account, and Lessee agrees to and does hereby release the Escrow Agent and Lessor from any 


such liability, cost, expenses, loss or claim.  Interest on the Escrow Account shall become part of 


the Escrow Account, and gains and losses on the investment of the moneys on deposit in the 


Escrow Account shall be borne by the Lessee.  The Escrow Agent shall have no discretion 


whatsoever with respect to the management, disposition or investment of the Escrow Account.  


The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for any market decline in the value of the Escrow 


Account and has no obligation to notify Lessor and Lessee of any such decline or take any action 


with respect to the Escrow Account, except upon specific written instructions stated herein.  For 


purposes of this Agreement, “Qualified Investments” means any investments which meet the 


requirements of California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq.1 


 (c) Unless the Escrow Account is earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of 


paragraph (d) below, amounts in the Escrow Account shall be disbursed by the Escrow Agent in 


payment of amounts described in Section 2 hereof upon receipt of written instruction(s) from 


Lessor, as is more fully described in Section 2 hereof.  If the amounts in the Escrow Account are 


insufficient to pay such amounts, Lessee shall provide any balance of the funds needed to complete 


the acquisition of the Equipment.  Any moneys remaining in the Escrow Account on or after the 


earlier of (i) the expiration of the Acquisition Period or (ii) the date on which Lessee executes an 


Acceptance Certificate shall be applied as provided in Section 4 hereof. 


 (d) The Escrow Account shall be terminated at the earliest of (i) the final distribution of 


amounts in the Escrow Account, (ii) the date on which Lessee executes a Final Acceptance 


Certificate or (iii) written notice given by Lessor of the occurrence of an Event of Default under 


the Lease or termination of the Lease due to an Event of Non-appropriation.  Notwithstanding the 


foregoing, this Agreement shall not terminate nor shall the Escrow Account be closed until all 


funds deposited hereunder have been disbursed. 


 (e) The Escrow Agent may act in reliance upon any writing or instrument or signature 


which it, in good faith, believes to be genuine and may assume the validity and accuracy of any 


statement or assertion contained in such a writing or instrument.  The Escrow Agent shall not be 


liable in any manner for the sufficiency or correctness as to form, manner of execution, or validity 


of any instrument nor as to the identity, authority, or right of any person executing the same; and 


its duties hereunder shall be limited to the receipt of such moneys, instruments or other documents 


received by it as the Escrow Agent, and for the disposition of the same in accordance herewith.  


Notwithstanding and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, concurrent with the 


execution of this Agreement, Lessee and Lessor, respectively, shall deliver to the Escrow Agent 


an authorized signers form in the form of Exhibit A-1 (Lessee) and Exhibit A-2 (Lessor) attached 


hereto.  Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the Escrow Agent is authorized to comply with 


and rely upon any notices, instructions or other communications believed by it to have been sent 


                                                 
1  To be confirmed by bond counsel/Lessee’s counsel.  


301/371







 -3- 


or given by the parties or by a person or persons authorized by the parties.  The Escrow Agent 


specifically allows for receiving direction by written or electronic transmission from an authorized 


representative with the following caveat, to the extent permitted by law, Lessee and Lessor agree 


to indemnify and hold harmless the Escrow Agent against any and all claims, losses, damages, 


liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, 


“Losses”) incurred or sustained by the Escrow Agent as a result of or in connection with the 


Escrow Agent’s reliance upon and compliance with instructions or directions given by written or 


electronic transmission given by each, respectively, provided, however, that such Losses have not 


arisen from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent, it being understood 


that forbearance on the part of the Escrow Agent to verify or confirm that the person giving the 


instructions or directions, is, in fact, an authorized person shall not be deemed to constitute gross 


negligence or willful misconduct. 


In the event conflicting instructions as to the disposition of all or any portion of the Escrow 


Account are at any time given by Lessor and Lessee, the Escrow Agent shall abide by the 


instructions or entitlement orders given by Lessor without consent of the Lessee. 


 (f) Unless the Escrow Agent is guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct with 


regard to its duties hereunder, Lessee agrees to and does hereby release and indemnify the Escrow 


Agent and hold it harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, losses, actions, suits or proceedings 


at law or in equity, or any other expense, fees or charges of any character or nature, which it may 


incur or with which it may be threatened by reason of its acting as Escrow Agent under this 


Agreement; and in connection therewith, does to the extent permitted by law indemnify the Escrow 


Agent against any and all expenses; including reasonable attorneys’ fees and the cost of defending 


any action, suit or proceeding or resisting any claim. 


 (g) If Lessee and Lessor shall be in disagreement about the interpretation of the Lease, 


or about the rights and obligations, or the propriety of any action contemplated by the Escrow 


Agent hereunder, the Escrow Agent may, but shall not be required to, file an appropriate civil 


action including an interpleader action to resolve the disagreement.  The Escrow Agent shall be 


reimbursed by Lessee for all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connection with such 


civil action, and shall be fully protected in suspending all or part of its activities under the Lease 


until a final judgment in such action is received. 


 (h) The Escrow Agent may consult with counsel of its own choice and shall have full and 


complete authorization and protection with the opinion of such counsel.  The Escrow Agent shall 


otherwise not be liable for any mistakes of fact or errors of judgment, or for any acts or omissions 


of any kind unless caused by its willful misconduct. 


 (i) Lessee shall reimburse the Escrow Agent for all reasonable costs and expenses, 


including those of the Escrow Agent’s attorneys, agents and employees incurred for non-routine 


administration of the Escrow Account and the performance of the Escrow Agent’s powers and 


duties hereunder in connection with any Event of Default under the Lease, any termination of the 


Lease due to an Event of Non-appropriation or in connection with any dispute between Lessor and 


Lessee concerning the Escrow Account. 


302/371







 -4- 


 (j) The Escrow Agent or any successor may at any time resign by giving mailed notice 


to Lessee and Lessor of its intention to resign and of the proposed date of resignation (the 


“Effective Date”), which shall be a date not less than 60 days after such notice is delivered to an 


express carrier, charges prepaid, unless an earlier resignation date and the appointment of a 


successor shall have been approved by the Lessee and Lessor.  After the Effective Date, the Escrow 


Agent shall be under no further obligation except to hold the Escrow Account in accordance with 


the terms of this Agreement, pending receipt of written instructions from Lessor regarding further 


disposition of the Escrow Account.   


 (k) The Escrow Agent shall have no responsibilities, obligations or duties other than 


those expressly set forth in this Agreement and no implied duties responsibilities or obligations 


shall be read into this Agreement. 


 (l) In accordance with the recordkeeping requirements of the Federal Deposit Insurance 


Corporation, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, Lessee shall deliver to the Escrow 


Agent a Certificate of Plenary Authority in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto. 


 2. Acquisition and Installation of Equipment.   


 (a) Acquisition Contracts.  Lessee will arrange for, supervise and provide for, or cause 


to be supervised and provided for, the acquisition of the Equipment, with moneys available in the 


Escrow Account.  Lessee represents the estimated costs of the Equipment are within the funds 


estimated to be available therefor, and Lessor makes no warranty or representation with respect 


thereto.  Lessor shall have no liability under any of the acquisition or construction contracts.  


Lessee shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals, if any, for the acquisition, equipping and 


installation of the Equipment, and the operation and maintenance thereof.  Escrow Agent shall 


have no duty to monitor or enforce Lessee’s compliance with the foregoing covenant. 


 (b) Authorized Escrow Account Disbursements.  It is agreed as between Lessee and 


Lessor that disbursements from the Escrow Account shall be made for the purpose of paying 


(including the reimbursement to Lessee for advances from its own funds to accomplish the 


purposes hereinafter described) the cost of acquiring the Equipment. 


 (c) Requisition Procedure.  No disbursement from the Escrow Account shall be made 


unless and until Lessor has approved in writing such requisition.  Prior to disbursement from the 


Escrow Account there shall be filed with the Escrow Agent a requisition for such payment in the 


form of Disbursement Request attached hereto as Schedule 1, stating each amount to be paid and 


the name of the person, firm or corporation to whom payment thereof is due.  All disbursements 


shall be made by wire transfer.  The Escrow Agent is authorized to obtain and rely on confirmation 


of such Disbursement Request and payment instructions by telephone call-back to the person or 


persons designated for verifying such requests on Exhibit A-2 (such person verifying the request 


shall be different than the person initiating the request).  The Lessor and Lessee hereby confirm 


that any call-back performed by Escrow Agent to verify a disbursement instruction pursuant to a 


Disbursement Request submitted pursuant to this Section 2(c) before release, shall be made to 


Lessor only and Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to call-back Lessee.   


303/371







 -5- 


Each such Disbursement Request shall be signed by an authorized representative of Lessee 


(an “Authorized Representative”) and by Lessor, and shall be subject to the following conditions, 


which Escrow Agent shall conclusively presume have been satisfied at such time as a requisition 


executed by Lessee and Lessor is delivered to it: 


 1. Delivery to Lessor of an executed Disbursement Request in the form 


attached hereto as Schedule 1;  


 2. Delivery to Lessor of copies of invoices (and proofs of payment of such 


invoices, if Lessee seeks reimbursement) and bills of sale therefor or other evidence of title 


transfer, and release by Vendor of any security interest, therefor as required by Section 3.04 


of the Lease and any additional documentation reasonably requested by Lessor; and 


 3. The disbursement shall occur during the Acquisition Period. 


Lessee and Lessor agree that their execution of the form attached hereto as Schedule 1 and 


delivery of the executed form to Escrow Agent confirms that all of the requirements and conditions 


with respect to disbursements set forth in this Section 2 have been satisfied. 


 3. Deposit to Escrow Account.  Upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in 


Section 3.04 of the Lease, Lessor will cause the Acquisition Amount to be deposited in the Escrow 


Account.  Lessee agrees to pay any costs with respect to the Equipment in excess of amounts 


available therefor in the Escrow Account. 


 4. Excess Proceeds in Escrow Account.  Upon receipt of written instructions from 


Lessor including a representation that one of the following conditions has been satisfied (upon 


which representation Escrow Agent shall conclusively rely), any funds remaining in the Escrow 


Account on or after the earliest of (a) the expiration of the Acquisition Period, (b) the date on 


which Lessee delivers to the Lessor the executed Final Acceptance Certificate or the executed 


Disbursement Request to effect the final disbursement to pay (or reimburse) Equipment Costs from 


the Escrow Account or (c) a termination of the Escrow Account as provided in this Agreement, 


shall be distributed by the Escrow Agent to the Lessor in order for the Lessor to apply such funds 


to amounts owed by Lessee under the Lease in accordance with Section 4.07 of the Lease. 


 5. Security Interest.  The Escrow Agent and Lessee acknowledge and agree that the 


Escrow Account and all proceeds thereof are being held by Escrow Agent for disbursement or 


return as set forth herein.  Lessee hereby grants to Lessor a first priority perfected security interest 


in the Escrow Account, and all proceeds thereof, and all investments made with any amounts in 


the Escrow Account.  If the Escrow Account, or any part thereof, is converted to investments as 


set forth in this Agreement, such investments shall be made in the name of Escrow Agent and the 


Escrow Agent hereby agrees to hold such investments as bailee for Lessor so that Lessor is deemed 


to have possession of such investments for the purpose of perfecting its security interest. 


 6. Control of Escrow Account.  In order to perfect Lessor’s security interest by means 


of control in (i) the Escrow Account established hereunder, (ii) all securities entitlements, 


investment property and other financial assets now or hereafter credited to the Escrow Account, 


304/371







 -6- 


(iii) all of Lessee’s rights in respect of the Escrow Account, such securities entitlements, 


investment property and other financial assets, and (iv) all products, proceeds and revenues of and 


from any of the foregoing personal property (collectively, the “Collateral”), Lessor, Lessee and 


Escrow Agent further agree as follows: 


 (a) All terms used in this Section 6 which are defined in the California 


Commercial Code (the “Commercial Code”) but are not otherwise defined herein shall 


have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Commercial Code, as in effect on the date 


of this Agreement. 


 (b) Escrow Agent will comply with all entitlement orders originated by Lessor 


with respect to the Collateral, or any portion of the Collateral, without further consent by 


Lessee. 


 (c) Provided that account investments shall be held in the name of the Escrow 


Agent, Escrow Agent hereby represents and warrants (i) that the records of Escrow Agent 


show that Lessee is the sole owner of the Collateral, (ii) that Escrow Agent has not been 


served with any notice of levy or received any notice of any security interest in or other 


claim to the Collateral, or any portion of the Collateral, other than Lessor’s claim pursuant 


to this Agreement, and (iii) that Escrow Agent is not presently obligated to accept any 


entitlement order from any person with respect to the Collateral, except for entitlement 


orders that Escrow Agent is obligated to accept from Lessor under this Agreement and 


entitlement orders that Escrow Agent, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) below, is 


obligated to accept from Lessee. 


 (d) Without the prior written consent of Lessor, Escrow Agent will not enter 


into any agreement by which Escrow Agent agrees to comply with any entitlement order 


of any person other than Lessor or, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) below, Lessee, 


with respect to any portion or all of the Collateral.  Escrow Agent shall promptly notify 


Lessor if any person requests Escrow Agent to enter into any such agreement or otherwise 


asserts or seeks to assert a Lien, encumbrance or adverse claim against any portion or all 


of the Collateral. 


 (e) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph (e) and subject to 


Section 1(b) hereof, Lessee may effect sales, trades, transfers and exchanges of Collateral 


within the Escrow Account, but will not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, 


withdraw any Collateral from the Escrow Account.  Escrow Agent acknowledges that 


Lessor reserves the right, by delivery of written notice to Escrow Agent, to prohibit Lessee 


from effecting any withdrawals (including withdrawals of ordinary cash dividends and 


interest income), sales, trades, transfers or exchanges of any Collateral held in the Escrow 


Account.  Further, Escrow Agent hereby agrees to comply with any and all written 


instructions delivered by Lessor to Escrow Agent (once it has had a reasonable opportunity 


to comply therewith) and has no obligation to, and will not, investigate the reason for any 


action taken by Lessor, the amount of any obligations of Lessee to Lessor, the validity of 


any of Lessor’s claims against or agreements with Lessee, the existence of any defaults 


under such agreements, or any other matter. 


305/371







 -7- 


 (f) Lessee hereby irrevocably authorizes Escrow Agent to comply with all 


instructions and entitlement orders delivered by Lessor to Escrow Agent. 


 (g) Escrow Agent will not attempt to assert control, and does not claim and will 


not accept any security or other interest in, any part of the Collateral, and Escrow Agent 


will not exercise, enforce or attempt to enforce any right of setoff against the Collateral, or 


otherwise charge or deduct from the Collateral any amount whatsoever.   


 (h) Escrow Agent and Lessee hereby agree that any property held in the Escrow 


Account shall be treated as a financial asset under such section of the Commercial Code as 


corresponds with Section 8-102 of the Uniform Commercial Code, notwithstanding any 


contrary provision of any other agreement to which Escrow Agent may be a party. 


 (i) Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and instructed, and hereby agrees, to 


send to Lessor at its address set forth in Section 8 below, concurrently with the sending 


thereof to Lessee, duplicate copies of any and all monthly Escrow Account statements or 


reports issued or sent to Lessee with respect to the Escrow Account. 


 7. Information Required Under USA PATRIOT ACT.  The parties acknowledge that in 


order to help the United States government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering 


activities, pursuant to Federal regulations that became effective on October 1, 2003 (Section 326 


of the USA PATRIOT Act) all financial institutions are required to obtain, verify, record and 


update information that identifies each person establishing a relationship or opening an account.  


The parties to this Agreement agree that they will provide to the Escrow Agent such information 


as it may request, from time to time, in order for the Escrow Agent to satisfy the requirements of 


the USA PATRIOT Act, including but not limited to the name, address, tax identification number 


and other information that will allow it to identify the individual or entity who is establishing the 


relationship or opening the account and may also ask for formation documents such as articles of 


incorporation or other identifying documents to be provided. 


 8. Miscellaneous.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 


meanings assigned to them in the Lease.  This Agreement may not be amended except in writing 


signed by all parties hereto.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 


of which shall be deemed to be an original instrument and each shall have the force and effect of 


an original and all of which together constitute, and shall be deemed to constitute, one and the 


same instrument.  Notices hereunder shall be made in writing and shall be deemed to have been 


duly given when personally delivered or when deposited in the mail, first class postage prepaid, or 


delivered to an express carrier, charges prepaid, or sent by facsimile with electronic confirmation, 


addressed to each party at its address below. 


Notices and other communications hereunder may be delivered or furnished by electronic 


mail provided that any formal notice be attached to an email message in PDF format and provided 


further that any notice or other communication sent to an e-mail address shall be deemed received 


upon and only upon the sender’s receipt of affirmative acknowledgement or receipt from the 


intended recipient.  For purposes hereof no acknowledgement of receipt generated on an automated 


basis shall be deemed sufficient for any purpose hereunder or admissible as evidence of receipt. 


306/371







 -8- 


If to Lessor: Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


11333 McCormick Road 


Mail Code:  MD5-031-06-05 


Hunt Valley, MD  21031 


Attn: Contract Administration 


Fax: (443) 541-3057 


If to Lessee: Santa Cruz City Schools 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  


Santa Cruz, CA 95060  


Attn:  Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of 


Business Services 


Fax: ____________________ 


If to Escrow Agent: Bank of America, National Association 


Global Custody and Agency Services 


540 W. Madison Street 


Mail Code: IL4-540-21-03 


Chicago, Illinois 60661 


Attention: GCAS AMRS Escrow Client Services 


Telephone:  312-992-9802 


Fax:  (312) 453-4443 


Email: gcas_amrs_escrow_client_service@bofa.com 


 9. Lessee and Lessor understand and agree that they are required to provide the Escrow 


Agent with a properly completed and signed Tax Certification (as defined below) and that the 


Escrow Agent may not perform its duties hereunder without having been provided with such Tax 


Certification.  As used herein “Tax Certification” shall mean an IRS form W-9 or W-8 as described 


above.  The Escrow Agent will comply with any U.S. tax withholding or backup withholding and 


reporting requirements that are required by law.  With respect to earnings allocable to a foreign 


person, the Escrow Agent will withhold U.S. tax as required by law and report such earnings and 


taxes withheld, if any, for the benefit of such foreign person on IRS Form 1042-S (or any other 


required form), unless such earnings and withheld taxes are exempt from reporting under Treasury 


Regulation Section 1.1461-1(c)(2)(ii) or under other applicable law.  With respect to earnings 


allocable to a United States person, the Escrow Agent will report such income, if required, on IRS 


Form 1099 or any other form required by law.  The IRS Forms 1099 and/or 1042-S shall show the 


Escrow Agent as payor and Lessee as payee.  Escrow Agent shall recognize Lessee as the 


designated party for regulatory reporting purposes. 


Lessee and Lessor agree that they are not relieved of their respective obligations, if any, to 


prepare and file information reports under Code Section 6041, and the Treasury regulations 


thereunder, with respect to amounts of imputed interest income, as determined pursuant to Code 


Sections 483 or 1272.  The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for determining or reporting 


such imputed interest.  


307/371







 -9- 


 10. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 


the State of California and the parties hereto consent to jurisdiction in the State of California and 


venue in any state or Federal court located in the State of California, and each party expressly 


waives any objections that it may have to the venue of such courts.  The parties hereto expressly 


waive any right to trial by jury in any action brought on or with respect to this Agreement.  If the 


waiver of jury trial contained herein is unenforceable for any reason, then the parties hereto agree 


that the court shall, and is hereby directed to, make a general reference pursuant to California Code 


of Civil Procedure Section 638 to a referee to hear and determine all of the issues in such action 


or proceeding (whether of fact or of law) and to report a statement of decision. 


 11. Any bank or corporation into which the Escrow Agent may be merged or with which 


it may be consolidated, or any bank or corporation to whom the Escrow Agent may transfer a 


substantial amount of its escrow business, shall be the successor to the Escrow Agent without the 


execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties, anything herein 


to the contrary notwithstanding.  Any bank or corporation into which the Lessor may be merged 


or with which it may be consolidated, or any bank or corporation to whom the Lessor may transfer 


a substantial amount of its business, shall be the successor to the Lessor without the execution or 


filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties, anything herein to the contrary 


notwithstanding. 


 12. This Agreement may be amended, modified, and/or supplemented only by an 


instrument in writing executed by all parties hereto. 


 13. No party hereto shall assign its rights hereunder until its assignee has submitted to the 


Escrow Agent (i) Patriot Act disclosure materials and the Escrow Agent has determined that on 


the basis of such materials it may accept such assignee as a customer and (ii) assignee has delivered 


an IRS Form W-8 or W-9, as appropriate, to the Escrow Agent which the Escrow Agent has 


determined to have been properly signed and completed.   


 14. Escrow Agent will treat information related to this Agreement as confidential but, 


unless prohibited by law, Lessee and Lessor authorize the transfer or disclosure of any information 


relating to the Agreement to and between the subsidiaries, officers, affiliates and other 


representatives and advisors of Escrow Agent and third parties selected by any of them, wherever 


situated, for confidential use in the ordinary course of business, and further acknowledge that 


Escrow Agent and any such subsidiary, officer, affiliate or third party may transfer or disclose any 


such information as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process. 


Lessor will treat information related to this Agreement as confidential but, unless 


prohibited by law, Escrow Agent and Lessee authorize the transfer or disclosure of any information 


relating to the Agreement to and between the subsidiaries, officers, affiliates, other representatives 


and advisors of Lessor and debt and equity sources and third parties selected by any of them, and 


to their prospective assignees wherever situated, for confidential use in the ordinary course of 


business, and further acknowledge that Lessor and any such subsidiary, officer, affiliate, debt and 


equity source or third party or prospective assignee may transfer or disclose any such information 


as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process.  


308/371







 -10- 


Lessee will treat the terms of this Agreement as confidential except on a “need to know” 


basis to persons within or outside Lessee’s organization (including affiliates of such party), such 


as attorneys, accountants, bankers, financial advisors, auditors and other consultants of such party 


and its affiliates, except as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process and except 


pursuant to the express prior written consent of the other parties, which consent shall not be 


unreasonably withheld; 


 15. The Related Documents may be executed and delivered by facsimile signature or 


other electronic or digital means (including, without limitation, Adobe’s Portable Document 


Format (“PDF”)).  Any such signature shall be of the same force and effect as an original 


signature, it being the express intent of the parties to create a valid and legally enforceable contract 


between them.  The exchange and delivery of the Related Documents and the related signature 


pages via facsimile or as an attachment to electronic mail (including in PDF) shall constitute 


effective execution and delivery by the parties and may be used by the parties for all purposes.  


Notwithstanding the foregoing, at the request of either party, the parties hereto agree to exchange 


inked original replacement signature pages as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable. 


 


 


309/371







[Signature Page to Escrow and Account Control Agreement] 


In Witness Whereof, the parties have executed this Escrow and Account Control 


Agreement as of the date first above written. 


 


BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP, as 


Lessor 


By:  


Name:  


      Title:  


 


 


BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 


Escrow Agent 


 


By:  


Name:  


      Title:  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


By: ________________________________ 


Name:______________________________ 


  Title:_____________________________ 


 


 


  


  


 


 


 


310/371







 


SCHEDULE 1  


TO THE ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT 


FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST 


Re: Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 by and between Banc of 


America Public Capital Corp, as Lessor, and the Santa Cruz City Schools as Lessee (the 


“Lease”) (Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned 


to them in the Lease.) 


In accordance with the terms of the Escrow and Account Control Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2022 


(the “Escrow and Account Control Agreement”) by and among Banc of America Public Capital Corp (“Lessor”), the 


Santa Cruz City Schools, as Lessee (“Lessee”) and Bank of America, National Association, (the “Escrow Agent”), 


the undersigned hereby requests the Escrow Agent pay the following persons the following amounts from the Escrow 


Account created under the Escrow and Account Control Agreement for the following purposes: 


DISBURSEMENT AMOUNTS: 


Payee’s Name and Address (if 


disbursement via wire, must include 


wire transfer instructions) 


Invoice Number Dollar Amount Purpose 


<Payee’s Name> 


<Payee Address 1> 


<Payee Address 2> 


<Payee Address 3>  


 


<Payee Bank Name*> 


<Payee Bank ABA/Routing*> 


<Payee Bank Account No*> 


<Payee Account Name*> 


 


<*Payee Address and Payee Bank 


information is required.> 


<invoice list OR “see 


attached” with a 


spreadsheet> 


< invoice amount> <general description of 


equipment; ex “police cruiser”> 


<Payee’s Name> 


<Payee Address 1> 


<Payee Address 2> 


<Payee Address 3>  


 


<Payee Bank Name*> 


<Payee Bank ABA/Routing*> 


<Payee Bank Account No*> 


<Payee Account Name*> 


 


<*Payee Address information is required.  


Payee Bank information only to be 


included for wire/EFT.> 


<invoice list OR “see 


attached” with a 


spreadsheet> 


<invoice amount> [<mobilization fee that is 


payable to the Vendor under the 


Vendor Agreement>] 


311/371







 


Lessee hereby represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of Lessor on the date hereof as follows: 


 (i) Each obligation specified in the table herein titled as “Disbursement Amounts” (a) has been 


incurred by Lessee in the stated amount, (b) the same is a proper charge against the Escrow Account for 


(i) Equipment Costs relating to the Equipment identified above and has not been paid (or has been paid by 


Lessee and Lessee requests reimbursement thereof) and (ii) the mobilization fee in the amount of 


$_________, which has been approved by Lessor, and (c) has not been paid (or has been paid by Lessee and 


Lessee requests reimbursement thereof), and the Equipment relating to such obligation has been delivered, 


installed and accepted by Lessee.   


 (ii) Each item of Equipment relating to an obligation specified in the table herein titled as 


“Disbursement Amounts” has been delivered, installed and accepted by Lessee.  Attached hereto is the 


original invoice, and certification from Vendor as to title transfer and release by Vendor of any security 


interest with respect to such obligation and the related AIA forms. 


 (iii) The undersigned, as Authorized Representative, has no notice of any vendor’s, mechanic’s 


or other Liens or rights to Liens, chattel mortgages, conditional sales contracts or security interest which 


should be satisfied or discharged before such payment is made. 


 (iv) This requisition contains no item representing payment on account, or any retained 


percentages which Lessee is, at the date hereof, entitled to retain (except to the extent such amounts represent 


a reimbursement to Lessee). 


 (v) The Equipment is insured in accordance with the Lease. 


 (vi) No Event of Default, and no event which with notice or lapse of time, or both, would 


become an Event of Default, under the Lease has occurred and is continuing at the date hereof.  No Event of 


Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with respect to the Lease. 


 (vii) The disbursement shall occur during the Acquisition Period. 


 (viii) The representations, warranties and covenants of Lessee set forth in the Lease are true and 


correct as of the date hereof. 


 (ix) No Material Adverse Change has occurred since the date of the execution and delivery of 


the Lease. 


 (x) The information in this Disbursement Request regarding each Payee, including their 


respective name, address and wiring instructions (collectively, the “Payee Information”), is true and correct, 


such Payee Information has been verified and confirmed by Lessee and the Lessor can rely on Lessee’s 


verification and confirmation of the accuracy of such Payee Information.  Lessee hereby acknowledges and 


agrees that any call-back performed by Lessor to verify the disbursement instructions pursuant to this 


Disbursement Request shall be made to Lessee only and Lessor shall have no obligation to call-back any 


Payee listed above. 


312/371







 


 


Dated:   


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


By:   


Name:   


Title:   


 


Disbursement of funds from the Escrow  


Account in accordance with the foregoing  


Disbursement Request hereby is authorized 


 


BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP 


as Lessor under the Lease 


 


By:   


Name:  


Title:  


313/371







 


[AN “EXHIBIT A-1” MUST BE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED AT TIME OF EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT] 


EXHIBIT A-1 


FORM OF INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE  


The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting [Secretary][Clerk] of the Santa 


Cruz City Schools (“Lessee”) certifies as follows: 


 A. The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting 


officials of Lessee (the “Officials”) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names 


below and the facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof; 


 B. The Officials are duly authorized, on behalf of Lessee, to negotiate, execute, 


in writing or electronically, and deliver the Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated 


as of February 2, 2022 by and between Lessee and Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


(“Lessor”), the Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 by 


and among Lessor, Lessee and Bank of America, National Association, as Escrow Agent, 


all documents related thereto and delivered in connection therewith, and any future 


modification(s) or amendments thereof (collectively, the “Operative Agreements”), and 


the Operative Agreements each are the binding and authorized agreements of Lessee, 


enforceable in all respects in accordance with their respective terms. 


NAME OF OFFICIAL TITLE SIGNATURE 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


_____________________ _____________________ _____________________ 


 


Dated: February 2, 2022  By:   


   Name:   


   Title:   


(The signer of this Certificate cannot be listed above as authorized to execute the Operative 


Agreements.) 


 


314/371







 


[AN “EXHIBIT A-2” MUST BE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED AT TIME OF EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT] 


EXHIBIT A-2 


 Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of February 2, 2022 by and among Banc 


of America Public Capital Corp, as Lessor, Santa Cruz City Schools, as Lessee and Bank of 


America, National Association, as Escrow Agent 


Certificate of Authorized Representatives – [Lessor] 


Name: Terri Preston Name: Nancy Nusenko 


Title: Authorized Agent Title: Authorized Agent 


Phone: 443-541-3642 Phone: 443-541-3646 


Facsimile: 443-541-3057 Facsimile: 443-541-3057 


E-mail: Terri.Preston@bofa.com E-mail: Nancy.a.nusenko@bofa.com 


Signature:  Signature:  


Fund Transfer / Disbursement Authority Level: Fund Transfer / Disbursement Authority Level: 


 Initiate        Initiate 


 Verify transactions initiated by others     Verify transactions initiated by others 


   


Name: Nancy K. Hepner Name: Arlene Sobieck 


Title: Authorized Agent Title: Authorized Agent 


Phone: 443-541-3645 Phone: 443-541-3643 


Facsimile: 804-553-2407 Facsimile: 443-541-3057 


E-mail: Nancy.k.hepner@bofa.com E-mail: Arlene.sobieck@bofa.com 


Signature:  Signature:  


Fund Transfer / Disbursement Authority Level: Fund Transfer / Disbursement Authority Level: 


 Initiate        Initiate 


 Verify transactions initiated by others     Verify transactions initiated by others 


 


The Escrow Agent is authorized to comply with and rely upon any notices, instructions or other 


communications believed by it to have been sent or given by the person or persons identified above 


including without limitation, to initiate and verify funds transfers as indicated.    


 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp 


 


By:  ____________________________ 


       Name: 


       Title: 


Date: February 2, 2022 


 


315/371







 


[AN “EXHIBIT B” MUST BE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED AT TIME OF EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT] 


EXHIBIT B 


FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF PLENARY AUTHORITY 


The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting [Secretary][Clerk] of the Santa 


Cruz City Schools (“Lessee”) certifies as follows: 


 A. In accordance with the laws that govern Lessee and its governing body, each 


person that (i) is either duly elected or an appointed official of Lessee and (ii) holds the 


following titles listed below (each, an “Official Custodian”), are the only persons that have 


plenary authority over funds of the Lessee. 


TITLE 


_____________________ 


_____________________ 


_____________________ 


Dated: February 2, 2022 


By: ____________________________________ 


 Name: ______________________________ 


 Title: _______________________________ 


 


 


316/371







 


 
4826-1295-8409v6/200721-0005 


PLACEMENT AGENT AGREEMENT 


February 2, 2022 


 


133 Mission St., Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


 


Attention:  Kris Munro, Superintendent  


The undersigned, Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. (the “Placement Agent”), offers to enter into the 


following agreement (this “Agreement”) with Santa Cruz City Schools (the “Issuer”), which, upon 


acceptance by the Issuer, will be binding upon the Issuer and the Placement Agent. 


The Issuer acknowledges and agrees that (i) the placement of the 2022 Equipment/Lease 


Purchase Agreement (the “Obligations”) pursuant to this Placement Agent Agreement is an arm’s-


length commercial transaction between the Issuer and the Placement Agent, (ii) in connection 


therewith and with the discussion, undertakings and procedures leading up to the consummation of 


such transaction, the Placement Agent is not acting as a fiduciary of or a financial advisor to the Issuer, 


(iii) the Placement Agent has not assumed an advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Issuer 


with respect to (a) the offering of the Obligations or the process leading thereto (whether or not the 


Placement Agent has advised or is currently advising the Issuer on other matters) or (b) any other 


obligation to the Issuer except the obligations expressly set forth in this Placement Agent Agreement, 


and (iv) the Issuer has consulted with its own legal and other professional advisors to the extent it 


deemed appropriate in connection with the offering of the Obligations. 


The Obligations shall be issued under and pursuant to the Equipment Lease/Purchase 


Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2022 (the “Issuing Document”), by and between the Issuer and 


Banc of America Public Capital Corp, (the “Lessor”).    


Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations, warranties and 


agreements set forth herein, the Placement Agent and the Issuer hereby agree as follows: 


1. Appointment of Placement Agent; Placement of Obligations; Closing. 


(a) The Issuer hereby appoints the Placement Agent to act, and the Placement 


Agent hereby agrees to act, as the exclusive placement agent for the Issuer in connection with the 


private sale and issuance of its Obligations, and the Placement Agent hereby accepts such appointment.  


As compensation for its services hereunder, the Placement Agent shall charge a fee of $17,500.  At the 


closing of any such sale, the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid such fee to the Placement Agent by 


wire transfer or immediately available funds.  The above fee does not include any services the 


Placement Agent may render in the future to the Issuer with respect to any offering or placement of 


municipal securities other than the Obligations. 


(b) The Issuer understands that the Placement Agent will be acting as the agent of 


the Issuer in the offering and sale of the Obligations and agrees that, in connection therewith, the 


Placement Agent will use its “best efforts” to place the Obligations. The Placement Agent agrees that, 


317/371







2 
4826-1295-8409v6/200721-0005 


in furtherance of its obligations hereunder, it shall provide substantially accurate and complete 


information to potential purchasers of the Obligations to the extent that it is able. 


(c) The Issuer expressly agrees that nothing in this Agreement evidences or creates 


any expressed or implied commitment by the Placement Agent to purchase or place any of the 


Obligations. 


(d) On the closing date, the Issuer will cause to be delivered (a) a final approving 


opinion of Lozano Smith, as Special Counsel to the Issuer (“Special Counsel”), dated the closing date, 


addressed to or with a reliance letter to the Placement Agent, in a form acceptable to the Placement 


Agent, to the effect that the Obligations constitute valid and legally binding obligations of the Issuer 


payable from any legally available funds as set forth in the Issuing Document (b) one or more 


certificates in form and tenor satisfactory to the Placement Agent evidencing the proper execution and 


delivery of the Obligations and receipt of payment therefor, including statements of the Issuer, dated 


as of the date of such delivery, to the effect that there is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of 


the signer or signers thereof, threatened relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Obligations, 


(c) a letter or certificate of the Purchaser, addressed to the Placement Agent, in form and content 


acceptable to the Placement Agent. 


2. Reliance.  The Issuer recognizes that, in providing services under this Agreement, the 


Placement Agent will rely upon and assume the accuracy and completeness of the financial, 


accounting, tax and other information discussed with or reviewed by the Placement Agent for such 


purpose, and the Placement Agent does not assume responsibility for the accuracy and completeness 


thereof.  The Placement Agent will have no obligation to conduct any independent evaluation or 


appraisal of the assets or the liabilities of the Issuer or any other party or to advise or opine on related 


solvency issues.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer upon any other person (including 


creditors, employees or other constituencies of the Issuer) any rights or remedies hereunder or by 


reason hereof. 


3. Termination.  The Placement Agent’s authorization to carry out its duties hereunder 


may be terminated by the Issuer or the Placement Agent at any time with or without cause, effective 


upon receipt of written notice to that effect by the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the 


event the Issuer terminates this Agreement and within twelve (12) months after the Issuer sells the 


Obligations to an investor identified by the Placement Agent prior to such termination, the amounts 


payable under Section 1(a) shall be immediately due and payable to the Placement Agent by the Issuer.   


4. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given to any of the parties to this 


Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing as follows:  to the Issuer at 133 Mission 


St., Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060, Attention: Superintendent, and to the Placement Agent at 


580 California Street, Suite 2300, San Francisco, California 94104, Attention:  Municipal Capital 


Markets Group. 


5. Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements.  This Agreement is made 


solely for the benefit of the Issuer and the Placement Agent, and no other person shall acquire or have 


any right hereunder or by virtue hereof.  All of the representations, warranties and agreements of the 


Issuer contained in this Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of 


delivery of any payment for the Obligations. 


318/371







3 
4826-1295-8409v6/200721-0005 


6. Counterparts.  The Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 


shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 


7. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall become effective upon the execution of the 


acceptance hereof by duly authorized signatory of the Issuer, which acceptance hereof shall be 


indicated on the signature page hereof, and shall be valid and enforceable as of the time of such 


acceptance.  This Agreement may be executed by facsimile transmission and in several counterparts, 


each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same 


document. 


8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 


with the laws of the State of California. 


 


 


Very truly yours, 


OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC. 


By:   


Managing Director 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


By:    


 Kris Munro, Superintendent


319/371







4 
4826-1295-8409v6/200721-0005 


 


320/371







BOARD OF EDUCATION
Mr. Ed Acosta
Ms. Alyssa Alto
Ms. Rose Filicetti
Ms. Sandra Nichols
Ms. Sue Roth
Mr. Abel Sanchez
Mr. Bruce Van Allen


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org


December 29, 2021


Ms. Deb Tracy-Proulx (Board President)


317 Effey Street


Santa Cruz, CA 95062


Dear Ms. Tracy-Proulx:


On January 12, 2022, the governing board of Santa Cruz City Schools is scheduled to take action to
approve or deny authorization of the issuance of the District’s 2022 Solar and HVAC Lease
Financing, in an approximate amount of $7,000,000. We thank you for your submission, which
satisfies all the requirements of Ed Code, as detailed below.


Education Code Section 17150.1 requires the following:


No later than 30 days before the approval by the governing board of the school district to
proceed with the issuance of certificates of participation and other debt instruments that are
secured by real property and do not require approval of the voters of the school district, the
school district shall notify the county superintendent of schools and the county auditor.


This Education Code section further requires the following:


The superintendent of the school district shall provide information necessary to assess the
anticipated effect of the debt issuance, including the repayment schedules for that debt
obligation, evidence of the ability of the school district to repay that obligation, and the
issuance costs, to the county auditor, the county superintendent, the governing board and
the public.


The code also states:


Within 15 days of the receipt of the information, the county superintendent of schools and
the county auditor may comment publicly to the governing board of the school district
regarding the capability of the school district to repay that debt obligation.


321/371







On December 10, 2021, we received an electronic copy of the following:


• District Lease Financing letter
• Disclosure of non-voter-approved debt
• Cost of issuance budget
• 2022 Lease annual net debt service schedule
• Fund 01 - 1st Interim Multi Year projections


Our review of the proposed financing focused on the following questions:


1. Why is the district borrowing?


The district is borrowing Lease Financing to help finance energy efficiency and
safety projects, including equipment and installation for solar and HVAC.


2. What is the annual obligation, including costs of issuance, debt service
repayment, and administrative costs?


The annual obligation range is projected to be $731,667 to $734,432 from fiscal
years 2022-2023 through maturity in fiscal year 2031-2032, with an estimated
cost of issuance of $158,000 (see detail in #6 below).


3. What are the planned repayment sources?


The planned repayment sources are:


• Annual Redevelopment Agency Revenue
• General Fund 01 unrestricted revenues


4. What is the risk the obligation will vary year to year over the life of the
issuance?


Interest on the proposed Lease Financing is fixed, and annual payments will be
predictable, per the annual debt service schedule.


We note the payment varies slightly from year to year but the amount is not
material.


5. What is the likelihood the planned sources for repayment will be sufficient?


The revenue projections for the planned sources of repayment are reasonable.
The District provided a projection for Fund 40 which appears to be sufficient. In
addition, Fund 01 multi-year projection has a reasonably adequate fund balance
to cover any potential shortfall in Fund 40.


6. What is the cost of issuance and is it reasonable?


Administrative costs related to the total cost of issuance of $158,000 are:


• Financial Advisor $60,000


322/371







• Placement Agent $20,000
• Title Insurance $7,000
• Lender’s Counsel $15,000
• Bond Counsel $45,000
• Nonprofit Corporation $6,000
• Miscellaneous (CDIAC, other expenses) $5,000


The only way to know whether the estimated cost of issuance is reasonable is to
competitively select each outside professional engaged to help with the
financing. Having said this, we note that the cost of issuance is equal to
approximately 2.34% of the principal.


Summary and Conclusions


This proposed debt issuance appears to be in the best interest of the district, and repayment
is probable. If you have any questions concerning our review, please feel free to contact
our office.


Sincerely,


Liann Reyes
Deputy Superintendent, Business Services


cc: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools / COE
Kris Munro, Superintendent / Santa Cruz City Schools
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services / Santa Cruz City Schools
Rebecca Olker, Executive Director, Fiscal Services / COE


323/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing: New Personnel Commissioner 


      


MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 


 


FROM:    Molly Resources, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 


 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


BACKGROUND: 


Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners. One 


commissioner is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is appointed 


by the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two members. The 


current personnel commissioner’s term has ended, resulting in a need to appoint a new 


Personnel Commissioner. Public will have the opportunity to give input on the recommended 


Personnel Commissioner, prior to appointment by the Governing Board. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


None 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


 


324/371







 


 


 
 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


PERSONNEL COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENT  
2021-22 


 
DATE:  WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022 


TIME: 6:30 P.M. 
 


LOCATION: 
SCCS BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 


https://sccs-
net.zoom.us/j/83653244126?pwd=eGNDbFFrQ3JmRUxwdmJxZ0FXS


Ddrdz09  


Passcode: SCCS 
 
 


The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for community input regarding  
the appointment of a new personnel commissioner. 


 
You are invited to attend. 


 


 


 


325/371







 


 


 
 


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 
 


NOMBRAMIENTO DE COMISIONADO DE 
PERSONAL 


2021-22 
 


FECHA: MIERCOLES, 12 de ENERO, 2022 
HORA: 6:30 P.M. 


 
LUGAR: 


JUNTA DEL CONSEJO JUNTA DIRECTIVA DE 


SCCS 


 
https://sccs-


net.zoom.us/j/83653244126?pwd=eGNDbFFrQ3JmRUxwdmJxZ0FXS
Ddrdz09  


Contraseña: SCCS 
 
 


El propósito de la audiencia es proporcionar un foro público para la opinión de la comunidad con 
respecto a appointment of a new personnel commissioner. 


 
Usted está invitado a asistir. 


 


326/371







AGENDA ITEM: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  New Personnel Commissioner 


      


MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 


 


FROM:    Molly Resources, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 


 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the appointment of Carol McKee to the Personnel Commission as the Board-appointed 


member. 


 


BACKGROUND: 


Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners. One 


commissioner is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is appointed 


by the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two members. Following 


the public hearing, the governing board may approve the appointment of the personnel 


commissioner in accordance with Education Code 45246. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


None 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


 


327/371







Carol MacQuiddy McKee
424 0ceanview Ave


Santa Cruz, CA 95062
831 428-9549


Teen Kitchen Project
June 2020-present
Administrative Assistant
Coordinate special projects for a non-profit that serves meals to families in
medical crisis.


Antique Dealer
2001-present. Self-employed.
Resale and wholesale sale of antiques.  Assist in coordinating sales at Center
Street Antiques in Soquel.


SCCS Parcel Tax Oversight Committee
2017-present
Community Representative


Gault Parent Teacher Organization
2009-present  Parent Volunteer
2016-present Treasurer
Develop and implement budgets, assist in preparing tax documents.
Coordinate fundraisers, community events.


Santa Cruz City Youth Soccer League
2015-2018 Board Member & Recreational Teams Coordinator
Coordinated and supervised coaches for 6 age divisions of recreational teams.
Worked with other board members to facilitate Recreational and Competitive
soccer for 2000+ youth per season.


328/371







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.4.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Annual Resolution #17-21-22 Determination of K-12 District 
Needs for 2022-2023 


 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #17-21-22 Determination of K-12 District Needs for 2022-2023 
school year. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44955(d), each year, the Board of Education determines 
the District needs in order to retain services of certificated employees in the 2022-2023 school 
year, regardless of seniority, who possess qualifications needed for certain programs. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


329/371







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.4.3. 
 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
RESOLUTION # 17-21-22  


 
DETERMINATION OF K-12 DISTRICT NEEDS FOR 2022-2023 


 
 


WHEREAS, California Education Code Section 44955(d) requests the Governing Board to 
demonstrate the District needs in order to deviate from terminating certificated employees in 
order of seniority. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that it will be necessary to retain the services of certificated 
employees in the 2022-2023 school year, regardless of seniority, who possess qualifications 
needed for the following programs and/or subject matters: 
  


1. Teachers with experience in the District’s Dual Language Two-Way Language Immersion 
Program (Dos Alas). 


 
2. English Teachers who hold a bilingual (Spanish) authorization (BCLAD or BLCOC). 


 
3. Special Credentials/Certifications/Certificates:  


 Bilingual (BCLAD) or equivalent (BLCOC) 


 Preliminary or Clear Credentialed certificated staff over those providing service 
under a provisional or intern credential 


 
3. Demonstration of bilingual competency for School Counselors, School Nurses, School 


Psychologists, School Social Workers and Speech Therapists. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District will deviate from terminating certificated employees 
in seniority order, if necessary, to meet the above needs. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
held on January 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
AYES: _________    NOES: _________    ABSTENTIONS:_________ ABSENT: _________ 
 
 
  
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
 


330/371







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.4.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Annual Resolution #18-21-22 Tie Breaking Criteria  
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #18-21-22 Tie Breaking Criteria for Seniority Order for Certificated 
Employees with the Same First Date of Paid Service. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44955(d), each year, the Board of Education is required to 
determine the District needs should it become necessary to establish the seniority of 
employees who first rendered paid service to the District on the same date.  The criteria 
identified in this resolution will be used to break ties for the employees with the same first date 
of paid service. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


331/371







                                                                                                          


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION # 18-21-22 
 


TIE BREAKING CRITERIA FOR SENIORITY ORDER FOR CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES 
WITH THE SAME FIRST DATE OF PAID SERVICE 


 
 
WHEREAS, California Education Code Section 44955 (b) requires that the Governing Board 
determine the order of layoff between certificated employees having the same first date of 
paid service solely on the basis of the needs of the District and its students, 
 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the below-listed criteria, in order of priority, be used to determine the order of 


termination of certificated employees first rendering paid service to the District on 
the same date; and 


 
2. That the Superintendent or designee applies the adopted criteria to affected 


employees to determine order of termination as related to the needs of the District 
and its students. 


 
CRITERION #1: Bilingual Cross-cultural Language and Academic Development 


(BCLAD) or equivalent or demonstration of bilingual 
competency for School Counselors, School Nurses, School 
Psychologists, School Social Workers and Speech Therapists. 


 
CRITERION #2: Preliminary or clear credentials over intern or provisional 


credentials. 
 
CRITERION #3: Holds multiple preliminary and/or clear credential 


authorizations including supplemental authorizations. 
 
CRITERION #4: Additional years of service, years of temporary service in the  


District prior to seniority date.  For Career Technical Education 
(CTE) Teachers, years of temporary service with the Santa Cruz 
County Office of Education prior to district seniority date. 


 
CRITERION #5: Holds a Masters and/or Doctorate degree. 


 
CRITERION #6: Number of post-baccaulaureate semester units recorded in 


employee’s personnel file. 
 
 


332/371







                                                                                                          


If a tie remains after applying the above criteria, the tie shall be broken by lot. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
held on January 12, 2022. 
 
AYES: _________   NOES: _________   ABSTENTIONS:_________   ABSENT: _________ 
 
 
  
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
 


333/371







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.4.5 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation 


of Teachers and Santa Cruz City Schools  
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers and 
Santa Cruz City Schools for 2021-2022. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A Tentative Agreement was reached on January 6, 2022.  The agreement between Santa Cruz 
City Schools and the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers includes: 


 Academic Calendars for the next 3 years (2022-23, 2023-24, and 2024-25) 


 Article XXV- Digital Teaching and Learning 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


334/371







335/371







336/371







337/371







338/371







339/371







340/371







341/371







 


                                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 19-21-22: Proclaiming February as Black History Month 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate on the resolution of Santa Cruz City Schools to proclaim February as 
Black History Month. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools strives for all students to feel safe and welcome in their schools and to 
see themselves represented in the curricula.  Santa Cruz City Schools recognizes the important 
contributions of local, State, and National African Americans to the history of the United States, 
by promoting social justice, enhancing health and well-being, and building a sense of 
community for African Americans. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


342/371







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


RESOLUTION # 19-21-22 


Proclaiming February as Black History Month 


 


WHEREAS, the origin of Black History Month began in 1915, half a century after the Thirteenth 


Amendment abolished slavery in the United States; and 


 


WHEREAS, with the Civil Rights Movement and a growing awareness of black identity, Black 


History Month or National African American History Month evolved to an annual celebration of 


achievements by black Americans and a time for recognizing the central role of African 


Americans in U.S. history; and  


 


WHEREAS, the contributions of African Americans from all walks of life and their endeavors to 


learn and thrive throughout history and make unforgettable marks in our Nation as artists, 


scientists, educators, business people, influential thinkers, members of the faith community, 


athletes, and political and governmental leaders, reflects the greatness of the United States; 


and  


 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools again affirms its commitment to appreciating, celebrating 


and valuing its African American students, and recognizes the importance of acknowledging the 


history, culture and struggles of our African American community; and 


 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools recognizes and celebrates the history and contributions of 


African American citizens who have been consistently overlooked and undervalued in the 


curriculum of public education institutions; and  


 


WHEREAS, the struggle against racism continues here in Santa Cruz as well as the rest of the 


world, Santa Cruz City Schools has demonstrated a commitment to promoting education and 


community conversation on racial injustice, and  


 


WHEREAS, remaining hopeful and confident about the path ahead, and a time to acknowledge 


the courageous fight for the rights, liberties, and freedoms for all Americans, the Santa Cruz 


City Schools Board of Education observes and honors Black History Month and encourages 


educators, students, and families to learn about the heritage and achievements of African-


Americans through appropriate programs and activities: 


 


343/371







NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education does 


hereby adopt this resolution to honor Black History Month and recognize the tremendous 


contributions made by African-Americans.  


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education at a meeting held on 


January 12, 2022, by the following vote:  


 


Ayes: 


Noes: 


Absent: 


Abstain: 


 


Approved on this date, January 12, 2022 


 


 


_________________________________   _____________________________ 


Board President, Santa Cruz City Schools   Superintendent, Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


 


344/371







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 20-21-22 Assembly Bill 361  
      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 20-21-22 authorizing continued use of remote teleconferencing provisions 
pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Consistent with Government code section 54953, on September 22, 2021, Santa Cruz City 
Schools Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  


At the January 12, 2022, meeting, the Board will discuss and consider adopting Resolution 20-
21-22, to make a finding after reconsidering the state of the pandemic, that the current 
circumstances meet the requirements of AB 361 and Government Code section 54953 for the 
Board to continue conducting meetings remotely. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


 


345/371







SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 


RESOLUTION NO. 20-21-22 AUTHORIZING USE OF REMOTE  


TELECONFERENCING PROVISIONS (AB 361) 


 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (“Board of 


Education”) is committed to open and transparent government, and full compliance with the 


Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”); and  


 


WHEREAS, the Brown Act generally requires that a public agency take certain actions in order 


to use teleconferencing to attend a public meeting virtually; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education recognizes that a local emergency persists due to the 


worldwide COVID-19 pandemic; and 


 


WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the ongoing state of emergency due to 


the COVID-19 pandemic and has responded by creating an additional means for public meetings 


to be held via teleconference (inclusive of internet-based virtual meetings); and 


 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (“AB”) 


361, which amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 


teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 


officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 


determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would 


present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body holds a 


meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 


to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present 


imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, in order for the Board of Education to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 


after October 1, 2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the Board of 


Education to conduct teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) says; and 


 


WHEREAS, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency for the State of California 


due to the COVID-19 pandemic in his order entitled “Proclamation of a State of Emergency,” 


signed March 4, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education hereby finds that the state and local emergencies have 


caused and will continue to cause imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education is conducting its meetings through the use of telephonic 


and internet-based services so that members of the public may observe and participate in 


meetings and offer public comment.  


 


346/371







NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals set forth above are true and correct 


and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.   


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education has determined that given the 


state of emergency, holding in-person meetings would present imminent risks to the health or 


safety of attendees.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions taken by the Board of Education through this 


resolution apply to any and all District committees which are otherwise governed by the Brown 


Act.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Education authorizes the County Superintendent 


of Schools or their designee(s) to take all actions necessary to conduct Board of Education 


meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable 


provisions of the Brown Act, using teleconferencing for a period of January 12, 2022 through 


February 12, 2022, thirty (30) days from the adoption of this Resolution after which the Board of 


Education will reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 12th day of 


January 2022, by the following vote: 


 


AYES          _____ 


 


NOES         _____ 


 


ABSENT     _____ 


 


ABSTAIN    _____    
 


 


347/371







Assembly Bill 361
January 12, 2022


348/371







Assembly Bill 361
Effective September 16, 2021


If there is a proclaimed state of emergency, agencies can choose to 
continue virtual board meetings if:


● State or local officials have imposed or recommended social 
distancing


Or


● Meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety or attendees due to the emergency


349/371







Previous Executive Order


Executive Order N-29-20:


● Allows, but does not require electronic meetings


● Requires opportunity for public to observe and address
electronically


● Expired September 30, 2021


350/371







● Location(s) must be open and accessible to the public


● Agenda must identify all locations and be posted in all locations


● Public comment must be allowed at all locations


Teleconference under the Brown Act:


351/371







● Allows, but does not require, electronic meetings for local 
agencies


● Similar, but modified, requires from Executive Order N 29-20


● Agencies must reevaluate every 30 days if electronic meetings 
are appropriate 


● Effective until 2024


AB 361 modifications:


352/371







Recommendation:


● Continue to livestream meetings of the Board of Education for 
the next thirty (30) days as ongoing community spread of COVID 
19 continues to pose imminent risk to the health and safety of 
attendees.


353/371







    


                                                                                                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.3.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Board Policies: Second and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & 
Updates  


      
MEETING DATE:  January 12, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/deleted/new policies as submitted for first and/or final reading and 
adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  The Policy Guidesheet provides a 
basic overview of the policy changes.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


354/371







CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
September 2021 


Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits.  Editorial changes have also been made.  Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 


Board Policy 0470 - COVID-19 Mitigation Plan 
Policy updated to add new note to reflect that districts are obligated to comply with COVID-19 mitigation 
requirements from multiple jurisdictional authorities including the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH), the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA), and local health authorities, 
to reflect guidance from CDPH and Cal/OSHA's COVID-19 prevention program, and reflect requirements 
for districts to create and post COVID-19 safety plans.  Policy updated to direct the Superintendent and/or 
designee to establish and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan that complies with public health guidance of 
CDPH, the requirements of Cal/OSHA, any orders of state or local health authorities, and any other applicable 
law and/or health order(s) and to omit specific details regarding COVID-19 mitigation practices due to the 
evolving nature of public health guidance.  Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 86, 2021) and NEW 
LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring the reporting of specified COVID-19 cases to CDPH and requiring the 
reporting of other information to the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE).  Policy 
updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 86, 2021) and NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring districts that receive 
Extended Learning Opportunities (ELO) grant funding to implement a learning recovery program that 
provides supplemental instruction, support for social-emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent 
permissible as specified in U.S. Department of Agriculture guidelines, meals and snacks, to eligible students. 
Policy also updated to include promising practices for reengaging chronically absent students and to direct 
the Superintendent or designee to ensure the continuity of instruction for students who may be under a 
quarantine order to stay home by offering such students independent study or other instructional delivery 
channels that allows the student to continue to participate in the instructional program to the greatest extent 
possible. 


Board Policy 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring districts applying to the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction to obtain apportionment credit for days and minutes lost due to emergency closure after 
September 1, 2021 to certify in an affidavit that the district has a plan for offering independent study within 
10 days of school closure to impacted students. Policy also updated to reflect requirement that the plan for 
independent study address the establishment, within a reasonable time, of independent study master 
agreements and require the reopening in person once allowable under direction from the city or county health 
officer.   


Board Policy 4131 - Staff Development 
Policy updated to incorporate concepts of student well-being and social-emotional development and learning 
as it relates to professional development, to clarify that the development of the staff development program 
includes creating, reviewing and amending the program, to reflect the State Board of Education's California 
Digital Learning Integration and Standards Guidance regarding staff development in the use of technologies, 
to reference NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) regarding requirements for districts offering technology-based 
instruction pursuant to an independent study program, and to expand the list of characteristics that are 
included in diverse student populations as related to staff development in meeting the needs of such students. 
Policy also updated to enhance staff development regarding school climate to include acceptance, civility, 
and positive behavioral interventions and supports, and staff development regarding student's mental and 
physical health to include social-emotional learning and trauma-informed practices.  


355/371







Board Policy 6120 - Response to Instruction and Intervention 
Policy updated to emphasize the importance of learning and behavioral outcomes and progress monitoring 
as it relates to response to instruction and intervention (RtI2), reference multi-tiered system of supports 
(MTSS) and the integration of RtI2 into such frameworks, expand the list of individuals that may be included 
in designing the district's RtI2 system, add the examination of student social-emotional well-being as one of 
the bases for design, provide more detail regarding strategies and interventions including ten core components 
of the RtI2 model identified by the California Department of Education, and that RtI2 may be utilized as one 
component when considering the referral of a student for evaluation for special education or other services. 


Board Policy 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements 
Policy updated to clarify requirements for mathematics coursework, reflect NEW LAW (AB 104, 2021) 
which requires districts to exempt a student from district graduation requirements if the student was in the 
third or fourth year of high school during the 2020–21 school year and is not on track to graduate in four 
years, and to provide a student who was enrolled in the third or fourth year of high school during the 2020-
21 school year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021–22 school years the opportunity to 
complete the statewide coursework required for graduation, which may include, but is not limited to, 
completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit recovery, or other opportunity to 
complete the required coursework.   


Board Policy 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education 
Policy updated to reference the U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) Return to School Roadmap: Child 
Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which reaffirms the obligation to fully 
implement the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including the requirement to meet child find obligations, and encourages districts to reexamine the efficacy 
of existing child find practices in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.   


Board Policy 6164.41 - Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private School 
Policy updated to reorganize and clarify material. 


Board Policy 6164.5 - Student Success Teams 
Policy updated to reference that the student success team (SST) process is not required by law and that the 
policy reflects best practices, clarify those who are encouraged to collaborate in SSTs, include social and 
emotional difficulties when evaluating the strengths and needs of students and establishing interventions, 
emphasize the importance of each student maximizing their potential, specify who may refer students to 
SSTs, add types of materials appropriate for collection, analysis and review by the SST, provide for the 
development of a plan to support the student and adjustments to such plan, reflect that the SST process shall 
not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, reference MTSS and the 
integration of SSTs with such supports, and add staff development which may be provided to strengthen the 
effectiveness of SSTs.  


356/371







Policy 0470: COVID-19 Mitigation PlanPolicy 0470: COVID-19 Mitigation Plan Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/2020 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2020


The following policy establishes actions that will be taken by the district to provide a safe learning and working 
environment during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and shall supersede any conflicting language in existing 
district policies or administrative regulations until the Governing Board determines that the need for this policy no 
longer exists.  The Board acknowledges that, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, federal, state, and local 
orders impacting district operations are subject to change without notice.  In the event that any federal or state law 
and/or order or local order may conflict with this policy, the law or order shall govern.


The Board may also adopt resolutions or take other actions as needed to respond to such orders or provide further 
direction during the pandemic.


To limit the impact of the pandemic on the education of district students, the district shall implement learning 
recovery, social-emotional support, and other measures and strategies designed to keep students learning and 
engaged in the instructional program.


COVID-19 Safety Plan


The Superintendent or designee shall establish, implement, and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan that complies with 
any mandatory public health guidance of the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), the COVID-19 
prevention program ("CPP") consistent with the regulations of the California Division of Occupational Safety and 
Health, any orders of state or local health authorities, and any other applicable law and/or health order(s).  The 
Superintendent or designee shall ensure, at a minimum, that the COVID-19 safety plan complies with all mandatory 
guidance and gives priority to recommended practices that are identified as being particularly effective at COVID-19 
mitigation.  The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review public health guidance to ensure that the district's 
COVID-19 mitigation strategies are current with public health mandates or recommendations.


The district's COVID-19 safety plan shall be posted on the district's web site.


To promote transparency and facilitate decision-making regarding COVID-19 mitigation strategies, the 
Superintendent or designee shall update the Board on a regular basis regarding the following:


1. Level of community transmission of COVID-19


2. COVID-19 vaccination coverage in the community and among students and staff


3. Any local COVID-19 outbreaks or increasing trends


4. Changes to local, state, and/or federal public health guidance, orders, and laws


5. Any revisions to the district's COVID-19 safety plan


Reporting to the Public Health Department


Upon learning that a school employee or student who has tested positive for COVID-19 was present on campus 
while infectious, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the local health officer or the local health officer's 
representative about the positive case.  The notification shall be made even if the individual who tested positive has 
not provided prior consent to the disclosure of personally identifiable information and shall include all of the 
following information, if known:
 (Education Code 32090)


1. Identifying information of the individual who tested positive, including full name, address, telephone number, 
and date of birth


2. The date of the positive test, the school(s) at which the individual was present, and the date the individual was 
last onsite at the school(s)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


357/371







3. The name, address, and telephone number of the person making the report


If a school has two or more outbreaks of COVID-19 and is subject to a safety review by CDPH pursuant to Education 
Code 32090, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate fully with the review.


Statewide Instructional Mode Survey


On or before the second and fourth Monday of each month, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the 
California Collaborative for Educational (CCEE) information required under Education Code 32091, in accordance with 
the form and procedures determined by  CCEE.


Stakeholder Engagement and Community Relations


The district shall solicit input from stakeholders on how to best support students following the learning disruptions of 
the pandemic through appropriate methods, which may include surveys, community and family meetings, and other 
methods identified by the Superintendent or designee.


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local health authorities to ensure that parents/guardians are 
provided with the information needed to ensure that public health guidance is observed in the home as well as in 
school, such as information about isolation and quarantine requirements, face mask requirements, symptom checks 
prior to school attendance, and who to contact when students have symptoms and/or were exposed.


The Superintendent or designee shall use a variety of methods to regularly communicate with students,
parents/guardians, and the community regarding district operations, school schedules, and steps the district is taking 
to promote the health and safety of students.  In addition, the members of the Board have a responsibility as 
community leaders to communicate matters of public interest in a manner that is consistent with Board policies and 
bylaws regarding public statements.


The district shall continue to collaborate with local health officials and agencies, community organizations, and other 
stakeholders to ensure that district operations reflect current recommendations and best practices for COVID-19 
mitigation strategies.  The Superintendent or designee shall keep informed about resources and services available in 
the community to assist students and families in need.


Learning Recovery and Social-Emotional Support


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for assessing students' current academic levels early in the school 
year to ensure that each student is provided with appropriate opportunities for learning recovery based on need.  The 
plan may include:


1. Use of interim or diagnostic assessments


2. Review of available data from assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress


3. Review of attendance data from the 2020-2021 school year


4. Review of prior year grades


5. Discussion of student needs and strengths with parents/guardians and former teachers


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a learning recovery program that, at a minimum, 
provides supplemental instruction and support for social emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent 
permissible meals and snacks, to eligible students.  (Education Code 43522)


Supplemental Instruction and Support


The district shall provide students with evidence-based supports and interventions in a tiered framework that bases 
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated


358/371







student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate.  (Education Code 
43522)


Targeted and intensive supports may include:  (Education Code 43522)


1. Extending instructional learning time based on student learning needs including through summer school or 
other after school instructional programs


2. Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or classified staff


3. Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate student academic proficiency, English 
language proficiency, or both


4. Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning, such as:


a. The provision of health, counseling, or mental health services


b. Access to school meal programs


c. Access to before and after school programs


d. Programs to address student trauma and social-emotional learning


e. Referrals for support for family or student needs


5. Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade promotion requirements and to 
increase or improve students' college eligibility


6. Additional academic services for students, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and benchmark 
assessments of student learning


7. Other interventions identified by the Superintendent or designee


To ensure schoolwide implementation of the district's tiered framework of supports, the Superintendent or designee 
shall plan staff development that includes:  (Education Code 43522)


1. Accelerated learning strategies and effective techniques for closing learning gaps, including training in 
facilitating quality learning opportunities for all students


2. Strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage students and families in addressing students' social-
emotional health needs and academic needs


Reengagement for Chronically Absent Students


The Superintendent or designee shall implement strategies for identifying, locating, and reengaging students who 
were chronically absent or disengaged during the 2020-21 school year, including students who were kindergarten-
age but who did not enroll in kindergarten.   Strategies for reengaging students may include:


1. Personal outreach to families, including by staff who are known to families


2. Door-to-door campaigns


3. The use of social media to spread awareness about the implementation of COVID-19 mitigation strategies


4. Welcoming and supporting students who experienced chronic absenteeism due to the COVID-19 pandemic or 
who are returning to school after a long absence


359/371







Student Absence and Attendance


The Board recognizes that COVID-19 will continue to impact the attendance of students.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall notify students and parents/guardians of expectations regarding school attendance.  Such notification 
shall direct any student who contracts the virus or is subject to a quarantine order to stay home in accordance with 
state and local health orders.


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure continuity of instruction for students who may be under a quarantine 
order to stay home, by offering such students independent study or other instructional delivery channels that allows 
the student to continue to participate in the instructional program to the greatest extent possible.


Nondiscrimination


The Board prohibits discrimination based on actual or perceived medical condition or disability status.  (Government 
Code 11135)


Individual students and staff shall not be identified as being COVID-positive, nor shall students be shamed, treated 
differently, or denied access to a free and appropriate public education because of their COVID-19 status or medical 
condition.  Staff shall not disclose confidential or privileged information, including the medical history or health 
information of students and staff except as allowed by law.  (Education Code 49450)


The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any reports of harassment, intimidation, and bullying targeted at any 
student based on their medical condition or COVID status, exposure, or high-risk status.


360/371







Policy 3516.5: Emergency SchedulesPolicy 3516.5: Emergency Schedules Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1992 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2010


In order to provide for the safety of students and staff, the Governing Board authorizes the Superintendent or 
designee to close a school site, change the regular school day schedule, or take any necessary action when hazardous 
environmental or weather conditions or other emergencies warrant.


When an emergency condition causes a school closure, reduction in attendance, or change in schedule pursuant to 
Education Code 41422 or 46392, thereby preventing the district from complying with the minimum number of 
instructional days or minutes required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall complete and submit to the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) the necessary forms and/or affidavits for obtaining approval of 
apportionment credit for the days of the closure, reduction in attendance, or change in schedule.  The Superintendent 
or designee shall submit other relevant district records as may be required.


For school closures due to emergency events occurring after September 1, 2021, the Superintendent or designee shall 
develop a plan for offering independent study within 10 days of school closure to any student impacted by the 
emergency condition.  The plan shall also address the establishment, within a reasonable time, of independent study 
master agreements as specified in BP 6158 - Independent Study.  The plan shall require reopening in person as soon 
as possible once allowable under the direction from the city or county health officer.  The Superintendent or designee 
shall certify that the district has a plan for independent study in the affidavit submitted to the SPI pursuant to 
Education Code 46392.  (Education Code 46393)


The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system for informing students and parents/guardians when school 
buses are not operating as scheduled, the school day schedule is changed, or the school is closed.  The district's 
notification system shall include, but is not limited to, notifying local television and radio stations, posting on district 
web site(s), sending email and text messages, and/or making telephone calls.


Whenever the school day schedule changes after students have arrived at school, the Superintendent or designee 
shall ensure that students are supervised in accordance with the procedures specified in the district's emergency and 
disaster preparedness plan.


The Superintendent or designee may provide a means to make up lost instructional time later during the year.  
Students and parents/guardians shall receive timely notice in advance of any resulting changes in the school calendar 
or school day schedule.


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


361/371







Policy 4131: Staff DevelopmentPolicy 4131: Staff Development Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2008 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2015


The Governing Board believes that, in order to maximize student learning, achievement, and well-being, certificated 
staff members must be continuously learning and improving relevant skills.  The Superintendent or designee shall 
develop a program of ongoing professional development which includes opportunities for teachers to enhance their 
instructional and classroom management skills, become informed about changes in pedagogy and subject matter, and 
strengthen practices related to social-emotional development and learning.


The Superintendent or designee shall involve teachers, site and district administrators, and others, as appropriate, 
when creating, reviewing, and amending the district's staff development program.  The Superintendent or designee 
shall ensure that the district's staff development program is aligned with district priorities for student learning, 
achievement and well-being, school improvement objectives, the local control and accountability plan, and other 
district and school plans.


The district's staff development program shall assist certificated staff in developing knowledge and skills, including, 
but not limited to:


1. Mastery of subject-matter knowledge, including current state and district academic standards


2. Use of effective, subject-specific teaching methods, strategies, and skills


3. Use of technologies to enhance instruction and learning, including face-to-face, remote, or hybrid instruction


4. Sensitivity to and ability to meet the needs of diverse student populations, including, but not limited to, students 
with characteristics specified in Education Code 200 and/or 220, Government Code 11135, and/or Penal Code 
422.55


5. Understanding of how academic and career technical instruction can be integrated and implemented to increase 
student learning


6. Knowledge of strategies that encourage parents/guardians to participate fully and effectively in their children's 
education


7. Effective classroom management skills and strategies for establishing a climate that promotes respect, fairness, 
acceptance, and civility, including conflict resolution, hatred prevention, and positive behavioral interventions 
and supports


8. Ability to relate to students, understand their various stages of growth and development, and motivate them to 
learn


9. Ability to interpret and use data and assessment results to guide instruction


10. Knowledge of topics related to student mental and physical health, safety, and welfare, which may include 
social-emotional learning and trauma-informed practices


11. Knowledge of topics related to employee health, safety, and security


The Superintendent or designee shall, in conjunction with teachers, interns, and administrators, as appropriate,
develop an individualized program of professional growth to increase competence, performance, and effectiveness in
teaching and classroom management and, as necessary, to assist them in meeting state or federal requirements to be
fully qualified for their positions.


Professional learning opportunities offered by the district shall be evaluated based on the criteria specified in
Education Code 44277.  Such opportunities may be part of a coherent plan that combines school activities within a


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


362/371







school, including lesson study or co-teaching, and external learning opportunities that are related to academic 
subjects taught, provide time to meet and work with other teachers, and support instruction and student learning. 
 Learning activities may include, but are not limited to, mentoring projects for new teachers, extra support for 
teachers to improve practice, and collaboration time for teachers to develop new instructional lessons, select or 
develop common formative assessments, or analyze student data.  (Education Code 44277)


The district's staff evaluation process may be used to recommend additional individualized staff development for 
individual employees.


The Board may budget funds for actual and reasonable expenses incurred by staff who participate in staff 
development activities.


The Superintendent or designee shall provide a means for continual evaluation of the benefit of staff development 
activities to both staff and students and shall regularly report to the Board regarding the effectiveness of the staff 
development program.  Based on the Superintendent's report, the Board may revise the program as necessary to 
ensure that the staff development program supports the district's priorities for student achievement and well-being.


363/371







SAMPLE Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees. As part of
the district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for
protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for providing necessary
assistance and support when emergency situations occur.


Any person who threatens the safety of others at any district facility may be removed by the Superintendent


or designee in accordance with AR 3515.2 - Disruptions.


Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall
notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall
initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the workplace. Such measures


may include seeking a temporary restraining order on behalf of the employee pursuant to Code of Civil


Procedure 527.8 and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.


Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the


Superintendent or designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Labor Code


230-230.1 and the accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at


work.


The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a student or the


student's parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee 's person or property caused by
the student's willful misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district activity, or in
retaliation for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of the employee's duties. (Education Code
48904, 48905)


The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and intervention
techniques, which may include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques,
procedures for responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.


In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall inform teachers, administrators, and/or


counselors of crimes and offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom.
(Education Code 48201, 49079; Welfare and Institutions Code 827)


The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not limited to,
district and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way
communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur.


Use of Pepper Spray


Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities.


Reporting of Injurious Objects


Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a
weapon or unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-sponsored
activity. Annual training will be provided to employees about protocols for responding to injurious objects
on campus. Employees shall exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and shall do
one of the following:


1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately


2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action


3. Immediately call 911 and the principal


When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, an


employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any
seizure.


364/371







Policy 6120: Response To Instruction And InterventionPolicy 6120: Response To Instruction And Intervention Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2009 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2009


The Governing Board desires to improve learning and behavioral outcomes for all students by providing a high-quality, 
data-driven educational program that meets the learning and behavioral needs of each student and reduces disparities 
in achievement among subgroups of students.  Students who are not making academic progress pursuant to district 
measures of performance and/or are struggling behaviorally shall receive intensive instruction and intervention 
supports designed to meet individual learning needs, with progress monitored.


The Superintendent or designee shall convene a team that may include, as appropriate, staff with knowledge of 
curriculum and instruction, student services, special education, and instructional and behavioral support, certificated 
personnel, other district staff, and parents/guardians to assist in designing the district's Response to Instruction and 
Intervention (RtI2) system, based on an examination of indicators of district and schoolwide student achievement and 
social-emotional well-being.


The district's RtI2 system shall include instructional strategies and interventions with demonstrated effectiveness and 
be aligned with the district curriculum and assessments. The Superintendent or designee may conduct ongoing 
screening to determine student needs, analyze data, identify interventions for students not making adequate 
academic progress, monitor the effectiveness of the interventions, and adjust interventions according to efficacy.


The district's RtI2 system shall include research-based, standards-based, culturally relevant instruction for students in 
the general education program; universal screening and continuous classroom monitoring to determine students' 
needs and to identify those students who are not making progress; criteria for determining the types and levels of 
interventions to be provided; and subsequent monitoring of student progress to determine the effectiveness of the 
intervention and to make changes as needed.


Additionally, the districts RtI2 system shall provide for:


1. High-quality classroom instruction


2. High expectations


3. Assessments and data collection


4. Problem-solving systems approach


5. Research-based interventions


6. Positive behavioral support


7. Fidelity of program implementation


8. Staff development and collaboration, which may include training in the use of assessments, data analysis, 
research-based instructional practices and strategies and emphasize a collaborative approach of professional 
learning communities among teachers within and across grade spans


9. Parent/guardian and family involvement, including collaboration and engagement
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians are involved at all stages of the 
instructional, intervention, and progress monitoring process.  Parents/guardians shall be kept informed of the 
services that have and will be provided, the strategies being used to increase the student's rate of learning, the 
supports provided to improve behavioral difficulties, and the performance data that has and will be collected.


10. Consideration of further evaluation utilizing RtI2 data


The RtI2 system may be utilized as one component when considering the referral of a student for evaluation 


for special education or other services.


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


365/371







Policy 6146.1: High School Graduation RequirementsPolicy 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements SSttaattuuss:: Adopted


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/11/2011 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/02/2021


The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to successfully complete the high school course of study and
obtain a diploma that represents their educational achievement and increases their opportunities for postsecondary
education and employment.


Course Requirements


To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete the following courses in grades 9-12, with each course
being one year unless otherwise specified:


1. Four courses in English  (Education Code 51225.3)


2. Two courses in mathematics  (Education Code 51225.3)
Students shall complete at least one mathematics course that meets or exceeds the state academic content 
standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I.  Students may complete such coursework prior to grade 9 provided 
that they also complete two mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 51224.5)


Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion of an approved 
computer science course that is classified as a "category c" course based on the "a-g" course requirements for 
college admission, which may be counted toward additional graduation requirements in mathematics.
(Education Code 51225.3, 51225.35)


3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences  (Education Code 51225.3)


4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world history, culture, and 
geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; and a one-semester course in economics  
(Education Code 51225.3)


5. One semester/5 units of applied arts


6. One course in visual or performing arts and world language.  For purposes of this requirement, a course in 
American Sign Language shall be deemed a course in world language.  (Education Code 51225.3)


7. One additional course/10 units of fine arts, applied arts, world language or career technical education (CTE) 


To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned to the CTE model 


curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 51225.3)


8. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted pursuant to other sections 
of the Education Code  (Education Code 51225.3)


9. One semester/5 units of health.


10. Completion of 70 credits of elective courses.
The minimum credits required to graduate is 230 credits. 


Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the Board shall provide 
alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with law.


Exemptions from District-Adopted Graduation Requirements


District students are required to complete graduation course requirements specified above, including the 
requirements imposed by Education Code 51225.3 and those adopted by the Board. However, a foster youth, 
homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant student who transfers 
into the district or between district schools any time after completing the second year of high school, or a newly 
arrived immigrant student who is in the third or fourth year of high school and is participating in a newcomer


Board Policy Manual
Santa Cruz City Schools


366/371







program, shall be exempted from any graduation requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to 
statewide course requirements. This exemption shall not apply if the Superintendent or designee makes a finding 
that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of 
high school.


Within 30 days of the transfer into a school or of the commencement of participation in a newcomer program, as 
applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall notify any eligible student of the availability of the exemption and 
whether the student qualifies for it.  (Education Code 51225.1)


If during the 2020-21 school year a student was in the third or fourth year of high school and is not on track to 
graduate in four years, the district shall exempt the student from any local graduation requirements adopted by the 
Board that are in addition to statewide course requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3.  (Education Code 
51225)


Additional Opportunities to Complete Required Coursework


The Superintendent or designee shall provide a student who was enrolled in the third or fourth year of high school 
during the 2020-21 school year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021-22 school years the 
opportunity to complete the statewide coursework required for graduation, which may include, but is not limited to, 
completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit recovery, or other opportunity to complete 
the required coursework.  (Education Code 51225)


Retroactive Diplomas


Any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school year and met all applicable graduation 
requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination shall be granted a high school diploma.
 (Education Code 51413)


In addition, the district may retroactively grant high school diplomas to former students who:  (Education Code 
48204.4, 51430, 51440)


1. Departed California against their will while in grade 12 and did not receive a diploma because the departure
interrupted their education, provided that they were in good academic standing at the time of the departure


Persons may be considered to have departed California against their will if they were in custody of a
government agency and were transferred to another state, were subject to a lawful order from a court or
government agency that authorized their removal from California, were subject to a lawful order and were
permitted to depart California before being removed from California pursuant to the lawful order, were
removed or were permitted to depart voluntarily pursuant to the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, or
departed due to other circumstances determined by the district that are consistent with the purposes of
Education Code 48204.4.


In determining whether to award a diploma under these circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall
consider any coursework that may have been completed outside of the United States or through online or
virtual courses.


2. Were interned by order of the federal government during World War II or are honorably discharged veterans
of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that they were enrolled in a district school
immediately preceding the internment or military service and did not receive a diploma because their
education was interrupted due to the internment or military service in those wars


Deceased former students who satisfy these conditions may be granted a retroactive diploma to be received
by their next of kin.


3. Are veterans who entered the military service of the United States while in grade 12 and who had satisfactorily
completed the first half of the work required for grade 12 in a district school


4. Were in their senior year of high school during the 2019-20 school year, were in good academic standing and
on track to graduate at the end of the 2019-20 school year as of March 1, 2020, and were unable to complete
the statewide graduation requirements as a result of the COVID-19 crisis


367/371







Honorary Diplomas


The Board may grant an honorary high school diploma to:  (Education Code 51225.5)


1. An international exchange student who has not completed the course of study ordinarily required for
graduation and who is returning to the student's home country following the completion of one academic
school year in the district


2. A student who is terminally ill


The honorary diploma shall be clearly distinguishable from the regular diploma of graduation awarded by the district.
 (Education Code 51225.5)


368/371







Policy 6164.4: Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special EducationPolicy 6164.4: Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 11/01/2008


The Governing Board recognizes the need to actively seek out and evaluate district residents from birth to age 21 
who have disabilities in order to provide them with appropriate educational opportunities in accordance with state 
and federal law.


The Superintendent or designee shall establish a comprehensive child find system that includes procedures for the 
identification, screening, referral, assessment, and triennial assessment of individuals eligible for special education, as 
well as procedures for the planning, implementation, and review of the special education and related services 
provided to such individuals.  (Education Code 56301)


The district's identification procedures shall include systematic methods for utilizing referrals from parents/guardians, 
teachers, and appropriate professionals, and shall be coordinated with school site procedures for referral of students 
whose needs cannot be met with modifications to the regular instructional program.  (Education Code 56302)


The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians, in writing, of their rights related to identification, 
referral, assessment, instructional planning, implementation, and review, including the right to consent to any 
assessment concerning their child.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of 
procedures for initiating a referral for assessment to identify individuals requiring special education services.  
(Education Code 56301)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


369/371







Policy 6164.41: Children With Disabilities Enrolled By Their Parents In Private SchoolPolicy 6164.41: Children With Disabilities Enrolled By Their Parents In Private School Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2007


The Governing Board recognizes its obligations under state and federal to locate, identify, evaluate, and provide 
equitable services to children voluntarily enrolled by their parents/guardians in private schools located within the 
district.


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that activities to locate, identify, and evaluate children with disabilities 
enrolled by their parents/guardians in private schools within the district are comparable to activities undertaken for 
individuals with disabilities aged three to 22 in public schools within the district.  (Education Code 56171; 34 CFR 
300.131)


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a budget for the provision of services to children with disabilities 
enrolled by their parents/guardians in private school based on the proportionate share of federal funds received and 
the number of eligible children, including the possibility of mid-year enrollees, and the types of services to be 
provided.


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


370/371







Policy 6164.5: Student Success TeamsPolicy 6164.5: Student Success Teams Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1990 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2004


The Governing Board encourages the collaboration of parents/guardians, certificated and classified staff, 
administrators, and/or the student, as appropriate, in evaluating the strengths and needs of students having academic, 
attendance, social, emotional, or behavioral difficulties and in identifying strategies and programs that may assist such 
students in maximizing their potential.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish student success teams (SST) as 
needed to address individual student needs.


The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a process for initiating the referral of students to SSTs, 
which may include referral by district staff, parents/guardians, and/or agency representatives.  The Superintendent or 
designee may also establish and maintain a process for responding to SST referrals, which may include a determination 
by the district as to whether an SST shall be convened for an individual student.


Each SST may collect and analyze relevant student data, as appropriate.  The SST may also review the student's 
educational history, work samples, strengths and areas for growth, and identify available resources and strategies.


Each SST shall develop a plan to support the student which incorporates intervention strategies.  Such strategies may 
include changes in program placement or instructional methods, recommendation of supplemental educational 
services, parent involvement strategies, social, emotional and/or behavioral interventions, discipline, referrals to other 
agencies or resources, and/or other appropriate interventions.


The SST shall monitor the student's progress, evaluate the extent to which the recommended strategies have been 
implemented, make adjustments to the plan, and develop additional interventions as needed.


The SST process shall not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, as may be required 
under state or federal law.


The Superintendent or designee may integrate SSTs into the district's multi-tiered system of support, including 
identification of students who need additional support, the level(s) of support, appropriate interventions, monitoring of 
progress, and whether the goal of intervention has been met.


To strengthen the effectiveness of SSTs, the Superintendent or designee may provide staff development in the 
identification of students who may need additional support, implementation of measurable and targeted interventions, 
and monitoring of progress and goal attainment.


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


371/371





		Agenda 01.12.22

		8.1.1.1. Williams Report Q2

		8.1.1.1. Williams Complaint Form Q2 2021

		8.1.1.2. SCHS HHS OOS Conference CADA Cover

		8.1.1.2. SCHS HHS Conference CADA

		8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover

		8.1.2.1. PO BOARD REPORT FOR 011222 MEETING

		8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover

		8.1.2.2. Warrant Register Dec 2021

		8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers Report cover

		8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers Dec 2021

		8.1.2.4. Bond Projects Notice of Completion Cover

		8.1.2.4. Bond Projects Notice of Completion

		8.1.2.6. Disposition of Surplus 1.12.22- Cover

		8.1.2.6. Surplus List-IT 1.12.22

		Personnel Actions--Certificated

		Personnel Actions--Classified

		8.2.1.1. MBAMP Board Cover

		8.2.1.1 CSA Monterey Bay Area Math Project

		8.2.1.1. MBAMP Fee for Service Agreement

		8.2.2.1. Development Group Inc Proposal Security Cameras Cover

		8.2.2.1. Development Group Inc Proposal Security Cameras

		8.3.1. Anaya Construction Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Cover

		8.3.1. Anaya Construction Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing

		8.3.2. California Premier Restoration Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Dry Rot Repair Cover

		8.3.2. California Premier Restoration Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Dry Rot Repair

		8.3.3. Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Contract DeLaveaga Elementary School Kindergarten Window Assembly Replacement Cover

		8.3.3. Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Contract DeLaveaga Elementary School Kindergarten Window Assembly Replacement

		8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Proposal District Office Automatic Door Operators Cover

		8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Proposal District Office Automatic Door Operators

		8.5.1.1 Redistricting Trustee Areas Cover 1.12.22

		8.5.1.1. Santa Cruz City Schools 2021 Redistricting 2

		8.5.1.1. Area Realignment 1

		8.5.1.1. Area Realignment 2

		8.5.1.1. Minimal Change 1

		8.5.1.1. Minimal Change 2

		8.5.2.1. Transitional Kindergarten Board Cover Update January 12, 2022

		8.5.2.1. SCCS TK Board Presentation

		8.5.3.1. 2020-21 District Audit Report cover

		8.5.3.1. SantaCruzCS-6.30.2021-FS-Final

		8.5.3.2. 2020-21 Bond Measures A & B Audits Report cover

		8.5.3.2. SantaCruzCS- Measure A-2021-FS-Final

		8.5.3.2. SantaCruzCS-Measure A-Perf Audit-2021-Final

		8.5.3.2. SantaCruzCS- Measure B-2021-FS-Final

		8.5.3.2. SantaCruzCS- Measure B-Perf Audit-2021-Final

		8.5.3.3. Res. 21-21-22 Cover

		8.5.3.3. Resolution Approving Solar Energy Equipment Lease Financing (SC336001-2xAAE13)

		8.5.3.3. Summary of Proposals - Santa Cruz City Schools District Equipment Financing

		8.5.3.3. [Form-of] Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement (SC336955xAAE13)

		8.5.3.3. [Form-of] Escrow Agreement (SC336968xAAE13)

		8.5.3.3. [Form-of] Placement Agent Agreement - Santa Cruz City Schools

		8.5.3.3. SCCS 1st Interim NVA 2022 Letter (1)

		8.5.4.1. Personnel Commissioner Public Hearing Cover

		NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING Personnel Commissioner ENG

		NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING Personnel Commissioner SPA

		8.5.4.2. Personnel Commissioner Appointment Cover

		8.5.4.2. Mckee Resume

		New Business_ Annual Resolution 17-21-22_ Determination of K-12 District Needs

		New Business_ Annual Resolution 18-21-22_ Tie Breaker Criteria

		8.5.4.5-Cover- Tentative Agreement between GSCFT and SCCS

		8.5.4.5-Attachment- Tentative Agreement between GSCFT and SCCS

		8.5.5.1. Resolution 19-21-22  Black History Month Cover

		8.5.5.1. Black History Month Resolution

		8.5.5.2. Resolution 20-21-22 Cover

		8.5.5.2. Resolution 20-21-22

		8.5.5.2. Assembly Bill 361 Presentation

		8.5.5.3. Cvr Board Policy Updates First or Final Reading

		CSBA Policy Guidesheet

		BP 0470 COVID Mitigation Plan

		BP 3516.5 Emergency Schedules

		BP 4131 Staff Development

		BP 4158 4258 4358 Employee Security.docx

		BP 6120 Response to Instruction and Intervention

		BP 6146.1  High School Graduation Requirements

		BP 6164.4 Identification and Eval of Individuals for Special Ed.

		BP 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled in Private School

		BP 6164.5 Student Success Teams




